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In this annual report, unless otherwise required by the context, the following terms shall have the meanings set out

below.

“Annual General Meeting” or
“‘AGM”

“Articles”

“Board”

“China IC Fund”

“China IC Fund II”

“Company” or
“Hua Hong Semiconductor”

»

“Director(s)

an annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 8 May 2025;

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time);
the Board of Directors of the Company;

China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd.* (BIZREK BIREER
BEESBRMABMRAT]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 26 September 2014;
its shareholders include the Ministry of Finance, the enterprises in the Integrated
Circuit Industry Cluster, large-scale state-owned enterprises, certain financial
institutions and private enterprises. It mainly focuses on the manufacturing of
semiconductor wafers and takes into account the upstream and downstream links
covering chip design, package test, equipment and materials etc;

China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund (Phase Il) Co., Ltd.* (BIZR&EK
BEREEREES _HRMAR AR, a company established in the PRC on 22
October 2019; its shareholders include the Ministry of Finance, the enterprises in
the Integrated Circuit Industry Cluster, large-scale state-owned enterprises, certain
financial institutions and private enterprises. It mainly invests in the value chain of
the integrated circuit industry via equity investment, primarily in integrated circuit
chip manufacturing as well as chip designing, packaging test and equipment
and materials. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief and
having made all reasonable enquiry, China IC Fund Il is not an associate of China
IC Fund under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules;

Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 21 January 2005 and, except where otherwise required by the
context, all of its subsidiaries, or its present subsidiaries where the context refers to
the time before it became the holding company of its present subsidiaries;

the Director(s) of the Company;



‘EPS”

“Extraordinary General Meeting”
or "EGM”

“Grace Cayman”

“Group”

“HHGrace”

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”
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earnings per share;

an extraordinary general meeting of the Company;

Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, an exempted company with
limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 October 1999 and a wholly
— owned subsidiary of our Company;

our Company and our subsidiaries or, where required by the context, with respect
to the period before our Company became the holding company of our present
subsidiaries (or became such associated companies of our Company), the business
operated by such subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be);

Shanghai Huahong Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation (_E/&ZE 8 7 )
FERERLEATR AN R]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 24 January 2013 and
a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company;

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;
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“Huahong Group”

“Huahong Group Framework
Agreement”

“Huahong Real Estate”

“Huahong Technology
Development”

“Huajin Property Management”

“Huali Micro”

“Shanghai Huali”

“Hua Hong Wuxi”

“Hua Hong Manufacturing”

Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. (/&% ( £E )BRAR]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 9 April 1996 as Shanghai Hua Hong Microelectronics
Co., Ltd. and renamed as Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. in 1998, and a
substantial shareholder of our Company;

the framework agreement dated 30 December 2023 entered into between the
Company and Huahong Group to regulate the sales and purchase transactions and
provision of services between the Group and Huahong Group, its subsidiaries or
associates (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) for the year ending
31 December 2024;

Shanghai Huahong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (E/S8ZEMEXHFREAF]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 28 October 2011 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Huahong Technology Development;

Shanghai Huahong Technology Development Co., Limited (_H/8ZEIT R RERE QD
A]), a connected person, a company incorporated in the PRC on 10 May 2010, and
a company 50% held by and consolidated with Huahong Group and 50% held by
HHGrace;

Shanghai Huajin Property Management Co., Ltd. (b/BZERMEESEER AR, a
company incorporated in the PRC on 8 June 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Huahong Technology Development and a connected person of the Company;

Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Corporation (/8% J#E FHR A 7)), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 18 January 2010 and a connected person;

Huali Micro and its holding subsidiaries;

Hua Hong Semiconductor (Wuxi) Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC on
10 October 2017 and a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company held as to
approximately 22.22%, 28.78%, 20.00%, 20.58% and 8.42% by the Company,
HHGrace, Wuxi Xi Hong Guo Xin, China IC Fund and China IC Fund Il, respectively;

Hua Hong Semiconductor Manufacturing (Wuxi) Co., Ltd.* (ZEUT & eI ( &
% )BPR/AT]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 17 June 2022 and a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company held as to approximately 21.90%, 29.10%,
20.00% and 29.00% by the Company, HHGrace, Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin and China
IC Fund Il, respectively;



“Listing Rules”

“RMB Share(s)” or “A Share(s)”

“RMB Share Issue”

“SAIL"

“SFC”

“SFO”

“STAR Market”

“Wuxi Xi Hong Guo Xin”

“Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin”

* For identification purpose only
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the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time;

the ordinary share(s) of the Company which are listed on the STAR Market and
traded in RMB;

the Company’s issue of 407,750,000 RMB Shares, which are listed and became
available for trading on the STAR Market on 7 August 2023;

Shanghai Alliance Investment Limited (E/&BMIEEBRAF]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 26 September 1994, a substantial shareholder of our
Company;

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong;

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time;

the Science and Technology Innovation Board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange;

Wuxi Xi Hong Guo Xin Investment Co., Ltd.* (EHBIARGIEEEREAR), a
professional investment company incorporated in the PRC on 16 January 2023,
jointly controlled by municipal and district-level state-owned enterprises, holding
20.00% of the shares of Hua Hong Wuxi, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company; and

Wuxi Xi Hong Lian Xin Investment Co., Ltd.* (EHIHAHHIZREBR AR, a
professional investment company incorporated in the PRC on 19 December 2017,
jointly established by municipal and district-level state-owned enterprises, holding
20.00% of the shares of Hua Hong Manufacturing, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company.



KEY FINANCIALS
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Dear Shareholders,

For Hua Hong Semiconductor, 2024 was a year of significant challenges as well as relentless progress and
determination. After enduring a period of weak demand and the pressure of high inventory, the global semiconductor
industry is now witnessing a moderate recovery. Despite uncertainties in demand outside of the Al and consumer
electronics market sectors, as well as intense competition and pricing pressures stemming from an increase in the
supply of mature-node chips, Hua Hong Semiconductor has maintained steady development in a complex and
changeable environment by leveraging its deep-rooted expertise in specialty technologies and strong customer
support. The Company achieved sales revenue of US$2,004 million for the year, with near-full average capacity
utilization and steady quarter-on-quarter improvement in overall financial performance.

In the fourth quarter of 2024, the second 12-inch production line located in Wuxi (the Hua Hong Manufacturing Project)
was successfully put into operation, marking another significant milestone in the Company’s “8-inch + 12-inch” strategy.
Following an eighteen-month period encompassing facility construction, cleanroom delivery, equipment installation,
debugging and verification, the Hua Hong Manufacturing Project was completed and commenced production ahead
of schedule. Various specialty process platforms have been successfully integrated and are expected to drive steady
revenue growth starting in 2025, laying a solid foundation for future performance improvement.

As a technology enterprise that prioritizes high-quality productivity, innovation remains the sole key to maintaining
leadership. The Company continues to increase its R&D investment in process technology — Our core competitive
edge. By the end of 2024, the Company had accumulated a total of 4,644 authorized patents, both domestically
and internationally. Through continuous iteration and advancement of its process platforms, the Company provides
customers and ecosystem partners with an enhanced product portfolio, while laying a solid foundation for the next
phase of development. With steadily advancing business expansion and capacity growth, the Company has been
focusing on further improvements in operational efficiency during the industry’s trough. By implementing cost-reduction
and efficiency-enhancement measures across sales and marketing, procurement and supply chain, production
and manufacturing, as well as operational support, the Company has strengthened cost control and solidified its
competitive advantages.
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Looking ahead in 2025, the global semiconductor market is expected to continue its moderate recovery. The
penetration of Al applications is set to accelerate demand for upgrades in sectors such as smartphones, computer,
and automotive intelligence, while demand in industrial and new energy fields is also anticipated to gradually rebound.
In the new year, Hua Hong Semiconductor will steadfastly enhance its production capacity expansion, ensuring the Hua
Hong Manufacturing Project ramps up production as planned. The Company will continue to optimize its advanced
“Specialty IC + Power Discrete” process and product portfolio, increasing the proportion of high-value products. It will
also deepen strategic collaboration with customers and end-market ecosystem partners, to meet the rising demand
driven by supply chain localization in the Chinese market. Moving forward, the Company will leverage innovation as
its engine for growth and quality for its foundation, seizing opportunities in the industry’s new growth cycle to create
sustainable value for shareholders, and collaborate with partners to write a new chapter in the semiconductor industry!

Junjun Tang
Chairman and Executive Director

Peng Bai
President and Executive Director

Shanghai, PRC
27 March 2025
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Executive Directors

Junjun Tang (Chairman)

Peng Bai (President) (appointed on 1 January 2025)
Suxin Zhang (resigned on 31 December 2024)

Non-Executive Directors

Jun Ye

Guodong Sun

Bo Chen (appointed on 7 March 2025)

Chengyan Xiong (appointed on 28 March 2024)

Limin Zhou (appointed on 19 January 2024, resigned
on 7 March 2025)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Stephen Tso Tung Chang

Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Songlin Feng (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Long Fei Ye (resigned on 28 March 2024)

Company Secretary
Sui Har Lee

Authorized Representatives
Junjun Tang
Sui Har Lee

Audit Committee

Stephen Tso Tung Chang (Chairman)
Chengyan Xiong (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Songlin Feng (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Jun Ye (resigned on 28 March 2024)

Long Fei Ye (resigned on 28 March 2024)

Remuneration Committee

Kwai Huen Wong, JP (Chairman)

Jun Ye (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Songlin Feng (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Long Fei Ye (resigned on 28 March 2024)

Nomination Committee

Junjun Tang (Chairman) (appointed

on 31 December 2024)

Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Songlin Feng (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Suxin Zhang (resigned on 31 December 2024)
Long Fei Ye (resigned on 28 March 2024)

www.huahonggrace.com

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road, Quarry Bay
Hong Kong, PRC

Herbert Smith Freehills
23/F, Gloucester Tower
15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong, PRC

China Construction Bank Shanghai Branch
No. 900, Lujiazui Ring Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai, PRC

China Development Bank Shanghai Branch
No. 68, Puming Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai, PRC

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. Shanghai Branch
No.1088 Lujiazui Ring Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai, PRC

China Construction Bank Corporation Hong Kong
Branch

28/F, CCB Tower, 3 Connaught Road, Central

Hong Kong, PRC

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
20 Pedder Street, Central
Hong Kong, PRC

China Development Bank Jiangsu Branch
No. 232, Middle Jiangdong Road
Nanjing, Jiangsu, PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Wuxi Xinwu Subbranch
No. 26, Hefeng Road, Xinwu District
Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC

China Construction Bank Wuxi High and New
Technology Industrial Development Zone Subbranch
No. 26, Hefeng Road, Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC

China CITIC Bank Wuxi New District Subbranch
No. 26, Hefeng Road, Xinwu District
Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC

Bank of China Wuxi High and New Technology
Industrial Development Zone Subbranch

No. 140, Wangzhuang Road, Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Wuxi Branch
No.8, 2nd Financial Street, Binhu District
Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Share Registrar

Hong Kong shares:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong, PRC

A shares:

China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation
Limited, Shanghai Branch

No. 188 South Yanggao Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai, PRC

Registered Office

Room 2212, Bank of America Tower
12 Harcourt Road, Central
Hong Kong, PRC

Principal Places of Business

288 Halei Road
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park
Shanghai, PRC
Postcode: 201203

No. 30, Xinzhou Road
Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC
Postcode: 214028

No. 30-1, Xinzhou Road
Xinwu District

Wuxi, Jiangsu, PRC
Postcode: 214028

Stock Code

Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 01347
Shanghai Stock Exchange: 688347
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Mr. Junjun Tang, aged 60, was appointed on 1 May 2019 as the President
and Executive Director of the Company, and subsequently redesignated on
31 December 2024 as the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Tang also serves as Chairman of HHGrace, Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua
Hong Manufacturing. Mr. Tang has extensive experience in the integrated
circuit industry and management and possesses strong coordination and
execution ability. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Tang was the Secretary
of the Party Committee, Vice President and Executive Vice President of
Huali Micro from February 2010 to March 2019, and concurrently served
as the President of Shanghai Huali from August 2016 to March 2019.
During the period from July 2008 to February 2010, Mr. Tang was the Vice
Secretary of the Party Committee, President of Trade Union and head of
administrative and government relationships of Shanghai Hua Hong NEC
Electronics Co., Ltd.. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Tang successively
held various positions, including Associate Chief Officer of Shanghai Bureau
of Instrument and Telecommunications Industry (L/BEXREHAILER),
Technologist of Shanghai Radio No.17 Factory (L/&8#E4E+-+LH) and
Technologist of Shanghai Semiconductor Device No.4 Factory (L/&¥&E
BESS{FPUMR). Mr. Tang graduated from Southwest Jiaotong University with
an Undergraduate’s degree in Business Administration. He also graduated
from China Europe International Business School with a Master's degree in
Business Administration. He holds the title of Chief Senior Economist, and
was awarded titles including National May 1st Labor Medal, National Model
Worker, National Outstanding Party Affairs Worker.

Dr. Peng Bai, aged 62, was appointed as the President and Executive
Director of the Company on 1 January 2025. Mr. Bai also serves as President
and Director of HHGrace, Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing.
Mr. Bai has over 30 years of experience in the field of integrated circuits
manufacturing. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Bai was the Chief
Executive Officer of Rong Semiconductor Corporation (8B HR N
A]), where he had held the position since 2022. Before that, he served as a
process integration engineer, process integration manager, director of yield
engineering, director of research and development and vice president, and
corporate vice president, successively, at Intel Corporation. Mr. Bai studied
at Peking University and subsequently graduated from the University of
Bucharest in 1985 with a Bachelor of Science degree in Physics, and received
a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Physics from the Rensselaer Polytechnic
Institute in 1991.
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Mr. Jun Ye, aged 52, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company
since February 2012, and is a Director of HHGrace. Mr. Ye has more than
20 years of experience in finance and investment. Mr. Ye has successively
held various positions in SAIL, including Manager of the Investment Banking
Division and the Business Development Division, General Manager Assistant,
Deputy General Manager and General Manager since 1996 and Chairman
since March 2025. Mr. Ye is also a Director at Bank of Shanghai, Chairman
of Shanghai Zhaoxin Semiconductor Co., Ltd., Sinotherapeutics Inc. and
Sino-US United MetLife Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Ye obtained a
Bachelor’'s degree in Industrial and International Trade and a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Mr. Guodong Sun, aged 47, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director
of the Company with effect from 10 December 2020. Mr. Sun is also the
Director of Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing. Mr. Sun joined
China Development Bank in 2000. From 2000 to 2014, Mr. Sun held various
positions in China Development Bank, including Deputy Director of the Human
Resources Systems Division, Deputy Director and Director of the Hubei
Branch Human Resources Department, etc. Mr. Sun had been the General
Manager of the Human Resources Department of Sino-IC Capital Co., Ltd. (&
TR EERARETAE]) from December 2014 to July 2016, and has been
the Managing Director of Sino-IC Capital Co., Ltd. since July 2016, and has
been the General Manager of Shanghai Branch of Sino-IC Capital Co., Ltd.
since May 2024. Mr. Sun graduated from Beijing Institute of Technology in
the PRC with a Bachelor's degree in Computer Application and from Central
University of Finance and Economics in the PRC with a Master's degree in
Business Administration.
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Mr. Bo Chen, aged 48, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the
Company on 7 March 2025. Mr. Chen is also the Director of HHGrace, Hua
Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing. Mr. Chen is currently serving as the
vice president of Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. ( E/&FI (£E)ERE A
Al) and as the Chairman of Shanghai Hua Hong Hongri Electronics Co., Ltd.
(E/BFEMITHETAR2AR]). Mr. Chen has extensive experience in strategic
development of high-tech industries and fixed asset investment. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Chen held various positions at the Shanghai Municipal
Development and Reform Commission (/8T RMNEZES) from 2001
to 2023, including Deputy Principal Staff Member, Principal Staff Member,
Assistant to the Division Director, Deputy Division Director, Division Director
and Level | Division Rank Official. Mr. Chen graduated from Fudan University
and received a Master of Science degree.

Ms. Chengyan Xiong, aged 45, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company with effect from 28 March 2024. Ms. Xiong has nearly 20
years of experience working in the finance and accounting sector. Prior
to joining the Company, Ms. Xiong was a deputy chief staff member and
chief staff member of the budget office of Shanghai State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission* (EEMERAEEEBEEEE
Bg), after which she held positions as deputy head and head in various
departments within the group companies of Huahong Group. Ms. Xiong
is currently the director of the capital and finance department of Huahong
Group and holds various positions as a director or a supervisor at a number
of the subsidiaries of Huahong Group. Ms. Xiong graduated from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics (_E/8BI#€K2) with a Master's degree
in management. Ms. Xiong is also a senior accountant and a non-practising
certified public accountant in the PRC.
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Mr. Suxin Zhang, resigned on 31 December 2024 as the Chairman and an
Executive Director of our Company as well as the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Limin Zhou, resigned on 7 March 2025 as a Non-Executive Director of
the Company.
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Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang, aged 76, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of our Company and a Director of HHGrace. Mr. Chang was a
certified public accountant in Hong Kong and a member of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants from 1978 to the end of 2003. He has been a Fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since
January 1983, and has extensive experience in accounting, auditing and
financial management. Mr. Chang held various positions at Ernst & Young
starting in 1976. He became a Management Committee Member of Ernst &
Young in 1989 and was actively involved in establishing and monitoring the
firm’s internal control and risk management policy and procedures. Prior to
his promotion to Managing Partner of the Professional Services Department,
he was Chairman of Ernst and Young's audit and advisory business services
for four years. He was a Partner of Ernst and Young and the Chairman of
Ernst and Young China and Hong Kong prior to his retirement in 2003. He is a
member of the Investment Committee of Shanghai Fudan University Education
Development Foundation and Fudan University Education Development
Foundation (overseas). He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director
of China World Trade Center Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600007.SH), and was
formerly an Independent Non-Executive Director of China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1359.HK), Kerry Properties Limited (stock
code: 683.HK) and China Life Insurance Company Ltd. (stock code: 2628.
HK). Mr. Chang obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Food Science and
Chemistry from the University of London.

Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, SBS, BBS, JP, aged 73, is an Independent Non —
Executive Director of our Company and a Director of HHGrace. Mr. Wong
had served as the PRC Managing Partner of two international law firms for
15 years. Prior to that, he worked for the Lands Department, Department of
Justice and Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR Government for a total
of 10 years. He was appointed as a Member of Airport Authority Hong Kong,
Hospital Authority, and the Competition Commission from 2011 to 2018. He
was the former Chairman of the Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre,
the former President of the Law Society of Hong Kong and Inter-Pacific Bar
Association, and the former Chairman of Hong Kong Copyright Tribunal. He
is presently the Chairman of Hong Kong Inland Revenue Board of Review,
and the Independent Non-Executive Director of Vinda International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3331.HK) and NWS Holdings Limited (stock code:
659.HK). Mr. Kwai Huen Wong was formerly a Director of the Hong Kong
Mortgage Corporation Limited and an Independent Non-Executive Director
of China Oilfield Services Limited. In addition, he is the Honorary Lecturer,
External Examiner, Advisory Board Member and Professor at The University
of Hong Kong, The Chinese University of Hong Kong, City University of Hong
Kong, Hong Kong Baptist University and Hong Kong Shue Yan University. Mr.
Wong holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and a Bachelor of Law degree from the University of London.
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Mr. Songlin Feng, aged 60, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of our Company and the Director of HHGrace with effect from 28 March
2024. He has over 32 years of experience in academic research in science
and technology, including integrated circuits and semiconductors. He
successively served as a deputy researcher, researcher, deputy director,
director, an assistant to head and the head of the Institute of Semiconductors
of the Chinese Academy of Sciences* (FEIRIZPTEEEMZTFT) from
February 1992 to December 2000. From January 2001 to August 2010,
he was a researcher, deputy head and the head of Shanghai Institute of
Microsystems and Information Technology of the Chinese Academy of
Sciences* (HF BRI LG R G 8 SRATFAZTAT). He successively served
as a researcher, the leader of the planning team and the Dean of Shanghai
Advanced Research Institute of the Chinese Academy of Sciences* (FF B} 22
bt s ERFERT) from March 2009 to May 2017, and then as a researcher
of the Institute, retiring in May 2024. Mr. Feng has been an independent
director of INESA Intelligent Tech Inc. (EEEHRHBHRAF]), a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600602) and Shanghai
Zhaoxin Semiconductor Co., Ltd.* (EBKEEREERMD AR AF). In
addition, Mr. Feng has been a director of Shanghai Zhongyan Hongling
Information Technology Co., Ltd.* (E8FHZEAEEREERAF]), Jiaxing
Zhongke Wireless Sensor Network Technology Co., Ltd. (3z&ElFRHELRE
B AR AR A F]) and Shanghai Zengwei Anxin Technology Development
Co., Ltd. (/8% =R EARAF]). Mr. Feng graduated from Wuhan
University (%A £) with a bachelor’s degree in semiconductor physics, and
holds a master’s degree and a doctor’s degree in material sciences from from
Université Paris Diderot — Paris VII, respectively.

Mr. Long Fei Ye, resigned on 28 March 2024 as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of our Company and the member of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
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Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang, aged 62, has been appointed as the Secretary
of the Board of the Company since February 2012. Mr. Wang is also an
Executive Vice President of our Company, HHGrace, Hua Hong Wuxi and
Hua Hong Manufacturing, supervising key functional divisions including
finance, information technology, administration and compliance, board
office, and overseas human resources. In April 2001, Mr. Wang joined
Grace Shanghai Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation and took on a
central leadership position at every phase of Grace Shanghai's growth and
development. His responsibilities encompassed supervising the planning and
execution of the merger, as well as the successful initial public offering of the
company on both the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the STAR board at the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Prior to joining Grace Shanghai Semiconductor
Manufacturing Corporation, Mr. Wang served at LS| Logic Corporation in
San Jose, Silicon Valley, California from August 1995 to March 2001 as the
Division Controller in the Broadband Entertainment Division. Before that, Mr.
Wang was employed by Franklin Templeton Investments in the U.S. Mr. Wang
holds a Bachelor's degree in Industrial Engineering and Operations Research
from the College of Engineering, University of California, Berkeley and a
Master's degree of Business Administration degree in Finance and Banking
from the University of San Francisco, in the U.S.. In the “All — Asia (Ex-Japan)
Executive Team Ranking” published by Institutional Investor, a respected
international financial magazine, he was honored as the Best Chief Financial
Officer in the technology/semiconductor industry for several times.
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As at the date of this report, the Company’s senior management includes:

Mr. Junjun Tang, aged 60, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of
our Company. For more information about Mr. Tang's profile and academic
background, see the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Team — Board of Directors”.

Dr. Peng Bai, aged 62, is the President and Executive Director of the
Company. For more information about Mr. Bai's profile and academic
background, see the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Team — Board of Directors”.

Mr. Weiping Zhou, aged 57, is an Executive Vice President of our Company,
HHGrace, Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing, responsible for
marketing and has over 35 years of experience in the integrated circuit
industry in China. Mr. Zhou joined the Company at the beginning of 2018.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhou was the Executive Vice President
of Shanghai Belling Corporation Limited, the General Manager of Ningbo
Shanshan Ulica Solar Technology Developing Company Limited, the General
Manager of Shanghai Belling Microelectronics Manufacturing Company
Limited, the Deputy Secretary to the Communist Party Committee, President,
Chief Executive Officer, Secretary to the Communist Party Committee and Vice
President of Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation Limited.
Mr. Zhou graduated from East China Normal University with a Bachelor's
degree in Solid State Electronic Technology and subsequently obtained a
Master's degree in Business Administration from Fudan University, and he is a
professor-level Senior Engineer.
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Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang, aged 62, is an Executive Vice President of our
Company, HHGrace, Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing, and is
in charge of finance, information technology, administration and compliance,
board office, and overseas human resources. For more information about Mr.
Wang's profile and academic background, see the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management Team — Board of Directors”.

Mr. Guangping Hua, aged 57, is an Executive Vice President of our
Company, HHGrace, Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing, and is in
charge of technology development and design services. Mr. Hua has nearly
30 years of working experience in the semiconductor industry. Prior to this,
Mr. Hua has worked for Institute of Microelectronics of Tsinghua University,
Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturing Limited (Singapore), Advanced
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation Limited and Shanghai Hua Hong
NEC Electronics Co., Ltd.. Mr. Hua graduated from Tsinghua University with a
Master's degree in Microelectronics Engineering and holds a professional title
of Assistant Researcher.
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Ms. Sui Har Lee, aged 47, has been serving as the Company Secretary of the
Company since November 2019. Ms. Lee is currently a Partner of Jun He Law
Offices. She has around 16 years of experience in general business practices
and corporate financial transactions, such as assisting corporations in listing
their shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, merger and acquisitions,
capital reorganization, and compliance and regulatory matters in relation to
the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Ms. Lee was admitted
as a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in 2005. Ms. Lee graduated
from City University of Hong Kong with the degree of Bachelor of Laws and
obtained the degree of Master of Laws from University College London.
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company diligently practices good corporate governance and has established corporate governance procedures
that comply with the principles in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules.

The Company understands the importance of sound corporate governance practices and recognizes the changing
regulatory environment. Therefore, the Company has continually monitored and updated its corporate governance
practices, from implementing the Code and evaluating the effectiveness of its practices to responding to continuous
developments in the regulatory landscape.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company complied with the Code.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries with all of the Directors, each of whom has confirmed that they
have, throughout the year ended 31 December 2024, complied with the required standards set out therein.

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of managing the business and affairs of the Company. It has
the ultimate responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Company, which is delegated to the Chairman and
management.

The nine-member Board currently comprises two Executive Directors, Mr. Junjun Tang (Chairman) (appointed as the
Chairman on 31 December 2024) and Dr. Peng Bai (President) (appointed on 1 January 2025); four Non-Executive
Directors, Mr. Jun Ye, Mr. Guodong Sun, Mr. Bo Chen (appointed on 7 March 2025) and Ms. Chengyan Xiong
(appointed on 28 March 2024); and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang, Mr.
Kwai Huen Wong, JP, and Mr. Songlin Feng (appointed on 28 March 2024). Mr. Suxin Zhang, Mr. Limin Zhou and Mr.
Long Fei Ye resigned as an Executive Director, a Non-Executive Director and an Independent Non-Executive Director
on 31 December 2024, 7 March 2025 and 28 March 2024, respectively. More details of the Directors are disclosed
on page 12 of this annual report. The Company has published and maintained on its website and on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s website an updated list of the Directors, identifying their roles and functions.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to
re-nomination and re-election by the Company in general meetings, unless previously terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or Director’s service contract.
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The Board meets regularly throughout the year. All Directors are given the opportunity to put items on the agenda for
regular Board meetings. All Directors have access to the Company Secretary to ensure that all Board procedures, rules
and regulations are followed. Full minutes of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are available for
inspection on reasonable notice. Any Director may, in furtherance of his duties, take independent professional advice,
where necessary, at the expense of the Company.

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic direction and policies of the Group and supervising management.
Some functions are reserved by the Board, including, inter alia, the monitoring and approval of material transactions;
matters involving a conflict of interest with a substantial shareholder or a Director of the Company; the approval of
the quarterly, interim and final results; other disclosures to the public or regulators; and the internal control system.
Decisions relating to such matters shall be subject to formal decisions of the Board. Matters not specifically reserved to
the Board and necessary for the daily operations of the Company are delegated to management under the supervision
of the respective Director(s) and the leadership of the Chairman.

The Company has implemented different mechanisms to ensure independent views and input are available to the
Board:

e  Composition of the Board: During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board had at all times complied
with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has three Independent Non-Executive Directors,
representing more than one-third of the Board. At least one of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

¢ Independence assessment: Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent Non
— Executive Directors are independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

e Board decision-making: A Director who has a material interest in any transaction, contract or arrangement
shall not vote (nor shall be counted in the quorum) on any Board resolution approving the same. If a substantial
shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, such matter shall be dealt with in a Board meeting rather than by a written resolution.

e Communication between the Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Directors: The Chairman of the
Board values communication with the Independent Non-Executive Directors highly and holds meetings with them
at least once each year without the presence of other Directors.

e Remuneration of Independent Non-Executive Directors: Independent Non-executive Directors receive
fixed fees for their role as members of the Board and Board committees. No equity-based compensation with
performance-related elements is granted to the Independent Non-executive Directors to avoid potential bias in
their decision-making or compromise to their objectivity and independence.

e Board evaluation: The Board assesses and reviews the time contributed by each Independent Non-Executive
Director and their attendance at Board and Board committee meetings, so as to ensure that every Independent
Non-Executive Director has devoted sufficient time to the Board to discharge his responsibilities as a Director of
the Company.

The implementation and effectiveness of the above mechanisms are reviewed on an annual basis. The Board
considers that such mechanisms had been implemented properly and effectively in the year ended 31 December
2024.
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The roles of the Chairman and the President are separate. The Chairman is responsible for the overall management
and operations of the Company and for proposing and reviewing the corporate directions and strategies of the
Company. The Chairman is responsible for formulating business strategies and provides leadership to the Board,
ensuring effective running of the Board, including that all appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner. The Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings
and all Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information. The Chairman of the Board highly values
communication with the Independent Non-Executive Directors and will hold meetings with them at least once each
year without the presence of other Directors.

The President is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company'’s business and operations as well as
implementation of the Company’s business strategies.

Appropriate insurance has been arranged by the Company to cover potential liabilities of Directors and Officers of the
Company regarding legal actions against said Directors and Officers of the Company and its subsidiaries, arising out
of corporate activities of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board held six Board meetings. The attendance record of each Board
member at Board meetings, meetings of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee, as well as the annual/extraordinary general meeting is set out below:

Suxin Zhang Mete) 6 N/A 3 N/A 1 N/A
Junjun Tang (et® 6 N/A 0 N/A 1 N/A
Peng Bai No© - - - - - -
Jun Ye 6 2 N/A 1 1 N/A
Guodong Sun 6 N/A N/A N/A 1 N/A
Limin Zhou (Mt 6 N/A N/A N/A 1 N/A
Chengyan Xiong Met®) 4 4 N/A N/A 1 N/A
Bo Chen (Nowe) - - - - - -
Stephen Tso Tung 6 6 N/A N/A 1 N/A
Chang
Kwai Huen Wong, JP 6 N/A 3 3 1 N/A
Songlin Feng (ete) 4 4 1 1 1 N/A
Long Fei Ye (Note) 2 2 2 2 - N/A

Note: Peng Bai was appointed as the President and an Executive Director on 1 January 2025. Bo Chen was appointed as a Non-
Executive Director on 7 March 2025. Chengyan Xiong was appointed as a Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee on 28 March 2024. Songlin Feng was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director, a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee on 28 March 2024. Each of Peng Bai, Bo Chen,
Chengyan Xiong and Songlin Feng has obtained legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules, and each of them
has confirmed that he/she understood his/her obligations as a director of a listed issuer.

Junjun Tang was appointed as the Chairman and an Executive Director and a member of the Nomination Committee on 31
December 2024; Suxin Zhang resigned as an Executive Director, the Chairman and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
on 31 December 2024; Limin Zhou resigned as a Non-Executive Director on 7 March 2025; Long Fei Ye resigned as an
Independent Non-Executive Director, a member of Audit Committee, a member of Nomination Committee and a member of
Remuneration Committee on 28 March 2024.
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In place of physical meetings, the Board may circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant members of the
Board except for matters where a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest that the Board has
determined to be material, in which case the matter shall be dealt with by a physical Board meeting (rather than a
written resolution) to comply with provision C.5.7 of the Code.

The Board, having considered the attendance records of the Directors, is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient
time performing his responsibilities.

Directors shall keep abreast of their responsibilities as Directors and of the conduct, business activities, and
development of the Company.

Under Code Provision C.1.4, the Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
programs to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the year ended 31 December 2024, all Directors were provided with timely updates
on the Company’s performance, financial position, prospects, and materials on new or salient changes to laws and
regulations applicable to the Group, to enable the Board as a whole and each Director individually to discharge their
duties. Internally-facilitated briefings for the Directors will be arranged in the next financial year and reading material
on relevant topics will be issued to the Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

The participation by each Director in continuous professional development for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
as of the date of this report is set out below:

Junjun Tang (Chairman)
Peng Bai (President)
Jun Ye

Guodong Sun

Bo Chen

Chengyan Xiong
Stephen Tso Tung Chang
Kwai Huen Wong, JP
Songlin Feng

Suxin Zhang

Limin Zhou

Long Fei Ye

SN SSSSSNSNSNANANANSN
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The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Kwai Huen
Wong, JP, Mr. Songlin Feng (appointed on 28 March 2024) and one Non-Executive Director Mr. Jun Ye (appointed
on 28 March 2024). Mr. Long Fei Ye resigned as a member of the Remuneration Committee on 28 March 2024. The
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP. Each member is sufficiently experienced and
is appropriately skilled in the issues of determining Executive compensation in public companies. The Board expects
committee members to exercise independent judgement in conducting the business of the committee. The roles
and functions of the Remuneration Committee include the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all
Executive Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights, and compensation payments,
and making recommendations to the Board in connection with the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee should consider factors such as the salaries paid by comparable companies, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group, and the desirability of performance-based remuneration. A copy of the terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available from the Company’s website and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange'’s website. The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Remuneration Committee held three meetings to discuss the vesting of
certain options granted under the Company’s share option scheme, and resolved to submit a proposal to the Board
on the vesting arrangements for such options, as well as the remuneration packages for the newly appointed Board
members.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 8 to the Financial Statements.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one Executive Director, Mr. Junjun Tang (appointed on 31 December
2024), and two Independent Non — Executive Directors, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP and Mr. Songlin Feng (appointed
on 28 March 2024). Mr. Suxin Zhang and Mr. Long Fei Ye resigned as a member of the Nomination Committee on
31 December 2024 and on 28 March 2024, respectively. The Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Junjun
Tang. Each member is sufficiently experienced and is appropriately skilled in the issues of nomination of directors
to the Board. The Company has provided the Nomination Committee with sufficient resources to perform its duties.
The Nomination Committee may seek independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities. The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and composition
of the Board, make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, with due regard to the board diversity policy, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships,
assess the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and
the President, and monitor the implementation of the board diversity policy and review such policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee has established a specific written committee charter which deals
clearly with its authority and duties. A copy of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is available from
the Company’s website and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website. The Nomination Committee shall meet at least
once a year.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Nomination Committee held three meetings to recommend to the Board
the appointment of each of the new directors, and discussed topics such as the Company’s remuneration policy and
the competitiveness of the Company’s salary levels.

Pursuant to the Articles, any person appointed as a Director to fill a casual vacancy of the Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the relevant
general meeting, and any Director appointed as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the relevant general meeting. Every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and shall be eligible for re-election in
accordance with the Articles. The Atrticles also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary resolution.
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At least one of the members of the Audit Committee has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee
was a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors within one year immediately prior to the dates of
their respective appointments. All members have appropriate skills and experience in reviewing financial statements
as well as addressing significant control and financial issues of the Company. The Board expects the members of the
Audit Committee to exercise independent judgement and delegates the responsibilities of the corporate governance
functions to the Audit Committee in order to comply with the requirement of the Code.

The Audit Committee currently comprises one Non-Executive Director, Ms. Chengyan Xiong (appointed on 28 March
2024), and two Independent Non — Executive Directors, Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang and Mr. Songlin Feng (appointed
on 28 March 2024). Mr. Long Fei Ye resigned as a member of the Audit Committee on 28 March 2024. Mr. Jun Ye
ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee on 28 March 2024 upon his re-designation as a member of the
Remuneration Committee. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee include the reviewing of the Company'’s financial reporting system, the nature and scope of the
audit review as well as the effectiveness of the system of internal control procedures and risk management. The Audit
Committee is also responsible for making recommendations in relation to the appointment, reappointment, and removal
of the external auditors, and the reviewing and monitoring of the independence and objectivity of the external auditors.
In addition, the Audit Committee discusses matters raised by the external auditors and regulatory bodies to ensure that
appropriate recommendations are implemented. A copy of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available
from the Company’s website and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website. The Audit Committee shall meet at least
twice a year.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee held six meetings and all the committee members
were present at the meetings. The major work performed by the Audit Committee with respect to the year ended 31
December 2024 included reviewing and recommending the re-appointment of the external auditor, approving the
terms of engagement (including the remuneration) of the external auditor and the audit plan, reviewing the unaudited
quarterly results announcement, reviewing the unaudited interim report and interim results announcement for the
six months ended 30 June 2024, reviewing the audited financial statements and final results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2024, reviewing the work of the Group’s audit department and assessing the effectiveness
of the Group’s systems of risk management and internal control. The Audit Committee also held discussions with
management to ensure that the Company has adequate resources, qualified and experienced staff in the accounting
and financial reporting function, training programs and budget.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the remuneration paid and payable to the auditors of the Company, Ernst &
Young, for the provision of audit services and non-audit related services to the Company were US$0.73 million and
US$0.01 million, respectively. Details of significant non-audit related services include tax and risk management
advisory services.
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The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in compliance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules.

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s
competitive advantage. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity will be considered from several aspects,
including without limitation, differences in the talents, skills, regional and industry experience, background, gender,
age, and other qualities of the members of the Board, in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of
talents, skills, experience, and background on the Board. In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board,
the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit against objective criteria and with due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee discussed and agreed on the measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board and recommended them to the Board for adoption. At any given time, the Board may
seek to improve one or more aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly.

The Board believes that gender diversity is an important aspect of Board diversity. Following the resignation of Ms.
Jing Wang on 1 September 2023, the Company did not have a director of a different gender at that moment and, as a
result, prior to the appointment of Ms. Chengyan Xiong as a non-executive Director on 28 March 2024, the Company
could not meet the requirement set out in Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules. Following the appointment of Ms. Chengyan
Xiong as a non-executive director, the Company is compliant with the requirement under Rule 13.92 of the Listing
Rules. Gender diversity aside, the Remuneration Committee took the view that the measurable objectives for Board
diversity had been achieved to a large extent for the year ended 31 December 2024. The Nomination Committee paid
particular attention to the cultural and educational background, professional and technical experience, and skills of
the members of the Board and also reviewed the composition of Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors, so as to ensure appropriate independence within the Board.

The Company will continue to maintain a balance of diverse perspectives on the Board that is appropriate for and
conducive to the Company’s growth.

As at 31 December 2024, the gender ratio of the Group’s workforce (including the Company’s senior management)
was approximately 74% male to 26% female. The Company's hiring is merit-based and non-discriminatory. The Board
is satisfied that the Company has achieved gender diversity in its workforce.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in provision A.2.1 of the Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy, which is subject to annual review to ensure its
implementation and effectiveness. Such policy aims to ensure that Shareholders will have equal and timely access to
information about the Company, so as to enable them to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to allow them
to engage actively with the Company.

A summary of the Company’s shareholders’ communication policy is set out below.

The Company provides information to Shareholders through its financial reports (including quarterly, interim and
annual reports), circulars, announcements and other disclosures submitted to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange for publication.

To further promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at www.huahonggrace.com with
information and updates on the Company’s business developments and operations, list of Directors and their roles and
functions, constitutional documents, terms of reference of the Board and its committees, procedures for nomination
of Directors for election, corporate governance practices, financial reports, circulars, announcements and other
information.

Shareholders’ meetings are a primary forum for communication between the Board and Shareholders. The Company
encourages Shareholders to attend and participate in general meetings to ensure a high level of accountability and
to keep them informed of the Company’s goals and strategies. The Chairman of the Board, other Board members,
and the Chairmen of all the Board committees, or in their absence, other members of the respective committees, are
available to answer any questions from Shareholders. Shareholders are given sufficient notice of the meetings, and
detailed voting procedures are included in circulars to Shareholders accompanying the notices of meetings.

In addition to the above, the Company also publishes newsletters through its WeChat public account. Shareholders
can subscribe to the account to obtain the latest news of the Company.

To promote investors’ understanding of the Company’s business, the Company organises roadshows and on-site visits
to its clean rooms and exhibition halls for investors. The Company has also participated in a number of investment
forums and conducted multiple exchanges with securities analysts, fund management companies, and individual
investors through various means.

In order for the Company to solicit and understand the views of Shareholders and stakeholders, Shareholders and
other stakeholders may make enquiries to the Company through its investor relations contact by email at IR@hhgrace.
com.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of its shareholders’” communication policy for the
year ended 31 December 2024, including the steps taken at the general meetings, the handling of queries received
and the multiple communication channels in place. The Company is of the view that the policy is effective and has
been properly implemented.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Company Secretary

Ms. Sui Har Lee, the Company Secretary, is responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board procedures are
followed and that the Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. She is also responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully appraised of the relevant legislative, regulatory, and corporate governance developments relating to
the Company and facilitating the induction and professional development of Directors.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the President, plays an essential role in the relationship between
the Company and its Shareholders, and assists the Board in discharging its obligations to Shareholders pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Ms. Sui Har Lee attended relevant professional seminars to update her
skills and knowledge and has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the Directors on requisition of Shareholder(s) holding not less
than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company or by such Shareholder(s) who made the requisition (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) (as the case may be) pursuant to sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). The objects of the meeting must be stated in the requisition,
which must be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office of the Company. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in sections 580 to 583 of the Companies Ordinance for
convening an extraordinary general meeting.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings and Directing
Enquiries from Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their written requests, proposals, enquiries, and concerns to the Company for the
attention of Chairman of the Board or the Company Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

288 Halei Road, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai 201203, China
Tel: (86) 21 38829909

Fax: (86) 21 50809999

Email: IR@nhhgrace.com
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Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll.

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring Objectives

Risk Management Objective

From a compliance perspective, the Company has implemented the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange to ensure the compliance with relevant requirements in a timely manner.

From the perspective of operations, the management team well understands the risks that may be confronted by the
Company as it undertakes future development. Therefore, the risk management objective of the Company is to identify
and assess risks and take appropriate countermeasures to evade a risk entirely, if possible, otherwise to manage these
risks to reduce their impact and keep them under control. The Company has constructed a robust risk control system
working on a continuous basis, established a risk management platform, clarified risk management mechanisms,
improved a risk map, and carried out an annual risk evaluation. We have developed a concise, scientific, practical,
and efficient risk management and control model which complies with regulatory requirements under the Code and is
in line with the Company’s specific evolving circumstances.

Internal Control System Objective

The Company's internal control system has fully implemented the requirements for a risk management framework as
set out by COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) as well as the guidelines of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants for risk management. We refined the three tiers of risk map in the
processes and formed risk-oriented internal control evaluation by considering the Company’s ongoing operational
circumstances and business characteristics. The objective is to evaluate the effectiveness and applicability of our
internal monitoring system and provide reasonable guarantees for the effectiveness of the Company’'s operating
activities, the reliability of financial reports, and compliance with laws and regulations.
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Risk Management and Internal Monitoring System

To ensure our risk management work develops efficiently and forms a long-term mechanism, the Company has
established a risk management monitoring system comprising a “three-line model”. It covers the roles and duties of
many different aspects as follows:

e  FEstablish and maintain various departmental risk management mechanisms;
e Ongoing collection of risk data while performing day-to-day department tasks;
e  Continue to carry out risk monitoring and early warning of the department;

e  Assist in the implementation of the Company'’s risk management work, including
providing necessary documents and samples, identify major risks related to the
department, and determine major risk countermeasures;

e  Provide and supplement expertise, play a supportive and supervisory role, help
continuously implement and improve the risk management work; analyze and report
on the accuracy and effectiveness of risk management;

e Independently inspect and supervise risk management activities conducted by the
Business Departments and the Risk Management Level, and evaluate whether the
Company'’s risk management mechanism is implemented effectively and efficiently;

e Conduct annual comprehensive risk assessments, based on the risk assessment
results, define the major risk factors and relevant response responsibilities, organize
and guide relevant departments in making response plans for major risks, and follow
up on the implementation of the plans;

e Urge departments or agencies to rectify problems discovered during the auditing and
risk assessment process and monitor the ongoing status of the rectification work;

e  Report the auditing and risk assessment results to the Audit Committee of the
Company.



2024 ANNUAL REPORT ¢ HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 89

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring Statement

The Board is responsible for the Company’s risk management and internal monitoring system, as well as ensuring a
review of the system’s effectiveness. The Board designated the Internal Auditing Department to perform the internal
auditing function and granted it full independent responsibility and authority. The internal auditors audited the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal monitoring system each year through various audit
projects according to the approved auditing scope and in accordance with the provisions in D.2 of the Corporate
Governance Code, and no material deficiency was found.

Based on audits by the Internal Auditing Department, the Board believes that the Company’s risk management and
internal monitoring system is adequate, trustworthy, and effective. However, one must recognise that the Company’s
risk management and internal monitoring framework can only manage rather than completely eliminate risks that may
affect the Company’s ability to accomplish its business objectives. Therefore, it provides a reasonable but not an
absolute guarantee for the avoidance of material misstatement or loss.

With a view to identifying, handling, and disseminating inside information in compliance with the SFO, procedures,
including pre-clearance on dealing in the securities of the Company by designated members of management,
notification of regular blackout period and securities dealing restrictions to relevant Directors and employees,
identification of projects by code name, and dissemination of information to stated purpose and on a need-to-know
basis, have been implemented by the Group to guard against possible mishandling of inside information within the
Group.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing the Company’s financial statements for each financial
period to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair, and reasonable, and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 299 to 301 of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Junjun Tang
Chairman
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The Board presents the annual report of the Company for 2024 and the audited financial statements of the Company
for the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024 (the “Financial Statements”).

The Company was a pure-play 8-inch and 12-inch wafer foundry as at the end of 2024, with its long-term focus on
the development and application of advanced “Specialty IC + Power Discrete” differentiated specialty technologies,
including Embedded/Standalone Non-Volatile Memory, Power Discrete, Analog & Power Management, Logic & RF,
providing diverse specialized process wafer manufacturing services to its customers. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the Financial Statements (Pages 310 to 311).

Revenue Analysis

Revenue of Hua Hong Semiconductor for 2024 was US$2,004 million, representing a decrease of 12.3% compared to
the previous year. The annual revenue reflected a scenario of declining prices but increasing volumes. Driven by the
rapid development of the Al sector and the gradual recovery of part of the consumer electronics market, the global
semiconductor market maintained moderate growth. However, due to the release of domestic supply-side capacity,
competition in the wafer foundry market has intensified, exerting downward pressure on prices. Nevertheless, based on
the Company’s confidence in the long-term market growth and the trend of localization in the domestic semiconductor
market, its “8-inch + 12-inch” strategy has achieved significant milestones, with the Hua Hong Manufacturing Project
successfully completed and put into operation. Additionally, leveraging its long-standing technological expertise
and proactive sales strategies, the Company maintained an average annual capacity utilization rate close to 100%,
securing a leading position among major global wafer foundry enterprises.

YoY YoY

2023 2023 Change Change

US$'000 %  US$'000 %

Semiconductor wafers 2,181,591 95.4% (280,662) (12.9)%

Others 104,522 4.6% (1,458) (1.4)%

Total 2,286,113 100.0% (282,120) (12.3)%
° In 2024, 94.9% of our revenue was generated from the sale of semiconductor wafers.

YoY YoY

2023 2023 Change Change

US$'000 %  US$'000 %

Systems and fabless companies 2,109,482 92.3%  (190,482) (9.0)%

Integrated device manufacturers (IDMs) 176,631 7.7% (91,638) (51.9)%

Total 2,286,113 100.0%  (282,120) (12.3)%

e Our revenue from systems and fabless companies accounted for 95.8%.
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Revenue by Geography

YoY YoY

2024 2024 2023 2023 Change Change

US$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %
China 1,636,528 81.6% 1,774,178 77.6%  (137,650) (7.8)%
North America 187,899 9.4% 204,882 9.0% (16,983) (8.3)%
Other Asia 103,410 5.2% 149,087 6.5% (45,677) (30.6)%
Europe 69,528 3.5% 134,760 5.9% (65,232) (48.4)%
Japan 6,628 0.3% 23,206 1.0% (16,578) (71.4)%
Total 2,003,993 100.0% 2,286,113 100.0%  (282,120) (12.3)%

In 2024, 81.6% of the Company’s revenue was generated in China.
Revenue by Technology Type

YoY YoY

2024 2024 2023 2023 Change Change

US$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %

Embedded Non-Volatile Memory (eNVM) 526,122 26.3% 703,148 30.8% (177,026) (25.2)%

Standalone Non-Volatile Memory (sNVM) 130,137 6.5% 116,715 51% 13,422 11.5%

Power Discrete 623,922 31.0% 902,346 39.4% (278,424) (30.9)%

Logic & RF 272,201 13.6% 202,483 8.9% 69,718 34.4%

Analog & Power Management (PM) 448,100 22.4% 358,333 15.7% 89,767 25.1%

Others 3,511 0.2% 3,088 0.1% 423 13.7%

Total 2,003,993 100.0% 2,286,113 100.0%  (282,120) (12.3)%

° In 2024, the Analog & PM and Logic & RF platforms delivered strong revenue growth, primarily driven by rapid
demand expansion in Al-related applications and recovery in the consumer electronics market.
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Revenue by Technology Node

YoY YoY

2024 2024 2023 2023 Change Change

US$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %

55nm & 65nm 438,656 21.9% 291,683 12.8% 146,973 50.4%
90nm & 95nm 389,181 19.4% 386,191 16.9% 2,990 0.8%
0.11pum & 0.13pum 278,597 13.9% 405,911 17.8% (127,314)  (31.4)%
0.15um & 0.18um 129,645 6.5% 147,338 6.4% (17,693) (12.0)%
0.25um 16,932 0.8% 24,217 1.1% (7,285)  (30.1)%
>0.35um 750,982 37.5% 1,030,773 45.0% (279,791)  (27.1)%
Total 2,003,993 100.0% 2,286,113 100.0%  (282,120) (12.3)%

e In 2024, the 55nm and 65nm platforms sustained robust revenue growth, driven by strong demand from the
Analog & PM and other platforms.

Revenue by End Market

YoY YoY

2024 2024 2023 2023 Change Change

US$’000 % US$'000 % US$'000 %

Consumer Electronics 1,261,705 63.0% 1,294,251 56.6% (32,546) (2.5)%
Industrial & Automotive Electronics 461,256 23.0% 673,395 29.5% (212,139) (31.5)%
Communications 251,261 12.5% 256,856 11.2% (5,595) (2.2)%
Computing 29,771 1.5% 61,611 2.7% (31,840) (B1.7)%
Total 2,003,993 100.0% 2,286,113 100.0%  (282,120) (12.3)%

e In 2024, demand in the consumer electronics market remained relatively stable, with revenue from this end-market
accounting for 63.0% of total revenue.
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2023 YoY Change

Fab 1 65 -
Fab 2 60 -
Fab 3 53 -
Total monthly 8-inch wafer capacity 178 =
Fab 7 (12-inch wafer capacity) 95 -
Capacity utilization (8-inch wafer equivalent) 94.3% 5.2%

° In 2024, capacity utilization (8-inch wafer equivalent) increased by 5.2 percentage points.

2023 YoY Change
Wafer shipments (8-inch wafer equivalent) 4,103 10.8%

° In 2024, there was a year-on-year increase of 10.8% in the Company’s wafer shipments.

Research and Development

Hua Hong Semiconductor is committed to research and development (R&D), innovation, and optimization of
differentiated technologies, with a focus on eNVM/sNVM, Power Discrete, Analog & PM (Power Management), Logic
& RF and other featured process platforms. It continues to provide customers with product mix and services that meet
market demand. In 2024, Hua Hong Semiconductor continued accelerating the development of 12-inch capacity and
technology platforms; and the product mix of advanced “Specialty IC + Power Discrete” became more diverse due to
the extension of the 12-inch process platform.

The NVM platform remains one of the main sources of revenue for the Company. Its embedded flash memory
technology maintains a leading position in smart card and automotive-grade MCU applications. Leveraging the product
mix advantages of its “8-inch + 12-inch” platform, multiple full series MCU chips produced at process nodes with flash
memory process capability have entered mass production, empowering costumers to secure first-tier positions in the
local supply chain for automotive electronics, high-end home appliances, and industrial control applications, thereby
driving supply chain upgrades. For standalone flash memory platforms, the Company enhanced the performance of
its proprietary NORD technology and traditional ETOX technology products, earning recognition from costumers and
end-market applications. Technologically, successful mass production of 48nm NOR Flash has further strengthened
competitiveness of our memory portfolio.
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The Analog & PM (Power Management) platform achieved significant revenue growth in 2024, primarily driven by
robust demand in Al supporting power applications and stable volumes of wafer inputs. The Company collaborated
with leading customers to strengthen its foothold in consumer markets, such as smartphone fast-charging and
wireless charging chips, and accelerated penetration into automotive electronics. Technologically, the development of
“BCD+" hybrid processes, based on our conventional BCD process, enabled iterative advancements across multiple
process nodes, and enabled us to serve our customers and provide single-chip solutions for a wide range of market
applications as a diversified specialty process platform.

Logic & RF platform also achieved rapid revenue growth, with the 55/40nm specialty process, RF CMOS and 65nm
RF SOI processes entering mass production and the mass production of 55nm BSI image sensor chips for high-end
smartphone primary cameras. Breakthroughs in platform technology enabled the Company to rapidly secure leading
customers in the industry.

The Power Discrete platform faced material pricing pressure due to competitors’ capacity expansions and softening
end-market demand in the industrial and new energy market sectors. Nevertheless, the Company proactively pursued
technology innovation while maintaining stable capacity utilization. Specifically, through iterative optimizations of
deep-trench structures in super-junction MOSFET, it further narrowed the gap with oversea industry leaders. The
Company continued to iterate and mass-produce high-voltage IGBT, aligning with international benchmarks and
solidifying its position as a cornerstone of the local supply chain’s advancement. Amid intensifying pricing competition,
the Company accelerated the adoption of high-end products in industrial control and automotive electronics, steadily
increasing the proportion of new products to reinforce its market leadership position.

The Company’s major milestone in 2024 was the successful operation of the Huahong Manufacturing Project (Hua
Hong Fab 9). Following approximately 18 months of facility construction, structural completion, cleanroom delivery,
major equipment installation, and testing, the production line commenced wafer input and mass production by the end
of 2024. It is expected to gradually introduce 40nm process nodes and multi-platform product mix in 2025, aiming for
a stable capacity ramp-up and sustained revenue growth.
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Looking ahead to 2025, the global semiconductor market is expected to continue to experience a moderate recovery,
driven by sustained strength in Al, while the Chinese semiconductor market remains resilient. Under the leadership
of the entire management, the Company will comprehensively enhance its management and operational efficiency.
In R&D, leveraging the newly operational 12-inch production line in Wuxi, the Company will vigorously advance the
development of key technology platforms by shoring up weaknesses, achieve breakthroughs in prioritized areas, and
diversifying its product portfolio, to strengthen its core competitiveness. In capacity, the Hua Hong Manufacturing
Project will enter its ramp-up phase in 2025, unlocking further production capacity in a stepwise manner, in synergy
with the Hua Hong Wuxi project to form a flexible capacity allocation system, better aligning with customer demand. In
operations, the Company will further improve operational efficiency and strengthen cost controls. In market strategy,
focusing on the domestic ecosystem development, the Company aims to expand and solidify its domestic client base,
while collaborating with overseas strategic partners, to implement the “China for China” strategy. These efforts are
designed to deliver enhanced performance for Hua Hong Semiconductor's ecosystem partners and create value for
the Company and its shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Performance

2024 2023 Change
US$’000 US$'000
Revenue 2,003,993 2,286,113 (12.3)%
Cost of sales (1,798,865) (1,799,017) 0.0%
Gross profit 205,128 487,096 (57.9)%
Other income and gains 149,072 144,370 3.3%
Fair value (loss)/gain on an investment property (39) 103 (137.9)%
Selling and distribution expenses (9,628) (10,189) (5.5)%
Administrative expenses (351,276) (322,868) 8.8%
Other expenses (33,395) (33,666) (0.8)%
Finance costs (97,113) (100,497) (3.4)%
Share of profit of associates 3,459 9,230 (62.5)%
(Loss)/profit before tax (133,792) 173,579 (177.1)%
Income tax expense (6,593) (47,154) (86.0)%
(Loss)/profit for the year (140,385) 126,425 (211.0)%
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent 58,108 280,034 (79.2)%
Non-controlling interests (198,493) (153,609) 29.2%
Revenue

Revenue was US$2,004.0 million, 12.3% lower than 2023, primarily due to decreased average selling price, partially
offset by an increase in the number of wafer shipments.

Gross profit
Gross profit was US$205.1 million, a decrease of 57.9% compared to 2023, mainly due to decreased average selling

price and increased depreciation costs.

Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses were US$351.3 million, an increase of 8.8% compared to 2023, mainly due to increased
research and development expenses and increased new fab start-up-costs.

Share of profit of associates
Share of profit of associates was US$3.5 million, a decrease of 62.5% compared to 2023, due to decreased profit

realized by the associates.

Income tax expense
Income tax expense was US$6.6 million, a decrease of 86.0% compared to 2023, mainly due to decreased taxable

profit.

(Loss)/profit for the year
As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, loss for the year was US$140.4 million compared to profit for

the year of US$126.4 million in 2023.
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Financial Status

31 December 31 December

2024 2023 Change
US$’000 US$'000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5,859,117 3,519,292 66.5%
Investment property 164,153 166,643 (1.5)%
Right-of-use assets 77,761 78,545 (1.0)%
Investments in associates 139,799 139,099 0.5%
Equity instruments designated at fair value

through other comprehensive income 289,311 270,506 7.0%
Other non-current assets 52,464 199,780 (73.7)%
Total non-current assets 6,582,605 4,373,865 50.5%
Current assets
Inventories 467,060 449,749 3.8%
Trade and notes receivables 270,461 278,669 (2.9)%
Due from related parties 18,324 11,219 63.3%
Other current assets 585,902 212,649 175.5%
Pledged deposits 31,624 32,088 (1.4)%
Cash and cash equivalents 4,459,132 5,585,181 (20.2)%
Total current assets 5,832,503 6,569,555 (11.2)%
Current liabilities
Trade payables 298,372 235,410 26.7%
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 280,704 193,035 45 4%
Due to related parties 9,125 13,876 (34.2)%
Government grants 57,563 35,017 64.4%
Other current liabilities 916,474 495,049 85.1%
Total current liabilities 1,562,238 972,387 60.7%
Net current assets 4,270,265 5,597,168 (23.7)%
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,917,235 1,906,526 0.6%
Other non-current liabilities 29,016 49,963 (41.9)%
Total non-current liabilities 1,946,251 1,956,489 (0.5)%

Net assets 8,906,619 8,014,544 11.1%
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Explanation of items with fluctuation over 10% from 31 December 2023 to 31 December 2024

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment increased from US$3,519.3 million to US$5,859.1 million, primarily due to capacity
expansion of the new production line.

Other non-current assets
Other non-current assets decreased from US$199.8 million to US$52.5 million, primarily due to decreased prepayments
for equipment.

Due from related parties
Due from related parties increased from US$11.2 million to US$18.3 million, primarily due to increased receivables
from certain of our related parties.

Other current assets
Other current assets increased from US$212.6 million to US$585.9 million, primarily due to increased value-added tax
credit.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents decreased from US$5,585.2 million to US$4,459.1 million, primarily due to reasons stated
in the cash flow analysis below.

Trade payables
Trade payables increased from US$235.4 million to US$298.4 million, primarily due to increased purchase of materials.

Due to related parties
Due to related parties decreased from US$13.9 million to US$9.1 million, primarily due to a payment of technology
purchased in the year.

Government grants
Government grants increased from US$35.0 million to US$57.6 million, primarily due to increased receipts of
government funding.

Other current liabilities
Other current liabilities increased from US$495.0 million to US$916.5 million, primarily due to increased payables for
capital expenditures.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Total interest-bearing bank borrowings increased from US$2,099.6 million to US$2,197.9 million, primarily due to
increased drawdowns of bank borrowings.

Other non-current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities decreased from US$50.0 million to US$29.0 million, primarily due to decreased deferred
tax liabilities.
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2023 Change
US$'000

Net cash flows generated from operating activities 641,695 (28.4)%
Net cash flows used in investing activities (833,312) 220.6%
Net cash flows generated from financing activities 3,781,746 (69.6)%
3,590,129 (129.6)%

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,008,765 178.0%
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (13,713) 367.7%
5,585,181 (20.2)%

Net cash flows generated from operating activities
Net cash flows generated from operating activities were US$459.5 million, a decrease of 28.4% compared to 2023,
mainly due to decreased receipts from customers.

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities were US$2,671.5 million, primarily attributed to US$2,779.8 million for capital
investments and US$17.6 million for equity instrument investments, offset by receipts of (i) US$82.0 million of interest
income, (i) US$41.2 million of government grants, (i) US$2.6 million of disposal of an equity instrument, and (iv)
US$0.1 million for disposal of items of property, plant and equipment.

Net cash flows generated from financing activities

Net cash flows generated from financing activities were US$1,150.1 million, including (i) US$1,181.8 million of capital
contribution from non-controlling interests, (ii) US$289.3 million of proceeds from bank borrowings, (iii) US$5.4 million
of government grants for interest expenses, and (iv) US$3.6 million from share option exercises, offset by (i) US$183.5
million of repayments of bank borrowings, (i) US$105.7 million of interest repayments (i) US$36.2 million payment of
dividends, and (iv) US$4.6 million payment of a principal portion of lease payments.

Cash and cash equivalents
As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, cash and cash equivalents decreased from US$5,585.2 million
as of 31 December 2023 to US$4,459.1 million as of 31 December 2024.
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Interest rate risk

Our exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a floating interest rate. Our policy is to manage interest rate risk using a mix of fixed and floating rate
debts.

As at 31 December 2024, if the interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, profit before tax for the year would have been US$20,053,000 lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

We have transactional currency exposures arising primarily from sales or purchases by our principal subsidiaries
operating in the Mainland China in US$, rather than the subsidiaries’ functional currency, which is RMB. During
the year, approximately 18% of our sales were denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
subsidiaries making the sale, whilst 61% of costs of sales were denominated in the subsidiaries’ functional currency.

In addition, we have currency exposures from interest-bearing bank borrowings held by our subsidiaries operating in
the Mainland China. As at 31 December 2024, interest-bearing bank borrowings with a carrying amount of US$1,502.3
million were dominated in US$, rather than the subsidiaries’ functional currency, which is RMB.

As at 31 December 2024, if the US$ had strengthened or weakened against the RMB by 5 percent, with all other
variables held constant, our profit before tax for the year would have been approximately US$99.6 million lower or
higher.

Credit risk

We trade only with recognised and creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is our policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis, and our exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Our maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to our financial assets is: the carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and notes receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets,
amounts due from related parties, and pledged deposits included in the consolidated statement of financial position.
We have no other financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

To meet liquidity requirements in the short and long term, our policy is to monitor regularly the current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that we maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions.

Capital management
Our primary objectives of capital management are to safeguard our ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios to support our business and maximize shareholders’ value.

We manage our capital structure and make adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. To do this, we may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, or issue new shares. We are not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies, or processes for
managing capital during the year.
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Details of the gearing ratio are set out in Note 38 to the Financial Statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 and the state of affairs as at that date are set out in the
Financial Statements on pages 302 to 305 of this report.

Considering the capital-intensive nature of the semiconductor industry, alongside the Group’s current development
and business model, it is essential for the Group to retain adequate funds to fulfil its operational needs and fuel its
ongoing expansion of production capabilities, R&D innovation and enhancement of market share, which are conducive
to maintain the stability of the Group’s operations and promote its long-term development plans. Therefore, subject to
approval at the Annual General Meeting, the Board does not recommend payment of a dividend for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: HK$0.165 per Share).

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders and the requirements of law, it has been decided that the Company
will pay dividends to the Shareholders for the year of 2015 and onwards if the Group is profitable, the operations
environment is stable, and there is no significant investment made by the Group. It is intended that the average of
dividends paid in three consecutive years will be no less than 30% of the average distributable net profit of these three
years. The remaining net profit will be used for the development and operations of the Group.

This dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will
be paid in any amount for any given period. In the event that the Board recommends a dividend, the form and amount
will depend on the assessment by the Directors of the factors affecting the Group from time to time.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company has US$276,812,000 in distributable reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders.
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Bank Loans
The particulars of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2024 are set out in note 26 to the Financial Statements.

As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s bank loans were secured by pledges of the Group’s assets. Please
refer to note 26 to the Financial Statements for further details.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set out
on page 412. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of additions and other changes during the year ended 31 December 2024 in the property, plant and
equipment, and investment property of the Group are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the Financial Statements.

In addition, details of the investment property are set out below:

Gross Floor Area

Location Type of Use Term of Lease Group’s Interest (sq.m.)
Portions of 9 buildings Industrial use Held under a land 100% 91,568.11
No. 818 Guo Shou Jing Road use right for a term

Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park expiring on 8 March 2051

Pudong New Area
Shanghai, PRC

Significant Events After the Reporting Period

As of the date of this report, the Company has no significant events after the Reporting Period.

Share Capital

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note
30 to the Financial Statements. These movements include the automatic inclusion of the amount standing to the share
premium account into the share capital as from 3 March 2014, in accordance with section 37 of Schedule 11 to the
New Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), as part of the transition to the no-par value regime.
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A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was approved by an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 1 September 2015. A summary of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme:

Participants:

Maximum entitlement of each Participant:

Minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised:

The amount payable on application or
acceptance of the Share Option and
the period within which payments or calls
must be made or loans for such
purposes must be paid:

Number of options available for grant at the
beginning and the end of year 2024, and
the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract, retain and
provide incentives to the Participants (defined below), to provide them
with the opportunity to obtain Shares of the Company, and to link their
interests closely to the operating results and share performance of the
Company, with the view to increasing the value of the Company.

The participants of the Share Option Scheme (“Participants”)
include (1) existing Executive and Non-Executive Directors of any
member of the Group; or (2) senior management and key managerial
and technical personnel having a direct impact on the results of
operations and sustainable development of any member of the Group,
subject always to any limits and restrictions specified in the Share
Option Scheme, but shall not include any Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

If the total number of Shares allotted and which may fall to be allotted
upon exercise of all the share options (“Share Options”) granted
and to be granted (including exercised, cancelled, and outstanding
Share Options) to a Participant in any 12-month period in aggregate
exceeds 1% of the issued share capital of the Company at the time,
no further grant of Share Options shall be given to such Participant.
Share Options may be granted to a Participant in excess of the
individual limit of 1% in any 12-month period only with the approval
of the Shareholders at a general meeting. No Share Option shall be
granted to any person who holds over 5% of Shares of the Company
which carry voting rights on the Grant Date (as defined in the Share
Option Scheme), unless such grant is approved by shareholders at
the general meeting.

Two years unless otherwise stated in the grant notice of the Share
Option.

HK$1.00 is to be paid by each grantee as consideration for the grant
of Share Option within 28 days from the date of proposed offer.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
seven (7) years commencing on the date of adoption. It has therefore
expired on 1 September 2022. No further options could be granted,
and none has been granted, under the Share Option Scheme from
that date.

As at 31 December 2024 and the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 19,337,302 shares and 12,382,480 shares, representing approximately 1.13% and 0.72% of the total
number of shares in issue (representing all shares in issue of the listed company (including A Shares)), respectively.
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On 4 September 2015, the Company granted 30,250,000 Share options (the “2015 Options”) to subscribe for a total of
30,250,000 ordinary shares of the Company to certain individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the 2015
Options are as follows:

Date of grant: 4 September 2015
Exercise price of options granted: HK$6.912
Number of options granted: 30,250,000 (representing 1.76% of the issued shares of the Company

as at 31 December 2023)

Validity period of the options: From 4 September 2015 to 3 September 2022 (seven (7) years), both
dates inclusive

Vesting period of the options: One third of the options shall vest on each of 4 September 2017, 4
September 2018, and 4 September 2019

The exercise price of HK$6.912 per Share represents a premium of 0% over the higher of (i) the closing price of
HK$6.87 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of
the grant; (ii) the average closing price of HK$6.912 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the closing
price of HK$6.800 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the
day immediately before the grant date.

On 24 December 2018, the Company granted 34,500,000 share options (the “2018 Options”) to subscribe for a total of
34,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company to certain individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the 2018
Options are as follows:

Date of grant: 24 December 2018
Exercise price of options granted: HK$15.056
Number of options granted: 34,500,000 (representing 2.01% of the issued shares of the Company

as at 31 December 2023)

Validity period of the options: From 24 December 2018 to 23 December 2025 (seven (7) years),
both dates inclusive

Vesting period of the options: For employees at or above the level of the vice president of the
Company (together with Directors), one fourth of the 2018 Options
shall vest on each of 24 December 2020, 24 December 2021, 24
December 2022, and 24 December 2023; for the other employees of
the Company, one third of the 2018 Options shall vest on each of 24
December 2020, 24 December 2021, and 24 December 2022
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The exercise price of HK$15.056 per share represents the higher of (i) the closing price of HK$14.440 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (ii) the average
closing price of HK$15.056 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; (iii) the closing price of HK$14.380 per Share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the day immediately before the
grant date; and (iv) the nominal value of the share.

On 29 March 2019, the Company granted 500,000 share options (the “March 2019 Options”) to subscribe for a total of
500,000 ordinary shares of the Company to one individual under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the March 2019
Options are as follows:

Date of grant: 29 March 2019
Exercise price of options granted: HK$18.400
Number of options granted: 500,000 (representing 0.03% of the issued shares of the Company as

at 31 December 2023)

Validity period of the options: From 29 March 2019 to 28 March 2026 (seven (7) years), both dates
inclusive
Vesting period of the options: One fourth of the options will vest on each of 23 December 2021, 12

August 2022, 11 August 2023, and 9 August 2024

The exercise price of HK$18.400 per share represents the higher of (i) the closing price of HK$18.400 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (ii) the average
closing price of HK$18.176 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; (iii) the closing price of HK$18.220 per share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the day immediately before the
grant date; and (iv) the nominal value of the share.

On 23 December 2019, the Company granted 2,482,000 share options (the “December 2019 Options”) to subscribe
for a total of 2,482,000 ordinary shares of the Company to certain individuals under the Share Option Scheme. Details
of the December 2019 Options are as follows:

Date of grant: 23 December 2019
Exercise price of options granted: HK$17.952
Number of options granted: 2,482,000 (representing 0.14% of the issued shares of the Company

as at 31 December 2023)

Validity period of the options: From 23 December 2019 to 22 December 2026 (seven (7) years),
both dates inclusive

Vesting period of the options: For employees at or above the level of the vice president of Hua Hong
Wuxi, one fourth of the options will vest on each of 23 December
2021, 23 December 2022, 23 December 2023, and 23 December
2024; for the other employees of Hua Hong Wuxi, one third of the
options will vest on each of 23 December 2021, 23 December 2022,
and 23 December 2023
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The exercise price of HK$17.952 per share represents the higher of (i) the closing price of HK$17.260 per share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of the grant; (ii) the average
closing price of HK$17.952 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; (iii) the closing price of HK$17.200 per share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the day immediately before the
grant date; and (iv) the nominal value of the share.

Among the March 2019 Options, 500,000 share options were granted to the Directors of the Company, subject to their
acceptance.

Details of the movements in the share options during the year ended 31 December 2024 are as follows:

Granted at 4 September 2015 - 988,000 - 29,262,000 - - 30,250,000
Granted at 24 December 2018 - - 680,000 - 33,820,000 - 34,500,000
Granted at 29 March 2019 500,000 - - - - - 500,000
Granted at 23 December 2019 - - - - - 2,482,000 2,482,000
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2015 - - - -130,000 - - -130,000
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2016 - - - -1,458,000 - - -1,458,000
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2017 - - - -1,353,399 - - -1,353,399
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2018 - - - -754,595 - - -754,595
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2019 = = -600,000 -58,000 -1,035,000 -36,000 -1,729,000
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2020 - -119,000 -80,000 - -093,904 -84,000 -1,276,904
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2021 -62,500 - - - -5,751,868 -592,993 -6,407,361
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2022 - - - - -543,728 -73983 617,711
Cancelled/Lapsed during the year 2023 -8,168 -6,900 -15,068
Exercised during the period - - - - 1,740,046 140,075 1,880,121
Cancelled during the period - - - - - -6,900 6,900
Lapsed during the period - - - - -87,758 -116,668 -204,426
QOutstanding at 1 January 2024 437,500 - 19,468,101 1,516,248 21,421,849
QOutstanding at 31 December 2024 437,500 - 17,640,297 1,259,505 19,337,302
Vesting period of share options From 29 March From From From From From
20191028 March 4 September 24 December 4 September 24 December 23 December
2026 2015103 20181023 2015103 201810 23 201910 22
September December September December December
2022 2025 2022 2025 2026
Exercise period of share options From 29 March From From From From From
202110 4 September 24 December 4 September 24 December 23 December
28 March 2026 2017 to 202010 23 2017103 202010 23 202110 22
3 September December  September 2022 December December
2022 2025 2025 2026
Exercise price of share options HK$18.400 HK$6.912 HK$15.056 HK$6.912 HK$15.056 HK$17.952
Weighted average closing price of
the shares immediately before the
dates on which the share options were
exercised HK$20.67 HK$22.56

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not adopted any other share option scheme during the year ended 31
December 2024.
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Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 306 to 307 of this report.

Ordinary share RMB52.00 407,750,000 7 August 2023 391,440,000 (Circulating shares
not subject to selling restrictions);
16,310,000 (Circulating shares
subject to selling restrictions)

In order to enhance the overall competitiveness and strengthen the sustainable development capabilities of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on 27 June 2022 to consider and approve the
resolution on the application for the initial public offering and listing of not more than 433,730,000 RMB Shares on the
STAR Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The Board is of the view that the offering and listing of the Company
is in line with the relevant national industrial policies and the Company’s development strategies, which will facilitate
the further expansion of the Company’s production capacity, enhance the Company’s research and development
capabilities and enrich the technological platform. It helps the Company to better meet market demands and enhance
its market position and core competitiveness in the wafer foundry industry.

On 7 August 2023, the Company was listed on the STAR Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange under the stock
abbreviation of Hua Hong Company ((£#I /2 7)) and stock code of 688347.

Through issuing the RMB Shares on the STAR Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, a total of 407,750,000 ordinary
shares of the Company have been subscribed by eligible off-line investors, as well as eligible natural persons, legal
entities and other institutional investors (other than those prohibited by the laws and regulations and regulatory
documents of the PRC) or such other target subscribers meeting the relevant qualification requirements of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission and the Shanghai Stock Exchange, who have maintained stock accounts with the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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The total proceeds raised amounted to RMB21,203,000,000. After deducting the issuance expenses,
including underwriting, sponsorship fees, as well as other issuance expenses, the net proceeds amounted to
RMB20,920,677,000, at an issue price of RMB52.00 per ordinary share (the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange was HK$26.35 as at the date of the announcement of the Company in relation to
the terms of the RMB Share Issue (i.e. 4 August 2023)). Upon receipt of the proceeds, the entire amount has been
deposited into a dedicated account for the proceeds, which was approved by the Board. As of 31 December 2023,
approximately RMB1,944,328,349 of the net proceeds were utilized, therefore approximately RMB18,976,348,611 were
brought forward to the beginning of the Reporting Period. The proceeds raised will be utilised in accordance with the
previously disclosed intended use of the proceeds as set out below:

Unit: RMB
Accumulated Expected
unutilised timeframe for
Amount of proceeds at usage of
committed the end of the unutilised
Previously disclosed intended use of proceeds investments Reporting Period proceeds
Hua Hong Manufacturing (Wuxi) Project 12,500,000,000.00 160,279,362.29 By the end of 2025
8-Inch Factory Optimisation and Upgrading Project 2,000,000,000.00 1,736,605,414.57 By the end of 2025
Specialty Technological Innovation, Research and
Development Project 2,500,000,000.00  1,938,773,902.26 By the end of 2026

Replenishment of Working Capital

1,000,000,000.00

N/A
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The Group disclosed in the prospectus dated 3 October 2014 the continuing connected transactions with, amongst
others, Huali Micro, Huahong Real Estate and Huajin Property Management. Certain details of such transactions are
summarized in the table below. With respect to such transactions, the Company had applied for and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange had granted a waiver from, among others, strict compliance with the announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement (as the case may be). Details of such continuing connected transactions of the
Group together with certain other continuing connected transactions conducted during 2024 are set out as follows:

Actual Proposed
Transaction Transaction Annual
Transaction Date Parties to the Transaction Connected Relationship Transaction Amount 2024 Caps 2024
) 1 January 2024 Huahong Group (as purchaser) Huahong Group is a substantial The Company's sale of  US$20441,000  US$29,320,000
shareholder of the Company. ~ semiconductor products to
The Company (as seller) Huahong Group, its subsidiaries
Hongri and Huahong Zealcore and associates, including
are owned 51% and 93.02% by Hongri and Huahong Zealcore,
Huahong Group, respectively.  pursuant to the Huahong Group
Framework Agreement.
2 1 January 2024 Huahong Group (as seller) Huahong Group s a substantial The Company's purchase of — US$39,531,000  US$40,425,000

The Company (as purchaser)

shareholder of the Company.

Hongri and Huahong Zealcore
are owned 51% and 93.02% by
Huahong Group, respectively.

wafers and chemicals from
Huahong Group, its subsidiaries
and associates, including
Hongri and Huahong Zealcore,
pursuant to the Huahong Group
Framework Agreement.
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Transaction

Transaction
Date

Parties to the Transaction

Connected Relationship

Transaction

Actual
Transaction
Amount 2024

Proposed
Annual
Caps 2024

()

1 January 2024

1 January 2024

1 January 2024

1 January 2024

HHGrace (as service provider)

Hua Hong Wuxi (as recipient of
service)

HHGrace (as recipient of
service)

Hua Hong Wuxi (as service
provider)

Hua Hong Manufacturing (as
recipient of service)

Hua Hong Wuxi (as service
provider)

Hua Hong Manufacturing (as
recipient of service)

Hua Hong Wuxi (as service
provider)

Hua Hong Wuxi is a non-wholly
owned subsidiary which is held
as to approximately 20.58% by
China IC Fund.

As China IC Fund is no longer
a substantial shareholder of the
Company since 27 June 2024,
therefore, Hua Hong Wuxi is no
longer a connected subsidiary
of the Company since the same
date.

Hua Hong Wuxi is a non-wholly
owned subsidiary which is held
as to approximately 20.58%
by China IC Fund. As China IC
Fund is no longer a substantial
shareholder of the Company
since 27 June 2024, therefore,
Hua Hong Wuxi is no longer
a connected subsidiary of the
Company since the same date.

Hua Hong Wuxi is a non-wholly
owned subsidiary which is held
as to approximately 20.58%
by China IC Fund. As China IC
Fund is no longer a substantial
shareholder of the Company
since 27 June 2024, therefore,
Hua Hong Wuxi is no longer
a connected subsidiary of the
Company since the same date.

Hua Hong Wuxi is a non-wholly
owned subsidiary which is held
as to approximately 20.58%
by China IC Fund. As China IC
Fund is no longer a substantial
shareholder of the Company
since 27 June 2024, therefore,
Hua Hong Wuxi is no longer
a connected subsidiary of the
Company since the same date.

Service agreement between
HHGrace (as service provider)
and Hua Hong Wuxi (as
recipient of services) in relation
to the provision of corporate
services by HHGrace to Hua
Hong Wuxi.

Service agreement between
HHGrace (as recipient of
service) and Hua Hong Wuxi
(as service provider) in relation
to the provision of chemical
placing services.

Service agreement between
Hua Hong Manufacturing (as
recipient of services) and Hua
Hong Wuxi (as service provider)
in relation to the provision of
joint venture internal services
by Hua Hong Wuxi to Hua Hong
Manufacturing.

Service agreement between
Hua Hong Manufacturing (as
recipient of services) and Hua
Hong Wuxi (as service provider)
in relation to the provision of
staff commissioning training
by Hua Hong Wuxi to the
new employees of Hua Hong
Manufacturing.

R\VB69,912,007

(approx.
US$9.842,000)

US$63,0001)

RMB59,974,191

(approx.
US$8,443,000)"

RMB7,100,000
(approx.
1S$999,000)"

RMB140,000,000

(approx.
US$19,620,000)

US$2,550,000

RMB120,000,000

(approx.
US$16,817,000)

RMB7,150,000

(approx.
US$1,002,000)
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Actual Proposed
Transaction Transaction Annual

Transaction Date Parties to the Transaction Connected Relationship Transaction Amount 2024 Caps 2024

7 25 February 2010 Huali Micro (as lessee) Huali Micro is 53.85% owned by Lease agreement between ~ RMB98,801,000  RMB103,000,000
(together with Huahong Group, a substantial Huali Micro (as lessee) and the (approx. (approx.
the supplemental - The Company (as lessor) shareholder of the Company. ~ Company (as lessor) in relation  US$13,892,000)  US$14,435,000)
agreements dated to the factory premise situated
10 June 2011 and at Hill 2, 13th street, Zhangjiang
25 July 2014) Hi-Tech park, Pudong New

Area, Shanghai, PRC leased by

the Company to Huali Micro for

their 300mm wafer production

line. The total gross floor area

leased was 96,048.2 square

meters.

(8) 1 January 2024 Huali Micro (as lesseg) Huali Micro is 53.85% owned by  Lease agreement between Huali ~ RMB1,402,000 RMBS5,316,000
Huahong Group, a substantial Micro (as lessee) and HHGrace (approx. (approx.
HHGrace (as lessor) shareholder of the Company.  (as lessor) in relation to certain US§197,000) US§745,000)

clean rooms in HHGrace's

factory premises leased to Huali

Micro. The total gross floor area

leased was 192 square meters.

9) 10 January 2013 Huahong Real Estate (as lessor) Huahong Real Estate is a Lease agreement between  RMB11504,000  RMB12,700,000
(together with wholly-owned subsidiary Huahong Real Estate (as (approx. (approx.
asupplemental  The Company (as lessee) of Huahong Technology lessor) and the Company  US$1,617,000) US§1,780,000)
agreement dated Development, a company 50% (as lessee) in relation to the
10 June 2014) held by and consolidated with dormitory premises situated

Huahong Group, a substantial
shareholder of the Company,
and 50% held by HHGrace, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

at Hua Hong Innovation Park,
Nong 2777, Jinxiu Road East,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
PRC (“Dormitory Premises”)
rented by the Company from
Huahong Real Estate for use as
staff quarters for the Company's
employees. The total gross
floor area rented was 17,412.87
square meters.
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Transaction

Transaction
Date

Parties to the Transaction

Connected Relationship

Transaction

Actual
Transaction
Amount 2024

Proposed
Annual
Caps 2024

(10)

(1)

1 January 2024

1 January 2023

Huajin Property Management
(as property manager)

The Company (as lessee)

Huahong Real Estate (as lessor)

HHGrace (as lessee)

Huajin Property Management
is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Huahong Technology
Development, a company 50%
held by and consolidated with
Huahong Group, a substantial
shareholder of the Company,
and 50% held by HHGrace, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Huahong Real Estate is a
wholly-owned subsidiary
of Huahong Technology
Development, a company 50%
held by and consolidated with
Huahong Group, a substantial
shareholder of the Company,
and 50% held by HHGrace, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company,.

Property management
agreement between Huajin
Property Management (as
property manager) and the
Company (as lesses) in relation
to the engagement of Huajin
Property Management by the
Group to provide property
management services for the
Dormitory Premises.

Lease agreement between
Huahong Real Estate (as
lessor) and HHGrace (as
lessee) in relation to the
dormitory premises situated
at Hua Hong Innovation Park,
Nong 2777, Jinxiu Road East,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
PRC (“Additional Dormitory
Premises”) rented by the
Company from Huahong Real
Estate for use as staff quarters
for the Company’s employees.
The total gross floor area rented
was 9,977.17 square meters.

RMB3,933,000
(approx.
US§553,000)

RB6,586,000

(approx.
US$927,000)©®

RMB5,700,000
(approx.
US§799,000)

RMB7,300,000

(approx.
US$1,023,000)
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Notes:

(1)

As China IC Fund ceased to be the substantial shareholder of the Company since 27 June 2024, therefore, Hua Hong Wuxi is
no longer a connected subsidiary of the Company since the same date, and the relevant transaction between the Group and
Hua Hong Wuxi ceased to be a connected transaction under the Listing Rules since that date and the disclosure of the amount
of the above continuing connected transaction only covers the period from 1 January 2024 to 27 June 2024 (inclusive).

The Group entered into a twenty-year lease with respect to certain dormitory premises from Huahong Real Estate before the
adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 16. Thus, the Group are not required to re-comply with the notifiable
or connected transaction Rules. The amount of rent payable by the Group under the lease is US$1,617,000 per year. As at
31 December 2024, the balances of those right-of-use assets and lease liabilities were US$9,694,000 and US$12,237,000,
respectively.

The Group entered into an additional lease of dormitory premises from Huahong Real Estate. The amount of rent payable by the
Group under the lease is US$927,000 per year. As at 31 December 2024, the balances of those right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities were US$6,341,000 and US$6,611,000, respectively.

The price and terms of the continuing connected transactions as described above were determined in accordance
with the pricing policies and guidelines as set out in the relevant announcements of the Company. The Board (including
the Independent Non-Executive Directors) has reviewed the continuing connected transactions as described above
and confirmed that such transactions did in fact continue in 2024

(i)
(i)

(iii)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed in a letter to the Board that, with respect to the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions of 2024:

(i)

(i)

nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s Board;

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to their attention
that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Company;

nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to their
attention that causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded
the relevant annual caps disclosed in the relevant announcement(s) with respect to each of the disclosed
continuing connected transactions.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“related parties” under the applicable accounting standards. Details of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2024 are disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed in the
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions and Connected Transactions” in this annual report, the other
related party transactions disclosed in note 35 were not regarded as connected transactions or were exempt from
reporting, announcement, and shareholder approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

The Group did not hold any significant investment (with a value of 5% or more of the Group’s total assets) as of 31
December 2024.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have other concrete plans for material investments or capital assets
as of 31 December 2024.

The AGM will be held on Thursday, 8 May 2025.

For determining the eligibility of Shareholders to attend and vote at the AGM

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration 4:30 p.m. on 30 April 2025 (Wednesday)
Closure of register of members 2 May 2025 (Friday) to 8 May 2025 (Thursday)

(both dates inclusive)
Record date 8 May 2025

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, unregistered holders of shares should
ensure all share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration no later than the aforementioned latest time.
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The Directors of the Company during the year and as of the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Junjun Tang (Chairman) (appointed as Chairman on 31 December 2024)
Dr. Peng Bai (President) (appointed on 1 January 2025)

Mr. Suxin Zhang (resigned on 31 December 2024)

Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Jun Ye

Mr. Guodong Sun

Mr. Bo Chen (appointed on 7 March 2025)

Ms. Chengyan Xiong (appointed on 28 March 2024)

Mr. Limin Zhou (appointed on 19 January 2024, resigned on 7 March 2025)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang

Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Mr. Songling Feng (appointed on 28 March 2024)
Mr. Long Fei Ye (resigned on 28 March 2024)

Each of the Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to re-nomination
and re-election by the Company in general meetings, unless his/her appointment has been early terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or director’s service contract.

Mr. Jun Ye, Mr. Guodong Sun and Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang will retire by rotation from office as directors at the
Annual General Meeting in accordance with articles 117 to 118 of the Articles. Dr. Peng Bai and Mr. Bo Chen were
appointed by the Board as Executive Director and Non-Executive Director on 1 January 2025 and 7 March 2025,
respectively, and will retire at the Annual General Meeting in accordance with article 122 of the Articles. Mr. Jun Ye,
Mr. Guodong Sun , Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang, Dr. Peng Bai and Mr. Bo Chen, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election pursuant to the Articles.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the general meeting has a service contract which is terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each of the existing Independent Non —
Executive Directors and Mr. Long Fei Ye in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all the aforesaid current and former Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management of the Company are set out on pages 12 to 20 of this report.
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Remuneration of the Highest Paid Individuals and Directors and Senior Management

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals are set out in Note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report, respectively.

Interests of the Directors and the Chief Executive in Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

As at 31 December 2024, save as disclosed below, none of the Directors or the Chief Executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares, or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register kept under section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in
the Listing Rules.

Number of underlying Approximate

shares held in long percentage

Name of Director Capacity position™ of interests
Mr. Junjun Tang Beneficial owner 448,500 0.03%

Note:

(1) Long position in (a) 437,500 underlying shares of the Company under share options granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme and (b) 11,000 RMB Shares he held.

Interests of Directors in a Competing Business

During the year, none of the Directors of the Group had any interests in a business which competes, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Company or the Group.

Interests of Directors in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of Significance

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates
was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director has or had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2024 or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has devised its own code of conduct regarding Directors dealing in the Company’s securities (the
“Company Code”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code. Specific enquiry has been made to all the
Directors, and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Company Code and the Model Code
throughout 2024.
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The Company provides directors and officers liabilities (D&QO) insurance for the Directors and Officers. The D&O

insurance covers day-to-day management liability and is renewed every year.

The names of Directors who have served on the boards of the Company’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2024, or during the period from the end of the year 2024 to the date of this report, were as follows:

HHGrace

Hua Hong Wuxi

Hua Hong Manufacturing

Huahong Real Estate (Wuxi) Co., Ltd.

Global Synergy Technology Limited

Grace Cayman

HHGrace Semiconductor USA, Inc.

HHGrace Semiconductor Japan Co., Ltd.

Shanghai, PRC

Wuxi, PRC

Wuxi, PRC

Wuxi, PRC

Hong Kong, PRC

Cayman Islands

CA, USA

Tokyo, Japan

Mr.
Dr.
Mr.
Mr.
Ms.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Mr.
Mr
Dr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr
Mr.
Mr.

Mr.
Mr
Dr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Mr.

Mr.
Mr.

Mr.
Mr.

Mr.
Mr.

Ms.
Mr.
Mr.

Junjun Tang

Peng Bai

Jun Ye

Bo Chen

Chengyan Xiong
Stephen Tso Tung Chang
Kwai Huen Wong, JP
Songling Feng

Suxin Zhang®

Limin Zhou®

Long Fei Ye®

Junjun Tang

.Jun Wei

Peng Bai
Guodong Sun
Weihua Wu
Bo Chen

. Xin Jin

Suxin Zhang®
Limin Zhou®

Junjun Tang

.Jun Wei

Peng Bai
Guodong Sun
Weihua Wu
Bo Chen

Xin Jin

Suxin Zhang®
Limin Zhou

Weiping Zhou

Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang
Cheng Fu

Suxin Zhang
Jun Ye

Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang
Cheng Fu

Maki Nakamura
Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang
Cheng Fu



62

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED e 2024 ANNUAL REPORT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Notes:

(1)

Dr. Peng Bai, Mr. Bo Chen, Ms. Chengyan Xiong and Mr. Songling Feng were appointed as directors of HHGrace in January
2025, March 2025, April 2024 and April 2024, respectively, and have been registered with the relevant market supervision and
management authority.

The resignation of each of Mr. Suxin Zhang, Mr. Limin Zhou and Mr. Long Fei Ye as a director of HHGrace was registered with
the relevant market supervision and management authority.

Dr. Peng Bai and Mr. Bo Chen were appointed as directors of Hua Hong Wuxi in January 2025 and March 2025, respectively.
Mr. Suxin Zhang and Mr. Limin Zhou resigned as directors of Hua Hong Wuxi and the registration of the relevant market
supervision and management authority is in the process of change.

Dr. Peng Bai and Mr. Bo Chen were appointed as directors of Hua Hong Wuxi in January 2025 and March 2025, respectively.
Mr. Suxin Zhang and Mr. Limin Zhou resigned as directors of Hua Hong Wuxi and the relevant market supervision and
management authority is in the process of change.

Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2024, persons other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, having interests of 5% or
more or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Group, were as follows:

Approximate
percentage of

aggregate

interests in

Number of issued share

Substantial shareholders Capacity and nature of interest shares held capital*

Shanghai Hua Hong International, Inc. Legal and beneficial owner 347,605,650 20.23%

(“Hua Hong International”)®

Huahong Group® Interest in a controlled corporation 347,605,650 20.23%

Legal and beneficial owner 1,198,5179 0.07%

Sino-Alliance International, Ltd. Legal and beneficial owner 160,545,541 9.34%
(“Sino-Alliance International”)

Sino-Alliance International Interest in a controlled corporation 28,415,606 1.65%

SAIL Interest in a controlled corporation 188,961,14716) 10.99%

Xinxin (Hong Kong) Capital Co., Limited Legal and beneficial owner 118,495,939 6.90%

Xun Xin (Shanghai) Investment Co., Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 118,495,939" 6.90%

China IC Fund Interest in a controlled corporation 118,495,939 6.90%

Notes:

(1)

Long positions in the shares of the Company.

Hua Hong International is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huahong Group.

Huahong Group directly held a total of 1,198,517 A shares.

Including 3,084 shares held in escrow by Sino-Alliance International pursuant to an escrow arrangement.

SAIL indirectly held interests in the Company through two wholly-owned subsidiaries, including Sino-Alliance International.

The percentages are calculated based on the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2024, i.e.,
1,718,468,815 shares.
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Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to any of the Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company, as at
31 December 2024, no other person or corporation other than a Director or Chief Executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2024 were rights to acquire benefits by means of an acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries, or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Purchases attributable to the Group’s top five suppliers combined were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases
for the Reporting Period.

Revenue from sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers combined accounted
for approximately 9.1% and 30.1%, respectively, of the Group'’s total sales revenue for the Reporting Period.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (whom, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the total number of issued shares of the Company) had a
material interest in the Group’s five largest customers during the Reporting Period.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 7,487 employees. The Group recruits and promotes individuals
based on their merit and development potential. The emolument policy for employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications, and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results and individual performance. The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis are set out in note 8
to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company'’s listed securities.

There are no provisions for right of first refusal under the Articles, or the laws of Hong Kong, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report.

As far as the Board is aware, the Company has complied in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company.

The Company firmly believes that robust and effective environmental, social, and governance (ESG) management is
the foundation for sustainable and high-quality development. The concept of ESG has been deeply integrated into the
Company'’s strategy, management, and long-term development goal and has been involved in the entire process of
our business operations, so as to drive continuous business growth and create and share value for all stakeholders.

During the Reporting Period, the Company revised its ESG management objectives to further enhance its management
capabilities in energy, greenhouse gas emissions, water resources, and waste disposal to higher standards, aligning
with evolving industry trends and seizing market opportunities. This initiative underscores the Company’s unwavering
commitment to advancing on the path of sustainable development. Moreover, the Company obtained Platinum Award
rating certification from the Responsible Business Alliance.

Huahong Group, SAIL, and INESA (Group) Co., Ltd., being the then controlling shareholders of the Company, entered
into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) dated 23 September 2014, details of which have been
set out in the paragraph headed “Non-Competition Undertaking” in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Company’s prospectus dated 3 October 2014 (the “Prospectus”). In addition, Huahong Group
and SAIL also entered into a deed of right of first refusal (the “Deed of Right of First Refusal”) dated 10 June 2014,
details of which have been set out in the paragraph headed “Right of First Refusal” in the section headed “Relationship
with Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus. The Company has reviewed the written declaration from each of
the controlling shareholders mentioned above on their compliance with their undertakings under the Deed of Non-
Competition and the Deed of Right of First Refusal (as the case may be) for the year ended 31 December 2024. The
Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings
under the Deed of Non-Competition and the Deed of Right of First Refusal (as the case may be) have been complied
with by the relevant parties.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this report, the Directors are satisfied that the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum public float
under the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
Junjun Tang

Chairman
27 March 2025
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This report is the ninth Environmental, Social and Governance Report of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited, disclosing
to stakeholders the Company’s operating philosophy, established management practices, implemented work and
results achieved in ESG topics during its operations.

Scope of the Report

The scope of this report covers Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (“Hua Hong Semiconductor”, “the Company” or
“we”). Unless otherwise specified, its scope is consistent with the scope of the consolidated financial statements for
the same period of Hua Hong Semiconductor (stock code: 01347.HK/688347.SH).

The factories of Hua Hong Semiconductor involved in production and manufacturing include the Shanghai Production
base and Wuxi Production Base. The Shanghai Production Base covers Fab 1, Fab 2 and Fab 3, while the Wuxi
Production Base covers Fab 7. Wuxi Fab 9 was completed and put into production in December 2024 and is not
included in the scope of this report.

Reporting Period

This Reporting Period is from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024. Unless otherwise stated, the data in this report
refers to the data within this period.

Basis of Preparation

This report is prepared in accordance with Appendix C2 Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(effective from 31 December 2023) of the Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Self-Regulatory
Guidelines No.14 for Companies Listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange—Sustainability Report (For Trial Implementation)
(April 2024) issued by the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Indicator
System for State-owned Listed Companies in Shanghai (Version 1.0) issued by the Shanghai Municipal State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission (“Shanghai SASAC").

Data Description

The data and cases in the report come from the Company'’s official records of actual operations. The financial data
in the report were all denominated in RMB. If there is a discrepancy between the financial data and the Company’s
annual financial report, the annual financial report shall prevail.

Report Acquisition Method

This report is published in electronic form. The publishing platform includes the information disclosure platform
designated by the stock exchange, and can also be viewed online or downloaded from the Company'’s official website
(https://www.huahonggrace.com).

Contact Us

If you have any suggestions regarding the report, please contact us through the following methods:

Contact address: 288 Halei Road, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai, PRC
Contact email: IR@ hhgrace.com



2024 ANNUAL REPORT ¢ HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 67

Materiality

The Company has identified the material topics related to its operations that are of concern to various stakeholders as
the focus of this report. While reporting on material topics in this report, attention is also paid to the characteristics of
the industry and business operations in which the Company is involved. For details of the process and results of the
materiality analysis of topics, please see the “Materiality Assessment” section of this report.

Accuracy

The information in this report is as accurate as possible. Among them, the measurements of quantitative information
have been described with data calibrations, calculation bases and assumptions to ensure that the range of calculation
errors would not be misleading to the users of the information. For details of the quantitative information and the
accompanying information, please see the “ESG Data and Notes” section of this report.

Balance

The contents of this report reflect objective and truthful facts and provide unbiased disclosure of both positive and
negative information concerning the Company. During the Reporting Period, no negative events were discovered that
should have been disclosed but were not.

Clarity

This report is issued in simplified Chinese, traditional Chinese and English. This report contains information such as
tables, model diagrams and lists of laws, regulations and relevant policies that the Company has complied with as an
adjunct to the textual content of this report, so as to facilitate stakeholders to better understand the textual content of
the report. To facilitate faster access to information by stakeholders, this report provides a table of contents and an
index table of ESG standards.

Quantitative

This report discloses key quantitative disclosures and, where possible, historical data.

Comparability

This report maintains a consistent approach to statistics and disclosure of the same quantitative disclosure items in
different reporting periods; if there are changes in the method of data collection, measurement and calculation, the
relevant data will be adjusted retrospectively, and the circumstances and reasons for the adjustments will be explained
in the notes to the report, so as to enable stakeholders to conduct meaningful analyses and assess the trend of the
development of the Company’s ESG data levels.

Completeness

The scope of the disclosure object of this report is consistent with the scope of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

Timeliness

This is an annual report covering the time period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024

Verifiability

The cases and data in this report come from the original records of the Company’s actual operations or financial

reports. The sources of data and calculation processes disclosed by the Company are traceable and can be used to
support external verification checks.
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The Company adheres to the entrepreneurial spirit of “set a course mastering the challenges ahead”, with the vision of
empowering our customers through continuous innovation. We focus on “8-inch + 12-inch” and advanced “Specialty
IC + Power Discrete” development strategies, providing diversified wafer foundry and related support, and strongly
supporting emerging applications in new energy vehicles, green energy, and the Internet of Things. Our commitment
to an exceptional quality management system ensures that we meet the stringent requirements of automotive electronic
chips.

The Board places great emphasis on Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) matters, recognizing them as
a core component of the Company’s sustainable development strategy. The Board directs the formulation of ESG
management policies and development strategies, guides the identification and determination of significant ESG
topics. Directors and senior executives regularly monitor and review the progress of the Company’s ESG objectives to
ensure continuous improvement in environmental protection, social responsibility, and corporate governance.

During the Reporting Period, the Company reformulated its ESG management objectives and will systematically
improve the full-cycle management efficiency in the fields of energy control, water recycling, greenhouse gas
emissions and waste under the guidance of advanced standards, actively responding to the national “Dual Carbon”
strategic orientation. Through the construction of a data-driven governance system and in-depth integration of
ESG standards, we will dig deep into green economic opportunities, demonstrate strategic determination in clean
technology application and industrial chain layout, and firmly determine to forge ahead on the road of sustainable
development.

During the Reporting Period, the Company obtained Platinum Award rating certification from the Responsible Business
Alliance, focusing on key areas such as employee rights, environmental responsibility, health and safety, business
ethics, and management systems. We have systematically integrated social responsibility into production operations to
ensure green, healthy, and sustainable development. The management practices and progress of ESG topics in this
report were considered and approved at the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company.
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In compliance with the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide and the
Self-Regulatory Guidelines No.14 for Companies Listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange—Sustainability Report ( For Trial
Implementation) (the “SSE Guidelines”) and with reference to international sustainability disclosure standards such as
the GRI Sustainability Reporting Standards from the Global Sustainability Standards Board, the Company analyzes and
evaluates each ESG topic from the dual perspectives of impact materiality and financial materiality to determine the

material topics.

Step 1
Understand the Context of Company Activities and
Business Relationships

Step 2
Conduct Stakeholder
Engagement, Topic ldentification and Due Diligence

Step 3
Materiality Assessment

Step 4
Topic ldentification and Disclosure

Gain insights into the Company’s strategic plans.
Analyze the external market environment in which the
Company operates.

Identify value chain segments that generate impacts
and the key stakeholders.

Communicate with key stakeholders to identify and
determine topics related to the Company, taking into
account the industry background and the Company’s
practices.

Conduct due diligence through engagement, surveys,
interviews, and other methods to engage stakeholders
and analyze and identify the impacts, risks, and
opportunities of the topics.

Establish key indicators and evaluation criteria using a
scientific and effective methodology.

Engage senior management and financial leaders to
assess the financial materiality of the topics, while
involving employees, suppliers, customers, and other
stakeholders to evaluate the impact materiality of

the topics, thereby determining the ranking of topics
based on their overall materiality.

After review and confirmation by the Company’s Board
of Directors, prioritize the disclosure of topics deemed
highly material for the 2024 in this report.
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1.2 Stakeholder Engagement and Due Diligence

Based on the business and operational characteristics of our Company and leveraging the experience and practices
in industry at home and abroad, Hua Hong Semiconductor has determined the following to be our stakeholders:
our shareholders and senior management, customers, employees, government and regulatory authorities, partners,
communities, and the public. The Company has established a stakeholder engagement mechanism to maintain close
engagement with these stakeholders via various channels and methods, including websites, media, meetings, reports,
and social activities. This mechanism enables the Company to promptly address the concerns of stakeholders.

Shareholders
and senior
management

Customers

Employees

Domestic and foreign
investors holding equity
and debt investments in
our Company, and senior
management members of
the Company

IDMs and fabless
semiconductor companies

Our employees and
contract personnel who
serve our Company on a
continuous basis

Corporate governance
Risk and compliance
management
Business ethics
Product and service
safety and quality

Information security and
privacy protection
Product and service
safety and quality
R&D innovation and
intellectual property
protection

Green products
Clean technology
opportunities
Circular economy

Rights and Interests of
Employees

Employee health and
safety

Employee development
and training

Financial and performance
reports, Shanghai Stock
Exchange e-interaction
platform, emails, and
roadshows

Risk management system
Anti-corruption mechanisms
Comprehensive audits
Quality reviews

Information Security
Management System (ISMS)
ISO9001 and other quality
management certifications
Customer satisfaction surveys
Technical seminars and
industry exchange meetings
Product lifecycle
management

Employee rights protection
systems

Dual prevention mechanism
for safety risk classification
control and hidden

danger investigation and
management
Comprehensive training
programs for all levels
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Key Stakeholders Description

Concerned Topics

Engagement and
Response Methods

Government Tax, environmental
and regulatory protection, safety and
authorities other departments, local
governments and
regulatory authorities
(such as SFC, etc.)
Partners Suppliers, research

institutions, industry
associations, etc.

Communities in which we
operate, the public and
media, etc.

Communities
and the public

e  Compliant operation

e  Emissions and waste
management

e  Energy management

e  Water resources
management

e Climate change
mitigation and adaptation

e  R&D innovation and
intellectual property
protection

e  Sustainable supply
chain management

e  Circular economy

e Community and public
welfare

e  Emissions and waste
management

Compliance and internal
control systems

Carbon footprint reports
Water resource risk
assessments in factory
operations

Environmental information
disclosure

Industry exchanges
Responsible Business
Alliance (RBA) certification
Local supplier diversification
Supplier social responsibility
audit mechanisms

Engagement in Community
activities, employee volunteer
activities, public welfare
activities, social cause
campaigns, etc.
Environmental information
disclosure

The Company established and gradually improved due diligence mechanism, appointed the ESG Working Group to
lead and coordinate various departments to carry out due diligence such as stakeholder communication, interviews
and research, so as to analyze, identify and determine the impacts, risks and opportunities of ESG topics in the short
term (within 1 year), medium term (1 year to 5 years) and long term (more than 5 years), so as to facilitate targeted

response measures.

Hua Hong Semiconductor 2024 Topics Impacts, Risks and Opportunities Analysis

No. Topics Timeframe

Key Risks and Opportunities

Upstream

Value Chain Scope
Operations Downstream

1 Climate Change Short,
Mitigation and Medium,
Adaptation Long-term

Risk: Increasing compliance costs
and low-carbon technology upgrade
requirements due to stricter global

climate and environmental policies and
carbon emission control measures
Opportunity: Investments in climate-
friendly technologies and development
of more efficient, eco-friendly products
can enhance market competitiveness
and brand reputation

‘/

y J
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2 Energy
Management

3 Water
Resources
Management

4 Emissions
and Waste
Management

o) Environmental
management

Short,
Medium,
Long-term

Medium,
Long-term

Medium,
Long-term

Medium,
Long-term

Risk: Optimizing energy management
systems may incur additional costs and
raise concerns from energy-efficiency-
focused customers and investors
Opportunity: Declining costs of
renewable energy (e.g., solar, wind)
provide stable, low-cost energy options,
reducing reliance on fossil fuels

Risk: Water shortages in production
operations may lead to disruptions,
unstable water quality, and reduced
capacity and product vyield, increasing
costs and revenue losses

Opportunity: Improved water resources
management systems enhance
efficiency and reduce operational costs

Risk: Stricter emissions regulations may
invest funds to ensure that its production
processes and waste management
meet new regulatory requirements,
including upgrading treatment facilities
or introducing new emission treatment
technologies

Opportunity: Higher waste recycling
rates can transform waste into reusable
resources, lowering raw material costs

Risk: Evolving environmental regulations
require diligence and monitoring to
ensure the operations comply with
all relevant laws and standards.
Non-compliance may result in fines,
sanctions, or production restrictions
Opportunity: Strong environmental
practices can attract ESG-focused
investors and customers, enhancing
capital market image and market
reputation



6 Green
Products

7 Circular
Economy

8 Clean
Technology
Opportunities

9 Employee
Health
and Safety

Short,
Medium,
Long-term

Medium,
Long-term

Medium,
Long-term

Medium,
Long-term

2024 ANNUAL REPORT ¢ HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED

Risk: In a rapidly evolving technological
environment, failure to update product
designs and production processes may
result in falling behind competitors and
losing market share

Opportunity: Effective product lifecycle
management enables rapid response
to market demands and technological
advancements, driving product
innovation and diversification

Risk: Without proper management and
operational mechanisms for recycling
raw materials and waste, product quality
may be compromised

Opportunity: Improved resource
efficiency can reduce raw material
procurement costs and waste disposal
expenses, enhancing overall operational
efficiency

Risk: Rapid advancements in clean
technology may render the products
less competitive if they fail to keep pace
Opportunity: Growing global demand
for green and clean technologies and
products presents opportunities to
expand market share and create new
revenue streams through innovation

Risk: In high-intensity production
environments, accidents and injuries
may occur if safety measures are not
effectively managed, potentially leading
to employee injuries or even more
severe accidents

Opportunity: Strengthening occupational
health and safety management can
improve safety standards, reduce
accidents, and mitigate legal and financial
risks, creating a safer work environment

73
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10 Rights and
Interests of
Employees

11 Employee
Development
and Training

12 Product and
Service Safety
and Quality

Medium,
Long-term

Medium,
Long-term

Short,
Medium,
Long-term

Risk: The departure of key employees
may result in the loss of critical industry
knowledge and skills, impacting project
progress and execution efficiency
Opportunity: Standardized employment
policies and a positive work environment
can enhance talent retention, supporting
sustainable operations and business
growth

Risk: Failure to provide high-
quality training may lead to gaps in
employees’ professional knowledge
and management capabilities, affecting
product quality and managerial
effectiveness

Opportunity: High-quality training
fosters innovative thinking and problem-
solving skills, enabling the Company
to adapt to market changes and
technological advancements, thereby
enhancing competitive advantage

Risk: Inadequate product quality
and customer service may increase
after-sales and maintenance costs,
including additional labor costs and
recall expenses, potentially leading to
customer loss and revenue decline
Opportunity: Robust product quality
management systems and customer
relationship management systems can
enhance product competitiveness,
improve customer satisfaction, and
drive revenue growth through increased
loyalty



13

14

15

Information Medium,
Security and Long-term
Privacy

Protection

Sustainable Medium,

Supply Chain Long-term
Management

R&D Innovation  Short,

and Intellectual  Medium,
Property Long-term
Protection
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Risk: Strengthening cybersecurity
infrastructure requires continuous
financial and resource investments,
including firewalls, intrusion detection
systems, and data encryption
technologies, to mitigate the risk of
cyberattacks

Opportunity: Effective information
security management can attract
privacy-conscious customers, enhance
brand image, increase market share,
and drive sales growth

Risk: Ensuring supply chain stability
and sustainability may require
diversifying suppliers and incurring
higher procurement costs to meet
environmental and social responsibility
standards, potentially impacting
profitability and competitive advantage

Opportunity: Building a sustainable
supply chain enhances the Company’s
ability to identify and manage
environmental and social risks,
improving operational resilience and
reducing potential business risks

Risk: Market acceptance of new
technologies or products may fall short
of expectations, affecting sales and
reducing revenue and profitability
Opportunity: Success in technological
innovation can attract investor attention,
and R&D achievements can create
financing opportunities and open new
business prospects

s
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No.

Topics

Timeframe

Key Risks and Opportunities

Value Chain Scope

Upstream

Operations Downstream

16

17

18

19

Community and
Public Welfare

Corporate
Governance

Business Ethics

Risk and
Compliance
Management

Short,
Medium,
Long-term

Medium,
Long-term

Medium,
Long-term

Medium,
Long-term

Risk: If the Company’s performance
in public benefit activities or social
responsibility fails to meet public
expectations, it may harm brand image
and reputation

Opportunity: Involvement and
investment in targeted communities can
help the Company better understand
local market needs, seize expansion
opportunities, and strengthen
competitive advantage

Risk: Non-compliant corporate
governance may lead to regulatory
investigations and fines, impacting
financial health

Opportunity: Strong corporate
governance can attract more investors,
enhance risk management capabilities,
and foster trust, driving high-quality
development

Risk: Violations of business ethics may
result in legal disputes, hefty fines, and
increased financial burdens
Opportunity: Improving governance
structures and transparency can
strengthen internal controls and risk
management, reducing the likelihood of
violations

Risk: Failure to comply with relevant
laws and regulations may lead to legal
disputes, fines, or sanctions, damaging
the Company’s reputation and market
trust

Opportunity: Optimizing internal
processes and systems can improve
operational efficiency, reduce
compliance risks, and support long-term
business development while minimizing
compliance costs

\/
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1.3 Materiality Analysis Conclusion

In 2024, through the double materiality analysis, Hua Hong Semiconductor identified 19 material topics, categorized
as follows: 7 topics with double materiality, 2 topics with financial materiality only, 9 topics with impact materiality only,
and 1 topic with neither financial nor impact materiality. The specific categorization is as follows:

Highest
A

Impact on the Economy, Environment and Society

Topics with double materiality: R&D innovation and intellectual property protection, climate change mitigation and
adaptation, water resources management, energy management, environmental management, sustainable supply
chain management, and employee health and safety;

Topics with financial materiality only: Information security and privacy protection and business ethics;

Topics with impact materiality only: Green products, clean technology opportunities, circular economy, employee
development and training, product and service safety and quality, emissions and waste management, risk and
compliance management, rights and interests of employees, and corporate governance;

Topics with neither financial materiality nor impact materiality: Community and public welfare.

Hua Hong Semiconductor 2024 Topics Materiality Matrix

4
ation and intellectual
© Gre rotection
Clean technology )
) N opportunities nd adaptation
o Circular .
economy ice
Employee dev
and training
Emission nt
manage
Risk and e supply
compliance agement
Rights and interests . !mar?agemen >
of employees
© Corporat
governa
and
Impact Materiality but
) i No Financial Materiality
® Community and public welf
Neither Financial
Materiality nor
Impact Materiality
Highest

Lowest Impact on the Company’s Finance
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Note:Among the 21 topics set in the SSE Guidelines, the Company does not involve the topics of “ecosystem and biodiversity
protection” and “science and technology ethics”; “due diligence” and “stakeholder engagement” are processes for ESG topic
identification, assessment and management, and are responded to in the “Materiality Assessment” section, not included in the
matrix as ESG topics. The remaining Guideline topics are addressed in the main body of the report or in the index table. For the
specific chapter mapping and explanation, please refer to the “Benchmarking Index Table of Self-Regulatory Guidelines No.14
for Companies Listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange—Sustainability Report ( For Trial Implementation)”. In addition, the Company
has independently identified the topics of “Green Products”, “Clean Technology Opportunities”, “Risk Compliance Management”
and “Corporate Governance”, all of which are responded to in the main body of the report.

2.1 ESG Management Structure

Based on the corporate vision of “Continuous Innovation and Empowering the Future for Global Customers”, the
Company established a top-down environmental, social, and governance (ESG) management structure, continues to
improve the ESG management system, encourages innovation-driven development, fosters innovative talents, and
strives to reduce the impact of business operation on the environment. We also make efforts to diversify the supply
chain capabilities and promote the joint creation of corporate business and social values.

The Board, as the highest decision-making/management body for the Company’s ESG management, is responsible for
the following aspects:

e to direct the formulation of ESG management policies and strategies of the Company and ensure that they are up
to date, relevant, and in compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements;

e to direct the identification and determination of the importance of significant ESG topics of the Company;

e to supervise the setting and implementation of the Company’s ESG goals, including: setting ESG management
performance goals of the Company; monitoring progress in achieving the goals; and advising on actions required
to achieve the goals;

e to review and approve the Company’s annual Environmental, Social, and Governance Report and other ESG
related disclosures.

The management level is responsible for overseeing the overall implementation of the ESG objectives set forth by the
Company. The ESG Working Group is tasked with identifying the impacts, risks, and opportunities associated with ESG
topics, developing ESG strategies and management policies, and assisting relevant departments in implementing ESG
management practices. It also regularly reports to the management team and the Board on the progress of key ESG
performance indicators, thereby advancing the achievement of the Company’s ESG management objectives.
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ESG Management Structure

Decision-making Level

Board of Directors

Management
A 4

Implementation Level

ESG Working Group
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Management Department Department Department Department Department
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Planning Human Finance Marketing Labor Union
Department Resources Department Department
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2.2 ESG Management Strategies and Targets
The Company has integrated ESG management into its products, business operations, and corporate development
and formed a complete ESG management strategy covering the four aspects of “Responsibility for Employees”,

n oo«

“Responsibility for the Industry”, “Responsibility for People’s Livelihood”, and “Responsibility for Investors”.

‘Heart Felt” Value for Employees

Respect for the Value
of Employees

Caring about the Growth
of Employees

Protecting Occupational Health

‘Prosperous” Environment
for Society

Promoting Green Development
Utilizing Resources Efficiently

Jointly Promoting Social Harmony

ESG Management Strategies

Responsibility
for Employees

Responsibility
for the Industry

Q00 S
Wﬂ 8@ 8
RERN 1_8._1

Continuous
Innovation
Empowering the
Future for Global
Customers

@) o\
@mo @
Responsibility for
People’s Livelihood

Responsibility
for Investors

Empowering the Future for
Global Customers

Providing Quality Products

Guaranteeing Rights & Interests
of Customers

Growing the Industrial Economy

“New” Profits for Shareholders
Development through Innovation

Consolidate Operations with
Integrity

Sharing the Benefits of
China’s Growth
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The Company has set ESG management targets for water use efficiency, energy use efficiency, GHG emission
reduction, pollutant reduction, waste reduction, and conflict mineral due diligence, based on the development of its
business and its ESG performance in operations. On an annual basis, the management and the Board review the ESG
performance and achievement of the Company’s ESG goals for the previous year and disclose the results in the ESG
report, so as to promote the achievement of ESG management targets.

Water resources
management

Energy
consumption
management

GHG emissions
management

Waste discharge
management

Wastewater
discharge
management

Air emission
discharge
management

Sustainable
supply

chain
management

The water consumed per unit product’
(m?® per 8-inch wafer) in 2030 will
decrease by 5% as compared with 2023

Comprehensive energy consumption per
unit product (MWh per 8-inch wafer) in
2030 will decrease by 10% as compared
with 2023

GHG emissions per unit product (tCOe
per 8-inch wafer) in 2030 will decrease
by 10% as compared with 2023

The waste produced per unit product (kg
per 8-inch wafer) in 2030 will decrease
by 4% as compared with 2023

COD discharge concentration in
wastewater will be 30% lower than the
emission standard

VOCs discharge concentration in air
emissions will be 30% lower than the
emission standard

The due diligence rate on suppliers of
conflict minerals will reach 100%, and
the utilization rate of compliant minerals
will reach 100%

The water consumed per unit product was 2.76
m?® per 8-inch wafer, decreasing by 2.49% as
compared with 2023

Comprehensive energy consumption per unit
product was 0.27 MWh per 8-inch wafer, decreasing
by 9.08% as compared with 2023

GHG emissions per unit product in 2024 was 0.12
tCOze per 8-inch wafer, decreasing by 9.53% as
compared with (0.14) in 2023

The waste produced per unit product was 8.29 kg
per 8-inch wafer, increasing by 8.41% as compared
with 2023

Shanghai Production Base: The average COD
discharge concentration was 65.70 mg/L, which is
30% lower than the emission standard of 500 mg/L
Wuxi Production Base: The average COD discharge
concentration was 29.90 mg/L, which is 30% lower
than the emission standard of 50 mg/L

Shanghai Production Base: The average VOCs
discharge concentration was 5.35 mg/m?, which is
30% lower than the emission standard of 50 mg/m?

Wuxi Production Base: The average VOCs
discharge concentration was 0.33 mg/m?, which is
30% lower than the emission standard of 100 mg/m?

Have conducted due diligence on suppliers of
“conflict minerals”, with a coverage rate of 100%,
and completed the latest version of the investigation
report on conflict minerals and extended minerals
All suppliers are found to use compliant raw
materials with the utilization rate of compliant
minerals up to 100%

1 Water consumed per unit product = water consumption from municipal water supply / annual production, excluding recycled
water and other water sources.
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Global
1 Responsible Business Alliance Platinum Award
National
2 Second Prize in State Science and Technology Improvement Award
&) National Worker Pioneer
4 National Model Unit for Professional Ethics Construction
Shanghai

Shanghai Quality and Technology Progress Award — Excellence Award

Shanghai Green Manufacturing Demonstration List in 2024 (Second Batch) - Green Factory

5
6 The 35th Shanghai Outstanding Invention Gold Award
-
8

Excellent Workstation of Academician in Shanghai

9 Shanghai Worker Pioneer
10 First Prize for Outstanding Collective in Shanghai Employee Labor and Skill Competition
11 Second Prize in Shanghai Employee Outstanding Innovation Achievement Award
12 Outstanding Achievement Award for Advanced Operational Methods of Shanghai Municipal Employees
13 Shanghai Employee Rationalization Proposal Innovation Award
Jiangsu
14 Wuxi Model Unit for Happy Enterprise Construction
15 Wuxi City Model Worker's Home

3.1 Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation
In the operational process of Hua Hong Semiconductor, the direct sources of GHG emissions are the burning of
natural gas, gasoline, diesel and the fugitive emissions of the production process, and the indirect sources of GHG
emissions are purchased heat and electricity. With reference to the International Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB)’s
Sustainability Disclosure Standards of IFRS 2 — Climate-Related Disclosures (“IFRS S2"), the Company has established
a top-down climate governance framework and formulated development strategies to cope with climate change, so as
to enhance its adaptability to climate change and gradually minimize the impact of its operations on the environment.

Governance

The Board regularly reviews climate-related risks and opportunities, as well as climate
change response strategies and management targets, and regularly monitors progress
towards the achievement of those targets.

The ESG Working Group takes responsibility for formulating climate change response
strategies and management targets. According to the external regulatory requirements and
market demands, the ESG Working Group makes timely adjustments to the timeliness of
management policies, supervises the implementation of related initiatives at each plant, and
regularly reports the work progress to the Board.

Each plant is responsible for executing specific tasks, such as verifying GHG emissions,
reducing GHG emissions through practical actions, regularly collecting and summarizing
GHG emission data, and performing self-assessments on the achievement of targets.



Strategy

Impacts, Risks
and Opportunities
Management

Metrics and
Targets
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Identifying climate change risks, including transition risks and physical risks, and conducting

scenario analysis to evaluate the financial impacts of climate change risks.

a) Transition risks: Actively responding to a series of measures under the emission control
policies to continuously reduce GHG emissions through various initiatives such as lean
production, green procurement, improvement of production processes and replacement
of non-essential energy-intensive equipment, details of which are available in the section
headed “Energy Management”.

b) Market opportunities: Capitalizing on the growth opportunities of product application in
wind and solar power generation, white goods and automotive electronics industries,
details of which are available in the section headed “Clean Technology Opportunities”.

c) Product opportunities: Developing low-power green products and utilizing our process
advantages to reduce the ESG emissions at the consumer end. Reducing the carbon
footprint of products through whole life-cycle management, details of which are
available in the section headed “Green Products”.

Making clean technology innovation as one of our core strategies and incorporating climate

change strategies into our business development frameworks, such as resource use

efficiency, energy sources, products and service opportunities.

Integrating the management of climate-related risks and opportunities into the environmental
risk management system, and formulating response strategies and implementing
management measures for significant climate-related risks and opportunities.

Conducting 1ISO14064-1 GHG emission verification and certification to systematically identify
the GHG emission sources and verify the GHG emissions.

Publicly disclosing the GHG emission data annually through the ESG reports and reporting
the management targets along with their achievement status.

Management target of GHG emissions: GHG emissions per unit product (tCO.e per 8-inch
wafer) in 2030 will decrease by 10% as compared with 2023.

Achievement status: GHG emissions per unit product in 2024 was 0.12 tCO.e per 8-inch
wafer, decreasing by 9.53% as compared with 2023.

The Company regularly identifies climate-related risks and opportunities, assesses their impacts on its business
development and business model, and analyzes the potential financial impacts, so as to better adjust its strategies
and management approach and continuously improve its response to climate change.



84 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED e 2024 ANNUAL REPORT

Risks Transition Reputation Risks

Risks

Transitioning to a low-carbon economy,
various stakeholders expect companies to
take active actions in response to climate
change and to enhance the transparency
of information disclosure. As a result, any
company that fails to respond effectively to
these propositions from the stakeholders
would be exposed to negative impacts on
its own reputation.

Policy and Legal Risks

The PRC has set a ‘Dual Carbon” target,
and regulatory scrutiny on corporate
carbon emissions will continue to intensify
in the future. Companies whose carbon
emissions do not meet the regulatory
requirements shall purchase carbon
emission allowances or China Certified
Emission Reductions (CCERs), which will
incur additional operating costs; companies
that fail to achieve their carbon emission
quota in full and on time may be subject
to penalties such as rectification within
prescribed period by relevant government
departments.

Market Risks

Customers and consumers are increasingly
concerned about the sustainability of
products and are demanding higher
standards for carbon footprint and energy
consumption. If the Company fails to
meet the market demands for its products
and services in a timely and effective
manner, the Company will lose its market
advantage.

Decreased Revenue

Increased Operating
Costs

Decreased Revenue

Publicly disclosing the GHG emissions
and reporting the target progress
of GHG emissions per unit product
annually.

Disclosing climate change mitigation
and adaptation efforts in accordance
with IFRS S2, and reporting the progress
to stakeholders.

Conducting carbon accounting
work annually, and completing the
compliance and achievement of carbon
emission quota limits required by
relevant ministries and commissions in
a timely manner.

The Company’s annual carbon
emissions do not exceed the carbon
quota limits, therefore no additional
costs are incurred.

Reducing GHG emissions through
various measures, such as upgrading
process technologies and enhancing
production equipment performance.
For example, use of NF; with high
cleaning efficiency instead of C.Fs helps
to reduce use of fluorocarbons, thus
reducing GHG emissions annually.

Developing products with lower power
consumption and higher efficiency to
help downstream industries improve
energy efficiency and reduce GHG
emissions across the value chain.



Physical Risks

Opportunities

Acute Physical Risks

The Company operates in coastal regions
such as Shanghai and Wuxi and may
be exposed to climate-related disasters
such as typhoons and rainstorms, which
may damage fixed assets, including
infrastructure, resulting in economic losses.

Chronic Physical Risks

Persistent high-temperature weather
caused by climate change may disrupt the
Company's business operations, resulting
in lower business revenue.

Resource Use Efficiency

Resource use efficiency shall be improved,
including the efficiency of energy and water
resources, which can help the Company
reduce operating costs during operations.

Energy Sources

A higher utilization rate of clean energy
in production activities can help reduce
reliance on fossil energy and, in the long
term, reduce the cost of purchasing
municipal electricity.

Products and Services

The Company’s products are widely
used in energy solutions for household
appliances and across all stages of the
photovoltaic and energy storage industries,
from electricity generation to consumption.
The growing demand for chips in these
sectors is driving a continuous increase in
the Company’s business revenue
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Reduced Value of
Fixed Assets

Decreased Revenue

Decreased
Operating Costs

Decreased
Operating Costs

Increased Revenue

Formulating emergency response plans
for extreme weather events.

Regularly conducting emergency
drills and training for natural disaster
incidents.

The 12-inch production line in Fab 7
(Wuxi) was awarded Leadership in
Energy and Environmental Design
(“LEED”) Gold certification from the
United States Green Building Council
("USGBC").

Developing a rooftop photovoltaic
construction plan to use renewable
energy instead of non-renewable energy
and increase the proportion of green
electricity.

The Company possesses non-volatile
memory (eNVM), high-performance
microcontroller (MCU) and single-
chip integration (BCD) processes,
and has accumulated rich technology
and experience in the new energy
power generation industry and the
manufacturing processes in the field of
home appliance applications.

During the Reporting Period, the Company completed the self-inspection report on the evaluation of dual-control
responsibility for carbon emissions in accordance with the Notice on Conducting 2023 Pilot Evaluation of Dual-Control
Responsibility for Carbon Emissions in Key Energy-Consuming Enterprises in the Industrial and Communication
Industry (BARFRE 2023 FEITENMBEFEHALECRIMEZEEETEERITIE(HE)BEM)) issued by
Shanghai Municipal Economic and Information Technology Commission. By implementing measures to reduce the
GHG emissions from the Company’s production and operation at both the management and equipment levels, the
Company is progressively advancing toward its green and low-carbon transition objectives.
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The Company’s Shanghai Production Base (Fab 1, Fab 2 and Fab 3) is a carbon emission quota management unit
in Shanghai. The Shanghai Production Base conducts third-party verification of the GHG emission reports every year
and completes the total data control plan for the next year at the end of each year. During the Reporting Period, the
Company completed the compliance and settlement work on schedule, with a total payment quota of 251,024 tons.

3.2 Energy Management

Hua Hong Semiconductor is committed to building a green enterprise integrating green technology, green production
and green building to realize environment-friendly operation and sustainable development. The Company’s energy
sources include electricity, heat, natural gas, gasoline and diesel, of which electricity, heat and natural gas are
sourced from municipal supplies, with no significant impact on the surrounding environment and natural resources.

Governance

The Company has formulated various administrative systems, including the Resource and Energy Management
Procedure and the Management Regulations for Water, Electricity, Steam, and Gas Metering in compliance with the
Energy Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China.
During the Reporting Period, the Company improved its energy management system in accordance with ISO 50001
and sorted out and updated its energy management system, to further standardize its energy management work.

The Company has established a three-tier energy management structure comprising the Board, the Management and
the ESG Working Group. The Board is responsible for reviewing the energy management strategy and overseeing
the achievement of targets. The Management is responsible for formulating the energy management strategy and
targets, facilitating implementation of relevant work in each production base and department, overseeing achievement
of targets, and reporting to the Board. The ESG Working Group leads the EHS, power and production departments in
each production base to formulate specific action plans to implement and realize the management strategy.

Strategy

The Company positions energy conservation as an important strategic development direction. On the one hand, the
Company has reduced total energy consumption through energy-saving technological transformation and actively
complied with the energy consumption assessment requirements of the governmental or regulatory authorities, to
reduce the policy risks. On the other hand, the Company has strategically deployed photovoltaic power generation
facilities to safeguard against operational risks caused by interruption of the municipal energy supply, thereby avoiding
additional operating costs resulting from energy shortages and price fluctuations.

The Company actively integrates the concepts of clean production and low-carbon energy into its production and
operation processes and turns energy conservation achievements into product and service opportunities, to create
green products with low environmental impacts. Through eco-design, residual heat recovery and energy-saving
renovation, the Company is building green factories. In December 2024, Fab 1 was awarded the Shanghai Green
Manufacturing Demonstration List in 2024 (Second Batch) - Green Factory.

Impacts, Risks and Opportunities Management

To address operational risks arising from energy supply interruptions, the Company has developed various operational
protocols, such as the Emergency Plan for Emergency Unloading, the Emergency Plan for Emergency Power Cut,
the On-site Treatment Plan of the Power Department for Power Cut and the Emergency Plan for Power Circuit Breaker
Tripping. Emergency response training and emergency drills were carried out to improve the ability of its employees to
manage various emergency power cut scenarios.
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In response to increasingly stringent local government regulations on energy consumption, the Company has
formulated internal management targets that are higher than the regulatory requirements, to mitigate the impacts of
policy risks. Aligned with the “Hundred One” Energy Conservation and Carbon Reduction Initiative in the Shanghai
Industrial and Communication Industry (2022-2025), the Company rigorously implemented the “energy conservation
project plan of 3,000 tons of standard coal”. By 2024, all 15 energy-saving renovation projects identified in the 14th
Five-Year Plan energy audit work were fully completed, achieving an energy reduction of 3,339 tons of standard coal.

Metrics and Targets

The Company has set an overall energy management target, which is divided up and allocated to each production
base for implementation. The Company monitors energy consumption of each production process on a daily basis and
regularly reviews the progress towards achieving the target.

Hua Hong Semiconductor’s Energy Management Metrics and Targets in 2024

Progress Towards

2023 2024 the Completion of
Metric Unit Performance Performance 2030 Target the 2024 Target
Comprehensive MWh per 8- 0.30 0.28 Decreasing by 10% Decreasing by 5.91% as
energy consumption inch wafer as compared with  compared with 2023 — in
per unit product 2023 progress of completing
the target
Honor and Award e Awarded Shanghai Green Manufacturing Demonstration List in 2024 — Green Factory

In order to effectively enhance energy efficiency management of equipment, the Company conducted energy
consumption statistics on major energy-consuming equipment and formulated a work plan for energy efficiency
upgrading and equipment renovation, in accordance with the Notice on Conducting Energy Efficiency Benchmarking
and Renovation on Major Energy-Consuming Equipment of Enterprises in the Industrial and Communication Industry
CRINFR TEMBEE XS A RHAENENIZ N E I MERAA ) issued by the Shanghai Municipal Economic
and Information Technology Commission.

Hua Hong Semiconductor’s Energy Saving Initiatives and Achievements in 2024

Entity Specific Measures Achievements
Shanghai Variable frequency renovation on the RO e Annual energy reduction of 28.23
Production Base high-pressure pumps in the pure water tons of standard coal
system
Reducing process steps by 3% and e Annual electricity saving of 960,000
manufacturing cycle by 4% in the eFlash kWh
platform

Building an intelligent energy management e  Annual electricity saving of 3.2
platform million kWh
Creating high-efficiency cooling rooms

Completing heat recovery renovation on e Annual natural gas reduction of
chilled water in the refrigeration unit 188,000 m?®
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During the Reporting Period, the Company’s primary energy consumption was as follows:

Total electricity consumption

Unit: MWh
1,104,828.92
1,030,352.33 o
@) O
954,667.00 | .
867,68200 . -
ﬁ
0O 0O
2021 2022 2023 2024
Total natural gas consumption
Unit: m®
11,630,543.00
11,456,569.00 o
O O
11,048,312.00
10,5630,287.00 “
2021 2022 2023 2024

Electricity consumption intensity

Unit: kWh per 8-inch wafer

262.19
248.00 242.86

2021 2022 2023 2024

228.00

Natural gas consumption intensity

Unit: m® per 8-inch wafer

4.49
o)
O O
327
2.81
oo 2.56
ﬂ
@) O

2021 2022 2023 2024

Note: The production expansion project of the Wuxi Production Base was put into operation in 2023, and the production capacity
was expanded in 2024. The total consumption of electricity and natural gas has increased, however, the energy consumption

intensity indicators have all decreased in 2024.
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3.3 Clean Technology Opportunities

Hua Hong Semiconductor actively responds to the “dual-carbon” economy call and solidly promotes its “8-inch
+ 12-inch” strategy and its advanced “Specialty IC + Power Discrete” dual-pronged strategy, to fully support
the ecosystem construction across the whole industrial supply chain. Through continuous R&D and innovation,
and expansion of specialty process advantages, Hua Hong Semiconductor focuses on the intelligent terminal,
communication, Internet of Things, automotive electronics and other fields. Its business not only covers high-end
consumer products, from IPM modules to peripheral control and power management, but also covers the power
industry supply chain, from power generation to power consumption, as well as the five major chip systems in the field
of automotive electronics.

The Company focuses on clean technology innovation as one of its core strategies and continues to promote
development of new ecosystems and novel applications, such as embedded non-volatile memory, power management
technology, power discrete technology and flash memory technology. This helps its customers to further expand their
strategic positioning in new energy sectors, including automotive electronics, premium home appliances, photovoltaic
systems and wind energy storage, and capitalize on market opportunities driven by clean technologies, thus actively
contributing to future development of their business.

Products Supporting Clean Technology Development

Power components is an important equipment
component for new energy generation and new
energy applications, such as photovoltaic and wind
power generation equipment, electric vehicles,
electric two-wheeled vehicles, the need to use a
large number of insulated gate bipolar transistor
(IGBT), metal — oxide semiconductor field effect
transistor (MOSFET) and other devices.

The Company has accumulated a large number
of customers in this field, and maintained a good
relationship and deep co-development cooperation
with the head enterprises in the field for a long
time. So far, the scale of power discrete revenue
has become the largest part of the Company’s
share.

Non-Volatile Memory

Non-volatile memory is widely used in chip
applications such as microprocessors (MCUs) and
application-specific integrated circuits (ASICs),
while these types of chips are widely used in new
energy generation equipment.

According to IC Insights, the automotive market
accounts for more than 30% of the global MCU
consumption market. All Hua Hong Semiconductor
manufacturing plants have passed IATF 16949
automotive industry quality system certification,
making important contributions to supporting local
manufacturing of automotive semiconductors.
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New energy components and application fields involved

Percentage

Product Application Field of Revenue

Power discrete Photovoltaic and wind power generation equipment, electric vehicles, 31.0%
electric two-wheeled vehicles, etc.

Embedded Non-Volatile New energy power generation equipment, electric vehicles, etc. 26.3%

Memory

Assist the development progress of new energy transformation technology

Automotive Electronics

Industrial New Energy

High-end Consumer Electronics

Through supply chain collaboration,
it helps customers accelerate their
products into relevant module
factories and complete machine
enterprises.

Establish direct cooperative
relationship with domestic
mainstream automobile
enterprises, from mature chip
replacement to joint efforts to
tackle key and difficult projects,
and jointly build sustainable
development ecosystem

and other multi-dimensional
cooperation. Recommended
mature chip types cover various
fields such as automotive
powertrain, body control, cockpit,
chassis and safety, remote control
and communication, ADAS,
charging piles, etc., to achieve
mass supply.

A company-level automotive
electronic database has been
established and continuously
improved.

The key products of power
discrete have achieved mass
supply and significantly
increased market share. In
the future, with the layout

and strong support of the
state for the double-carbon
economy, the future growth of
the new energy market can be
expected.

Cooperate with domestic
well-known household

appliance brand companies to
improve domestic production
replacement rate and
continuously promote the
expansion of high-end consumer
electronics business.

Famous domestic household
appliance brand companies
have adopted IGBTs, display
touch control chips, fingerprint
lock chips and motor control
products produced by the
Company'’s technology platform,
and have gradually penetrated
into the air-conditioner,
refrigerator and other major
appliance markets.

The Company will further promote the development of silicon-based power discrete capable of achieving higher
energy efficiency, and initiate the development of compound semiconductor power discrete with high power density
and low energy consumption, so as to provide continuously optimized solutions for products in clean energy
application fields such as inverter appliances and new energy vehicles, and further improve energy efficiency.
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4.1 Environmental Management

Hua Hong Semiconductor’s production and manufacturing fabs include the Shanghai Production Base and the Wuxi
Production Base. Among them, Fab 1, Fab 2, Fab 3, and Fab 7 are key units monitored for water environment and
environmental risks, while Fab 3 and Fab 7 are key units monitored for atmospheric environment. The Company
discloses environmental information annually, in compliance with legal requirements.

The Company strictly adheres to the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and the relevant
environmental regulations of local governments and has established internal policies, such as the Standard Operating
Procedures for Industrial Water Supply System, Internal Control Standards for Pollutants, and Operating Norms for
Industrial Waste Management.

Governance

The ESG Working Group is responsible for formulating environmental management strategies and objectives,
promptly tracking regulatory requirements from local governments and industry standards, identifying environmental
management risks within the Company, overseeing environmental compliance in the daily operations of each fab, and
reporting on key matters to the management team.

The EHS Department is responsible for coordinating establishment of the Company’s environmental management
system, including formulation of management regulations, performance analysis, and evaluation, with respect to
energy and resource use, emissions management, etc. It also assists external agencies in the audit and testing of the
Company'’s environmental management system.

Strategies

In terms of wastewater and air emission management, the Company prioritizes continuous improvement in
environmental governance, with up-to-standard discharge as a key operational objective, to avoid operational risks
caused by non-compliant discharge. The Company is located near office buildings and residential areas, where a
significant number of people gather, so the Company ensures the normal operation of exhaust gas treatment facilities,
avoids the spread of harmful substances to the surrounding environment, and creates potential exposure risks to the
respiratory system and ecosystem of community residents.

The Company identifies risks throughout the lifecycle of pollutants, from generation and collection to treatment and
discharge. Through regular monitoring and inspections, it ensures the proper operation of environmental protection
facilities and compliance with air emission and wastewater treatment standards. Annually, the Company allocates a
budget for environmental management and implements environmental protection and technical transformation projects,
such as upgrading photoresist equipment and wastewater recycling systems. These initiatives aim to reduce raw
material usage, extend the lifespan of chemicals, and minimize wastewater and air emissions, thereby mitigating the
environmental impact of operations and production.

The Company emphasizes the capability of its staff to handle environmental emergencies, aiming to prevent
environmental risk incidents, such as chemical leaks, fires, or direct pollutant discharges due to mismanagement. The
Company regularly updates the emergency response plans and alternatives for environmental incidents at all fabs,
formulates an annual emergency drill schedule each year and conducts emergency drills for potential environmental
incidents. Fab 1 conducted on-site response drills for unexpected shutdowns of exhaust treatment systems, Fab 2
conducted on-site response drills for waste liquid leaks, Fab 3 conducted drills for SiF, cylinder leaks, and Fab 7
conducted drills for chemical spills.

Additionally, the Company has established a green office strategy to strengthen employees’ environmental awareness
through cultural initiatives, daily behaviour guidelines, new employee orientation and advocacy. This approach
promotes the implementation of green office practices.
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Saving paper e Implementing office informatization to reduce paper consumption.
around the office e Making efforts to promote the use of recycled paper, including for printing
business cards of employees, to support recycling.

Saving electricity e Regularly holding environmental management sharing sessions to strengthen
employees’ awareness of economical use of office resources and energy.
e Turning off the power supplies when leaving work or a long absence.
e Reasonably setting air conditioning temperature above 26°C in summer and below
20°C in winter.

Saving water e Developing employees’ awareness of saving water and posting water saving
signs.
Waste disposal e  C(Classifying domestic waste and implementing waste classification and disposal

procedures, in accordance with the requirements at the place of operation.
e  Actively promoting waste classification initiatives to enhance employees’
environmental awareness.

Commuting o Encouraging employees to commute by public transport.
o Using new energy vehicles as shuttle buses for the Company.

Impacts, Risks, and Opportunities Management

The pollutant discharge standards in the region and industry the Company operates in are continuously updated. To
proactively mitigate policy risks, the Company has adopted internal pollutant discharge standards that are stricter than
the regulatory requirements. In 2024, the local government of Shanghai updated the Discharge Standards of Pollutants
for the Semiconductor Industry. In response, the Company’s four fabs each established Internal Control Standards for
Pollutants, to prepare for increasingly stringent environmental regulatory requirements.

The Company regularly identifies and assesses environmental risk topics at its production sites and refines its
environmental management system. All four fabs have obtained 1SO14001: 2015 certification. During the Reporting
Period, no violation against environmental laws and regulations occurred. During the Reporting Period, the Company
fully paid relevant taxes with respect to environmental protection.

Shanghai Production Base ISO 14001: 2015 Environmental 18 April 2027
Management System
Wuxi Production Base ISO 14001: 2015 Environmental 18 April 2027

Management System

The Company uses its safety management auditing and tracking system to analyze, sort out, and list the
nonconforming items against environmental protection regulations found in daily management, with follow up and
record keeping of subsequent rectifications through the regular reminder function of the system.

Metrics and Targets

The Company has set overall targets for environmental management, with the EHS department leading regular
monitoring and evaluation to assess progress toward these targets and the actual effectiveness of control measures.
In 2024, the Company invested RMB112.56 million in safety, environmental protection, and technical transformation
projects, as part of our continuing commitment to improving environmental management facilities.
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2024 Environmental Management Metrics and Targets of Hua Hong Semiconductor

Metric Unit 2024 Performance 2024 Target
Number of environmental violations Cases 0 0
Percentage of production base certified with ISO % 100 100
14001

Total environmental expenditure RMB 95,057,129 -

4.2 Water Resources Management

Water used by the Company comes to a large extent from the municipal water supply, in addition to a smaller amount
of recycled water and air conditioning condensate from the pure water manufacturing process. In strict accordance
with laws, rules and other relevant regulations, including the Water Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Shanghai Administrative Measures for Water Conservation, and the Jiangsu Water Conservation Ordinance, the
Company has established management policies, including the Standard Operating Procedures for Industrial Water
Supply System and the Tap Water Anomaly Handling Procedure, to monitor the supply and quality of water resources
in its operational areas. The Company implements water-saving technical transformation, recycles production
wastewater, and organizes water conservation awareness activities, to reduce water waste both in mindset and
practice.

Overview of Water Used for Production and Operation of Hua Hong Semiconductor in 2024

148.4705 million m?3

<€

Water from municipal 12.5602 million m? Water used for '

» production and Recycling and reuse
domestic activities 148.4705 million m®
161.0306 million m?

water supply
12.5602 million m?3

8.7350 million m?®

Treated wastewater
9.6990 million m?®

Reused and
recycled wastewater
8.7350 million m?®

Municipal pipeline
0.9640 million m?®
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Governance

The Company has implemented a three-tier water conservation management system, comprising the “Fab Manager
— Water Conservation Leadership Group — Water Conservation Management Team.” Led by the fab manager, the
water conservation leadership group establishes water resource management objectives for the fabs, develops water
usage regulations, and ensures that all departments adopt effective measures to achieve these objectives and comply
with the policies. Additionally, each fab has established a water conservation management team, which designs
water-saving initiatives tailored to production processes and operational workflows, oversees daily operations, monitors
water consumption, and collects and reports data on water consumption.

Strategy

Semiconductor manufacturing requires water purity of high standards and consumes substantial amounts of water
resources during production. As a water-intensive enterprise, the Company utilizes water across various production
stages, some of which involving the use of pure water.

Recognizing the critical importance of a stable supply of water and pure water for on-going production, the Company
has enhanced water use efficiency and increased investments and initiatives in water recycling. These measures aim
to mitigate potential challenges such as water outage and unstable water quality arising from increased water costs
and water scarcity, thereby ensuring stable production and maintaining high product yield.

To mitigate operational risks related to water resources, the Company regularly identifies and monitors water-related
risks in its operations, evaluates the likelihood and impact of physical and policy risks, and develops corresponding
management policies and response strategies.

Impacts, Risks and Opportunities Management

Through energy conservation and emission reduction initiatives, the Company continuously enhances the efficiency of
water recycling, reduces its dependence on externally sourced ultrapure water and municipal water, and generates
ultrapure water using RO reverse osmosis membranes. Furthermore, the Company actively explores water-saving
opportunities and recycles water resources across various production stages.

The Company constantly monitors the risk of water resources in areas where we operate through the “Aqueduct Water
Risk Atlas”, an external tool from the World Resources Institute (WRI). We analyze the rationality of water consumption
for production and the operation of our fabs along with the possible impact of the water intake and implements
measures to mitigate water-related risks.

Water risk monitoring e  Water quantity risks: Water stress, groundwater level decline,
indicators interannual variability, seasonal variability, drought, river flood
risks.

e  Water quality risks: Coastal eutrophication risk, exposure to
untreated wastewater.

e Legal, regulatory and reputational risks: Regulatory and
reputational risks, lack of access to drinking water, sanitation
risks, ESG reputational risks.



Monitoring results Water quantity
of Shanghai Fab and risks

Wuxi Fab
Water quality
risks
Legal, regulatory
and reputational
risks
Countermeasures

Metrics and Targets
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Overall water quantity risk: Very high

Water stress: Very high

River flood risk: High

Drought risk: Medium to high

Groundwater level decline risk, annual and seasonal variability:
Low to medium

Coastal flood risk: Low

Overall water quality risk: Medium to high
Exposure to untreated wastewater: High
Sanitation risks: High

Coastal eutrophication risk: Low to medium

Overall legal, regulatory and reputational risks: Medium to
high

Regulatory and reputational risks: Medium to high

Lack of access to drinking water: Low to medium

ESG reputational risks: Low to medium

Relying on water monitoring sites for each fab, the Company has
conducted water balance tests on a regular basis to calculate
the process water, recycled water, wastewater, and domestic
water use of each fab.

The Company records the flow, volume, and recycling of water
resources, so as to analyze whether there is any abnormal
utilization of water resources and predict the reasonable
allocation of water resources among water-consuming units.
Upgrade or replace equipment with high water consumption,
and enhance water consumption efficiency.

Expand the sources of water resources by reusing up-to-
standard treated production wastewater and recycling by-
products, such as concentrated water from pure water
production and air conditioning condensate.

The Company has set overall water resource management targets, which are allocated to each production base for
execution. Water usage across all production processes is monitored daily, and progress toward achieving the targets

is reviewed periodically.
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2024 Water Resource Management Metrics and Targets of Hua Hong Semiconductor

Progress towards

2023 2024 the Completion
Metric Unit Performance Performance 2030 Target of the 2024 Target
Water consumption m® per 8-inch 2.83 2.76 Decreasing by 5% Decreasing by 2.49% as
per unit product wafer as compared with compared with 2023 - In
2023 progress of completing the
target
Honor e Awarded the title of Advanced Energy-Conservation and Emission-Reduction Enterprise in

and Award Xinwu District, Wuxi.

The Company improves water use efficiency through three measures, including water conservation, recycling
production wastewater for processes with lower water quality requirements, and reusing treated production
wastewater. Water-saving measures have been implemented in critical water usage areas and integrated wastewater
recycling and treatment systems have been established to classify, filter, and reuse production wastewater.

2024 Water-Saving Measures and Achievements of Hua Hong Semiconductor

Entity Action Measures Annual Water-Saving Results
Shanghai Wastewater reuse  Concentrate and recycle reverse A total of 250,000 tons of water
Production Base 0osmosis concentrate; treat and reuse  was saved during the year

equipment rinse water, instrument
water, and condensate.

Wuxi Production Wastewater reuse  Concentrate and recycle reverse A total of 420,000 tons of water
Base 0smosis concentrate; treat and reuse  was saved during the year
equipment rinse water, instrument
water, and condensate.

Wastewater Upgrade backwash wastewater A total of 2,500 tons of water was
recycling system recycling system to increase the saved during the year
upgrade usage of recycled water.

4.3 Emissions and Waste Management

Air Emission Management

Air pollutants generated during the production process of the Company include sulfuric acid mist (H.SO,), hydrogen
chloride (HCI), nitric oxide (NOx), ammonia (NHs), and volatile organic compounds (VOCs).

Hua Hong Semiconductor strictly adheres to the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution, the Discharge Standards of Pollutants for the Semiconductor Industry set by the relevant
industry association of Shanghai and other applicable laws, regulations, and requirements. During the Reporting
Period, each of the four fabs developed its own Internal Control Standards for Pollutants, adopting stricter internal
discharge control measures that exceed regulatory requirements.
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Types and Treatment Methods of Air Pollutant of Hua Hong Semiconductor

Type Treatment Method

Air emission Acid air emission Up-to-standard discharge after removing most of the
components through pretreatment and centralized treatment of
the washing tower.

Alkaline air emission (mainly Purification through a washing tower.
ammonia gas)

Organic air emission Purification through activated carbon adsorption, or combustion
after concentration.

Air Emissions containing dust Removal through a dust-extraction unit.
(mainly small particulates of
silicon dioxide)

The Company formulates an annual testing plan, deploys online monitoring facilities, and performs regular maintenance
of air emission treatment systems, to ensure effective treatment efficiency and compliance with air emission discharge
standards. The Company proactively addresses regulatory requirements by gradually promoting the use of low-VOCs
cleaning agents, thereby reducing untreated air emissions of volatile organic compounds during cleaning processes.
In 2024, the Company’s air emission testing results confirmed that all air emissions met discharge standards.

2024 Air Emission Management Metrics and Targets of Hua Hong Semiconductor

Progress towards the

2024 Completion of the 2024
Metric Unit Production Base Performance 2024 Target Target
Annual average VOCs mg/m? Shanghai Production 5.35  Better than the emission ~ Emission concentration is
discharge concentration Base standard (50) by more more than 30% better than

than 30%, that is, <35 the emission standard,
achieving target
Wuxi Production Base 0.33  Better than the emission
standard (100) by more
than 30%, that is, <70

2024 Air Pollutant Reduction Measures and Achievements of Hua Hong Semiconductor

Entity Specific Measures Results

Shanghai Production Extended the chemical lifespan of SPM tanks Reduced annual sulfuric acid usage by
Base (H2S04+H,0,) through research 57 tons

Wuxi Production Base Reduced SPM usage at cleaning stations Reduced annual sulfuric acid mist

emissions by 0.66 tons

Upgraded boilers with low-carbon burners Reduced annual nitric oxide emissions
by 0.94 tons
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Wastewater Discharge Management

The Company strictly complies with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution and the Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard. The Shanghai Production Base complies with
the Discharge Standard of Water Pollutants for the Electronic Industry, while the Wuxi Production Base follows the
Jiangsu Discharge Standards for the Semiconductor Industry. The Company has formulated internal management
systems, such as the Operation Manual for Wastewater and Drainage Discharge and the Internal Control Standards
for Pollutants. Through enhancements in wastewater treatment processes and the expansion of wastewater reuse

initiatives, the Company has minimized the generation of wastewater pollutants.

Both the Shanghai Production Base and the Wuxi Production Base are equipped with online monitoring systems for
wastewater pollutants, with discharge concentrations transmitted in real-time to the environmental regulatory authorities’

public information platform, ensuring reliable, transparent, and traceable environmental information.

Types and Treatment Methods of Water Pollutants at Hua Hong Semiconductor

Type Treatment Method
Wastewater pH, COD, ammonia nitrogen, Discharged into the municipal sewage network upon meeting the
fluoride ion, etc. discharge standards after being treated through a wastewater

treatment system utilizing processes such as coagulation
sedimentation, air stripping, acid washing absorption, aerobic
biological contact, acid-base neutralization, MBR, etc., and then
further treated by urban sewage treatment plants before being

released into natural water bodies

During the Reporting Period, the wastewater test results of the Company indicated that all types of wastewater

pollutants achieved compliant discharge.

Water Pollutant Management Metrics and Targets of Hua Hong Semiconductor in 2024

2024 2024 2024 Progress
Metric Unit Base Performance Target Towards Target
Annual COD mg/L Shanghai Production 65.7  Better than the emission  Emission concentration is
discharge Base standard (500) by more  more than 30% better than
concentration than 30%, that is, <350 the emission standard,
achieving the target
Wuxi Production Base 29.9  Better than the emission

standard (50) by more
than 30%, that is, <35
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Recycling and reusing relatively clean cleaning wastewater to reduce wastewater Reducing DHF wastewater
discharge from hydrofluoric acid and deionized water (DHF) solution cleaning discharge by 10,000 tons/
year

Completing the switch to 55LP Plus eFlash through the 55LP eFlash platform, reduce Reducing wastewater
process steps by 3% and shorten manufacturing cycles by 4% discharge by 3,708 tons/year

Waste Management

The Company complies with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Wastes and the Standards for Pollutant Control in the Storage of Hazardous Wastes and has
formulated management systems, such as the Waste Management Procedure and the Code of Practice for Industrial
Waste Management, to standardize the processes of waste generation, temporary storage, transfer, and disposal. The
Company also registers the waste disposal methods and destinations through the unified environmental protection
management system of the government to ensure traceability. The waste is properly recycled, landfilled or incinerated
by qualified transportation and disposal units.

During the Reporting Period, in accordance with the Notice on Further Strengthening the Standardized Environmental
Management of Hazardous Wastes in the City issued by Shanghai Municipal Bureau of Ecology and Environment, the
Company established an electronic tag application management system for hazardous wastes, achieved real-time
connection with the solid waste system of Shanghai, and added the Management Measures for the Electronic Tag
Application System for Hazardous Wastes, to standardize the electronic management of hazardous waste tags.

Non-hazardous  Domestic waste and kitchen garbage Entrusting the environmental sanitation departments in
waste the places where we operate for unified disposal on a
regular basis

Raw materials for production and office  Recycling within plant premises

supplies

Sludge, etc. Landfilling, and brick manufacturing
Hazardous Waste acid, waste isopropanol, waste Handled by suitable enterprises, or reused in other
waste phosphoric acid, and organic waste industries, for a higher reuse rate

liquid, etc.

Waste glass bottles, 200L chemical Chemical treatment
barrels, and waste liquid from

laboratory, etc.

Cleaning cloths, plastic bottles, waste Incineration
activated carbon, waste resin, and

arsenic-containing waste, etc.

The Company identifies and categorizes wastes, as well as adopts appropriate management measures and reuse
methods, to strive in maximizing the recycling rate of wastes.
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Waste Management Metrics and Targets of Hua Hong Semiconductor in 2024

Progress towards

2023 2024 the Completion of
Metric Unit Performance Performance 2030 Target the 2024 Target
Waste generation kg/8-inch wafer 7.65 8.29 Decrease by 4%  Increase by 8.41%

compared to 2023
towards the target

per unit product  count compared to 2023

4.4 Circular Economy

The main types of raw materials for the Company’s production and operation include silicon slices, quartz, target
materials, chemicals, etc. To standardize the use of raw materials, the Company has formulated raw material
management systems, such as the Raw Materials Shelf Life Control Policy, the Risk Identification and Response
Measures for Key Materials, and the Key Materials Risk Analysis Table, ensuring that raw materials are within their shelf
lives and that there are no quality or safety issues with key materials. For production auxiliaries, such as chemicals and
gases, the Company has established the Materials Management Department’s Management Standards for Chemical
Storage and Gas-based Operations, promoting safe storage and handling procedures.

On the basis of standardizing raw material management, the Company, adhering to the principles of “reduction from
the source” and “circular economy” and complying with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Promotion
of Circular Economy, strives to minimize the use of raw materials, especially chemicals, to further reduce safety risks.
Additionally, it reduces waste of resources by improving production processes and rationally allocating resources for
recycling.

Measures and Achievements in Saving Raw Materials at Hua Hong Semiconductor in 2024

Entity Specific Measures Achievements

Shanghai Production
Base

Implementing modifications to the
equipment used for photoresists, to reduce
raw material consumption

Annual photoresist reduction by about
1,000 liters

Improving production processes and
extending the service life of chemicals

Annual savings of 9,100 liters of ammonia
water and 4,300 liters of hydrogen
peroxide

Carrying out thin film process renovation

Annual savings of 1,217 kilograms of
hexafluoroethane

Wuxi Production Base

Adjusting process parameters and reducing
cleaning frequency

Annual savings of 2,520 liters of sulfuric
acid

Annual savings of 420 liters of hydrogen
peroxide

4.5 Green Products
Chemical Control

Multiple processes in the Company’s manufacturing operations require the use of chemicals, among which some
hazardous and toxic chemicals require special management.
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Types of Hazardous Chemicals of Hua Hong Semiconductor

Type Name

Flammable liquid Isopropanol, photoresist, and diesel fuel

Oxidants and organic peroxides Hydrogen peroxide

Toxic chemicals Phosphine and fluorine

Corrosive chemicals Sulfuric acid, hydrochloric acid, hydrofluoric acid,
phosphoric acid, mixed acid, ammonia water, and sodium
hydroxide

Compressed and liquefied gases Hydrogen, methane, silane, nitrogen, oxygen, argon,

helium, ammonia, and chlorine

The Company has formulated a number of management policies and operation procedures, including the Chemicals
Management Procedure, the Inspection and Registration System for Chemicals Coming In and Out of the Warehouse,
the Hazardous Chemical Safety Management Regulations, and the Management Measures for Hazardous Chemicals,
aiming at reducing the risks associated with chemical operations through standardized label management and in/out
registration management.

The Company has established a Factory Chemical Review Committee and formulated the Chemical Substance Review
Procedure, to comprehensively evaluate the environmental protection and safety qualifications as well as the risk
prevention and control capabilities of chemical suppliers in advance. The Company employs the chemical substance
management system to: manage the handling, storage, and disposal of chemicals; control the maximum storage
quantity of chemicals; and dynamically monitor their use and consumption to ensure the safe use of chemicals and
eliminates environmental pollution caused by chemicals.

Management Process of Hazardous Chemicals of Hua Hong Semiconductor

- Disposal

e The purchase and e Vehicles transporting e Hazardous chemicals
marketing personnel of hazardous chemicals shall be used in strict
chemicals shall work with shall be used for special accordance with the safe
qualification certificates purpose to prevent the operation procedures;
and ask for chemical gBten;ICiﬁilr? frodnrwi rLiJr?mg? e Hazardous chemicals
safety specifications o Ieal‘dn%"- g. dripping 0 that need to be disposed
and chemical safety A Chemioéls shall be of shall be collected by
labels when purchasing separated, classified, special personnel, sent to
hazardous chemicals. and stored by their the Company’s hazardous

performance; managed waste warehouse, and then
by special personnel; and delivered to the hazardous
regularly inspected. waste disposal agency for

centralized disposal.

Transportation
and Storage
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Management for the Full Life Cycle of Products

The Company adopts the concept of circular economy, reduces the amount of raw materials used, continuously
explores the recycling links of wastewater, energy, and waste, and lowers the impact of the full life cycle of products
on the environment.

Environmental Management for the Full Life Cycle of Products of Hua Hong Semiconductor
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Warehousing Product Product Transportation End-user Products Disposal
of Raw Materials Production
e Carry out hazardous ¢ Choose low- Use environmentally Develop e All wafers are tested

substance
examination and
systematic control on
raw materials

Review the
qualification and
environmental
compliance of
suppliers and require
suppliers to sign

the Environmental
Protection
Undertaking Letter

energy and high-
efficiency production
equipment to reduce
the use of raw
materials and energy
Treat production
wastewater to meet
standards and reuse
it in production

to increase the
wastewater reuse
rate

Optimize production
technologies and
pollution treatment
processes to reduce
the generation of
wastewater and
waste gas

friendly packaging
materials whenever
possible

Recycle and reuse
packaging materials
Optimize
transportation routes
to reduce repeated
and no-load
transportation

lowpower and
highperformance
chips to minimize
environmental
impact

Develop new
products that

are smaller in
size but more
efficient to reduce
environmental
pollution

for harmful substances
to reduce their
environmental impact
when discarded
End-of-life products
are disposed of as
electronic waste by
consumers through
qualified institutions
for harmless disposal,
with some parts

or metals being
dismantled, refined,
and recycled
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5. Caring for Employees and Promoting Harmonious Development

5.1 Rights and Interests of Employees

Employee Employment and Recruitment

The types of employee at Hua Hong Semiconductor include full-time contract workers, dispatched labor workers,
and employees of other forms (like retired rehires and trainees). During the process of employment and recruitment,
Hua Hong Semiconductor strictly adheres to the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Women’s Rights and Interests. We insist on fair employment,
implement the principle of equal pay for equal work, and ensure that employees are not discriminated against or
treated differently based on non-work factors including age, gender, place of birth, religious belief, marital status, or
disability. We prohibit the employment of child labor or forced labor.

The Company has formulated relevant internal regulations, including the Employment Procedures, the Management
Procedures for Trainees, and the Resignation Management Regulations. The Company strictly checks the identity
information of employees and never employs adolescents under the age of 16. If such a situation is identified and
verified, it will be immediately suspended and investigated for rectification, targeting at the omission of links around the
recruitment review process, so that each process can be improved. During the Reporting Period, the Company has
experienced no illegal or non-compliant incidents in connection with employee recruitment and dismissal, work hours
and holidays, job promotion and equal opportunities, anti-discrimination and diversity, the employment of child labor or
forced labor, nor had any litigation in connection with the aforesaid matters.

In order to better carry out the Company’s talent reserve and cultivation, the Company launched a university campus
summer internship program to provide internship opportunities for students to help them understand the Company’s
corporate culture, operation system, management model, etc. as soon as possible, for future employment and career
preparation. The Company assigns senior professional staff to guide interns in all aspects of work, study and life, and
provides certain remuneration for their work.

Employee Employment Norms of Hua Hong Semiconductor

Working Hours

Recruitment Democratic

Remuneration

and Vacation
System

and Dismissal Participation

Recruitment: Adhering
to the principle of
fairness, equity and
openness;

Dismissal: The
Company and
employees go
through the dismissal
procedure according
to relevant laws,
regulations, and the
Dismissal Management
Procedure.

Providing competitive
remuneration to
employees that are
sufficient for them and
their family members to
enjoy a decent standard
of living;

Contributing to

social insurance and
housing fund for full-
time employees, and
procuring commercial
insurance such

as accident injury
insurance and critical

A standard working
hours system

is adopted. A
comprehensive or
flexible working hours
system is adopted
for certain positions
with the approval of
the administrative
department of human
resources and social
security;

Based on holidays

and festivals specified

by the government,

Establishing labor
union, employee
congress, etc. to
ensure the democratic
participation of
employees in the
Company'’s decision
making.

illness insurance
beyond the statutory
requirements.

supplementary annual
leaves are provided for
full-time employees.
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The Company firmly believes that a diverse and inclusive culture is a key factor in stimulating team vitality and
promoting sustainable corporate development. In the recruitment process, the Company actively expands diversified
recruitment channels to attract and accept outstanding talent with different cultural backgrounds, educational
experiences, and technical expertise, while providing equal employment and development opportunities. Meanwhile,
the Company attaches importance to diversity and equality in the workplace, ensuring that all employees can
contribute their strengths in an environment that respects and supports differences.

Practices of Employee Diversity of Hua Hong Semiconductor

r

Gender Diversity

e Upholding the principle of “gender equality” in recruitment, employment, and promotion, the Company
incorporates employee aptitude and performance assessments into the standards of employment and promotion.

r

Age Diversity

e Upholding the principle of “age equality”, the Company provides job and promotion opportunities
L for employees of different age groups.

Functional Diversity

e The Company offers various positions and levels in management, technology, and functional support, allowing
employees to choose based on their own development plans.

Employee Composition of Hua Hong Semiconductor in 2024

Gender Distribution

26% 74%
Female Male

Age Distribution

43% 55% 2%
<30 years old 30-50 years old > 50 years old

Over 1,700 Persons Recruited in 2024, Including

49% 35% 9%
Front-line production Engineering and technical R&D personnel
personnel personnel

Employee Care
The Company creates a caring work environment for its employees, providing benefits in terms of office facilities,
dining, accommodation, travel, etc., and fostering a warm, loving, and energetic work atmosphere.



Office

Diet

Accommodation

Travel

Culture
and sports

Extending
solicitude

Health checkup
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The ventilation system is installed in all offices and additional air purification devices added
to improve office air quality.

The soft furnishings in employee lounges, such as refrigerators, TVs, and seats, are
updated.

Greenery is increased within the factory premises, with the addition of fountains, decorative
fishponds, and other landscaping features.

There are staff canteens and coffee shops in all factories.

Establishing a food safety supervision team, adopting the mode of centralized purchasing
of food materials and qualified supply chain management, and inviting employees and
department representatives to carry out supervision.

Advocating healthy diet, constructing a healthy dietary system, scientific management of
meals with nutritional balance and oil and salt control, effectively enhancing the rationality
of employees’ dietary structure, and realizing the dynamic balance between deliciousness
and health.

Construction of dormitory with private bathrooms, 24-hour supply of hot water, and WIFI
network, etc.

The dormitory area has a library, computer room, snooker room, laundry, TV room, parcel
locker, and other facilities.

Providing all employees with travel allowance.

Providing free commuter bus services between the park, subway stations, and the
dormitory.

Setting up various cultural and sports associations, including calligraphy and painting
association, gardening association, tea art association, fithess association, cycling
association, etc., which can be signed up for participation by all employees.

Organizing all kinds of competitions, including basketball, football, swimming, dry land
curling, tennis, badminton, table tennis, etc., which can be signed up for participation by all
employees.

Celebrations and comfort activities are held during major holidays.

Providing holiday and birthday gift packages for employees, so that employees can feel the
warmth and care of the Company.

Offering annual health check-ups for all employees, including screenings for multiple types
of cancer, and establishing employee health records for systematic tracking of changes in
employee health status.

Setting up a “Health Protection Column”, carrying out health special lectures, publish
popular science articles to advocate healthy lifestyle.

Provide mutual aid insurance for employees every year, improve the level of medical
insurance for employees, and reduce the medical burden of employees.

The Company complies with laws and regulations, such as the Measures for Labor Protection of Female Employees
in Shanghai and the Measures for Urban Maternity Insurance in Shanghai, and has concluded a Collective Contract
for the Protection of Female Employees, to safeguard the legitimate rights and interests of female employees. Mammy
Huts are established across all factories, and the Labor Union allocates funds annually to support the development of
female employees, planning festival welfare for International Women’s Day each year.
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Expanding service areas The Volunteer Service Corps is established to deepen volunteer joint construction
activities in each factory area and to create a safe and healthy work environment,
thereby continuously enhancing employees’ sense of happiness, satisfaction and

security.
Carrying out people-centric  Bases in Shanghai and Wuxi have built new employee dormitories, and organized a
engagement programs rationalization proposal activity titled “Building Good Living Spaces, and Creating a
Satisfactory Environment”, combining contemporary employee needs to build leisure
facilities.

Employee Communication

Employee communication is an important part of corporate sustainability. The Company is committed to establishing
transparent and open communication mechanisms, to ensure that employees can fully express their opinions and
participate in the Company’s decision-making. The Company has formulated the Employee Communication Rules
and encouraged multi-way communication between the Company and employees, between officers and subordinate
officers, and among employees.

The Company listens to employees’ voices and responds to their concerns in a timely manner by holding regular
employee representative meetings, employee joint meetings, communication meetings and other forms. In addition,
the Company allows employees to fully participate in the decision-making of the Company, promotes communication
between management and employees, safeguards the legitimate rights and interests of employees and creates a
harmonious working atmosphere. Through multiple forms and channels, such as conducting dynamic research on
employees’ thoughts, a rationalization suggestion platform and departmental communication meetings, the Company
helps itself understand employees’ needs, actively responding to reasonable demands, and enhancing employees’
sense of responsibility and identity.

In addition, the Company conducts employee satisfaction surveys from time to time to collect opinions and needs of
various employees extensively through different forms, including forums for young employees, an OA online platform,
and internal departmental communications. The results of the employee satisfaction survey in 2024 remained at around
90 points, reflecting the overall recognition and satisfaction of employees with the work of the Company. In response
to specific opinions put forward by employees, the Company actively responded and solidly promoted comprehensive
supporting projects in Shanghai and Wuxi through the practice of “I do practical things for the masses”, addressed the
needs of employees, and further enhanced the sense of belonging and happiness of employees.

5.2 Employee Health and Safety

The Company strictly adheres to laws and regulations, such as the Occupational Disease Prevention and Control
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the Work Injury
Insurance Regulations, in its daily production and operation. To strengthen work safety efforts and establish a
sound safety production responsibility system, the Company has formulated management procedures, including
Implementation Measures for the Safety Production Responsibility System of the Safety Production Committee, the
Environmental, Occupational Health, and Safety Management Manual, the Safety Production Expense Management
Procedure, and the Work-Related Injury Management Method, in accordance with the requirements of the
ISO45001:2018 Occupational Health and Safety Management System, thus providing employees with a good working
environment and occupational health guarantees.
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Governance

The Company follows the principle of “one position with one responsibility” for the primary responsibility system
of safety production, while improving the overall safety production responsibility system for all employees. The
Company has established a Safety Production Committee, adhering to the principles of “strictly implementing
primary responsibilities, strengthening direct supervision by departments, consolidating on-site supervision within
the factory area, and reinforcing comprehensive safety supervision” and continuously promoting the standardization,
systematization, and intelligent implementation of safety work.

The Safety Production Committee sets management objectives for safety production and occupational disease
prevention and control, links safety management objectives with the safety production responsibility system, and
regularly reviews the achievement of these objectives.

Strategy

The Company formulates an occupational health and safety management policy, strictly follows safety, health, and
environmental protection laws and regulations, creates a safe, healthy, and comfortable working environment for its
employees, and relentlessly pursues the ultimate goal of “zero disaster” and sustainable operation, aiming to become
a model global corporate citizen.

The Company continuously promotes special rectification actions for safer production, covering aspects such as
hazardous chemicals, engineering construction, fire protection, gas, electricity, and special equipment. During the
Reporting Period, the Company held 4 safety committee meetings to deploy key tasks of the Three-Year Action Plan
for Fundamentally Improving Safety Production. The management review meeting annually reviews the implementation
of the occupational health and safety policy, updates legal and regulatory requirements, and deploys implementation
plans.

Impacts, Risks, and Opportunities Management

The Company has formulated the Safety Production Expense Management Procedure, determines the budget at
the beginning of the year, reduces risks and hazards in key areas and critical facilities, actively carries out safety
technology improvement programs, and reports the progress of these programs on a weekly basis. The Company
routinely identifies safety hazards, establishes emergency response infrastructure and teams, adopts a digital safety
management system, clarifies work injury identification and handling methods, and establishes a complete safety
production management system.

Hazard identification Grid-based Hazard Inspection: By adopting risk classification control and hazard

identification, we have deeply promoted grid-based hazard screening. In 2024, we
conducted a total of 410 supervision inspections and checked and corrected 16,139
hidden dangers.
Special Inspection for Major Programs: We have strengthened safety management
for major construction projects, implemented special actions for hazard identification
and rectification, conducted safety inspections specifically for high-risk engineering
tasks, adhered to twice-daily joint inspections, and successfully completed the “three
simultaneous” phased work for major construction projects.

Emergency response Fire Protection System Facilities: A comprehensive indoor and outdoor fire hydrant
system, automatic fire extinguishing system, automatic fire alarm system, smoke
exhaust system, fire emergency broadcasting system, and evacuation indication and
emergency lighting system have been established.
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Digital management

Work-related injury handling

Alarm Monitoring System: The clean room is equipped with alarm systems for toxic,
harmful, and flammable gases, a liquid leak detection system, and a very early smoke
detection alarm system.

Emergency Response Team Support: An Emergency Response Team (ERT) has
been established to conduct professional skills training. Emergency response plans
tailored to different types of disasters have been developed. Specialized disposal drills
are organized regularly, and issues identified are promptly rectified.

Digital Systems: Safety management systems such as a special equipment
registration system and an infrared inspection record system for equipment have been
established using data records to ensure the implementation of rectification measures
and standardize procedures.

In accordance with the Work-Related Injury Management Regulations of the Company,
when a work-related injury occurs, the department involved must report the incident
to the safety department within 24 hours. The safety department shall then organize
an investigation into it and convene a work-related injury seminar together with the
Human Resources Department, the Labor Union, and the Medical Clinic under the
Comprehensive Management Department and submit the application for work-related
injury recognition to the social insurance administrative department.

Furthermore, to extend the development of our safety culture and enhance the safety awareness of all employees, the
Company has launched thematic activities, such as “Safety for Everyone, and Emergency Response by All — Keeping
Lifelines Open” for Safety Production Month and “Fire Safety for All, and Life Above All Else” for Fire Prevention
Awareness Month. Through various safety promotion and exhibition activities, the Company aims to effectively improve
employees’ safety awareness and knowledge and promote the fulfillment of safety commitments and responsibilities by

all staff.

Strengthening
safety training

Enhancing emergency
response capability

e  Safety education on various safety topics and for all types of key personnel were
conducted. In 2024, a total of 420 safety trainings were conducted, with a total
of 60,458 person-times of employee participation and 27,789 person-times of
contractor participation.

e The participation rate in terms of safety education and training reached 100%, and
the certification rate for personnel holding required certificates reached 100%.

e The expert review and filing of production safety emergency response plans
have been completed, normative documents for establishing and improving rapid
emergency response procedures against abnormalities at the production base
have been put in place, and the goals of weekly training, quarterly drills, and
annual competitions have been achieved.

e  Standardized training and actual combat drills for emergency rescue teams (ERT)
were strengthened. In 2024, a total of 442 various emergency plan drills and 38
random ERT drills were organized, and more than 45,000 person-times of various
skills training were carried out.

e During the “Fire Prevention Month”, fire safety knowledge exhibition boards were
displayed, and fire skills training as well as evacuation drills were conducted for all
staffs, to enhance overall safety awareness and emergency response capabilities.
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Safety technical e An evaluation activity for excellent safety technical transformation projects

improvement assessment covering six dimensions was conducted. In 2024, a total of 52 safety technical
improvements were implemented and 13 outstanding safety technical
improvements were selected in the previous year.

The Company regularly identifies and evaluates safety risks. During the Reporting Period, 3 work-related injuries
occurred in the Company, and targeted protective education has been strengthened in this regard, including safety
training for all personnel in the affected departments and on-site engineering control measures.

Certification Status of Occupational Health and Safety Management System of Hua Hong Semiconductor

Validity Period of

Entity Certification Name Certification

Shanghai Production Base [1SO45001: 2018 Occupational Health and Safety 18 April 2027
Management System

Wuxi Production Base ISO45001: 2018 Occupational Health and Safety 18 April 2027

Management System

In order to prevent, control and eliminate occupational hazards and protect employees’ occupational health and rights,
the Company has established a sound occupational health management system. In terms of occupational disease
prevention and control, the Company regularly identifies and monitors occupational hazard factors, informs employees
of these factors upon their entry, provides consultation on personal protective equipment, formulates standards for
protective equipment, regularly organizes occupational hazard post education and training, and supervises the correct
use of protective equipment. The positions involving occupational hazard factors in the Company mainly include
ion injection, diffusion, etching, chemical mechanical grinding, power gasification and other equipment operation
positions.

Occupational Disease Hazard Prevention and Control System of Hua Hong Semiconductor

Job Positions with Occupational Occupational Health
Occupational Hazards Hazard Factors Countermeasures Monitoring
° lon implantation, e  Fluorine and its e  The equipmentin e Annual occupational
diffusion, etching, inorganic compounds, the clean room is health monitoring and
chemical mechanical hydrofluoric acid, automatically operated assessment of current
grinding, power hydrochloric acid, in a closed space occupational hazards;
gasification, and other nitric acid, sulfuric and is equipped with e Strict pre-employment,
positions involving acid, phosphoric a closed process on-the-job, and post-
equipment operation. acid, ammonia exhaust system; employment medical
water, hydrogen e Provide employees examinations for
peroxide, arsenic with personal 100% employees at
and its compounds, protective articles and positions exposed to
phosphorus and emergency response occupational disease
its compounds, devices, regularly hazards.
isopropanol, etc. checking such articles

and devices to ensure
their effectiveness.
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Metrics and Targets

The Company has been certified with the Occupational Health and Safety Management System ISO 45001: 2018. All
employees have signed the Safety Responsibility Letter with a 100% participation rate, and all contractors have signed
the Letter of Commitment on Safety and Environmental Protection with a 100% commitment rate, so as to make every
department and every employee take their respective responsibility. In 2024, the total investment in safety production
was RMB34,162,300.

ISO 45001 certification coverage % 100 100
Employee signing rate of the Safety Responsibility Letter % 100 100
Contractor signing rate of the Letter of Commitment on % 100 100
Safety and Environmental Protection

Annual number of work-related fatal accidents Times 0 0
Annual number of occupational disease cases Times 0 0

5.3 Employee Development and Training

Employee Training

The Company has established a sound employee education and training system, which is constantly adjusted based
on strategic development and employee needs. In 2024, the Company updated personnel rules and regulations, such
as Education and Training Procedures, to meet the all-round and multi-level training needs of employees in different
positions.

The Company has complete training facilities, equipped with dedicated training classrooms and training equipment
comma and an online platform for learning and sharing, including online training enrollment management, training
materials and job question banks, multimedia learning courseware, etc. In addition, when necessary, the Company
utilizes external resources to provide basic guarantees for employees’ learning and development.

In 2024, the Company refined the classic programs of the special training camp for new college students,
concentrated and updated the training courses, further stimulated the subjective initiative of learning through innovative
forms, helped new college students to quickly integrate into the Company’s and meet the challenges of future work
with full enthusiasm.
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Grassroots Role recognition, self-management, e Training hours per capita 137.30 hours
managers managing others, work management e  Employee training coverage 100%
Front-line Develop management skills of front-

managers line shift and team leaders, cultivate a

front-line management team with high
quality and high business ability, and
lay a solid foundation for the Company’s

management
Newly-employed  Career quality, corporate culture,
university introduction to special skills, and other
students courses
Front-line Courses about theory and practical
employees training of the semiconductor

manufacturing module

The Company provides new employees with growth mentors, systematically imparting professional knowledge and
practical experience to help them quickly adapt to the working environment and be competent at their jobs. The
Company provides a variety of training courses covering job skills, professional technology, management ability, etc.
We are committed to building a knowledge-based, skilled and innovative workforce, encouraging employees to carry
out scientific research and innovation activities based on their positions, thereby enhancing the core competitiveness
of the Company.

Innovation studio Based on 15 municipal and group-level employee innovation studios, the Company has
established a platform for mass labor competitions in various forms and channels, hosting
employee scientific paper contests, front-line employee skill competitions, energy-saving
and emission-reduction groups, and other labor competitions, covering all departments
and positions. Within the year, 105 papers were received, 178 patents were awarded, and
111 energy-saving and emission-reduction projects were completed.

Youth vanguard team The Company launched company-wide youth vanguard team creation activities with the
themes such as “Youth Taking Responsibility on 520, and Striving to Exceed by 100
Points”, “Daring to Take on Responsibilities as Chip Youth, and Contributing to Hua Hong's
High-Quality Development”, and “Youth Setting Sail Forever Forward, and Assisting Hua
Hong on Its New Journey”. Over the past five years, a total of 147 company-level youth
vanguard teams have been established, focusing on innovation, efficiency, and excellence
in process development, flexible production, cost reduction, and supply chain safety.

Career Development

The Company is committed to building a clear and transparent career development path for employees, conducting
regular performance evaluations and giving feedback. According to the standard practice of the industry, we have set
up three professional development paths, including management, technology and function support, with corresponding
job training, which not only supports employees to develop in a single sequence but also encourages conversion
from the technical path to the management path, to take advantage of personal capabilities and promote professional
aspirations.
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To ensure a high-quality talent pool, the Company enhances employees’ comprehensive capabilities through various
initiatives, including specialized training, technical exchanges, and lectures, to constantly optimize the talent cultivation
mechanism. The Company has formulated the Measures for Academic Education Subsidy, which supports employees
in pursuing on-the-job continuing education, enriching their professional knowledge and strengthening the Company’s
overall competitiveness.

5.4 Community and Public Welfare

The Company actively engages in social welfare, dedicating itself to contributing in various fields such as community
service, education, and rural revitalization. It spreads love and warmth, establishing itself as a model of corporate
responsibility.

Volunteer Service e  Employee volunteers have been visiting the Meixin Nursing Home for 19 consecutive
years, to carry out volunteer service, organizing activities such as singing, dancing,
and doing handicrafts. They put up festive couplets at the nursing home during the
Spring Festival, delivered zongzi and mooncakes on traditional festivals, and provided
heat relief supplies in summer.

e  Employees donated blood 166 times.

Community e During the Zhangjiang Science Hall Science Festival themed “Enlightening with Light,
Co-building Exploring with Children (At B Yt, iR '&'47)", the Company organized a total of five

sessions of integrated circuit-themed science popularization activities.

e Through the fun course “Turning Sand into Gold”, over 500 children were educated
about the chip manufacturing process and the application of chips in daily life.

e The Company has been providing the “First Aid Course for Accidents” in the
community where the headquarters operates for seven consecutive years, covering
basic first aid knowledge and cardiopulmonary resuscitation, to help residents master
skills for handling emergencies.

One to-one Targeted e The Company launched a one to-one targeted poverty alleviation program with
Poverty Alleviation Yangbi Yi Autonomous Prefecture in Yunnan, purchasing local agricultural products,
Program such as walnuts and tea, of approximately RMB1.2 million in aggregate.

e The Company launched a one to-one targeted poverty alleviation program with
Yougiao Village in Chongming District, Shanghai, donating RMB50,000.

6.1 R&D Innovation and Intellectual Property Protection

R&D Innovation

Relying on the layout advantage of “8-inch + 12-inch”, the Company is committed to continuous innovation of
specialized process technologies and building core competitiveness around embedded/stand-alone nonvolatile
memory, power discrete, analog and power management, logic and RF and other specialized process platforms.
Adhering to the advanced “Specialty IC + Power Discrete” dual-engine strategy, the Company is focused on high-
speed penetration into emerging markets such as communications, new energy, Internet of Things, and automotive
electronics.

Guided by the vision of “Continuous Innovation to Create ‘Chip’ Dreams for Global Customers”, the Company strictly
adheres to laws and regulations, such as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Scientific and Technological
Progress and relevant requirements. It is committed to aligning with specialized technical processes, continuously
enhancing its R&D innovation capabilities.
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Governance

The Company has established a governance structure comprising the “Board of Directors — Management — R&D
Department”. The Board of Directors and Management are responsible for the Company’s overall R&D strategy and
ensuring that the direction of R&D is consistent with the Company’s long-term goals. Management is responsible
for implementing the Board of Directors’ decisions, formulating specific R&D plans and technology roadmaps,
and coordinating resources to drive the innovation process. The R&D Department, as the core execution team,
is responsible for day-to-day technology research, product development and innovation, to ensure continuous
breakthroughs and improvements in new technologies and products.

Strategy

The Company recognizes the importance of continuously strengthening R&D innovation to refine manufacturing
processes and continues to provide excellent products and services to customers around the world. When making
strategic decisions on R&D innovation, the Company thoroughly evaluates the impact, risks and opportunities of
innovation on product promotion. For example, the current digitalization trend is gradually enhancing the collaboration
and influence between automotive manufacturers and chip designers in the supply chain. Additionally, the Company
improves its resilience to risks by sensing market trends and enhancing resource utilization efficiency.

Impacts, Risks, and Opportunities Management

Identification and e  Continuously monitor market changes and technological trends to ensure the
Assessment technology platform adapts to evolving needs.
e Regularly review internal resources and technical capabilities to ensure support
for new product R&D and production.
e |dentify potential risk points, such as technical barriers, market acceptance, and
regulatory changes, and assess their likelihood and financial impact.
Management and e  Reduce risk levels by improving processes and increasing R&D investment.
Optimization * Increase investment in potential chip technology and promote research and
development of relevant technologies.
e  Establish a flexible and efficient decision-making process to quickly respond to
opportunities arising from market changes and technological advancements.

The Company has established broad product lines across multiple key technology platforms, with end-use applications
covering diverse product needs, including consumer electronics, industrial control, automotive electronics, Internet of
Things, communications and computers, and power management.

During the Reporting Period, the Company actively promoted the the beginning to end industrial ecological cooperation
strategy and jointly promoted the sustainable development of the chip industry with its partners. Adhering to the
development concept of “openness, innovation and cooperation”, the Company actively cooperates with upstream
and downstream enterprises in the industrial chain. In the field of automotive electronics, with more than 20 years of
successful experience in mass production of automotive electronic chips, the Company helped automotive products
pass the AEC-Q100 GradeO verification, and improved a zero-defect management mode for automotive electronics,
providing comprehensive high-quality chip processing services for automotive electronic application systems.
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R&D Innovation Indicators and Targets of Hua Hong Semiconductor in 2024

2023 2024
Indicators Unit Performance Performance
R&D Investment RMB10,000 147,858 164,322
R&D Investment as % of Revenue % 9.11 11.13
Number of R&D Personnel Person 1,285 1,427
R&D Personnel as % of Total Employees % 18.72 19.06
Honors and Awards e National Science and Technology Progress Award (Second Prize)

e  35th Shanghai Outstanding Invention Gold and Silver Award (2024)
e  Shanghai Outstanding Academician Expert Workstation (2024)
e  Shanghai Employee Outstanding Innovation Achievement Award

Intellectual Property Protection

The Company strictly adheres to laws and regulations, such as the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, as well as
related requirements. It has established internal management systems, including the Intellectual Property Management
System, to build a comprehensive and efficient intellectual property protection framework. This framework promotes
technological innovation while standardizing intellectual property management.

The Company continuously optimizes and refines its intellectual property management mechanisms, striving to
integrate intellectual property protection concepts into every business process. Each year, the Company sets goals
for patent applications, actively safeguarding its own intellectual property. It commits to respecting and protecting the
intellectual property rights of all organizations and individuals while implementing stringent protection measures for the
product and technical information of upstream and downstream partners.

To mitigate the risks of intellectual property infringement, the Company standardizes and strengthens the assessment
of customers’ credibility and potential legal risks. Additionally, the Company has established technology licensing
partnerships with multiple key technology providers to ensure that its products and services are developed on a legal
and compliant basis.

Intellectual Property Protection Metrics and Targets of Hua Hong Semiconductor in 2024

Metric Unit 2023 Performance 2024 Performance
Cumulative Number of Patent Applications Piece 8,969 9,649
Cumulative Number of Patents Granted Piece 4,427 4,644
Number of Patent Applications Completed Piece 672 680

Number of Patents Approved Piece 270 230
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6.2 Product and Service Safety and Quality

Product Quality and Safety

The Company consistently upholds high standards in product quality, adhering to the “zero-defect” philosophy and
striving to deliver exceptional products and services to customers.

Governance

The Company complies with 1SO9001, IATF16949 quality management system and related requirements. It has
established internal management systems, including the Quality Manual, Code of Practice for Quality Objective
Management, Non-conforming Product Control Procedure, and Supplier Management Regulations. These systems
specify the responsibilities of the Quality and Reliability Assurance Department in ensuring product quality and safety,
requiring regular reporting to management and the Board of Directors to promote comprehensive planning and
implementation of quality management.

Strategy

The Company emphasizes the profound impact of quality management on product and business development, and
treats quality as a core element of its corporate strategy. It has established a rigorous quality management system
to identify and mitigate risk factors that may affect product quality, enhancing the Company’s adaptability to external
environmental changes.

Impacts, Risks, and Opportunities Management

According to the Non-conforming Products Control Procedures, the Company has established a non-conforming
products management rules covering the entire product cycle, specifying the handling specifications and applicable
circumstances for each process, including incoming materials, production, testing, inspection, customer feedback,
transportation and storage, etc. For identified non-conforming products, they are disposed in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the regulations to prevent their unintended use.

Shanghai Base ISO 9001 Quality Management System 17 May 2027
IECQ QC 080000 Hazardous Substance Process Management 11 December 2026
System
IATF 16949 Quality Management System for Automotive Industry 17 May 2027

Wuxi Base ISO 9001 Quality Management System 11 November 2025
IECQ QC 080000 Hazardous Substance Process Management 11 December 2026
System

IATF 16949 Quality Management System for Automotive Industry 7 May 2026

During the Reporting Period, the Company implemented multiple measures to drive quality improvement, strengthen
quality reviews, standardize supplier management, and conduct quality training, aiming to comprehensively enhance
product quality and customer satisfaction.



116 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED ¢ 2024 ANNUAL REPORT

Driving Quality
Improvement

Strengthening Quality
Reviews

Standardizing Supplier
Management

Conducting Quality
Training

Product Recalls

CQoO

Automotive Customer that
Passed Audits

Honors and

Awards

Hazardous Substance Control

° Conducted investigation and evaluation for five modules: R&D, production,
manufacturing, testing, and services, and formulated improvement plans.

e  Proposed improvement solutions for each module and share our experiences in
relation to the quality issues related to automotive-grade processes.

e Established the Company Quality Objective (CQO) and conduct the review
process.

e Carried out activities such as the evaluation of the Quality Improvement Report
Competition (Eight Disciplines Report) and high-quality project reviews.

e  Established performance indicators for supplier management, including supplier
complaint rates and scrap rates due to supplier raw material quality.

e  Established the Electronic Certificate of Analysis (ECOA) for suppliers and
implemented Statistical Process Control (SPC) for key raw material parameters.

e  The Shanghai and Wuxi bases conducted quality management and Zero Defects
quality awareness training simultaneously, covering all employees, totaling 6,826
person-times.

o Held quality month activities every year, including quality lectures and debates,
supplier exchanges, information security weeks, and quality essay and calligraphy
competitions, to promote quality culture and enhance employee quality awareness.

Time 0 0 0
% 93 84 80
Time 14 33 -

e Shanghai Quality Technology Progress Award — Excellence Award: “Integration of
0.11-micron eFlash and BCD Automotive Process Platforms”

° In 2024, the “Theme Activity of ‘Zero Defect of Characteristic Processes and High-
quality Development of Hua Hong™ was recognized as the Quality Management
Model (Organization) Award (Excellent Level) by the Shanghai Association for

Quality

The Company places high importance on controlling hazardous substances in its products and follows international
standards such as REACH, WEEE, RoHS and relevant requirements. It has established internal management systems,
such as the Hazardous Substances Management Procedure, to build a comprehensive hazardous substance
management system, ensuring product quality and safety. During the Reporting Period, the Company conducted
internal research on the use of Per — and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS). For raw materials containing PFAS,
the Company collaborated with customers to evaluate the replacement of raw materials, ensuring compliance with

overseas regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Company implemented measures across three dimensions, namely source control,
raw material testing and product certification, to ensure compliance and safety in the use of hazardous substances.
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Source Control e The Company incorporates hazardous substance control into the product R&D
process to reduce the risk of using hazardous substances from the source.
Raw Material Testing e  Suppliers are required to provide the product test report for hazardous substances

and sign the Letter of Commitment on Product and Environmental Protection.
e We included hazardous substance compliance clauses in supplier audits and

regularly conducted sampling tests to ensure the safety of raw materials.

Product Certification e A third-party organization is entrusted to carry out product Testing and certification
in accordance with the Directive on Restriction of the Use of Certain Hazardous
Substances in Electrical and Electronic Equipment Regulations (RoHS) and the
Regulation concerning the Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction of
Chemicals (REACH) to ensure that our products meet the requirements of relevant
certification standards.

Customer Relationship Management

Guided by the concept of “providing customers with more convenient and safe services”, the Company has
strengthened its customer service management system, covering “customer communication — customer complaints
— customer satisfaction surveys”. In adherence to applicable laws and regulation, including the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests and relevant requirements, the Company has
formulated internal management systems, such as the Customer Complaint Management Procedure and the Customer
Return Product Confirmation Procedure, to continuously elevate customer service standards and improve customer
satisfaction.

To ensure prompt responses to customer feedback and concerns, the Company has outlined detailed standard
procedures and response strategies for handling customer complaints in line with the Customer Complaint
Management Procedure. Multiple customer complaint channels, including email, hotline, letter, and fax, confirming
acceptance of customer complaints within 24 hours, providing 3D reports (problem prevention measures report) within
48 hours and submitting 8D reports (problem solving report) of common products within 14 calendar days, ensuring
timely resolution of customer complaints. As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company received a total of 2
customer complaints, achieving a 100% complaint resolution rate.
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Customer Complaint Handling Procedure of Hua Hong Semiconductor

Y v

Occurrence of a Complaint Prevention and Correction

Investigation into Failure Causes

Normally, communicate and
confirm with the customer
within 24 hours after the
occurrence of a complaint
and give a preliminary reply

Complaint cases requiring
failure analysis shall be
transferred to relevant
departments for handling,
corrective and preventive
measures will be proposed
according to the investigation
results and a reply will be
given to customers

Implement corrective and
preventive measures, sort
out and analyze relevant
information feedback by
customers regularly and
review the rectification
effect

The Company consistently conducts customer satisfaction surveys. During the Reporting Period, the Company
continued to enhance customer satisfaction by conducting customer satisfaction surveys and promoting quality
improvement of its products and services, in accordance with the Customer Satisfaction Evaluation and Improvement
Procedures. Management of the Company reviews the annual customer satisfaction survey results, conducts analysis
and diagnostics, and implements corrective actions based on the results. The Company continuously monitors the
effectiveness of these measures, while providing feedback to customers.
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8.97 points 8.89 points 1 0.08 point

6.3 Information Security and Privacy Protection

To continuously enhance information security and privacy protection, the Company complies with laws and regulations,
such as the Cyber Security Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Data Security Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Cyber Security Management Regulations and the Regulation on the Administration of Commercial Cipher
Codes, as well as other relevant requirements. During the Reporting Period, the Company revised management
systems, including the Data Management Procedures and the Personal Information Management Procedures, in
response to changes in external management regulations, to protect customer intellectual property, user privacy, and
personal information security.

Governance

The Company continuously improves its Information Security Management System (ISMS) and has enhanced the
management structure of “President — Information Security Committee — Information Security Working Group”, to ensure
the effective implementation and efficient operation of information security strategies. The Company has obtained
ISO/IEC 27001:2022 Information Security Management System certification, with a validity period until February 2025.
During the Reporting Period, the Company did not experience any complaints or incidents related to the infringement
of customer privacy or loss of customer data.
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ISMS Structure of Hua Hong Semiconductor

President: As the top manager of ISMS, takes overall control of
information management

Information Security Committee: It is composed of management
representatives and department heads to study and approve the
Company'’s supervision rules and regulations on information security
and to supervise the duty performance of relevant departments

Information Security Working Group: With its members from the
Information Technology Department, Quality and Reliability Assurance
Department, Compliance Department, etc., it is responsible for the
establishment and implementation of the ISMS

Strategy

The Company fully acknowledges the critical importance of information security and privacy protection. In response
to the dual challenges of increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and rapid technological advancements, the
Company has embedded information security into its overall development strategy. By proactively allocating resources
and establishing a systematic management framework, the Company strives to identify and mitigate potential risks in
advance, while capitalizing on strategic opportunities in the field of information security.

Impact, Risks, and Opportunities Management

During the Reporting Period, the Company enhanced its overall capabilities in information security and privacy
protection through initiatives such as personal information access management, risk assessments and self-inspections,
and the execution of attack-defence drills. The Company is dedicated to establishing a more comprehensive, efficient,
and sustainable information security management system.

Information Security and Privacy Protection Management System of Hua Hong Semiconductor in 2024

Management Process Management Measures

Information access e  Enhanced protection measures across all stages of personal information
processing and upgraded the visitor registration system.
e Revised the Personal Information Management Procedures to enforce privacy
protection requirements.
Risk assessment e  Strengthened the information security management system and revised the
Information Security Risk Assessment Management Procedures to comply with
data classification and grading requirements.

Risk self-inspection e  Promoted special initiatives on cyber security, attaining a “Level 2 Networked
Industrial Enterprise” designation from the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology.

Practical drills e Implemented cyber security protection reinforcement initiatives and participated in

the “Cyber Security Enhancement with Industrial Empowerment” practical attack-
defence drill organized by the Shanghai Municipal Commission of Economy and
Informatization, receiving the “Outstanding Blue Team Enterprise” award.
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Metrics and Targets

The Company conducts quarterly training sessions on information security and privacy protection, monitors participant
numbers, and reviews training outcomes. Training topics include system certification, information confidentiality, trade
secret protection, and strategies to counter cyberattacks.

ISMS Training - Q1 Shanghai & Wuxi 8,233 6,683
Production Bases

ISMS Training - Q2 6,554 6,117

Introduction to the New Version of ISO 27001 6,476 7,346

System Standards and Information Security
Awareness Training — Q3
Introduction to the New Version of ISO 27001 6,919 7,491
System Standards and Information Security
Awareness Training — Q4

Confidentiality and Information Security 6,802 7,314
Compliance Training

Specialized Training for Attack and Defense Exercises - 7,525

ISO 27001 Standards and Audit Skills Training - 99

6.4 Sustainable Supply Chain Management

Sustainable Supply Chain Management

The Company primarily relies on suppliers of silicon wafers, chemicals, and gases. The Company actively adheres
to industry standards and norms, such as the Responsible Business Alliance (RBA). During the Reporting Period, the
Company received the RBA “Platinum Award” certification.

Governance

The Company has established a supply chain task force composed of engineering departments from various bases,
the Quality and Reliability Assurance Department, and the Procurement Department. The management team is
responsible for setting strategic directions and overseeing execution, with regular reporting to the Board to ensure
that supply chain policies align with the Company’s objectives. The supply chain task force is tasked with evaluating,
selecting, and conducting regular audits of suppliers, establishing a supplier performance management system and
compliance review mechanism, to ensure the comprehensive implementation of quality, environmental, and social
responsibility requirements.

The Company has formulated management systems, such as the Supplier Risk Identification, Planning, and
Control Management Procedure and the Social Responsibility Management Manual, to clarify the responsibilities
and requirements of supply chain management, ensuring a scientific and rigorous process for supplier screening,
qualification, and management.

Strategy

By establishing a systematic supply chain management process, the Company integrates multi-dimensional risks and
opportunities related to the supply chain into its overall strategy, promoting the development of a green supply chain.
Through regular identification and assessment of key influencing factors within the supply chain, the Company ensures
that its management strategies can effectively respond to external environmental shocks and market changes.
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At the same time, the Company deeply integrates supply chain management with its strategic goals. Not only does it
ensure business continuity through risk control, but it also actively explores the potential of the supply chain in cost
optimization, technological collaboration, and localized development. This enables the synergistic advancement of
supply chain management and the Company’s development.

Labor

Environmental
Health and Safety

Environmental
protection

Business ethics

Management
system

Prohibition of forced labour
Non-employment of minors

Occupational safety
Emergency preparedness
Work injury and disease

Environmental licensing
and reporting

Pollution prevention and
resource conservation
Hazardous substances

Business integrity
No unfair advantage
Information disclosure

Management
responsibilities and
employee responsibilities
Legal and customer
requirements

Risk assessment and risk
management

Impacts, Risks, and Opportunities Management
The Company adheres to the Responsible Business Alliance (RBA) standards for social responsibility audits in the
electronics industry. It clearly defines the basic requirements for suppliers in terms of quality, supply stability, labor
management, environmental protection, and business ethics. The Company has established a management system
that includes initial reviews before supplier access, annual evaluations, and regular training sessions. This system
helps maintain stable cooperative relationships with high-performing suppliers.

Working hours
Wages and benefits

Industrial hygiene
Heavy work
Mechanical safety protection

Solid waste
Exhaust emissions
Restricted materials

Intellectual property rights
Fair dealing, advertising and
competition

|dentity protection and
prohibition of retaliation

Improvement objectives
Training
Communication

Humane treatment
Non-discrimination/
non-harassment
Freedom of
association and
collective bargaining

Public health, food and
accommodation

Water management
Energy consumption
and greenhouse gas
emissions

Responsible mineral
sourcing
Privacy

Audit and evaluation
Corrective action
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Supplier access e During the supplier access phase, conduct initial reviews of performance in areas
such as quality requirements, stable supply, labor management, environmental
protection, and business ethics. Screen out suppliers with negative information
or those that fail to meet requirements. Key suppliers must pass the initial review
before being registered on the Approved Supplier List (ASL) to mitigate risks at
the initial stage of the supply chain.

Supplier review e Conduct comprehensive risk assessments annually. In accordance with the
Supplier Risk Identification, Planning, and Control Management Procedure, identify
potential risk points in suppliers through third-party audits or audit questionnaires,
and propose corrective actions for identified risks. If a supplier fails to implement
effective corrections or commits major violations, the cooperative relationship will
be terminated to ensure supply chain stability and compliance.

Performance evaluation e  Strictly control key performance, such as raw material quality and compliance with
hazardous substance contents.

e Conduct annual supplier performance evaluations and recognize outstanding
suppliers with awards to incentivize high-performing suppliers.

Supplier dissemination e Regularly conduct dissemination and training covering multiple categories of
suppliers. Align suppliers with environmental, ethical, and quality standards,
provide technical support, and jointly explore potential opportunities for supply
chain optimization and improvement.

The Company enforces strict anti-bribery and anti-corruption policies for suppliers, requiring all suppliers to sign a
business ethics commitment letter. Through regular audits and performance evaluations, the Company ensures that
their business practices align with its integrity and compliance standards.

The manufacturing process of semiconductor silicon wafers requires a significant amount of water resources and
carries a high risk of pollution emissions. Failure to properly address pollution emissions and wastewater treatment
during production could exert greater pressure on water resource regeneration. To address this, the Company has
implemented water resource management initiatives and performance investigations for silicon wafer suppliers,
including water-saving goals, water consumption, and water-saving measures, aiming to mitigate the impact of their
production operations on water resources. The Company set a goal of “achieving 100% coverage of water resource
investigations for major silicon wafer suppliers”, which was accomplished during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Company conducted 270 investigations on related enterprises and established
contacts with over a hundred domestic suppliers, further optimizing the supply chain management system. This
ensures the stability and efficiency of the supply chain, providing strong support for business development.
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Metrics and Targets of Sustainable Supply Chain Management of Hua Hong Semiconductor in 2024

Performance Performance

Metric in 2023 in 2024
Coverage Rate of Social Responsibility Review for Key Supplier 100% 100%
Number of Training Programs for Key Suppliers 20 20
Number of Newly Introduced Domestic Suppliers 28 18
Diversification rate of “8-inch + 12-inch” raw material suppliers 65.4% 76%
Diversification rate of “8-inch” raw material suppliers 72% 84%
Diversification rate of “8-inch” target materials and silicon wafers suppliers >90% 98%
Diversification rate of “12-inch” raw material suppliers 55% 65%

Responsible Minerals Management

“Conflict Minerals” refer to minerals mined in conflict zones that fund armed groups through illegal trade. These
minerals are extracted through violent coercion of laborers, child labor, and damaging the environment and ecology.
The trade of such minerals frequently leads to human rights violations, environmental damage, and social instability.
According to the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and research by international
nongovernmental organizations, conflict minerals may enter the information, communication, and technology (ICT)
industry and be used in electronic and electrical products, such as mobile phones and computers.

In the Company’s production process, minerals such as gold (Au), tantalum (Ta), tungsten (W), tin (Sn), and cobalt (Co)
are used. To prevent the procurement and funding of mineral sources with negative social and environmental impacts,
the Company has established the Conflict Minerals Management Policy to ensure that the minerals procured do not

originate from conflict zones.

Over 71% of gold, tin, tantalum, and tungsten used in the Company’s production process are from Asia, with over
20% from Europe, and the remaining portion from the Americas. Two-thirds of the cobalt used comes from Asia, and
one-third from Europe. As of the end of the Reporting Period, none of the gold, tantalum, tungsten, or tin used by the
Company was from the regions with armed conflict.

Types and Sources of Minerals Used of Hua Hong Semiconductor

Gold (Au), tantalum (Ta),
tungsten (W) and tin (Sn) Cobalt (Co)

7.6% ‘1

33.33%

20.7%

71.7% 66.67%

o Asia Europe ™ The Americas W Asia Europe
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In addition, the Company adheres to international standards such as the Responsible Minerals Initiative (RMI) and the
Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) Due Diligence Guidance for Responsible Supply
Chains of Minerals from Conflict-Affected and High-Risk Areas. It conducts traceability and due diligence on suppliers,
requiring all suppliers to promise not to purchase conflict minerals in Conflict-Affected and High-Risk Areas. This
ensures that the mineral sources in the supply chain comply with regulatory and ethical requirements.

Conflict Minerals Management Policy of Hua Hong Semiconductor

4 / )

2. Suppliers are required to provide the

1. Suppliers whose raw materials contain The Company takes global social and declaration that they do not use gold (Au),
gold (Au), tantalum (Ta), tungsten (W), environmental responsibility as its tantalum (Ta), tungsten (W), tin (Sn), and
and tin (Sn) are required to purchase goal and follows green procurement cobalt (Co) from “conflict minerals” and
WIS GEeelelo g A i oelllol ailieiipliss el it lieilseie (o we issue the Conflict Minerals Reporting
Minerals Policy, while suppliers whose raw undertake the following social and Template (CMRT) and the Extended
materials contain cobalt (Co) are required environmental responsibilities in its Minerals Reporting Template (EMRT) to

i metal supply chain
to disclose the smelters of cobalt pply suppliers

- \\ J

During the Reporting Period, the Company conducted questionnaire surveys on metal target materials suppliers,
achieving a coverage rate of 100%, including both newly introduced and existing suppliers. The Company traced the
sources of mineral raw materials used in its products to ensure that the origin information of each batch of minerals
was clear and traceable. The traceability scope covered mines, smelters, and the entire supply chain. During the
Reporting Period, the traceability results showed that 100% of the Company’s suppliers do not use conflict minerals.
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7. Robust Governance and Adherence to Business Ethics

7.1 Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance

As a listed company on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the STAR Market of the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, the Company strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations of the place of incorporation, the
place of overseas listing and the PRC, such as the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange, the Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the STAR Market Listing Rules of the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. It has established regulations such as the Articles of Association, the Rules of Procedure for
Shareholders’ General Meetings, and the Rules of Procedure for Board of Directors, forming a corporate governance
structure and operational mechanism where the shareholders’ general meeting, the board of directors, and its
specialized committees work in coordination. This promotes scientific decision-making, standardized operations, and
further enhances the Company’s management level.

The Company’s Board has established specialized committees, including the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, and Nomination Committee. Each committee performs its respective duties, overseeing the Board’s
responsibilities and supporting its scientific decision-making. The Company has appointed three Independent
Non-Executive Directors to participate in decision-making and supervision, enhancing the objectivity and scientific
rigor of the Board’s decisions.

Corporate Governance Structure of Hua Hong Semiconductor
General meeting .
of shareholders At
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Board of Directors

Nomination
The Management Committee
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As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Board of the Company consists of 9 members, including 1 female director.
During the Reporting Period, the Company held 16 Board meetings and considered 58 proposals.

Information Disclosure

The Company strictly adheres to applicable laws and regulations and relevant requirements, such as the Administrative
Measures for the Disclosure of Information of Listed Companies of the China Securities Regulatory Commission
(CSRC), and has established relevant documents, such as the Information Disclosure Management System. It is
committed to ensuring the authenticity, accuracy, timeliness, fairness, and completeness of information disclosure to
meet the information needs of stakeholders. During the Reporting Period, the Company strictly complied with relevant
information disclosure regulations, promptly reported significant matters, and continuously improved the quality and
compliance of its information disclosure.

The Company regulates the shareholding behavior of directors and senior management by disclosing their
shareholding plans. In August 2023, the Company released the Announcement Regarding the Plan for Additional
Acquisition of A Shares of the Company by Certain Senior Management, explicitly mentioning the share increase
plans of executive directors and senior management. The plan was fully implemented by 4 January 2024. Through
centralized bidding, the Company’s senior management collectively increased their holdings of the Company's
A-shares by 53,618 shares, with a total amount of RMB2.3094 million. After the increase, the total shareholding ratio
rose to 0.0275%.

Protection of Investors’ Rights and Interests

The Company places great emphasis on protecting shareholders’ rights and interests. By formulating reasonable profit
distribution policies and dividend plans, it actively rewards shareholders and is committed to creating stable long-term
returns for investors. The Company has established an investor relations management department to maintain
proactive communication with stakeholders, address key concerns of investors, and ensure that their reasonable
demands are properly handled.

Adhering to the principle of “equal treatment of all investors” and the requirement of “compliant information disclosure”,
the Company follows the guidance of “integrity, compliance, and interactive communication”. It disseminates
information about the Company’s operations, finances, product technologies, and significant matters to the capital
market through various channels, such as shareholders’ general meetings, regular reports, direct hotline of investors,
SSE e-Interaction, special email for investors, online and offline communication meetings, official website and WeChat
account of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Company held 1 shareholder general meeting and considered 13 resolutions. All
meetings were open to all shareholders, including small and medium-sized investors, effectively safeguarding their
participation and right to know. Additionally, the Company organized 4 performance exchange meetings to engage in
in-depth discussions with investors, enhancing transparency and trust.

7.2 Risk and Compliance Management

The Company places great importance on risk and compliance management, strictly adhering to the laws and
regulations applicable to its operating locations. It closely monitors the promulgation, changes, and revisions of laws
and regulations, identifies provisions relevant to the Company’'s operations and production, and promptly aligns
internal management systems with external regulations to ensure compliance with the requirements of laws and
regulations.

The Company has established the Rules about Comprehensive Control of Risks that covers all business processes. By
regularly identifying and analyzing risk lists, it builds a long-term management mechanism, implements risk prevention
measures across different levels and business lines, and enforces effective risk control measures in key areas.
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Drawing on the “Three-Line Model” by the Institute of Internal Auditors (Il1A), the Company, under the authorization of
the Audit Committee and management, has established a risk management system tailored to its characteristics. It
clearly defines the division of responsibilities for addressing major risks, including the responsible leaders, leading
departments, and their respective roles.

Hua Hong Semiconductor’s Three Lines of Defence for Risk Management in the Economic Sector

Organisation Governing Body (accountable to stakeholders, with supervisory responsibilities)

Board of Directors ‘

Third Line
President/The Management
‘ Internal Audit
Human Resources Finance HISHEEN ClEly el Compliance
Technology Assurance P Second Line

Department Department

Department

Department Department

Factory Customer Engineering China Sales International Sales Sales Service
Department Department Department Department
Business it i i i
Market Development S Administration Safety and Security Office of the First Line
Department Department Department Department Board of Directors
Planning Purchasing, Logistics Technical Research
Department and Testing and Development

Functions of the First Line: to provide products/services to customers and manage risks;

J

Functions of the Second Line: to provide expertise, support, monitoring, and reasonable challenge
on risk-related matters;

Functions of the Third Line: to provide independent and objective confirmation and advice on all
matters related to the achievement of objectives.
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Based on the “Three-Line Model” of risk management, the Company adheres to the principle of combining
comprehensiveness and importance, continuously optimizes its risk map, integrates and categorizes certain similar risk
factors, revises and supplements examples of risks, and identifies 59 major risk factors. This enables comprehensive
prevention and effective supervision of both internal and external risks.

During the Reporting Period, the Company conducted annual risk assessments at its Shanghai and Wuxi Production
Bases. It designed risk survey questionnaires and systematically analyzed and identified key risk areas through
one-on-one interviews, multi-department seminars, on-site research sampling, and other methods.

Risk assessment e We identify and analyze risk areas through methods such as questionnaires, one-
on-one interviews, and multi-department seminars and score the risk areas to
generate an annual risk management report.

Risk reporting e We implement a quarterly risk communication and reporting mechanism, where
each business unit collects and reports risk events within their respective areas on
a quarterly basis or as needed.

Communication and e From time to time, we organize risk line management meetings, conduct risk

training training, and communicate risk issues across business units and at the company
level.
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Operation

Finance

Environment
and Safety

Research

Continuously improve the R&D project management system,

and Developmentcomprehensively monitor the project initiation, implementation and post-

Product Structure

Talent Reserve

evaluation of R&D, continuously improve the project manager’'s ability, and
timely develop new technologies and products with commercial value
Continuously promote technical product upgrading iteration, increase flexible
production capacity, promote process interoperability among factories, and
optimize product structure

Establish a talent resume database, develop talent inventory, continuously

and Developmentexplore recruitment channels, optimize salary structure, improve supporting

Supply Chain

Information
Security

Exchange Rate
Control

welfare policies, and comprehensively enhance the attractiveness of
enterprises and employee satisfaction

Continuously develop diversified supply channels to ensure the stability
of the supply chain; set safety stock values for each production material,
regularly review the rationality of safety stock values, and timely adjust high-
risk materials with market changes

Establish information security framework and management policy, implement
information security risk assessment process every year, and continuously
monitor all critical information through DLP data protection system to ensure
that the best interests of the Company, shareholders, customers, suppliers
and employees are protected

Adhering to the concept of exchange rate risk neutrality, the Company
reduces the exchange rate risk of existing US dollar debts through currency
conversion, interest rate swaps and the adoption of exchange rate risk
management products

Security Inspection Continuously and regularly carry out safety inspection focusing on hidden

Occupational
Health

Environment

danger investigation and equipment fault diagnosis

The Company formulates environmental occupational health and safety
objectives, indicators and scheme management tables according to the
objectives, indicators and scheme management procedures of the HSE
management system

The Company identifies, evaluates and controls the planning and
management procedures according to environmental factors, and makes a
list of major environmental factors
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7.3 Business Ethics

Anti-commercial Bribery and Anti-corruption

The Company is consistently committed to fostering a corporate culture of integrity, honesty, and fairness. It strictly
complies with laws and regulations, such as the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Interim
Provisions on Prohibition of Commercial Bribery, and has established internal management systems, including the
Social Responsibility Management Manual, the Undertaking System on Anti-Corruption and Business Ethics, and
the Business Ethics Talk Measures. These ensure adherence to high standards of integrity in partnerships and daily
operations.

The Company integrates business ethics into its overall governance framework. Management is responsible for
overseeing the implementation and execution of this strategy, while functional departments, such as the Compliance
Department, Human Resources Department, and Procurement Department, are specifically tasked with the
management and supervision of business ethics.

prohibiting commercial bribery and maintaining fair competition order;

prohibiting seeking for illegitimate benefits through taking advantage of
influence in position and work;

never violating financial management and operation regulations, or
seeking personal gain in the name of the Company;

prohibiting practicing fraud to undermine the legitimate interests and
reputation of the Company;

prohibiting any receipt of presents, cash gifts, securities and
monetary items that may cause a negative influence on work.

The Company has established a systematic management system for business ethics to ensure that all operation
activities of the Company always comply with high standards of business ethics. The Company regularly conducts
comprehensive assessments of business ethics and anti-corruption efforts, covering all business operations. The
Company not only assesses the effectiveness of anti-corruption mechanisms, but also identifies potential integrity risks
and proposes improvement measures. In addition, the Company has established a regular verification mechanism for
business ethics to ensure that ethical policies are consistent with business developments and industry norms.

The Company is committed to creating a clean business ethics atmosphere. It conducts Responsible Business Alliance
(RBA) Code of Conduct training for new employees, emphasizing clean business and other ethical business behaviors;
and organizes anti-corruption and business ethics training, covering all employees in key positions, to promote the
in-depth development of a culture of integrity and create a healthy work environment. During the Reporting Period,
signing Ceremonies for the Undertaking on Business Ethics were held in Shanghai and Wuxi, targeting the department
heads and above, aiming to reinforce the commitment to ethical conduct and further enhance the transparent
atmosphere within the Company.

The Company encourages employees to actively participate in supervision and whistle-blowing to maintain a clean
working environment, and provides multiple whistle-blowing channels, such as email, telephone and mailbox, and
employees can choose to report in real name or anonymously. The Company always maintains an open attitude to
ensure timely handling of reported information, so as to promptly identify and solve problems and prevent and control
risks.
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To safeguard the fairness and transparency of whistle-blowing, the Company has established a sound business ethics
supervision and whistle-blowing handling mechanism. All reported cases are investigated in detail and the results are
reported to the whistleblower after consideration. With regard to whistleblower protection, the Company ensures that
their information is kept strictly confidential and prevents whistleblowers from being dismissed, demoted, suspended
or subjected to any form of retaliation for taking a lawful approach to whistle-blowing.

Hua Hong Semiconductor’s Business Ethics Supervision and Whistle-blowing Case Handling Procedures

Complete the

investigation

and evidence
collection within the
specified time limit,

draw preliminary
conclusions and report
to management

Immediately record
any individual
whistleblowing case

received

Give feedback to
the whistleblower

Arrange special
personnel or establish
a special team to
understand the
situation, carry out
an investigation, and

obtain evidence

Hold a special meeting
to review the contents
of the whistleblowing
case and investigation
results, and come up
with a solution

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had no commercial bribery or corruption related incidents and
litigation cases.
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All suppliers have signed the Anti-Commercial Bribery Commitment Letter 100%
All employees in critical positions have signed the Integrity Commitment Letter 100%

Anti-Unfair Competition

Hua Hong Semiconductor strictly complies with the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China
and other laws and regulations and relevant requirements, explicitly prohibits unfair competitive behaviors, such
as false advertising, trade secret infringement, and abuse of market dominance. The Company has established a
relatively comprehensive governance structure and internal supervision and management procedures, implemented
risk assessment and compliance review processes, and ensure timely identification and correction of any unfair
competitive behaviors. Meanwhile, the Company conducts regular training for its employees to strengthen their legal
compliance awareness, thereby preventing and addressing unfair competitive behaviors.

The Company has clearly defined the responsibilities of each department to ensure effective identification of and
response to unfair competition risks. At the same time, through strengthened analysis of the market and competitive
environment, the Company conducts regular assessments of potential risks and opportunities and formulates
corresponding strategies to make adjustments.

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company has not been subject to any unfair competition lawsuits or
administrative penalties, nor had it violated any laws or regulations regarding the use of product labels and promotional
content.
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Total exhaust air emissions 10,000 m® 2,391,024 2,747,929 2,478,838
Nitrogen oxide (NOy) emissions Kg 32,650 33,719 35,333
Sulfur dioxide (SO,) emissions Kg 3,546 5,252 4,013
Total wastewater discharge 10,000 m® 832 898 970
Total Hazardous waste produced? Ton 20,385 20,797 27,601
Hazardous waste produced per unit product Kg/8-inch wafers 4.88 5.29 6.07
Total Non-hazardous waste produced? Ton 9,864 9,269 10,134
Non-hazardous waste produced Kg/8-inch wafers 2.36 2.36 2.23
per unit product
Integrated energy consumed? MWh 1,065,002 1,168,170 1,272,331
Integrated energy consumed per unit product MWh/8-inch wafers 0.25 0.30 0.28
Of which: Electricity purchased' MWh 954,667 1,030,352 1,104,829
Natural gas consumed’ m? 10,530,287 11,048,312 11,630,543
Gasoline consumed! L - 43,949 43,923
Diesel consumed' L - 15,911 21,244
Heat purchased' GJ - 134,940 141,125
Total water consumed* m? 18,010,226 19,076,734 21,295,153
Of which: Water from municipal water supply m? 10,284,063 11,127,266 12,560,168
Wastewater reused m? 7,726,163 7,949,468 8,734,985
Water consumed per unit product® m?/8-inch wafers 2.46 2.83 2.76
Recycled/reused water m? 107,163,560 126,544,660 148,470,458
Total packaging materials used for the Ton 313.32 336.92 420.32
shipment of finished products
Packaging materials used for the shipment Kg/8-inch wafers 0.07 0.09 0.09
of per unit finished product
Recycled packaging materials used for Ton 54.90 66.33 84.71
the shipment of finished products
GHG emissions® tCO2e 497,938 537,070 562,487
Of which: Direct GHG emissions tCO2e 24,877 22,881 25,331
Indirect GHG emissions’ tCO2e 473,060 514,189 537,156
GHG emissions per unit product tCO2e/8-inch wafers 0.12 0.14 0.12

Notes:

1. The expansion project of the Wuxi Production Base was put into operation in 2023, and the production capacity was expanded
in 2024. Therefore, integrated energy consumed, total wastewater discharge, waste produced increased in 2024, but the
intensity performance indicators of most unit products have decreased.

2. Hazardous waste mainly includes waste isopropanol, waste acid, waste oil, waste packaging materials, etc. Hazardous waste
mainly includes waste sludge and domestic garbage.

3. Integrated energy consumption included electricity purchased, natural gas, gasoline, diesel and heat purchased.

4. Total water consumption = water consumption from municipal water supply + wastewater reuse.



5. In calculation, water consumed per unit product only includes water from the municipal water supply.
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6. GHG emissions are calculated in accordance with the GB/T 32150 General Guideline for Calculation and Reporting of GHG
Emissions from Industrial Enterprises and the GB/T 32151 Requirements on Calculation and Reporting of GHG Emissions
published by the Standardization Administration of China.

7. The indirect greenhouse gas emissions for the Shanghai and Wuxi plant were calculated based on the Notice on Adjusting the
Emission Factor Values in the Municipal Greenhouse Gas Emissions Accounting Guidelines issued by the Shanghai Municipal
Ecology and Environment Bureau and the Announcement on the Release of 2022 CO, Emission Factors for Electricity (December
2024) issued by China’s Ministry of Ecology and Environment, respectively. In 2024, Shanghai plant used a default value of
electricity emission factor of 0.42 tCO,/MWh, and Wuxi plant used the national average grid emission factor of 0.5366 tCO./MWh

when calculating.

Employment and Labor Practice

Total number of full-time
employees
By Gender

By Type of Employment

By Age

By Level

By Educational Level

By Region
Employee turnover rate’
By Gender

By Age

By Region

Male employees

Female employees

Employees working under a labor
contract with the employer

Employees working under a labor
contract with a labor dispatch (not
included in the total number of
full-time employees)

Part-time employees

Employees aged under 30

Employees aged between 30 and 50

Employees aged above 50

Non-management employees

Management employees

Employees with graduate degree or
above

Employees with undergraduate
degrees

Employees with less than
undergraduate degrees

Employees working in Mainland China

Employees working in Hong Kong,
Macao, Taiwan and overseas

Female employee

Male employee

Employees aged under 30

Employees aged between 30 and 50

Employees aged above 50

Employees working in Mainland China

Employees working in Hong Kong,
Macao, Taiwan and overseas

Person

Person
Person
Person

Person

Person
Person
Person
Person
Person
Person
Person

Person

Person

Person
Person

%
%
%

6,760

4,932
1,828
6,760

81

6,751

12.0
9.7
12.8
18.3
7.2
0.7
12.0
0.0

6,863

5,039
1,824
6,863

53

6,855

10.0
7.1
11.3
14.0
7.5
19
10.0
9.7

7,487

5,625
1,962
7,487

49

3,228

4,091
168

7,361
126

1,987

2,662

2,838

7,479

1.2
6.3
12.5
17.2
6.3

1.2
1.2

0.0
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Occupational disease incidence

Coverage of employees
attending occupational
disease medical examinations

Number of work-related fatalities

Percentage of work-related
fatalities

Lost days due to work injury

Average training hours
completed per full-time

employee®
By Level

By Gender

Percentage of full-time
employees trained*
By Level

By Gender

Total employee training
expenditure

Notes:

Average training hours completed per
non-management

Average training hours completed per
management

Average training hours completed per
female

Average training hours completed per
male

Percentage of non-management
employees trained

Percentage of management
employees trained

Percentage of female employees
trained

Percentage of male employees
trained

Employee labor contract signing rate

Employee social insurance coverage
rate

Number of employee discrimination
incidents

Amount of employee work injury
insurance input

Employee work injury insurance
coverage rate

%
%

Person
%
Day

Hour

Hour
Hour
Hour
Hour
%
%
%
%
%

RMB ten
thousand

%
%

Case
RMB ten

thousand
%

100

o

83

122.2

123.7

26.5

124.3

121.4

100

100

100

100

100

100
100

100

100

o

61

133.7

135.6

31.6

125.1

136.8

100

100

100

100

100

100
100

100

100

o

126

137.3

1391

29.3

119.6

143.6

100

100

100

100

100

195

100
100

963

100

1 Employee turnover rate for each category = number of employees in that category turned over during the year/number of
employees in that category at the end of the year.

2 Coverage rate for employee occupational disease physical examinations is calculated based on employees in occupational risk
positions at the end of the Reporting Period. During the Reporting Period, the Company incurred 3 work-related injuries and has
strengthened protection education, including safety training and education for all employees of the departments involved, on-
site engineering control measures, etc.

3 Average training hours for each category of employees = total hours of training received by each category of employees/
number of employees in that category at the end of the year.

4 Coverage rate of training for each category of employees = number of employees of that category receiving training/number of
employees of that category at the end of the year.



2024 ANNUAL REPORT ¢ HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 137

2024 ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Product Responsibility and Customer Service
Performance Indicators Unit 2022 2023 2024

Product Responsibility and Customer Service
Number of incidents of non-compliance with relevant Case 0 0 0
laws and regulations on products and services during

the Reporting Period
Product return rate % 0.1 0.087 0.037

Percentage of products sold subject to recalls for safety % 0 0 0
and health reasons
Customer Service

Number of complaints received in relation to Case 0 4 2
products and services
Percentage of customer complaints resolved! % - 100 100
Note:

1 Percentage of customer complaints resolved = number of customer complaints resolved/number of complaints
received about products and services *100%.

Information security and privacy protection

Indicator Name Unit 2022 2023 2024
Number of confirmed incidents of leakage, Case 0 0 0
theft or loss of customer information
Amount involved in data security incidents RMB ten 0 0 0
thousand
Amount involved in customer privacy leakage incidents RMB ten 0 0 0
thousand

Supply Chain Management

Performance Indicators Unit 2022 2023 2024

Total number of suppliers Supplier 551 561 581

By region Total number of suppliers in  Supplier 413 420 436
Mainland China

Total number of suppliers from Supplier 138 141 145

Hong Kong, Macao, Taiwan
and overseas

Number of suppliers Supplier 112 114 139
assessed!

Number of suppliers subject Supplier 0 0 0
to rectification

Percentage of raw and % 100 100 100

auxiliary material suppliers
signing the Environmental
Protection Undertaking
Percentage of raw materials % 31 32 36
purchased from local
suppliers?®

Notes:

1 Refers to the number of suppliers for which the Company has conducted assessments in respect of labor, health, environment
and ethics.

2 Raw material procurement includes: silicon wafers, quartz, target materials, gases, chemicals and other raw materials for
production.
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Anti-corruption

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Case 0 0 0
practices brought against the issuer or its employees

during the Reporting Period

Cumulative hours of anti-corruption training Hour / 2,542 2,245
received by employees
Average training hours per employee on anti-corruption’ Hour / / 1.2
Note:

1 Employees who have received anti-corruption training include all new employees and employees in key positions. Average
training hours per employee on anti-corruption = training hours for new employees and employees in key positions/number of
new employees and employees in key positions.

Community Investment

Cumulative hours of volunteer
Community investment

Economic Performance

Number of employees participating in volunteer services Person 4,189 1,108 1,100
activities Hour 6,283 1,364 1,212

RMB - 50,000 50,000

RMB 5.46 3.59 1.87

Social contribution per share’

Note:

1 Social contribution per share
+ interest on borrowings paid

= (net profit of the Company + tax paid to the state during the year + salaries paid to employees
to banks and other creditors + value created for other stakeholders, e.g. donations — other social

costs due to environmental pollution)/total number of shares of the Company.

8.2 List of Laws and Regulations Observed by the Company

Environmental Management

Emissions and Waste
Management

Energy and Resource
Management

Product Quality

Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, Environmental Impact
Assessment Law of the People’s Republic of China, Clean Production Promotion Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Environmental Protection Tax Law of the People's
Republic of China, etc.

Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution, Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control

of Water Pollution, Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes, Regulations on Administration of
Recovery and Disposal of Waste Electrical and Electronic Products, Regulations on the
Administration of Pollution Discharge Permits, etc.

Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law on Energy of the
People’s Republic of China, Renewable Energy Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Law on Circular Economy Promotion of the People’s Republic of China, Water
Conservation Regulations, etc.

Law of the People’s Republic of China on Product Quality, Anti-Unfair Competition

Law of the People’s Republic of China, EU Regulation concerning the Registration,
Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction of Chemicals (“REACH”"), Waste Electrical
and Electronic Equipment Directive (“WEEE”), Restriction of Hazardous Substances
("RoHS"), etc.
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Information Security
and Privacy Protection

Intellectual Property
Protection

Cyber Security Law of the People’s Republic of China, Data Security Law of the
People's Republic of China, Personal Information Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Cryptography Law of the People’s Republic of China, Regulations
on the Protection of Computer Software, Regulations on Network Data Security
Management

Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, Copyright Law of the People’s Republic
of China, Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, Implementation Rules of
the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, Regulations on National Science and
Technology Awards, etc.

Responsibility for Employees

Employee Interests

Occupational Health
and Safety

Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Employment Contracts, Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Protection of Women’s Rights and Interests,
Vocational Education Law of the People’s Republic of China, Regulations on the
Prohibition of Child Labor

Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, Special Equipment
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, Regulation on Work-Related Injury
Insurances, Regulations on Labor Protection in Workplaces Using Toxic Substances,
Special Regulations on Labor Protection for Female Employees, Regulations on
Emergency Response to Production Safety Accidents, etc.

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance

Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, Securities Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, etc.

8.3 Benchmarking Index

The Hong Kong Stock Exchange's Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (effective from 31

December 2023)

Part B: Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

Mandatory Disclosure Items

Section in the Report

Governance Structure
Reporting Principles
Reporting Boundary

ESG Management System
Report Preparation Instructions
Report Preparation Instructions

Part C: “Comply or explain” Provisions

Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section in the Report

Subject Area A. Environmental

Aspect A1. Emissions
General Disclosure A1
KPI'A1.1

KPI' A1.2

Emissions and Waste Management

Emissions and Waste Management
ESG Data and Notes

ESG Data and Notes



140

2024 ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED e 2024 ANNUAL REPORT

Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

Section in the Report

KPI'A1.3
KPI'A1.4
KPI' A1.5

KPI A1.6

ESG Data and Notes
ESG Data and Notes

Emissions and Waste Management
ESG Management Strategies and Targets

Emissions and Waste Management
ESG Management Strategies and Targets

Aspect A2. Use of Resources
General Disclosure A2

KPI' A2.1
KPI A2.2
KPI' A2.3

KPI A2.4

KPI A2.5

Energy Management
Water Resources Management

ESG Data and Notes
ESG Data and Notes

Energy Management
ESG Management Strategies and Targets

Water Resources Management
ESG Management Strategies and Targets

ESG Data and Notes

Aspect A3. Environment and Natural Resources

General Disclosure A3

KPI A3.1

Environmental Management
Water Resources Management
Circular Economy

Water Resources Management
Circular Economy

Aspect A4. Coping with Climate Change
General Disclosure A4
KPI A4.1

Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation
Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation

Subject Area B. Social Employment and Labour Practices

Aspect B1. Employment
General Disclosure B1
KPI B1.1

KPI B1.2

Rights and Interests of Employees
ESG Data and Notes
ESG Data and Notes

Aspect B2. Health and Safety
General Disclosure B2

KPI B2.1

KPI B2.2

KPI B2.3

Employee Health and Safety
ESG Data and Notes
ESG Data and Notes
Employee Health and Safety

Aspect B3. Development and Training
General Disclosure B3
KPI B3.1

Employee Development and Training
ESG Data and Notes
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Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section in the Report

KPI B3.2 ESG Data and Notes

Aspect B4. Labor Standards

General Disclosure B4 Rights and Interests of Employees
KPI B4.1 Rights and Interests of Employees
KPI B4.2 Rights and Interests of Employees

Subject Area B. Social Operating Practices
Aspect B5. Supply Chain Management

General Disclosure B5 Sustainable Supply Chain Management

KPI B5.1 ESG Data and Notes

KPI B5.2 Sustainable Supply Chain Management

KPI B5.3 Sustainable Supply Chain Management

KPI B5.4 Sustainable Supply Chain Management

Aspect B6. Product Responsibility

General Disclosure B6 Product and Service Safety and Quality

KPI B6.1 Product and Service Safety and Quality

KPI B6.2 Product and Service Safety and Quality
ESG Data and Notes

KPI B6.3 R&D Innovation and Intellectual Property Protection

KPI B6.4 Product and Service Safety and Quality

KPI B6.5 Information Security and Privacy Protection

Aspect B7. Anti-corruption

General Disclosure B7 Business Ethics

KPI B7.1 ESG Data and Notes

KPI B7.2 Business Ethics

KPI B7.3 Business Ethics

Aspect B8. Community Investment

General Disclosure B8 Community and Public Welfare
KPI B8.1 Community and Public Welfare
KPI B8.2 ESG Data and Notes

Self-Regulatory Guidelines No.14 for Companies Listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange—Sustainability Report ( For Trial
Implementation) (April 2024)

Disclosure Requirement Corresponding Sections of the Report
Coping with Climate Change Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation
Pollutant Emissions Emissions and Waste Management

Waste Disposal Emissions and Waste Management
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Ecosystem and Biodiversity Conservation

Environmental Compliance Management
Energy Utilization

Water Resource Utilization

Circular Economy

Rural Revitalization

Social Contribution

Innovation-Driven

Technology Ethics

Supply Chain Security
Equal Treatment for SMEs

Product and Service Safety and Quality

Data Security and Customer Privacy
Protection

Employee

Due Diligence
Stakeholder Communication

Anti-Commercial Bribery and Anti-
Corruption

Anti-Unfair Competition
Self-disclosure topics

Green Products

Clean Technology
Opportunities

Risk Compliance
Management

Corporate Governance

In terms of biodiversity conservation, the
four factories of the Company are located

in industrial plots and do not involve control
requirements such as ecological protection
red lines and water source protection areas.

Environmental Management
Energy Management

Water Resources Management
Circular Economy

Community and Public Welfare
Community and Public Welfare

R&D Innovation and Intellectual Property
Protection

The Company’s core business focuses

on the production and manufacturing of
semiconductor wafers and does not involve
this topic.

Sustainable Supply Chain Management

As of the end of 2024, the balance of the
Company'’s accounts payable (including
notes payable) will not exceed RMB30 billion
or account for more than 50% of total assets.

Product and Service Safety and Quality
Information Security and Privacy Protection

Rights and Interests of Employees
Employee Health and Safety
Employee Development and Training

Stakeholder Engagement and Due Diligence
Stakeholder Engagement and Due Diligence
Business Ethics

Business Ethics
Green Products
Clean Technology Opportunities

Risk Compliance Management

Corporate Governance
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Index Table of Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Indicator System for State-owned Listed Companies in

Shanghai (Version 1.0)

E1.3

E1.4

E1.5

E2.1

E2.2
E2.3

E2.4

E3.1

E3.2
E3.3
E3.4
E3.5

E4.1

E4.2
E4.3
E4.4
E4.5

E4.6

E4.7

Environmental Management Objectives
and Systems

Passing Environmental Management
System Certification

Research and Development of Green
Products and Use of Environmental
Protection Technologies

Total Investment in Environmental
Protection

Environmental Protection Training
Performance

Energy Management Goals and Planning

Energy Saving Measures

Renewable Energy Development and
Application

Total Energy Consumption

Resource Management System and
Planning

Water Resource Goals and Planning
Water Conservation Measures

Total Annual Water Consumption
Other Resource Usage Management

Sewage Management Goals and
Planning

Measures to Reduce Sewage Discharge
Sewage Recycling Usage
Sewage Pollutant Discharge

Waste Gas Management Goals and
Planning

Measures to Reduce Waste Gas
Discharge

Waste Gas Pollutant Emissions

ESG Management Strategies and Targets
Environmental Management

Environmental Management

Green Products
Clean Technology Opportunities

Environmental Management

Environmental Management

ESG Management Strategies and Targets
Energy Management

Energy Management
Energy Management

ESG Data and Notes

Water Resources Management
Circular Economy

Water Resources Management
Water Resources Management
ESG Data and Notes

Green Products

ESG Management Strategies and Targets
Emissions and Waste Management

Emissions and Waste Management
ESG Data and Notes
ESG Data and Notes

ESG Management Strategies and Targets
Emissions and Waste Management

Emissions and Waste Management

ESG Data and Notes
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E4.8

E4.9
E4.10
E4.11

E4.12

E5.1

E5.2

E5.3
E5.4

E6.1
E6.2

S1.2

S1.3

S1.4

S1.5

S1.6
S1.7
S51.8

S1.9

Solid Waste Management Goals and
Planning

Solid Waste Treatment Measures
Solid Waste Emissions

Solid Waste Recycling, Utilization, and
Disposal Volume

Other Pollutants Management

Identify Climate Change Risks and
Establish Goals and Strategies to
Address Climate Change

Measures to Support the “Emission Peak
and Carbon Neutrality” Goal

Carbon Verification/Review Measures
Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Biodiversity Conservation System
Biodiversity Conservation Measures

Product Safety and Quality Management
System

Passing Product Quality Management
System Certification

Product Research and Development
Innovation

Intellectual Property Protection

Customer Information Protection and
Privacy

Customer Service Management System
Responsible Publicity

Number of Customer Complaints/
Complaint Resolution rate

Customer Satisfaction

ESG Management Strategies and Targets
Emissions and Waste Management

Emissions and Waste Management
ESG Data and Notes
ESG Data and Notes

The Company adopts noise prevention and
control measures such as building noise
insulation, installation of vibration-damping
devices for equipment, etc.

ESG Management Strategies and Targets
Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation

Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation

Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation
ESG Data and Notes

In terms of biodiversity conservation, the
four factories of the Company are located
in industrial plots and do not involve control
requirements such as ecological protection
red lines and water source protection
areas.

Product and Service Safety and Quality

Product and Service Safety and Quality

R&D Innovation and Intellectual Property
Protection

R&D Innovation and Intellectual Property
Protection

Information Security and Privacy Protection

Product and Service Safety and Quality
Product and Service Safety and Quality
Product and Service Safety and Quality

Product and Service Safety and Quality



S2.1
S2.2
S2.3
S2.4
S52.5
S2.6
S2.7

S52.8

S2.9

S2.10
S2.11
S2.12
S2.13

S2.14
S2.15

S2.16

S3.1
S3.2

S4.1

S4.2
S4.3

S5.1

S5.2
S5.3
S5.4
S5.5
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Staff Employment and Staff Composition
Employee Turnover Rate

Democratic Management of Employees
Salary and Benefits System

Employee Care

Employee Satisfaction

Employee Occupational Health and
Safety Management

Passing Occupational Health and Safety
Management System Certification

Safety Emergency Management
Measures

Total Investment in Production Safety
Production Safety Training Performance
Work-related Injuries and Deaths

Employee Physical Examination
Coverage

Employee Career Development System

Employee Training and Practical
Measures

Employee Development Performance

Supplier Management System
Supplier ESG Review

Carrying out Public Welfare and Charity
Activities

Public Welfare and Charity Investment
Volunteer Service Performance

Serving National Strategy or Shanghai
Strategy

Responding to Public Crises
Information Security

Public Services

Tax Contribution

Rights and Interests of Employees
ESG Data and Notes

Rights and Interests of Employees
Rights and Interests of Employees
Rights and Interests of Employees
Rights and Interests of Employees
Employee Health and Safety

Employee Health and Safety

Employee Health and Safety

Employee Health and Safety
Employee Health and Safety
ESG Data and Notes
ESG Data and Notes

Employee Development and Training
Employee Development and Training

Employee Development and Training

Sustainable Supply Chain Management
Sustainable Supply Chain Management

Community and Public Benefit

ESG Data and Notes
ESG Data and Notes

R&D Innovation and Intellectual Property
Protection Clean Technology Opportunities
Community and Public Benefit

Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation
Information Security and Privacy Protection
Community and Public Benefit

Financial Statements Section of Hua Hong
Semiconductor Limited 2024 Annual Report
(A Share)
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G1.1

G1.2

G1.3
G1.4
G1.5
G1.6
G1.7

G2.1

G2.2
G2.3
G2.4

G2.5
G2.6
G2.7

G2.8

G2.9

G3.1

G3.2

G3.3

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED e 2024 ANNUAL REPORT

Party Leadership

Separation of Chairman/General
Manager

Percentage of Directors
Compliance Management System
Risk Management System

Audit System

Measures to Avoid Violating Business
Ethics

Anti-monopoly and Fair Competition

Board Involvement in ESG Management

ESG Organizational Structure
ESG strategy/objectives
ESG Stakeholder Identification

|dentification of Material Topics
ESG-related System

Carrying out Stakeholder Communication
Activities

Management Remuneration Linked to
ESG Performance

Specific ESG Factors for Business

Basic Platform Construction

Data Convergence and Interoperability

Data Governance System

Environmental, Social Responsibility and
Other Corporate Governance Section of
Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited 2024
Annual Report (A Share)

Separation of Chairman and General
Manager

Corporate Governance

Risk Compliance Management
Risk Compliance Management
Business Ethics

Business Ethics

Business Ethics

Board of Directors ESG Management
Statement
ESG Management Framework

ESG Management Framework

ESG Management Strategies and Targets
Stakeholder Engagement and Due
Diligence

Double Materiality Analysis

ESG Management Framework
Stakeholder Engagement and Due
Diligence

Environmental, safety, R&D goals linked to
management compensation

Climate Change Mitigation and Adaptation
Clean Technology Opportunities

Employee Health and Safety
R&D Innovation and Intellectual Property
Protection

Production, environment and procurement
data are kept in the Company’s intranet,
which is physically isolated from the
extranet by setting access rights for
reasons of commercial confidentiality.

Not Involved
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BE_Z-_NFT-_A=1+—"RALFE, SANRARENZERYE M EZSERNREENHEN AR RZEE L KE
SHEMEREFTRF BN B R 73ER T M1 BT, BRBERNRY T B eEREEAMRRE R AR,



174 sippEgEaRAT » 2024 FERE

SEEARRE

EEGHEZ L
EERRAEEERESTULER( 2 BoE ), WET ETRAIE1892

ARARETEEMARS TR ERFEINERIR, ARAERETEFTEXEBHEAE, BRZEAT HEEES
EXEZT, BRETRNRE. K. R RTELR. 55, i, FREEFEXENEBRE, SEFELE
BRM. Kt KREESSEFEENBENLTE, AEFTRRERESREAR, REZBSHRBRETRIREZER
BANE, YRDEREFTERBEZ LT ENGE, REZEERERETERBZLMNAGERR, FHT®
MoER—3, YAEFESFHER, AESERA, £EARERME, EFerE—ExZETEREEZ T, WiRRE
mERTHER,

EFRRBUAS T BEFRSTANER AR, EEBRLLR-B-=FAA—AZBE, ARTDEHLETFMLT
MEF, BUABE-B-ME=A=T/\AEERABLL BIFATEFN, ADARERE ETHAE13.92 /M
SIRE. EERFRBLTAFNTESE, ALTHA LTRAEI32ENAT, BEINZ T, NRE-F-_mE
ToAST—AILFE, $NERGRAERERE IEEREFARESTNTHEER, REERGBIEFAN
EXLRHEE R, BERBRERURAA, LENNTEERAFNTESZEN, NRREFENEE 2B,
ARTBBERAHEIRAR N RROEEE ST MHRE FEI,

BTIZtit

RZZB-MF+-A=+—8, AKEET( BEARASRERE NS URLLAINRT74%: 26%, NAFARAMES
FOEERARABEITHE, EFSEM, ARRNEIEREMNZ T,

ERERBEE
B EE B ERTRTUNEA21EHFIHOBA.

EXQCRAANQFANCEECERELER. EENRAEEAENZIINBEEXER. ARRAEETERVNEERTE
TEHERKERESR. BTHRETR URARBETZTRNERMELEE A RENNKE,
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AN SEMA TP A
TEERKRS

REERE

B RIBRRBEUR
ARBERMBRBARR, ZERRFEFETRY, UWBRERERTEARAMIE, ZBK S ERRBIRBESTF M
ERBEBARANER, NEBIREHAMBTXTEEEN, ABEHE2ERNRFER,

ARABFERBERAREHIA T,
ARPIEREABEH IR LERFRXIAEREMNMBRE( RREFE. PHRFERSE ). BR. AEFREEH
FIBCRIREE

ABE—FSHBAER AR, NAFREAMIwww.huahonggrace.com ATIB AR B XK ERE L LEENSZHEN. EEL
BEREACHERBY. ABEEXH. EFSREBETZEgNRESRE. REESREANER. DEETATH. UBHR
SR, 2, UEEME,

BRAGETESERRIHANTIERRRE, ARREZBMEREFERZERERA®, UWERSHEEKF, ARELRFRS
HARAMBBRERBN TR, EFETR. ANESENEREEFEZESTR( TR RELE, AMZE8gHM
REHE ) BESARRBEEMEE, RRSBRERENALBN, BHAFARREFNERSERASRSE
FETBRR,

BrEatsh, ARRINEBEMEARREMBA. RRARIBZIREABRBRARRSEHE Mo

RICERBEHARBEBN TR, ARAAREEABKENRS2BEEEZELRER, ARANT2NMAERERBIAL
BERBAAEZFSOME. ELEERAREAREELETEZ RN,

REARTEARTHRERENSHEENER, BRENGBEEEBREEBERBEA(EM. IR@hhgrace.com )
AR B R,

BE_Z_MFT_A=1T—"HLFE, FARAFREHEBRRBARKOPITIEALBRILETEN, BRNBIRASHRI
M1TE) . HAMREFEANEEANRENSBBRRE, AARRASZAMKABEREACZEEE,
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TEERHRE

DNEWE

RAMETHEXLIAERTEAE, WEREFSREFESET, EFQLYPTEARTMET, wIRERFRESTED
2EHMEEARRERNERER. FRREERELRER, BHEFNABRKREXEER,

RAMENEEEIFLARESR, AARREARRNBETREZEZEAE, BHEFSARREBETEREE, XEBTL
mRAL,

BE_Z_NF+-_A=+—"BULFEHH, FHREXICHFAEEXFEUTMERERARB, WET EHRRNE
3.291%5’]%%;10

BRREBARRIBFHIAENERF

—E2REHRFEAARRFRBEAT IR -+ 02 —BRRAIFERES, WREFBEOIFE22ERAREGI([ AFMED] |)E
566 =568 5 B RMAR([ FR77 | BIERME ) A feth BFRBRRIEIAGNER, FRERIABHAEHE,
RBELTRE, WREARRNEMMRER, KRG FEBRRERIAG R AE T QA RPISE 580 £5831KMFIRM E R K2
Fo

RERRAEELRHERRERREAGEESTSNEF

BRANEASEUNEAFAAARRREERRK, 58l SRLEE, FHRRFTIRESSIFXARWE, HBK
I

FE EER ISR ERGERK2885:, iR 201203
E:E. (86) 21 38829909

fEE. (86) 21 50809999

T T A IR@hhgrace.com
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PR R HRIR
RIE ERAIZE13.30(4) i, BRERBEAE EMEMRRGAARTT T
RREENAMEE

BEBREERABEZERR
EREERIE
EaRERE L, ARARKEEEBMIAN(ATEETR )T, BREFTEABRE,

EL EEH L, AAREREARMNARARERBETAEKNEAR, Fit, ARANEARERBREERR. FhHEL
g, WHRERFRK. B %Ei’ﬂi‘k?f FRERHREEREELRAR, AATREFRAREITRAER, KERRER
RETE, AEAREEES, = B wE, BEITEERRE, PR EZTEE 2R, ﬁ/\ﬂj,\WE/RE’JFﬁ
N ﬂ;\ BE. a¥REREZEEN,

AEBHEHI R B IR

ARBAEEFIRBETDOBRBRCOSO( REBRVBHREZEENELEAMEZE S WAREERERZKNELSITAE
BAREREENER, REAARERBAMESE, $orRRBEN=FRRACTRZIREER, FKERER
WAEIEGIFERR, BREETEABEERSNARENMERE, RRERAXRKLZDNARIE. HMBRENAISE
HAERER O BRIERESERE,
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TEERHRE

EREERABEZER
ARERBRERBIEAERRARLRERME, ZARERYRERER ZGIER NEERBR, e TIZETRER
WAEMEE:

E— iR FEHEM
o RN B REREIFT AR E IR R B IR I

RABTERFERERRFBER;

o FERRAMPIEREZEEBETE,

o MUEEARRABREREIE, BREEEVEMNEREER, BEEARIFIEENERR
B, WHETE ARG ELE N,

o EREEEENM

o RUMABRMME, BEFNEEER, BEPRERR. X=RBREETE, YRR
IR H R A A RIEE T O MRS ;

B=ER R EBEHRAR

o HERXBHMMERERGRNARERE TEFRREVETELNEERE, FHERARRA
REERHIESEAREE;

s RRFEZHABRNGETE, ENERFGEER, ATEARREHEETE, ABLE
BEAAMIBEEARBREH IR, WHTROEHEETRME,

o HRFR KERMEBRET ORI, BRMAMMFIISEBETRY, WRERRERE

o MARBERZEGERZAT KAR M
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AN SEMA TP A
TEERKRS

EREERABEEEHA

EXQREARANAREERANMEZERS, ANBERBIZEGNERIE, EFTSCIRIRARETBIIRTRRET
e, YRNRBEEBIESLB LI, ARETHEREEHENREHRELIREEEATRRTRMEXD. 2165 B E
FFRBSETABEARARREERABEREZAGNERREETRE, WELRBERRK,

REBABBAPFINTERR, AAREFERS, ARTANEREEMAMERRZGTDY . TASERERULER, B
BPEOEAR, ARNEREEMANEREREBEEEE. M ERFEARTERNEBRTENNAR, ERH
EASHRNRIRIBRIEHAEMIFBHNORRE

RRBFSFNEELIES . RENEEARER, ARECERETREF, BREEEREEABETARRESRXHA
BSERIE. SAERESEREERREEMRIESFZ RG], BERMRHRIEB ARRRE B 0 RIZBMNELEERE
B, s AEB AR IR ARE BRI KRR,

—REH

EXREREAQFSEAVBMENTBEHRE, EELMEBRREEENATHRMARBNEBMAR, WHTEEEELK
FEREtER, ARHEBE T _NF T+ -_A=+—BLFENUBHRRE, EFCUBVERUEREENSFTR
R, EHBE. A FRAERHE LA, WIRHELEERRRMBERE

ZE AR B R R E R AE N A FERE T F299F 301 AW B AZHBEIHRE A,

RREFS
EHERE
B
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=

=gRE

EREEREANR _E_MFEFEREN_Z_MF-A-—BE"Z_MF+_-A=+—HEBROMEERK([ HER
=1

FTEXHR

B —ZWFR, BUFSRBE—FRHFASHTHD2ETHMARERICE, RPFINFREEARAR BN
SRS, RS ERNEREENEE LG REREI FEIC + Power Discrete | TEH1T, REFPIREZ T
WEETERERERS, BUYERIEFARNERKHBFELEUHHREME(E310E311H ),

E iy E)

LS

FMHER T MFEHEWRALR20.04EXT, BRE—FETHE123%, 2FLERIREREFNEE, FAIRER
FERERLBOBEBEFTSELOERNBE T, 2RFLERMSRIFATERNES, EXBARGRERERTE, &
ERIMSHTRBHR, ERAE, BB, ERETERAERNEANLERTISA(CERBBOHERED,
AR 8H +1251 |BRESRE R IERAE, FURERBCIRNZKLRE, B, KERFNEINER BEENHE
KEE, RAIRFTHERNAXREII100%, E2KEZRERTEEPRFELKT,

RIRFE D EERA
SEDNFE SToNE ZTS=F ZT-=F RSt RA#t
Ex % F=T % FET %
FEERE 1,900,929 94.9% 2,181,591 95.4% (280,662) (12.9)%
EHAth 103,064 5.1% 104,522 4.6% (1,458) (1.4)%
A&t 2,003,993 100.0% 2,286,113 100.0% (282,120) (12.3)%

o T, RFIMI%NERWARE FERAENHEKA,

REFRABIEERN
“EoNE SBoNE ZTS=F SFo=6F 0 An@t Ak

Ex % FEr % FET %
ESS/NSIFIIE: I T Sl G /N 1,919,000 95.8% 2,109,482 92.3% (190,482) (9.0)%
A HRIER (IDMs) 84,993 4.2% 176,631 7.7% (91,638) (51.9)%
At 2,003,993 100.0% 2,286,113 100.0% (282,120) (12.3)%

*  REREARMARMERS S R AREPEEMNERKAIGLL5.8%,
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EEEHE

REFESEZLWRA
—EoME ZEB-ME —TZ=F ZT=F Gilsg:-2ld Elsd-Zld

FEx % FE % FET %
H 1,636,528 81.6% 1,774,178 77.6% (137,650) (7.8)%
xR 187,899 9.4% 204,882 9.0% (16,983) (8.3)%
ToMEAth [ 45 103,410 5.2% 149,087 6.5% (45,677) (30.6)%
BOM = 69,528 3.5% 134,760 5.9% (65,232) (48.4)%
ERiN 6,628 0.3% 23,206 1.0% (16,578) (71.4)%
B 2,003,993 100.0% 2,286,113 100.0% (282,120) (12.3)%

o T UF, RRFBEEEERAMGLIERS1.6%,

BEMERE D EREA
“BONFE —BoNE —Fo=F —T=F R &1L RILL &1L

FER % FET % FET %
BARIES KR IEFFEES(eNVM) 526,122 26.3% 703,148 30.8% (177,026) (25.2)%
B IS KT (SNVM) 130,137 6.5% 116,715 51% 13,422 115 %
TR 623,922 31.0% 902,346 39.4% (278,424) (30.9)%
HEREEAGTSR 272,201 13.6% 202,483 8.9% 69,718 34.4 %
R (Analog) AR E 1 (PM) 448,100 22.4% 358,333 15.7% 89,767 251 %
Hth 3,511 0.2% 3,088 0.1% 423 13.7 %
A&t 2,003,993 100.0% 2,286,113 100.0% (282,120) (12.3)%

o “TMF, REEFREIE. BEESFALERALRRY, T2HABBETROREEREBEFRINER
LEEN
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EEEHE

2024 FEFRE

RISHHEPEZERA

—ECIMFE ZEINFE —T-=F ZT=-=F Gilsd=219 Cilsd- 2]

FEx % FE % FET %

559K K 654K 438,656 21.9% 291,683 12.8% 146,973 50.4 %
Q0K K 95K 389,181 19.4% 386,191 16.9% 2,990 0.8 %

0. 118K % 0. 135K 278,597 13.9% 405,911 17.8% (127,314) (31.4)%
0.15f0K 0. 187K 129,645 6.5% 147,338 6.4% (17,693) (12.0)%
0.25%K 16,932 0.8% 24,217 1.1% (7,285) (30.1)%
>0.35fK 750,982 37.5% 1,030,773 45.0% (279,791) (27.1)%
At 2,003,993 100.0% 2,286,113 100.0% (282,120) (12.3)%

o Z—TUF, S5MKKESMATEEERNAMNERASREESFENERMRFBERLR,
RERTIEE D EERA

—EBEoME ZB-ME —T-=F —T-=F B L &L B &L

FER % FEx % FET %

HBET 1,261,705 63.0% 1,294,251 56.6% (32,546) (2.5)%
TEMAES 461,256 23.0% 673,395 29.5% (212,139) (31.5)%
BiE 251,261 12.5% 256,856 11.2% (5,595) (2.2)%
FE 29,771 1.5% 61,611 2.7% (31,840) (51.7)%
A&t 2,003,993 100.0% 2,286,113 100.0% (282,120) (12.3)%

o T _PUF, HEE FTRADIEE IR, ZemE F WAL E63.0%,
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EEEHH

EREREREFAE
RERK THREEA) —EZNEF —EC=F Elsg=2(e
FEI 65 65 -
AT R 60 60 =
YT =K 53 53 =
8~ REIAEREAR 178 178 =
FEAT (125~ REERE ) 95 95 =
ERFIAE(Tasi~T&E ) 99.5% 94.3% 5.2%
o T UFEITASKTREEMFAR AL 2EE DB,
NERE

FH&E —E-OF —E-=F Elsg=Z(e
EGE( a8~ HRE) 4,545 4,103 10.8%

s T NERAMNERERLL EA10.8%,

B 3%

FFBRBBF AR ERCRMOME. BFMEL, TERENRAR BUAEZRUEFHEE. RS, HEE
EREE. MEBESHSHETEYS, RERTPRHEATTEFTRNERBES MRS, —T_MNF, O+ EEH
BINPRA2ET EEREMF 62K ﬁﬁPH@m+meHMmmM§ i EE12RT TEYENERMESENEE,

ESGREGFHBFLEMARRAREIEMNBATFTEZ—, RARNTFRMESEFHEERRMCUBR RGBT, ER
[8ET+128~T | TFEAMERMEAES, ZEITEMUNFIZELEENZRIIMCULK 2EHRE, BIHITFEAEET.
BIRRE, TESEGEANTHEEEE K, HHALEBEAL, BUANEEE, #—PIEABENORDNFH
mﬁ%ﬁmeﬁT&mFmﬁw,%ﬂ%ﬁ&ﬂmﬁﬁ 2], Iaﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁmiﬁfo&mt 48nm NOR Flash
BAKNTERRERE, E—PHRGHRSBEAHT
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BHESREEYR, _TOMOFRABREER, TE26aRAIRAEEREAMFHRBEBHTRNBERSE, BREAL
BEFAMTHIRTE. BERAECHFTHEMS, WINRFANEEFEE, Biit, ENEMRBCDTEME[BCD+ AT
8, EEEIEGHEETBENTR, 2IESTEFEIEYE, REFFLREHEZEMSEANES R

2
=
FHR,

ST AW AR RAIE, 55/M40nmiFEITH#ERF CMOST# AMEERE, 656nm RF SOITEE A SERR,
FERR S TR IENBSIEGRERENHESSNMEBE AREEE, ZFARMOIRERB N ARIREREA ERFELE
=1

DERBAFEXFARERER, MITE. FERFRRFRELERENTE, AX THENERESN, BRrNERES
RMEIHT, WHEREENAERNFR, Hf, BREMOSFETHRBIES %ﬁmfmmiAFP%ﬁFm&EE,%ﬁﬁ%
%%*i,W%$iﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%&®i%oﬁﬂ%%ﬁ%%%m%ﬁ RANNREA TR G| S TEE TRANFImE
fn, FafEL R RT, EEMSELML,

—ToNE, REAEENEREKNGERENETRERR ( FLAM NIBENRE, ERE—FXLANBEER. TRE
BHIA, BFERN. TERERALARARE I@é @i_v_mif FREERDHIGRA REBE, BN
Z_AFHRHEFIMIENHEANELENTETEMAS, NFEREENRERRLFHRANBIRT,
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R

RE-_T_AF, FENRFERTSHEELNCT, ANERY, PREXEBHERET L, A2BERENT
BT, RAK ’i?‘ﬂﬁmﬂéﬁ&'" BAMEL, MEE, KBS 12RTER, RAOHERRRIMTFEaE, MEE
R, BEHRY, EEEMRAS, REATNROBET, EfTH, _T-hFEUNEERREAERRKER, $ESE
MEZER, RENEHEBIAREEERLE, RIFREEPHER, 28N H, QAREHE-FRAZERE, M
PRARES, TiGTE, BERESENERRER, MAMEERNTPEE, EEIEEEIEF MM China for China |5
BRI, BRI FEE E’UE%@%&%%E&W]%?%E@ BRARREIEEBE,
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EEEHH

BEEENRR DN

BRI
—ZNFE —EC=F o)
Epo FET

SHE A 2,003,993 2,286,113 (12.3)%
SHERAR (1,798,865) (1,799,017) 0.0%
ES] 205,128 487,096 (57.9)%
HA A RWE 149,072 144,370 3.3%
BREMENATE(EE ) W (39) 103 (137.9)%
HE RS IHE R (9,628) (10,189) (5.5)%
ERER (351,276) (322,868) 8.8 %
HEmEA (33,395) (33,666) (0.8)%
MBEA (97,113) (100,497) (3.4)%
DIEEEE R T/mﬂ 3,459 9,230 (62.5)%
BAl( BE ) RF (133,792) 173,579 (177.1)%
FriSiif < (6,593) (47,154) (86.0)%
FER(EE )BT (140,385) 126,425 (211.00%

THATRE.
[SYNSIEZZEWN 58,108 280,034 (79.2)%
IR (198,493) (153,609) 29.2%

SHEBA

HEMRAZE20.0408%TT, BW-T-_=FT[F12.3%, T2HNTOHEEB TEME, HBoRNERBZESIZIMAEH,

E7
EMB2051BXT, BT _=FRHD57.9%, TEHRNFHHEER TERITERASEINE,

EEEAR
EEEMMIL1BERIT, BT _=FIHEMN8.8%, TEMNHIHE ML NN % BB ALE DA

TAEHEE N RER
DIEME R BN RIE0EERT, BT _=FR625%, JTARBERRERGNRD A,

FRiEHmX
IS R660BEXT, W_T_=F§186.0%, TEHNERTOLEN B FHH.
FR( &R ) EF

ELRENRFAFET, FRABER/1.404EET, M-_T-=FHNFRNEMNF1.264(8ETT,
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EEEHE

B AR
—ETE —E-=F
+=—A=+—-8B +=A=+—H 2%
ESPl FE=T

FRBEE
M. WEKEE 5,859,117 3,519,292 66.5 %
WEWE 164,153 166,643 (1.5)%
FREEE 77,761 78,545 (1.0)%
REEE AR E 139,799 139,099 0.5%
BERATESFAEMEEREMER T A 289,311 270,506 7.0 %
Hi3ERe&EE 52,464 199,780 (73.7)%
FRBEEHALE 6,582,605 4,373,865 50.5 %
REBEE
rE 467,060 449,749 3.8%
B S EWGRIE R IEWEE 270,461 278,669 (2.9)%
FEU BAR T FRIB 18,324 11,219 63.3 %
Hibme&E 585,902 212,649 1755 %
[REZBHEEFN 31,624 32,088 (1.4)%
ReERREEFEY 4,459,132 5,585,181 (20.2)%
REEEAE 5,832,503 6,569,555 (11.2)%
ik Ih=Ni
Z ZENTIE 298,372 235,410 26.7 %
FHERITER 280,704 193,035 45.4 %
FEIST RS 75 5RIE 9,125 13,876 (34.2)%
T HEBh 57,563 35,017 64.4 %
HibmeaE 916,474 495,049 85.1 %
REEEEE 1,562,238 972,387 60.7 %
REEERHE 4,270,265 5,597,168 (23.7)%
FRBEE
FTEIRITE R 1,917,235 1,906,526 0.6 %
H3EmehaE 29,016 49,963 (41.9)%
FARBEEEEE 1,946,251 1,956,489 (0.5)%
EEFHE 8,906,619 8,014,544 11.1%
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MR- =F+-A=+—-HEZZ-OF+-A=1+T—HRELBEHEB10%KEE HME

ME. BERRE
M. RN ERERI35193(EE TR ES8.50118ET, FERANTEERENMERE,

HitERBEE
HibIERBEEM1.998 8T E5,2508%K 7T, TERANKBERNRIBR DR,

FE Uk B 5 7RIE
FEULRAES 5 OB M 1,1208 EtiE £ 1,1838 3k 0, + E RPN EICE TR 5 MR IEE AT,

HittRBEE
HibnBEEM2 12618 TR E5.859183 7T, T EAMIEER R EHRFEIE A,

HERHEZEY
BE& MRS EBYHS5.8528F TR E44.591183%TT, TEHR ITXREFRELWMATLZEA,

B S EANTIE
B 5 ENFRIAER2.354BETIE T 2.98418F T, T EHMNMEHEREBIE DI,

FEAS BRI 75 FRIE
FETRAEETT SRIR 1,300 B TR EI10E T, TBAN —HBERMENKRFANAE.

BT
BT BN 3,5008 £ LIBE5,7608 %, FEZHRKEIBATHEIE S IBMATE,

HitpREas
EMmB B ER4.950BE LI EQ. 165183 T, T ERMNEARF T M FIBIE INATE

FTERITHER
SHERITE AR 20.996 B LI £21.979185% T, F EHMRIERTTERUIEMAEL

HinEREasE
EIERBAEMRS5 0008 ETTHE29008% 7T, TEHRNELRIBEERDTH,
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EEEHH

HERE

—E-NE —E-=fF 2%

ES FET

KEEBFTS RS RE T 459,495 641,695 (28.4)%
WEFEFTAREMNEFE (2,671,532) (833,312) 220.6%
BEEEFSHEREFH 1,150,125 3,781,746 (69.6)%
ReRRESEEY(ORD ) ENFEHE (1,061,912) 3,590,129 (129.6)%
FYREKREFEY 5,585,181 2,008,765 178.0 %
INEERF L, FHEE (64,137) (13,713) 367.7 %
FRESRESEEY 4,459,132 5,585,181 (20.2)%

REEBDRERESREFHE
REBPRBHRSREFERAILBEET, BT _=FH284%, T2ZHANREZPHRARD A,

RETEHFARSHRETE

BB EESARESREFEA26.715EFT, TERRNERIRE27.798EETREF T ARE1,76083= 7T, WWRH)F
BUA8,2008 37T, (iBIFHEBI4,120837T, (i)HE#ETA2608FTT, MivIEEWE. BENMREBEER108ET
P8,

BMETDMERSREFHE
BMETHMERSREFEAI1.501EETT, BIE()IHERERTE 11.818185 T, (i)RTTEFAFRIA2.893FXETT,
(il BT M B F X MM BN 5408 £ 7T, M(iv)BARETTRPIIS360&ET, B()VEERITER1.835ET, (NERNFE
1.057183% 7T, (ii)XMIRE3,6208%T, K(v)XNEENKNAEEH4608ETHIEH,

HERBELESEY
ELEZENEHFET, ReRRSEBYHREE S+ _A=+—HH85582EETREAE _S_NE+—
A=+—H&44.591{8% 7T,
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FRE
BfiEEmSANEREPNEAR, TEEAKEZHNEABRITESER, RAINBRSEREE N FBNEXEHES
EE%UTJ—L /*/\O

RIB-NFE+ZA=+—8, WAXEm B 1008E, MAEEMEEEFTE, FABRMEN R 1210
2,005.38% 7T, NEERNFEIFRRITEROFSFIEM, IR PIEG

HMNES LB

RPEERZHEEERE, ZFRBRFTEELARMRPRAMEENTEFARINETMIEUZ TFRARINNEEB AR
BETHNEE, RER, BRMOESETRN18%IVETHEN TRARMNNEEE N ERTHE, EHLFRR, HEAK
F61% JIAF AR RE B ETHE,

AN, BPIEERK B BRITERNINERL, ZEFRARMETEAMEENFRRARE, R-E_MF+-_A=1+—
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%, ANTSEEERSMERNEERE S,
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FEITEEO RS AR ER 347,605,650 20.23%
EERBERHEA A 1,198,517@ 0.07%
Sino-Alliance International, Ltd. EENEZEAA 160,545,541 9.34%

([ Sino-Alliance International |)
Sino-Alliance International SR AERER 28,415,606 1.65%
EEE A SAEHEE R 188,961,147 10.99%
BB RERRAT EEREREBA 118,495,939 6.90%
®&( LB )REBRAF SAEHLEE R 118,495,939 ™ 6.90%
BIRENEREXESD RAEHLEE R 118,495,939 ™ 6.90%

M
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(4) BiESino-Alliance International R —IBEE &HE, ASEE A A 15H #3084 188145
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BN R RET AR R BB REEEEER, B, ARBEARAMESEE. RAERNAREERER, RSQ
A SRR O B

FE. RmEIEEEE

I ERMRAFERRR

EERRE EEER
B B E AL o FHERMTISBMEMERBY, MERMTSEMEETEHEOTIR,

o  TEHIEBAIMERMBIMEE S, MR IASFEEROFEMEE,

o BRBEMERE, IRMER. THERIE. FREPE, WHERENARERMBTZE,
EREE(L o  RBMETE. EIFERAZHSARERBRKF,

o MMREEBATHREMBENRENE, REBBRIME,

o RUBERMHPRRMIZ, WREEHLREEMSEEMEMES TROKE,

NAEZEBREMFE LR TERZNERR, RnBABEZRINERTR, BEBEET. TXEH. REE
T VHE. BENFERUREREES,

WEHA, AREGHEEEZKIGERESIERE, BAEBHARMESRFEENRBERRE, RrFA MR, AlF.
AE BEES, HEXE FTHOCEEERES, EAESTEE, BREQATNZERDEEAESFLINER, 8
BB AR EE IRBAEC-Q100 Grade0& %, WiET AEETTHEEEER, AAESTREAZARET2ENELDHNT
AT RS
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2024 FEIRIE. B RERERE

EFER2024FHEAIFISFEB R

EBE By 2023 F R HE 2024 F R HE
R A BT 147,858 164,322
R AL & WAL % 9.11 11.13
[ IN=E A 1,285 1,427
HEEA B8 TRAZLLA % 18.72 19.06
BRI o ERBIERINESE_EH

o 2024F=+HJE LEMEREPLLE R
o 2024FE EAMESBRITERIEH
o  LEMBIESRAIFKRE

HIHERRIRE

NRIERET(FEARKMBAZIE ) (P EARKMBZERE) (PEARKNBBRL)FEEEEALARER,
E(HBERERNE)SAMERNE, BIXNEEZ - A2EESRNANBERRERR, MUERIMEIHERNFRRE,

MEAREREE,

AAFEBENTENBERETERS, IRES EXBSRETBANBERRENES, ARSFRIENRFEIE
BiR, BRRER S MBER, FREEYREMAEMIEANNBERE, ARY L THAERHFNERNEMESE

TR IR R

Ry HMBERRERR, ARRBLMNRETLHNEBMELERARNN G, N, RAAFEESRARRIMRERS

BT RS ERER, BRERMREEZLAERESRNER L,

FITFBR2024FARERRELFRER

B By 2023 F &k 2024 FRHE
BETEFEBE 1l 8,969 9,649
RETERIREE & 4,427 4,644
TER I EEE 18 672 680
BERE £ 1l 270 230
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6.2 EmABBL2REE
EmEEHELE
AREEMEETHERRESRE, B Tl BS, BOAR/TFREHEMERMRTE,

JEFE
NEIEFEISO001. IATF16949E EETRE X RIEAE kK, ﬁ%lJm<<’f£$$Hﬁ>><< % EERERRE ) (TERmIEHIE
R HEREERE)SNDEEHE, Hﬂﬁ&%%ﬁ&‘bgl&k%mw? EE}]HE&E, TRETFHRERE &

EXEQEREETIE, HBEETENREREIRMT,

Lidid
AAIEEEERWERLEBERNRAETE, HEERACXERNRLER, EUBBNEEEERAUEES
MEER R EEREENRAREER, BBARHINIREZ(CAERES,

FE. RmETIEEEE

RAKEB(TEBREGNRE), EUBEZEMEBHNTEBRERERR, ARSRORERDIERBY, BINER.
HE. AR, 25 TPREMREFHS, YNEENTARER, RERERERETETRE, HIETARANIEE
HIEM

ENEREIOUFEETHERAIEER

eS| =g BRHAR

FisE ISO Q001 EEEEER 2027F5 3 17H
IECQ QC 080000 EMHE AR ERER 2026 F 12 11H
IATF 16949)9 8T EEE B X 2027F5/817H

JGEM ISO9V01EEERER 202511 8118
IECQ QC 080000 EMH BIEE R R 2026F 128 11H
IATF 16949m$ﬁ¥%’§ﬁ%ﬂ% 2026F5H7H

WEPA, ATNEERDEENRE. BWCEETE. RENEFEE. AREERIISTHZHELR, SEZHREAER
HEMEFPMEE,
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FEIHER04FEMEEEERERAR

FE EREERRR
EBEEXES o EHEME. £E. 2. AR, RESEAARRAEAESNTGE, UHlERESFR,
o HYUHBHMRTHEABLEEME, SERREHRESHFRIDSZLER,
BIEEEFE . %H”ﬁﬂjirgiﬁhwompany Quality Objective, CQO), I FERTETIE,
. %?FEEEAZZE#E % ( 8D%R%, Eight Disciplines Report )f=/E 818 F 2558,
REftEEEE . ﬁi\ﬂgﬁaiﬁﬁﬁﬁi S RUEIE, BIEHERIRSE. HERRMAE S5 BNMEXRSE,

o @_LT/\FEﬁ SITEEE T & X4 (Electronic Certificate of Analysis, ECOA), If % H Bz
FEHR 21T R ETHBIRIE BB (Statistical Process Control, SPC),

HEEEE o LEMESHEMRAFFAREEEENEMRMESEHE, B228BE T, #£56,826 A
Ko
o EFERESREY, HRESEAHY L=EinmE. HEaRe. E8L22A. EEH
NHMEZLBEEY, RAGELEE, REZEE=EZHEH,
ENMYERIIFEMEEEEREERAR
B B 2023 F kA 2024 FKE BiZ
EfhABIRER R 0 0 0
CQO % 93 84 80
BRSEREPEZE & 14 33 -
LB ER ST o  EMESHIESLSE - BEE. 011 KeflashEABCDEH THF &R A 1 3
o 20UF[[HETETHE, BEURESES [THEEH EELETLEERTHEENS
MEEEEEN( A8 )VESFR
ﬁ:‘*—#ﬁ/’%”fﬁ

ARBEESEMTAEEYENER, BEREACH, WEEE, RoHSERBEEMBHMESR, $IT(EEWEEERE))F
RHEEHE, BEUZENEEVETEER, REERLENL2NRE, REHA, RAHEHY2ENZERED
 (Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances, PFAS)¥IE#RIERMNESTM, BRI FEAPFASHIERNEREME, IKEaEP
ETRERMBERNTE, BRESEIMEIDERENR,

HEHA, REERBERE. Rl ERRE-AEERREE, FDERTAEVEEANAREER 2,
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SV EW020 FEENEERBHE

FH ERAR
REREE o BERAETVWEERESMAERMERE, HREREASVDEERRR,
R o ERHERRUERAEVERARSE, URB(ERRFAGES o

o HERBEZTESATVENSREGR, LEHRRMERA, BRRENZ2M,

ERRE o ZHEZMERB(BENRHES TERRERFRALLEERMDIES ) (RoHS). (BEMNMEER
sEf. A, FFRTFIBRHIARIE ) (REACH) R E MBI EHRRE, MREMTAEERFEZEESZ ],

EFBFEE

RAEG REFPREEMNERZ2MRG BS, =2 TFPXR - BPRF - EFABRERE NEFPRBEREXR,
BR(TEARAKNBEBEERDZRER) BEARERLEAER, HIE(FPRFBERR N EFPRRERRIE)FAI
BEFE, THRATPREKTE, BERATFPHER,

ARREEEFERLE, ARKB(EFPEFEERE ) FARTEERTPRFINEEREMEHERE, EYZTtE
PIRFFEE, EFEHMG. BHEANG. ER. EEE, 24/ BABRRESTTPLIRF. 48/ BRIRHIDRE ( BN i
HeE ), 14EEARRNRELBERNSDRS( MERARYE ), REZFPIRFEERNHERE, BEREHR, RARFK
FofREEFPRIEER, RFEEEF100%,
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HERER

I EREFFRFEERE

S

REFBRE

ERIEFE LR 24/ A
BREMEBEBNER, 4K
L¥FEE

ARBEETEEABERE L,

) 4

R¥EEAE

FHETRBD TR RS
BRAMEIFIERE, BIEH
BEREANEHTER
YEEBERFE

v

FaFr B2 IE

EEAMLEFERERE, AE
HHEF RENARESE
TTEENNT, HEIMRE
T8

, ARARB(EPREFERSERRE) BEFREFPMHEERE, THH

ﬁ&mﬂ%%%%gﬁ , FERATPREE, AREEEEREFERPMEERNETIE, HEMEEREHERAM

D2 TAE, Iamﬁﬁﬁ%

FERMZBERRIBBRETF,
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B ERESREEREER
2023 2024 F DEEEHER
8.89% 1 0.08%
g2, B BEEERRE)(EAAE

8.977

6.3 FERZREBALRE

RETEREER TR ERMRE, BET(FPEARANMBBE LR (PEARKNBEEE R 2% ) (BRL2EEK
I RAEBERGD ) SERERSFHEAER, HERA, ARRBINEIEE G
RE(ABMEZE2025F2A ), MEH

SEERRE)SEEE, MREZFMERERE. APBAMEAEELZE
ARFEELEELEEEER(ISMS), &8 - EELX2TEe - E8L2TE/NME INEEEE, UBREER
LTEEBRBARE

B
NGIB=3+ =
2RBNEUE RS BUEF, RFIE@IBISO/IEC 27001:2022(5 B &
N, ARIRBERILEFPBALRERTFERNRFENS,
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ENYEREEREEEER

. WP E AR, HRE
*EF'*% uBFEJErﬂzEEﬁ

I{’F/J\iﬁ RS ERME. mE KAl SR B E KA IR 2RFT
 BEERLTEEEREANEYNER

%"fﬂ’f

RAVFARBEEELZ2BELRENERN, AHEERBNEETERMEMREZENESHET, BEELE2MA
ERERAE, BAEBRARR, BERSNEEEY, NERBERROBEHNMBERUES, REFEZREESLE
GElERRT: iy 3

e, Bk ﬁ%ﬁ”’éﬁ?
Eiﬁﬂlﬁ RAREAERTRER. RRFAGTNEE. MREERETE, £ PRICESR2ERLRENEELRL
7, BORBEE2E. 8. IRKENEELEEERR,

FEIHHR2024FEERTHBAREEERA

EERRE EEIER
FEME o REBAGRREREERNRERE, HTRDNEELESR.

o FH(BEAGEEERE) ZERLREENR,
B B o BILEEXEZEEBR, FM(EELERRMEEERE), FERBENEDRMEBNER,
REEBEE o HEMEPRREEETE, BBTEMESCHNER, WAl —ABBETELE |
BERER o REMBREMEMBETRE, 2ELEMRENESMZES TR TRIER IEBHPIE

R, RE[BEETLE |
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NRIBFEHRRES L2 RBLREE, RAENBZAB, RBEEIRR, 5
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Ef

2024 FERE. HtERERHRE

WERE. hEBERBFEIIRE,

AR BIERE

E ¥ ER2024FFER T2 HBAREEIER

ERE. FERE. BF

A ERE BEEE 2023FSHEAZ(A) 2024FBHEAB(A)

FEELEERRBREI - F—FFE BB R E D 8,233 6,683

ERLEBEEBRE - F2FE 6,554 6,117

ISO 27001 ¥R R FEN B RELL R 6,476 7,346
BHEY - £=FE

ISO 27001 TR R ZEN B REEL SR 6,919 7,491
BHEY - FOEE

RE. BEREEHRME 6,802 7,314

W B AR EIE T = 7,525

ISO 27001122 R #5153 = 99

6.4 TIEMEEER
AFF B R ETE

N EBMHEEFEN AR, 25, RENEER, ArESERETHEBRBRBASITEZENIESH, REH
A, ARESRBA[ Platinum Award |32

A
7=

NABEEASEN TEHMA. mERAIEEREFIRALRBHBEKOHEEE T M, PAEHREEEHIE RS LR
T, TEMAEZSER, BEAHEERREATBE ¥, HERTF ARSI HERMNTG. BENEHMER, 2
YHEBERERRANSREDHY, BREE. RENHEEEERNEEEE,

RAGIE(HERR BB REECEREF W HEEEEEFM)SEEHE, NAEHEREENEEMER, MERMH
FERIERZ. EAREERBORSHERE,

L

ARBBRZY AR CHEREEERE, SHEERRNZEERARMEEMAREENR, HIRCHBRER, /78

BTEHHRI M SRR RERTE

RE, BREEREENEREREIMNIRRERMM S,
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RIS, ARMSHEEEREKEKERAERS, MEBBRRENNREEREEE, EEBZREAEREXNABLE. &
e EMAERRTONEN, KMEREEREREARRRABRIEL,

EHRMUBHEEREER)HE

. NEFE

% . BirmBsw e . TR THE
o . TERAXREMET TEFIER o BAEmEEEY
~ #1

N . mEzz T s e
&8 . EEERE TR T T AR

IR B 2 o TIBHKRR ez 2l
. EEHTNHE Ry . KEEE
. BEHERRGHER BESHbIR . BENEMEER

BIS(R s BEVE RAYME 27197

9 . WEHE B - e
&> . SIS ATZH, RESHUME L oo
e . REEE B (RIS L 578 .

) . EERANES it A1 R

2R84 o EEMEFPER =gl . EE%%E
Epam = o ERRFHEMERER 3l

FE RBEEEE
N EBEE Er 5 B (Responsible Business Alliance, RBA)E F{T¥# &5 (TEZITHE,

RREHEREEE. HER

E. BTEE, RREGRE. IXERSFITANELRER, EUHBREARNNE. FEFG. THEENEERR, AR
RERNHEHERBESFRRZ,
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FEXETRWHAHEESE. ARNKBEERA

EERE EEER
HIEREA o AHERMEARR, £TREER. BERE. STEE. RERE. AXBESFIEREN

VFEZ, HREAEELITREERNMHER, BREENALBTSEEIUELENS
&AL FE R B (Approved Supplier List, ASL)/EEE, ABR{E ML FE &L 14RE ER A0S .

HEREZ o BFHRARZEAMNRRTN, RE(HERRRESARSIZEHERRER), BBASE = FFEZIEZ
M5, #PEEEEENRRD, HEERRRERENRAER, NEEEEEIEHEN, REE
EREHRTTA, MBUSAEREZR, BREERETEHR,

BT, o EBRESRMHEE. AEMESEARMTMARERRE,
o EFHRMHERAENHE, YHRLGALHERSFRE, JBRRERNNER,
HERES s TEHHEREEZEZHRIHERNEEME, BHEBRISRE. BERNESFRERR, HHE

AR, RRAZRERERE(CIEMNEERE,

ARYEEERREORBRNRENER, EXFIREHEEAREREEE, DRBTHRRNAMHE, BT
HEBRBHN A DANBERARIDE,

FEREHERRIWKERRREKN, ARHFERSHSRERER, MREEBIZT REZZHRSRIRNEKE
BEE, BEKERBEENERNES, Ait, ARSHEANERERKEREETHRENAL, BEIMAKBEE.
FKE. BKERS, EEREEEEELHKERNTE, ARRE HEBRAHERKERAEEZE100% IHE
2, MEHAN, ZERDEK,

HEHA, RAEALAFFRBEEE270KX, ELARBARERRIBE, £—TELCHEREERR, BEHERNIISE
HMEME, SEBBRRERRE N0,
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2024FERE. HERER

E MBI FNIFEREEEEEZHEE

BE 2023 F R 2024 F R
Rt EEteEIESEER 100% 100%
%ﬁﬁﬁéwféﬁiﬁﬂl*gm/@k 20 20
ol ABEHRERSX 28 18
F8§i¢+12§iﬂﬁwﬂrﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂt$ 65.4% 76%
[ 8L~T | RHE R Z (b & 72% 84%
[ 83~ LMt FrE At Em Z b X >90% 98%
[128~T |REMEHEEEZ b & 55% 65%
BEETBEERE

[BRBEE FEGREERRBEIFZEZEDREERNEE, BRRNBEST. FAET. WERBLARSTRE
TRRIEE, ELBENRXHEAERARREL. REBENLETEE, RE(ZE - BAHRERTIRNEREES
RiEE VAN B IEBFABOIT, BRBEANEEAEES. BEMXMICT)ESR, BARKE. ffERSFETERE

]
Ofo

ERRIMAEERIET, PREAS(AU). #£(Ta). (W), $(Sn). #(Co)FEBREEIR, R LRENEHABLEMRE
BEFZENRENRR, ARNT(IRBEEEERR) BERENRENENERR,

RAAERETEANES. . BNBBEB71%RETMN, BiB20%KEBMN, EBEEEMN, AN =02 - KAE
W, =z —REBM, BEREHR, AFRMERNES. 8. 5. HHTREREKFRILE,

EIHHRREFEARERRR
£-8-% 5 2]

7.6% ‘1

33.33%

20.7%

71.7% 66.67%

WEEN RN m M B EOM
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AN, AREREEETREEGZERMI). KBS EEERABE(OECD)E M ey ( X E R E M= 5 1% i 2 8 52 2
SEE)SEREFEE, HHEPETEPNERFAE, BRMAERERAE T UEXERYEUSARBERBEREE,
AR R RERRT & A REERER,

(B ERFRW/EETERR)

- Ve \

Efy NN A 2. g*ﬁ%?&ﬁ%ﬁ@%u)\ ﬁﬂ

o e | Ik Ul | (. B S, #Cos

) O, o B i | BESEEEN T [ o n mxwE R,

R men |WIIE T | nesmnsEcasasn

g Gl T | s cvrnnEREnAENE
(EMRT)

N A y

BEHAR, RRHHEBENMHERRAREERHE, BEXE100%, EREANFHERMFEHER, ARBYES
FTRIRERMANIR, BRE - HARENERESBWHEY, BYHBEREREL. ARMB NI BERERIRE, RS
IR, BPRERET, AR TNMERERBEENHERLLYIR100%,
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7. BEEAE, MIBRER

7TARERE

NEDEEE

ﬁﬁ%&x%%iﬁﬂiﬁ EAERSAEIBIR ET AR, RAIBREESTEB(RBHEN ) (BT EMmARR ) (REARERM
SEVAR EBBEAER ZET(RIAIR ETARR ) S, B/ L. PEIRRNEREEER, HIT(EEERMA)

<k$ﬁ§%$ﬁ%ﬂ§$am$ﬁﬁm%ﬁaﬂg,%&Th%ﬁﬁ EEeNEFEMZESHERAMNARIRELEE

BT, HERRDAREBRMBIEREK . RAEERKEETEKTE TR,

RAEEEIRELZES. FHEREE. REZ8EFTEMERES, £EMZBERFHR, EEEFTSRABTILE
NEMEBREK, RAIR Emjﬁiﬁﬁﬁi$,/Aﬁ%ﬂgg,ﬁﬁi$ﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁ\ﬂ%ﬁo

EITX RN FRERE
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BEREHR, RAESR

el

23

BORKE, HPRHETE 18, WEHA, RAIARESEER16K, Bl R58H,

=B KE

AABRERTERSEBEERZE( LTAREERBEEEWR)FERERERMAEEELR, HE(ERREEET
B)FHEXH, IR ERESKBNEERN. EEME. REME. AFEMTEYE, mEMNEHEBTNESFR, ®E
B, ARBERETESERENAERE, MEREEEFR, YHEBCEERENEENARML,

NAEBHRBEEELSREEABNREGE, RBEFRRENRRITA. 20235F8H, RAIEM(ENBLISREEA
B QARARBRMOENASE), PREERATEETRSENRNERE, YN2024F1F4BBRTE, ARSER

BEFRBERRRFIEFARIARS3,6181%, B&FEIE230.948 7T, HWIFEESFTFRLLAIFE0.0275%,

REZ e lRiE

RABEERKRERRE, BRYNEAENMBIRBRNMOLAN R, BERERR, BARRREZMERENRY
C#F, RARLREEBEREEEM, BNSERTREEGER, TPHRERKEEFFHINERHE, BRREENEGE
FRFRIZZRIE,

RARFFERFAEREE INFRR, BRI ARESWE INEXR, AIBETR. E8EE |RE5, BBZRERE
AEATSEREAREE. B, EMRMEEATHEEEE, DERAE. TG, REEERER. LETH.
REANBABME. BLETRRER. AREHE. MEARRF,

WEHA, RAEHAARAIRBRRAE, AFMI3ERER, MESRTEAEBERRAN, BRTIRESE, NERER
SEEMAIBEE, I, ARMEBTIRFERRE, BREEETRNER, BRERARNEEE,

7.2 BREHRER
NEIERERAERERE, BRETESMEMMERNEEER, BUBREEERBMEE. B8R, #HAHEAF)E
BHEERBIED, METERIETEMEEIMNEERN R, UWERFAREEEER,

ARHEBEEEHRIEN(EZEAREESE), BBTHBERMAONERBE, BURMEEES], DER. DEBR
FRERPIE, ST EHREHEREE RN ERE IS,
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ERRREERE ZRRE |, ARRFEEMREZHRESHNERR, FEECARLE, BEIRERAREAZEARRA,
e TR D BRG], WHMTEARSEEXZRREE, EREARAINIRBRNEZHHHEEEREE,.

WEHA, ARELEMESEMFRFERRTE, [TARAZHS, AR —H—TR. SHMPIER. BHFHE
EZMEHN, REe I BRI RS E R R,
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EERE R
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7}5 E‘Zirﬂ EE#—&

[BLB £ 3R s EBITEER A%Ltﬁ%ﬂ BEXBIEREFTENTEHREY FRIFERARREMN,

BRI o TEHARARGREREEZ, ARARE, BREEBESRIAREHRRRESE,
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T SR8 AL b R H
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Ba o Eapn SETEMHIARTERR, WHBOTIA, T, RG2S, TR
HEKEEN, MERBEEHREENMRIM. FEMD
EmER SEMBRMERTTAENR, LT MER, REXTIRIZER, BLERGH
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mEFh AR EFEXTEBNEXER
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®  TEEER, MEERARAEESNRIFEE
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2RBE T ZEE R % 100 100 100
ZRRE D AEBTIXINEEXR % 100 100 100
EREEIXIEBEEER % 100 100 100
MR > ZHETIRIIEBER % 100 100 100
FHEEBIXIBEEX % 100 100 100
BTIEIIESIE EBILARE = = 195
BT
BTEHARERGTE % 100 100 100
BTHEREEERE % 100 100 100
B TR RS (& 0 0 0
BT THIRBRIEASEE BT AR - = 963
BTITHEREEER % 100 100 100
i
1 REFIBTRAR=FENZENE TREARERZENE T AR,

N
my \}l

ERBRMETEERGOCAREMABRERARMEUNE T, REHRN, ARNBEILETHBEM, DEHEIEMRIEHR
e

pillE=
,@ “%%Wiﬁmﬁihmﬂﬁ\ﬁ%lﬁﬁﬁhmﬁo

3 JEREIAHEZEINR=ZH58 TEXIIEINENSE FRZENETAH,
4 BEHNEIXRIIBEE=BZHEINZERNETAB FRZEFNETAR



2024 FEME o warrEEaRAE 283

oo =y =),
2024 FERE. dERER
EmE FHEFRE
ERIEE B 2022 20234 2024 F
EmEFEEFERE
MEHANERERMREEBEZEROEHE [z 0 0 0
EmBREXR % 0.11 0.087 0.037
B E mE T 2 R R R B UK At Bl % 0 0 0
EFE R
BN E R M RIS R B (s 0 4 2
BPRRFE R % = 100 100
1 BPRFRMER-CRHENTPRFHE RN ERLRGHRFEE *100%,
15 E LT HENIRE
BEER B 20225 20235 2024 F
KEERRE. EBRERRFERNEHH 5 0 0 0
BEZ2EH IR EBTARE 0 0 0
EEBIREEH I MNERE 8T AREE 0 0 0
HERE
BERIEE By 2022 2023 2024 F
HIER 4K EX 551 561 581
TR E D A (3 K P A P R 4B K EX 413 420 436
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Ernst & Young LXK G TR E IS TelE%. +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place EBHERREEI795  FaxfEHE . +852 2868 4432
ﬁi 979 King’s Road N3 —BE271& ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the members of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua
Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 302 to 411 which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

Impairment of long-term assets

As at 31 December 2024,
management made a
judgement that a certain
cash-generating unit (“CGU”)
with a carrying amount of
US$2,464 million, representing
a significant proportion of
the Group’s total assets, had
indicators of impairment and
engages an external expert
to perform an impairment test
using the discounted cash
flow method to estimate its
recoverable amount. This matter
was significant to our audit
because the carrying amount of
long-lived assets was material
to the consolidated financial
statements and the impairment
test process was complex and
involved significant judgements.

The Group’'s disclosures
about the impairment of long-
lived assets are included in
notes 3 and 13 to the financial
statements.
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How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Our audit procedures included,
among others, evaluating the
competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent
external valuer engaged by
the Group and involving our
internal specialists to assist us
in evaluating the methodology
of the impairment test and
key assumptions such as the
discounted rate, evaluating
the other key assumptions, in
particular, the projection period
length, revenue growth rate,
gross profit margin and net profit
margin, and reviewing relevant
disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Fair value of an unlisted equity investment

The Group’s equity investments
designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as
at 31 December 2024 included
an unlisted equity investment
amounting to US$269 million.
The Group measures the
unlisted equity investment at
fair value at the end of each
reporting period and engages
an external expert to assess
its fair value. During the vyear,
this matter was significant to
our audit because the carrying
amount of the unlisted equity
investment was material to
the consolidated financial
statements and the valuation
process was complex and
involved significant judgements.

The Group’s disclosures about
the valuation of the unlisted
equity investment are included
in notes 3, 18 and 37 to the
financial statements, which
explain the key assumptions
that management used in the
valuation.

Our audit procedures included,
among others, assessing the
competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent
external valuer engaged
by the Group and involving
our internal specialists to
assist us in evaluating the
methodology of the valuation
and the key assumptions used
in the valuation such as the
determination of comparable
public companies (peers),
selection of the price multiple
and estimation of the discount
for illiquidity.
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Fair value of an investment property

The Group recognised an
investment property amounting
to US$164 million as at 31
December 2024. The Group
measures its investment
property at fair value at the
end of each reporting period
and engages external experts
to assess its fair value.
During the year, this matter
was significant to our audit
because the carrying amount
of the investment property was
material to the consolidated
financial statements and the
valuation process was complex
and involved significant
judgements.

The Group’s disclosures
about the valuation of the
investment property are
included in notes 3 and 14 to
the financial statements, which
explain the key assumptions
that management used in the
valuation.

Our audit procedures included,
among others, assessing the
competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent
external valuers engaged by
the Group, comparing property-
related data used for the
valuation with the underlying
documentation and involving
our internal specialists to
assist us in evaluating the
methodology of the valuation
and the key assumptions used
in the valuation such as the
estimated rental value, term
yield, reversionary yield and
long-term vacancy rate, and
reviewing relevant disclosures
in the consolidated financial
statements.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of
the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lawrence K.W. Lau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

é [ — Y4
- _\ Year ended 31 December 2024
::ng,i\ - *Eﬁ]l%% BE-T-MF+-A=t+—ALFE

2024 2023
—E[E —E=4F
Notes US$’ 000 US$'000
iaF Eplv FET
Revenue SHE A 5 2,003,993 2,286,113
Cost of sales SHEK A (1,798,865) (1,799,017)
Gross profit EA 205,128 487,096
Other income and gains 0 N 5 149,072 144,370
WEMEN RN TE
Fair value (loss)/gain on an investment property  ( E518 )/ Iz§ (39) 103
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RS IHE R (9,628) (10,189)
Administrative expenses EREMR (351,276) (322,868)
Other expenses HiER & (33,395) (33,666)
Finance costs MIEER 7 (97,113) (100,497)
Share of profits of associates DAL E R F)m 3,459 9,230
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BiAl( &E ) EF 6 (133,792) 173,579
Income tax expense FriS iR 10 (6,593) (47,154)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FR(BER ) RF (140,385) 126,425
Attributable to: THIATEAG:
Owners of the parent [SYNETE/FPN 58,108 280,034
Non-controlling interests FEFE A (198,493) (153,609)
(140,385) 126,425
EARNINGS PER SHARE BARZBEREFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY ERESREF .
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 12
Basic HAR
— For profit for the year - FAmRA US$0.034 US$0.189
0.034% T 0.189% 7T
Diluted e
— For profit for the year — FARF US$0.034 US$0.188
0.0343% T 0.188% 7T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEI\/IENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOI\/lE
g s 4R A THIUNZR TR

2024 2023
—B-ME - ——
US$’ 000 US$'000
ES F=x
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EX( B )RR (140,385) 126,425
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME Hih2mE( 558 ) s
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified ~ REZHBAIGEEHDEE
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: bi=Ecnd =0 PR (ke Y1) p=
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BREBINETGE £ R IME
operations =58 (123,017) (56,005)
Net other comprehensive loss that may be REZBEAREEF D EE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods  Ba5HYEAth & F & 18558 (123,017) (56,005)
Other comprehensive income that will not be REZEIgGERHIEE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:  BiSHE b 2 EIUES .
Equity investments designated at fair value through  #EEE A FEF AR EE
other comprehensive income: W BRI & .
Changes in fair value NEEZS) 7,991 95,310
Income tax effect Fristis & (1,199) (14,628)
6,792 80,682
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income of SEEE AR EMEE
associates ( B ) W (663) 1,352
Net other comprehensive income that will not be Bzt~ 2EfoHE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods Té!fmﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁi@ﬂ&ﬁm?%ﬁ 6,129 82,034
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FOR FREM2ME( &g )
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX sk, HBRFIIE (116,888) 26,029
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FOR FREME(EE ) WREHE
THE YEAR (257,273) 152,454
Attributable to: TEIATREL .
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZ PN (21,431) 331,980
Non-controlling interests eI R (235,842) (179,526)
(257,273) 152,454
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e IR AR

31 December 2024

—EoNE+=-A=+—H
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
—E-NE B
+=A=+—-8B +=—A=+—H”
Notes US$’ 000 US$'000
ez ES F=r
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M. WE MR 13 5,859,117 3,519,292
Investment property WEYZ 14 164,153 166,643
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 77,761 78,545
Intangible assets mLEE 16 31,456 49,827
Investments in associates REE N RIHIRE 17 139,799 139,099
Equity investments designated at fair value EERAFEFAEMEE
through other comprehensive income W R E 18 289,311 270,506
Long-term prepayments to third parties e = A 2 REIFEN 5B 21,008 149,953
Total non-current assets IEREEELRTE 6,582,605 4,373,865
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Properties under development EEEGEE I ES 19 221,905 178,828
Inventories FE 20 467,060 449,749
Trade and notes receivables B 5 UG K RN R K 21 270,461 278,669
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTEIE. EfbEYRIE &
other assets Ef&EE 22 363,997 33,821
Due from related parties JiE Uk B s 75 R IE 35(¢c) 18,324 11,219
Pledged deposits [REETiVER 23 31,624 32,088
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREeEEY 23 4,459,132 5,585,181
Total current assets MENEERTE 5,832,503 6,569,555
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables B S IR 24 298,372 235,410
Other payables and accruals HAb eI sRIB R E M E R 25 880,447 430,478
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER 26 280,704 193,035
Lease liabilities HEEaRFE 27 4,912 3,076
Government grants BT BN 29 57,563 35,017
Due to related parties FE (< RSt 75 5K IE 35(¢c) 9,125 13,876
Income tax payable FERTFR1SHR 31,115 61,495
Total current liabilities BB ERE 1,562,238 972,387
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFHE 4,270,265 5,597,168
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELABERREBAE
LIABILITIES 10,852,870 9,971,033

continued & -+
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PRI R

31 December 2024
—E-WE+-A=+—H

31 December

31 December

2024 2023
—E_EF —E-=F
+=A=+-8 t+=A=t+-H
Notes US$’ 000 US$'000
ez ESp FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBER
Interest-bearing bank borrowings TRIRTTIER 26 1,917,235 1,906,526
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 18,068 19,129
Deferred tax liabilities EIETIEEE 28 10,948 30,834
Total non-current liabilities ERE B ERRE 1,946,251 1,956,489
Net assets EEFH 8,906,619 8,014,544
EQUITY EE
Share capital [N 30 4,938,457 4,933,559
Reserves it 32 1,308,569 1,367,436
Total equity attributable to owners of BARHEB AELERETE
the parent 6,247,026 6,300,995
Non-controlling interests IR A 40 2,659,593 1,713,549
Total equity FEREEE 8,906,619 8,014,544

Junjun Tang
EHE
Director

EZ

Jun Ye
=1t
Director

EZE
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GONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF GHANGES IN EQUITY

% A*E % @ % Year ended 31 December 2024
HE—ZT-_NF+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAAMEAEL
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets
Other at fair
captal Share of value
reserve other through
Share and  comprehensive other Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share ~ Merger  option contributed income of ~ comprehensive  Revaluation  reserve fluctuation Retained confroling ~~ Total
capital  reserve reseve  surplus  associates income ~ surplus#  funds reserve profits ~ Total interests equity
RO
U]
Efygh AiBE bt
BhE B&R NN SHEEZ HE  AERD ¥R B
R sk BE  UHER  REGEWE  ATERE  ERBS BREE  BE  GmEN & 0 BR 4%
Nos USS'000  USS'000 USS'000  USS000 Us§'000 Us§'000 USS'000  US$'000  USS'000 USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000
B TR TEn TR eI 7 T T T TEn T T A T
(note 30) (note 31) (note 32) (note 40)
(H30) (K&3) (K1) (K]
At January 2024 e 4933559 645494 12794 35,689 1,352 56,435 99257 233042 (60,289) 341,610 6300995 1713549 8,014,544
Proftoss) for the year EER/ BB - - - - - - - - - 5106 58106 (198493) (140,365)
Other comprehensive income. - EVEHATAE:
forthe year:
Changenfairvalue ofequiy ~ HATEAZH
invesiments at e vale 2EhANRERED
through other comprehensie  AFERE, HRHE
income, net oftax - - - - - 6,792 - - - - 61 - 61
Shareof oher comprehensive  SEEEATMEN
income of assocates 2k - - - - (663) - - - - - (68 -y
Bchange diferences eled BTSN
{o foreign aperations NERE - - - - - - - - (85668) - (5668 (G749 (123017)
Tota comprehensive EheENELE
income or e year 8 - - - (663) 679 - - (B S0 (143) (5% (TIM)
Dividend declared ElRE - - - - - - - - - (36.223)  (36,229) - ()
Tiansler offair value resene  REERATEHA
uoon the disposelof equiy  EfaEGEHRE
investments a ai value RERERLTEGR
through other
comprehensive income - - - - - (592) - - - 592 - - -
Issue of shares kb P 4% - {2 - - - - - - -3 -
Equity-setled share option WiEaEEnERE
anangements i 31 - - 12 - - - - - - - 12 § 18
Captal contibuton fiom HilkERLE
non-confroling intrests - - - - - - - - - - - 1,181,880 1,181,880
Transle from retaned profts.~~ ERE-HFAH
generaed by a subsicary EENARET - - - - - = - o = (23:324) - - -
At 31 December 2004 RoRomE
t2A=t+-R 4938457 645404 1151 35,685 689* 64,635* 99267 266366  (145901) 340753 647,026 2659593 8906619

continued & -+
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2024

FIES

M A CHE £ 4=
IIV\/D\*Eﬁ“‘E

HE_Z-_NF+-_A=+—HIFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRAREAER
Fair vaue
reserve of
Other financial
captal Share of assets at
Teserve ofher fair value
and  comprehensive  through other Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share  Merger  Share option contrbuted incomeof  comprehensive  Revaluaon  resenve  fluctuation Retained controling Tota
coptal  reserve  reserve surplus a8500iales income ~ surplus funds  resenve profis Totdl  interests equty
FATEA
4T
AfAR i bt
o ERE  BER N cHEEZ 0 ER ER NERD (ZMER) R i
RE BE  BE ERER  BRREME  ATEEE B BEEE BE  2RN & B g%
Noes USS000  USS000  USSO00 USS000 US§00 USS000  USSo00  USSO00  USS0o USS000  USS000  USS00  USS00
o T T T T e Hr B T TR 71 T T T
(note 30) (note 31) (note 32) (note 40)
(HiE30) (M) (Hi31) (Hiza)
At 1 January 2023 H-F2=£-A-H 1904462 645004 13346 3,685 - (227 97 19115 (0,145) 103493 3030470 1104998 4135468
Pofioss)forheyear IR /[ BB - - - - - - - - - B00% W00 (153609)  1264%5
Other comprehensive EREfAEYS
income for the year:
Change nfar value of equty  ERATBETARf
invesiments designated - 2EMEHBRIER &R
atfarvaetroughoher  ATESE, IHHE
comprehiensive income,
nefof ta - - - - - 80,662 - - - - 80,662 - 80682
Share of other AEBEATH
comprehersieincome £ 2EAE
of associates - - - - 1382 - - - - - 1362 - 1382
Exchange diferences reaed  AERSIEEM
1o foreign operations NEEE - - - - - - - - (3008) - (008 (BT (56005)
Total comprehensive ncome. FR2ANRESR
for the year - - - - 1352 80,662 - - (30088 B004 3190 (79520) 162454
[ssue of sheres il & 293097 - (14 - - - - - - - 2937849 - 207849
Fouitysetled shareopfin. BB R
arengements i 3 - - % - - - - - - - 6% 7 83
Captalcontibutonfom~~~ SFER B E
non-controling inerests - - - - - - - - - - - T X0
Trandterfom retained profts - BEE-EFA7
generaled by asubsidary  EAHBERT] - - - - - - ki - (191 - - -
At 31 Decemogr 2023 RBozE
t2A=1-A 4033559 GaoA0 12704 35685 1362 4% T 23304 (6023 J41E10"  63009% 1713540 80145M
Revaluation surplus arose from a change in use from an owner- #  EEERFRRERFEIRS —HEHYE

occupied property to an investment property carried at fair value.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
US$1,308,5669,000 (2023: US$1,367,436,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

BT R IRE

REFERE R BB BRIP4

AREE1,308,569,000% T ( —
1,367,436,000% T ),

= __

=%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEHTRER

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE-_Z_NF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Hfat ETT F=T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KEEFHBEESRE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax FiAT( B8 ) A (133,792) 173,579
Adjustments for: FLATSIREH A FE .
Finance costs MIEER 7 97,113 100,497
Share of profits of associates D IE R E R B (3,459) (9,230)
Interest income MEKA 5 (101,967) (61,345)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME. BER
plant and equipment FiEIAE HEE 5 192 206
Depreciation of property, plant Y. WENMEETE
and equipment 13 533,568 481,664
Changes in fair value of an investment KEMENTEE
property 14 39 (1083)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 6,303 6,427
Amortisation of intangible assets B N 16 15,961 12,348
Impairment of trade receivables Z ZRWHIERE 6 91 1,120
Impairment of items of property, plant M. HEKk
and equipment FBIEBRE 13 - 2,476
Equity-settled share option expense NERERENERER 31 18 853
414,067 821,763
Increase in properties under development 3% FR 4248 1 (39,145) (44,105)
Increase in inventories FEE (17,311) (97,712)
Decrease in trade and notes receivables & 5 U FHRIA N
FEY R A 8,148 12,082
Decrease in prepayments, other TESFRIE. EMERIE R
receivables and other assets Hib&EERLD 7,229 11,851
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due JE L BBt 75 SRR
from related parties (40 ),/ (7,105) 1,787
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits B HIRFRUE D #0 ) 464 (168)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables Z SN REEm R ) 62,962 (1,589)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HiE I RIEREHER
and accruals #m, R ) 80,895 (106,503)
Increase/(decrease) in government grants  ERAFENIE N 8L ) 11,479 (5,257)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due e AR 5 FRIB
to related parties (&)1 (4,751) 7,780
Cash generated from operations RETEELENRS 516,932 713,200
Income tax paid ERATEE (57,437) (71,505)
Net cash flows generated from RETERFSRSNEFH
operating activities 459,495 641,695

continued & -+
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2024 — > =
BE-_ZE-_NE+-_A=+—HILEE . \é\iﬁﬁ)ﬁgé‘%
2024 2023
—E_E —E-=F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Hfat ETT F=T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHSRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B TS 82,034 61,551
Purchases of items of property, plant and BB, BEK&KE
equipment, prepaid lease payments 1B . ENHAEFER
and intangible assets B EE (2,779,857) (906,607)
Purchases of financial assets at fair value BB A FEA
through other comprehensive income EfrmBEnemEE (17,618) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME. BER
property, plant and equipment RABIA B TS sRIE 112 52
Receipt of government grants for property, WEIBFHE. BE &
plant and equipment SR A B B 41,149 11,692
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets &R A FEF A ME2E
at fair value through other Wamr & p & EFSHIE
comprehensive income 2,648 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities & EEIFTARESHREFHE (2,671,532) (833,312)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METEMBHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT D FT1S SRIE 3,642 2,941,945
New bank loans FTBIRITER 289,285 615,415
Capital contribution from non-controlling ~ JEERHEZE HE
interests 1,181,880 787,920
Dividends paid to shareholders ElESERSS (36,247) =
Interest paid BRFLE (105,736) (106,570)
Repayment of bank loans EERBRITER (183,524) (422,120)
Principal portion of lease payments SAHEERE D (4,634) (4,597)
Receipt of government grants for OB BT 0 B 75 B R O 45 B
finance costs 5,459 2,997
Payment of share issue expenses TRRMDEITHZ - (2,030)
Placement of pledged time deposits FlE B E BFER - (31,214)
Net cash flows generated from REEE SR SRE T
financing activities 1,150,125 3,781,746
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH R&£RKRLZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (RD ) EhnFEE (1,061,912) 3,590,129
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ~ F#IR & RIREEEY
of year 5,585,181 2,008,765
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, — HNEERE S/ 2, HEa
net (64,137) (13,713)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRRAERBAESEEY
END OF YEAR 23 4,459,132 5,585,181
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERREEEYERDM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHER 23 2,749,279 4,638,292
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ RESREREIEE R
maturity of less than three months =& A Y FEE AR E BIfF R
when acquired 1,709,853 946,889
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in B RER LIRS RERTP
the statement of financial position and iy e MRS EEY
in the statement of cash flows 23 4,459,132 5,585,181
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Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 21 January
2005. The registered office of the Company is located at Room
2212, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central,
Hong Kong. The principal place of business is located at No.
288, Halei Road, Zhangijiang Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of semiconductor
products and real estate development.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent of the Company is
Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Huahong Group”),
which is a state-owned company established in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and supervised by the Shanghai
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission (“Shanghai SASAC”). The ultimate parent of the
Company is Shanghai SASAC.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Cayman Islands US$0.001
Corporation (“Grace Cayman”) HEHS 0.001%T

Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation([ Grace Cayman |)

Shanghai Huahong Grace PRC/Mainland China  RMB20,460,928
Semiconductor Manufacturing El /eI ARHE
Corporation (‘HHGrace")* 20,460,9287T

TRE RN ERAERR AR
([EITRN )

Huahong Semiconductor (Wuxi) PRC/Mainland China US$2,536,852
Co., Ltd. (*Hua Hong Wuxi")** R/ RERY 2,536,852 7T

EIHEE( 85 ) ARLA
([EaEH )

100%

100%

22.2%

HESERBERAG([ARAF ) B—
EN_ZEERFEF—A_+—BEEBE
MR BER AT, ARRIREMHE
BAEBHREBBI12FERBITH D
2212%, FEEEMWY A EEMRIS
R B[S 5 7% 28857

ARRNEREH/EELER, ©
N, ARRNFAREZENREF TR
A HYAEEE MHE M HER %

F
=

BEERR, ARANERAA/LEET
(RE)ERARELKR ), ZAF
AP EARLME([ BB | )KZITH
PETHRAERERBEEREZES([ LF
TEEZ |)EENBEERR, ARAH
REERARR/LETEEER,

BFRTFARNER
RABHFRRFBEWT

- Investment holding
REER

- Manufacture and sale of semiconductor
products

TERHELERER

28.8%  Manufacture and sale of semiconductor

products

LERHELERER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI ERR M EE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RARKEER(E)
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BRFATNEN(E)
Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ attributable to the Company
registration and registered share ~ AAREEERED
Name business capital ('000) Direct Indirect  Principal activities
£ ST E S MR F7) Ef B EXBED
Shanghai Huahong Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000 22.2% 28.8%  Real estate development
(Wuxi) Co., Ltd. PE /BN AEH30,0007C FlERE

(*Huahong Real Estate Wuxi")**
PEEREL(ES ARAR
([EREXESR )™

Huahong Semiconductor Manufacturing ~ PRC/Mainland China US$4,020,000 21.9% 29.1%  Manufacture and sale of semiconductor
(Wuxi) Co., Ltd. (‘Hua Hong B/ FER 4,020,000% 7 products
Manufacturing Wuxi")** EERBETERER

E+EREE( BS )ERAR
([EREES | )

Global Synergy Technology PRC/Hong Kong HK$10 100% - Trading
Limited (“GST") T8/ EE 10%7T g5

NEREARAG ([ B )

HHGrace Semiconductor USA, Inc. USA - 100% - Sales office

HHGrace Semiconductor USA, Inc. EE - HENSR

HHGrace Semiconductor Japan Japan JPY10,000 100% - Sales office
Co., Ltd. % 10,0004 HERSR

HHGrace Semiconductor
Japan Co., Ltd.

*  HHGrace is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned company Y BRI RIEF B E AT RN E A
under PRC law. AT

“*  Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing Wuxi are v BALES REANEEMBIREFELE
registered as Sino-foreign joint companies under PRC law. HaFINE &L 7,

“**  Huahong Real Estate Wuxi is registered as a domestic company o R R IR B RAE

under PRC law. AT
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These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for an investment property
and equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in United
States dollars (“US$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2024. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

ZEMBBRRIBEHE LGNS
(I EBETEAE | )EMNET BN R
SEAN BBMBHRERER |, BHEME
EREYBHREEL . BREFE( &
AEREA ) RRE )ARFERRK
BlmEL, MISIRRKTIRIEE L R AE B
R, HERATEFENREYMER
BERAFE AR 2 E YK r0
RERIN, RFEWBHRRUAET(I X
2%, MBESBEAIN, MERE
EABEREIN TR,

mERE®E
RAMBRREBARTREFAR( R
WRIAEER | BE—_Z_MF+_A
=+ ALEFENPBEER, TARE
ERNRAERAFEREGNER( BEE
BHEE ), WAKEER2EBEIRET
EBMEARBERGHRET A&
B, BAENTEERIRETHNED
TEAHOR, AIXNKEEEZERD
Zihl4E( BIRESH T AR B ERIRET
1EREEBIEE N ROIR B RER ),

R—RBERTHFES BREET AR
HEZHEE . MARAHANBIIRET
REESBLURN A RARF, AFHER
NEHERETRERAENE, KE
EeEEMAENBTERER, B

(a) BEZBIRESTEMIREEER AN
BRILHE,

(b) RIFEMENOLHMZEAREN,
IS4

(c) AEENKREELBEREE,

T RIS A AR SRR A 3R 55 E
R, LRA-BEHEREY, T4
TR R A E B RS R > B s
BANE, DBRERS NERRZI
R ILBS AL,
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described above.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any
non-controlling interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve;
and recognises the fair value of any investment retained
and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and

HKFRS 16 Leaseback
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current

Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

HKAS 1

The application of the revised HKFRSs in the current year
had no material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
position and performance for the current and prior years.

BRAE HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 313

mEEE(E)
BakEtzEEanSHBO HEBER
AEBEGABER ARIEERER, B
EEPFERERELEEAMAR, N%
E)2 =N PALEE Yo a0k SE Tk
BEERAE. #m. KA. XHRBAS
mELERA ABRK 2284,

HEEMENBER LA =RZEHEERZ
—HXZHNRES, AEESEHF
MEREEBIKIKE T, FTARNMEAE
RESEEORBRETHIE), BES
R H Ao

i AR B R E S —fEF QA EHE,
AEBUERAREE( BERE ) &
B, EIFEE S M IMNE KB
WHERMREBTAREN A FERES
REMRELELRRRKER, KRR
H fth 2 1 Y a8 R RE R Y AN SR B R (G &R 10
EFMHBRBRIBFEHEM NER ),
HAKEDERHERBEEXRER
7ALAR — EERER

AEED ML ERNFEMBEHRRE R
R T EERT BB MBS £,

BEEMBRERAFE6T EROHEZ

RCHEN) HERE
BRGEAE 1R REDH R

RCHEN) VEIEE ¥
BRGEAE 1R AIGEZHNE

RCHEN) R

AERREITNEBWHE RS LA NE
R, $SAXAKEARFEEMAEFENESR
MR REELBEATE,
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The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements. The Group intends to apply these revised HKFRSs,
if applicable, when they become effective.

HKFRS 18

HKFRS 19

Amendments to
HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 21

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements’

Subsidlaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures®

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture!

Lack of Exchangeability’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026

3 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2027

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption

AEBEWERZEHMEHRRANER T

ERMERKRERZ
A, REBBNZ

{[ERT &R
ERERTEERM

BlmE RN ERLEBLERERER

BT R 2R R ( anE A

BB TSRS 2R
£18%%

BB TSRS 2R
£19%

BB TSRS 2R
FHK

BB TSRS AR
ENLHEC PN

BB TSRS 2R

N

N

:

FIOERBR G E

A2 2855 ({ERIAN )

BA G EAE215
(BRI )

Jo

HBEES 2T
#E

FAREFREF
ATIHRE

SHTADNERH
BT

KREZEHRHBEL
A ELPES
BHEEER
EE

B AR

1 R-F-—AF—A—HEZERIBZF

R AERL
2

R AERL
&

B IR B AR
4

REF-NF—H—HaZ #FHEZF

REF-+F—H—HLZEFHEZF

151 7N 5 A A% B B 18 AT (AR A
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HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. While a number of sections have been brought
forward from HKAS 1 with limited changes, HKFRS 18
introduces new requirements for presentation within the
statement of profit or loss, including specified totals and
subtotals. Entities are required to classify all income and
expenses within the statement of profit or loss into one
of the five categories: operating, investing, financing,
income taxes and discontinued operations and to present
two new defined subtotals. It also requires disclosures
about management-defined performance measures in a
single note and introduces enhanced requirements on the
grouping (aggregation and disaggregation) and the location
of information in both the primary financial statements and
the notes. Some requirements previously included in HKAS
1 are moved to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, which is renamed as
HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements. As a
consequence of the issuance of HKFRS 18, limited, but widely
applicable, amendments are made to HKAS 7 Statement
of Cash Flows, HKAS 33 Earnings per Share and HKAS
34 Interim Financial Reporting. In addition, there are minor
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 18
and the consequential amendments to other HKFRSs are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027 with earlier application permitted. Retrospective
application is required. The Group is currently analysing the
new requirements and assessing the impact of HKFRS 18
on the presentation and disclosure of the Group’s financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, none of these HKFRSs is expected
to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

BRAE HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED S

BEMBREENF18RARE L ST
RUNFARY BHXZES, BEBREG
FHERIE R Z AT WAATE S
BR, HEMBREEAF 8RBT
KAZNTASIAFBRE, BREEEN
e R NE, BRARERRAMAR
AR BR/ATEERNZ —: &
2. RE. BE. IEHEARLBER
BER, WEINMBEHAE NG, HIF
RERE—METFREEEERENE
MIER, WHETEMBHRERMMEPE
FEAE (AR )M IR T E &
RENER, ETRACHATEGE
AIFEVRNREBER B ERFE85
BiTHE. BitlBat BEREH, UFE
BARERET BTSSR BRI ZES
HE, ARBEMEEHHEREEAFE18
5%, HEREGHERETREDREX.
ERE G EAEIBREREFNEER
SHERIE 34 A B A FHARE
BIZERMIERT, I, EMBFBME
WEEANTTARMNBRIER, BERM
S ERIE 185 R EME B RS
ERAMEEETR T _+F—A—H
K2 RN FEREER, AEWE
R, YRR RA. AKBRIEDITH
R E N A4 E B B S s AR B % 18557
UAREBPBHRRO2IIRBENOTE,

B EXFREEI, ZEBEMHRE
ERHEH IS U AEBHLLRER
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Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of an associate is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investment in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
an associate is included as part of the Group’s investment in
an associate.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

REEDNTNRE

BN A—HALREHERE KT
DR20% A E N RAEZ, AR
EEHEFEAFENNEE, EAY
EHIEBEN 2R EH RN R
EHBERAER, BIEHZEBRRERE
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AEBENEZE QAR NRENER S MR
MERARERERGATENAEHE
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REEMAREFEZ TRETERRER
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AEBRGEBEARNKRBEREER
Hip 2 EW D BIFIALR A B R RAR
BHEMEERER. WO, HBE R
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EREFE RSB RATERE R (A&
B ER EEED . NEBERER
LBRAETRGMELENRER WK
BRERAEERNZHE XA NREETT
MH, EARERBBRER BB TEER
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Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and
equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, investment
properties and non-current assets/a disposal group classified
as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a
cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash-generating units.
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Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i) bhas control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or
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Related parties (continued)
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (continued)

(b)

\A] o 2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#E

RS (&)

(%)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions (b)

applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant
and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is
part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3.8%
Plant and machinery 9.5% to 19.0%
Office equipment 19.0%
Motor vehicles 19.0%
Leasehold improvements 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal
or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including right-of-use assets) held to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
investment property are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change
in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-
of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to
the date of change in use, and any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment. For a transfer from inventories
to investment properties, any difference between the fair value
of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Process technology licence and software

Process technology licence and software are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10
years of the underlying products, commencing from the date
when the products are put into commercial production.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.
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Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Land use rights
Buildings

42 to 50 years
2 to 20 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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Leases (continued) HE(&)
Group as a lessee (continued) FEEELETAN(E )

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that is
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

REEMKAH, HEREREE
HRER B ENKHRE T AR
Ro HENKEBREENK B
BEBEEMNR VR EMNEEEES
B, BURRE — R HEk e R ay ] &
HEMNR, RREHERSREEE
RIS, HEMNKTERE
BEEESHAREITENBER
BRENTEE, MiaEERRK
MRASEEITER SR ER, B
RIEAEMHREXAHET R, FBUR
RE BB RN EHENK
RIS A F IR RN
R B X0

HFEAENTORER, ARE
ETMBEENNETZHEE, RIA
SEEHERKBEREREERS
EMX, AR BEHRZR, HE
BENSBEBSIEM, ARBRFE
FYIE DN R B E MR A E R
R Utoh, AR, HHREL
. HEMRE( WAKEE
NREERK LRSS TR
B RBERBEENEERENG
2¥, HEAENREE/ENT

RHRHEREEEEEHEE

AEEKERHEERAHRLEAN
HESMEE( e HENK B HE
AEMAT—@EAZLIAT, XA
BEREEEEENEE ), KEE
B EME MR % ITE AR R
REBENHAERFEEE,

RHEEREEEEERENHEE
NRERPANREREZER /X
o



326

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED TS HR AR o 2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE &

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
other income and gains in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as other income and gains in the period in which
they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, except when the
Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of
the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
are not subject to impairment assessment.
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Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit
risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days to 150 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but that
are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings or payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
amounts due to related parties, interest-bearing bank
borrowings and lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:
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Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (tfrade and other payables,
and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and
interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Costs for properties under development include
land costs, construction costs and other direct and indirect
development expenses in relation to property development.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term
highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three
months that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and
held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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Provisions

A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event
and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When
the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or
loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

e inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

FrgBi( &)
BRTIIBRSN, SRMARRE R E
RERRERIAEAE.

s HMEERAEBERIXZBAHIS
RitaEREERBEMES, A
RRSEETEHBABTELES
AN RERTUE N B IRE TS
ELERSENRRT LA NEERE
RN

o HRTFRARMBEANRRERBI
ERRE =M S, furlZ5E
FRFERBORRE, BRI RARR
AR T SO TR 5,

T 7 B B A B R T A1) DA 85 AT H10RL
ERERARKRGAHAR L KRB
HMIAEIRAEENERLT, BAA R
R ZRALKREBHRER R R EMR
BANEBEREEEIRLENREE,
HET DI ESLERSN

o Wi R AR E B E R AR A IR
BEREXRBAHR BT NRHER
BEXABEMES, ARRIBE
RRABENGFESTR N KE
ARpENREE N TS EL RSN
FERRTE M ATFRE I =58, I

o MRFRARBERTREREDN
AT ZEMmS, BEFIRE
EENA R ARRATERDERZE
7, BABAERD G N A HE
RV IE N TR



FEME ANNUAL REPORT 2024 o FETFZEERNE HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 337

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”). The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the
date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 31 to the financial statements.
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Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’'s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.
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Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Events after the reporting period
There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the
Group after 31 December 2024.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’'s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in US$, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain Mainland Chin and
overseas subsidiaries and associate are currencies other
than US$. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into US$ at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into US$ at
the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the
dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that the differences
are attributable to non-controlling interests. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of Mainland China and overseas subsidiaries
are translated into US$ at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of Mainland China and overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into US$ at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased
out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than gooawill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator exists.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of
an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued using a
market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 37 to
the financial statements. For an unlisted equity investment of
US$271,921,000 as at 31 December 2024, where no recent
deal price is available, the Group determines the comparable
public companies (peers) and selects the price multiple. In
addition, the Group makes estimates about the discount for
illiquidity and size differences. Further details are included in
notes 18 and 37 to the financial statements.
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Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value of an investment property

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from the
discounted cash flow projections.

Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing
lease and other contracts and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents for similar properties in
the same location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of the investment property as at 31
December 2024 was US$164,153,000 (31 December
2023: US$166,643,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 14 to the financial statements.
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For management purposes, the Group is organised into one
single business unit that includes primarily the manufacture
and sale of semiconductor products. Management reviews the
consolidated results when making decisions about allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group.
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented.

The principal assets employed by the Group are located
in Shanghai and Wuxi, the PRC. Therefore, no segment
information based on the geographical location of non-current
assets is presented for the year.

Revenues are attributed to geographical areas based on the
locations of customers. Revenues by geographical segment
based on the locations of customers for the year are presented
as follows:

China (including Hong Kong) HE( BEEE )

North America Jb=

Asia (excluding China and Japan) M TEREPE R AR )
Europe B

Japan =N

Total revenue U

The Group is involved in the business of the manufacture
and sale of semiconductor products. Revenue from the sale
of semiconductor products is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the semiconductor products, where
the performance obligation is satisfied. The normal credit term
is 30 to 45 days upon delivery. Payment in advance is required
for some contracts.

Information about major customers

No revenue amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
was derived from sales to a single customer for the year ended
31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: Nil).
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2023
—E=F
US$'000
TET

1,774,178
204,882
149,087
134,760

23,206

2,286,113
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AND OTHER EXPENSES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024
oM+ =ZA=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains and other

g2H

B 5 ¥R R B

WA B AU A R Was K E At

B B YA K e K B B AR A

expenses is as follows: DT
2024 2023
—ENF —E-=F
US$’ 000 US$’000
FEx TET
Revenue from contracts with customers EF & A
Sale of goods HEE M 2,003,993 2,286,113
Other income Hibg A
Gross rental income from investment REFEMELEHERN
property operating leases: WAL,
Fixed lease payments BEEAERK 14,210 14,259
Interest income FBUA 101,967 61,345
Government subsidies BT 47 B 31,814 66,466
Others EHip 1,081 2,300
149,072 144,370
Other expenses HiEH
Foreign exchange loss, net HNIE B 3 S 1R F R 33,164 33,055
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE. BEK
plant and equipment RAEIA B MEE 192 206
Others Hih 39 405
33,395 33,666
2024 2023
—ECMmEF —E-=F
US$’ 000 US$’000
Edom FEr
Types of goods EmER
Sale of semiconductor products and total AR E ) EEE
revenue from contracts with customers KERFEELIRBEKA 2,003,993 2,286,113
Timing of revenue recognition WA TR R ]
Goods transferred at a point in time TR—RHEEENEDR
and total revenue from contracts RERFEALHMBUA
with customers 2,003,993 2,286,113

The disaggregation of the Group’s revenue based on the
geographical region for the year ended 31 December 2024 is

given in note 4.

BE_ZT_NMF+_A=+—HLFE, &
SEENEKRA D BTN T4,
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The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Research and development costs
Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities
Auditor’'s remuneration
Employee benefit expense
(including directors’ and chief
executive's remuneration
(note 8)):
Wages, salaries and other benefits
Equity-settled share option expense
Pension scheme contributions
(defined contribution scheme)*

Impairment of items of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment of trade receivables
Write-down of inventories to
net realisable value
Changes in fair value of an
investment property

*

BEEFEMA
M. BB RRETE

EREEENE

BB B

BB AR

At AHEREED
HE K

A BB 357 B

BERNFAX( BREER
R TEA B #H B
(Ffi5E8 )):

TE. HekHMER
Pt i B AR IR X
RIRSF IR

( EREEFETE )

e
T B RS

B2 B A
AT R FE

RANEATFES

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by

the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of

contributions.

AEBOTA(EE )BTRS
(FEA ) PIBIREZR.

Notes

Wit

13
15
16

33(b)

37

13
21

14

2023
—E-=F
US$’000
TFET

1,799,017
481,664
6,427
12,348
206,522

2,383
749

282,762
853

36,909
320,524

2,476

1,120

45,572
(103)

A EE (B S 0E T HLAR R BEA R BT X
FRE BT B AT Fo
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Interest on bank borrowings RITEKFE
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERE
Total st

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Fees we
Other emoluments: EiiE .
Performance related bonuses ERSRITAMARYIEAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind &, 2B REYH
Pension scheme contributions BRIREEFEIHR

Equity-settled share option expense LAz G E R BRI R 2
Subtotal /NEF
Total B K EH R A

In prior years, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’ and
chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.

2023
—E-=F
US$’000
FET

99,429
1,068

100,497

B _ETAR B REB R FMEHZE383(1)
(@)« (b). (c) & (NENKXAR]( HEESF
AR RO BEOPEBENAFEESR
BT ABFHMINT .

2023
—E-=F
US$'000
FE

216

196
196
10
28

430
646

RBEFE, ETESREARANE
Bt 8RN E AR ERRH ARG ER
BRE, HE-THBENMBEHRERM
31, HERREN R FEEZEEY
RIBRRER, YREHABETAR
AEEPHHRRARN SRS AL
EZNERTRABNFMKET,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBmRMEE T

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERBSITHAESRZHMN
REMUNERATION (continued) (%)
(a) Independent Non-Executive Directors () BIYFFTES
The fees paid to Independent Non-Executive Directors FARMBYFNTESIAOES
during the year were as follows: Ny
2024 2023
—ECNE —E=F
US$’ 000 US$'000
Er FET
Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang AR AE 70 72
Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP FHEAEE, KEMT 70 72
Mr. Song Lin Feng (appointed on 28 MM LE( R=F = pgF
March 2024) ZAZFNHEZE) 35 -
Mr. Long Fei Ye (resigned on 28 March ~ BREFE 4 ( R —F — /i
2024) =A=FHEF) 35 72
Total #sEt 210 216
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRWBEN TR IERITESH
Independent Non-Executive Directors during the year Hihe( —ZE=_=F. &),

(2023: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N E

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) The chief executive

8. EERBSITHASRHMH
(48 )

Salaries,
allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
HEM. 2ER  ERRMN UERLEN  BAREHE
e BNFlE WL  BRERX A 0 Pkl
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
in EY EY ey ES E
2024 —T-mE
Chief executive: BERTHAR:
Mr. Junjun Tang BYERE - 196 242 5 10 451
Salaries,
allowances  Performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions  remuneration
HE. 28R BRBEGN MEREEN  RAREE
ik EYMER A RRERX 3% Fes
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET £ FET FET e FET
2023 —F-=F
Chief executive: BERTHAER:
Mr. Junjun Tang EHERE - 196 196 28 10 430
Save as disclosed above, none of the directors received BTt R ESN, MEEEN -

any emoluments during 2024 and 2023.

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

“MER T =FIWREERFH
o

RER, BEEERRFTHAR
EH LM ERRA B RNEE[H
o
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The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director, who is also the chief executive (2023: one director
being also the chief executive), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining four (2023: four) highest paid employees
who are not directors of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ ZrBil. i%’&f%ﬂﬁ

Performance related bonuses BRI HMFAAE
Equity-settled share option expense L/{%m,ﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬂxﬁéﬁi
Pension scheme contributions RN FTEIER

Total 4t

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

FR, ibEaFEERE—RES(TN
AEREITERABR I ZE== i —%E
E(MAERTHAR)), HE Mﬁmﬁ
R EXFIE8, FIA ,A%E% =
=F. [UF WIEARD Té%%y%%ﬁ
BREHMNFIBOT.

2023
—E-=F
US$'000
FET
1,163

336

6

29

1,534

FNBRATRISHIEFEERIFERSTT
BABWNER=FHEEAZNT.

2023

—E=F

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T % 2,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% T2 3,000,000/ 7T 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 T £ 4,500,000/ 7T 1
Total Bt 4

In prior years, share options were granted to four non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect
of their services to the Group, further details of which
are included in the disclosures in note 31 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

RBEFE, NEFEERIFEHTR
ABMESFHEEREAASBIRHR
BRI, L P BENMER
RIEES1HER, MBEBERENAFED
ZEBHMNERRER, XNREEH
EEANAFERBERRARNEHED
SEARRFE R RFZRBTTHRA BN R
= EBNFMKES,
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Profits arising in Hong Kong were subject to profits tax at the
rate of 16.5% during the year (2023: 16.5%). No provision for
Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Company and
a subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong had no assessable
income during the year (2023: Nil).

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated in the Cayman Islands
is not subject to corporate income tax (“‘CIT") as it does not
have a place of business (other than a registered office) or
carry on any business in the Cayman Islands.

All of the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC and
only having operations in Mainland China are subject to PRC
enterprise income tax on the taxable income as reported in
their PRC statutory accounts, adjusted in accordance with
relevant PRC income tax laws based on a statutory rate of
25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
with approval from the tax authorities in charge, the Group’s
subsidiaries, HHGrace and Hua Hong Wuxi, are qualified as
“High and New Technology Enterprises” and are therefore
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2023 to 2025.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC
and with the approval from the tax authorities in charge,
the Group’s subsidiaries, Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong
Manufacturing Wuxi, are entitled to an exemption from CIT for
five years, commencing from the first year that Hua Hong Wuxi
and Hua Hong Manufacturing Wuxi generate taxable profits,
and a deduction of 50% on the CIT rate for the following five
years. Hua Hong Wuxi and Hua Hong Manufacturing Wuxi
were in accumulated tax loss positions as at 31 December
2024 and the tax holiday has not yet begun.

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in
Japan was subject to corporation tax at a rate of 33.58%
(20283: 33.58%).

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in the
United States was subject to federal corporation income tax
at a rate of 21% during the year (2023: 21%), as well as a
California state tax at 8.84% (2023: 8.84%).
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RERNEBGNAL165% —F_=
F. 16.5% B ERZAFEH. BRA
RE R —REBBZMALNFRER
FALERFEATHLA, BLERE
BMERIELERE —T_=F. &),

BHRARBERSESEMKIZNTA
AR S S EEA S XA ( M
FRMRIN R EE R, WAETL
RIBAMMERAEH( BEMEH )

PrAE AR B B M A EEREA
LENT LA, EREREABEHEMR
BREABRNPBEIEAERE T2 RER
MU AIZ25% HEE R RGP B
FTiS#io

RIBFBEERERER L ERETE
WEHE, AEEFRARELER N NE
ITEB T AEBRAR B RMEE |,
AR _T_=F=_"T_hnFHMH
12 15% BB KB

RIBTH BEIARRER RO REN G T B
BHtE, NEBNFARFELESHNLE
o7 B3 A 85 AT 2R 4T MR 85 R EE AT BN A
HELERPUEN ) E — FREAFER
REMEEMER, MERAFAER
TEEMGHRNERLE50%MES, K=
T_WUFE+-_A=1+—8, FULEHK
FIFLEEBIEN BT E RN,
BB RS,

ARRIEHARFEMA S M EER T QA
[E1233.58%( — T =4 . 33.58% )HJ
ERRGT,

AR EEEBRFMA S R EENT AR
JERERNIZ21%( ZE==4F. 21% )Y
R EEMSHRENS.84%( —FE ==
F. 8.84% W IIFIEE TR NE BT



354

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED TS HR AR o 2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE &

The major components of income tax expense of the Group

are as follows:

Current income tax — PRC
Current income tax — elsewhere
Deferred tax (note 28)

Total

EHFTSHL - R
EHFTISH - EfthitE
EIEFRIA( Mi7E28 )
5T

A reconciliation of the tax (credit)/expense applicable to (loss)/
profit before tax at the statutory rate of 25% for the jurisdiction
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled or operate to the tax expense at the effective tax

rate is as follows:

(Loss)/profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%

Effect of different tax rates for specific
provinces and countries or enacted
by local authority

Adjustments in respect of current tax
of previous periods

Profits attributable to associates

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Tax losses not recognised due
to improbable future taxable profits

Temporary differences not recognised

Additional deduction of research
and development costs

Effect of withholding tax at 10%
(2023: 10%) on the distributable
profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiary

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate

7 8 [ 719 4 B9 32 0 2 48 AL 2645 10
T,

2023
—E-=F
US$’000
FET

57,969
43
(10,858)

47,154

BARAR RERE D FRREMREE
P fE RAHE R B R TE B R 25% 51 H MYt
AI( B8 ) MEERBIEMY, iR
ERBRGFEOTIAER ) A
RN

2023
—Eo=F
US$'000
FET
FiAn( 518 ) E R 173,579
BAEME25% 5T HE TR 43,395
BEEMDRBERSM A EE
B TR R 2
(47,962)
B —EAR S EAT IR A R
(108)
s N A AR 3 (1,387)
RRA (1,548)
AT 1,063
BRI AR 2R K A] B EE A FE AR Bt v 7
AR MERE T IR &5 121,483
RERERERE 397
TSR A E M0
(56,503)
RN & B A BT A B AT 2 R g A
LA10%( —E==%F. 10% )
STETEIIBI R E (11,676)
EAREEERREGTENRIARS 47,154
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The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend
of the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$0.165 per
share, equivalent to US$36,233,000).

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,717,346,778 (2023: 1,477,978,482)
outstanding during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, as used in
the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at the exercise price on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.
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REZNEZRPRBA/FAR AR
REEBEBFAS LHERTTRIEE,

EESTEREBEE T _NF+=
A=T—HIFENEHTRE( ZT==
F. Bk0.165%87T, HE 36,233,000
=TT )

EREABFNGENERT AR LR
BREZFEABRBFREZINERREAND
171,717,346, 778f%( — T - =F .

1,477,978,482 %% )& B AL HY hNiEe F 35 21

BRCEERNSRNIRBEEQRER
iR NREFRENE, fEE
KAz BB INEF OB RTESRE
AENERABZFAND ETEEREE
N ERER A EEEEE BREAR BT
FEHR PR EBREATEERTZE
vl S eS8
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
/E\j‘ﬁ%*ﬁ%% M;J-‘E-I 31 December 2024

—E-F+=—A=+—H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. B AR EBERERFE AELSE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE MRER(4E )
PARENT (continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are FREAREERAFINFETER.
based on:
2024 2023
—E-mEF —E=F
US$’ 000 US$'000
FTEx F=T
Earnings 2B

Profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent

A RE R ER A AL R A
58,108 280,034

Number of shares

Shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year
used in the basic earnings per
share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:
Share options

BB
2024 2023
—E_UE —E-=F
B
AR ESREARRFNFR
BB E BRI T

1,717,346,778  1,477,978,482
TRREENETARNTE.

AR 3,739,068 8,553,472

Total

5T 1,721,085,846 1,486,531,954
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
coome oAt PTG ERER M EE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥, BMERKME
Plant and Office Motor ~ Leasehold Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles improvements  in progress Total

g7 HEREE  WORR nE REMREE  RRIE it
USS000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  US$'000  US§'000
TER X X X X X1 TER

31 December 2024 Z2ZME+ZA=T-H
At 1 January 2024: RZZ-ME-A-A.

Cost AA 423,230 7,138,922 66,032 1,236 3,901 765,367 8,398,688

Accumulated depreciation ZETERAE

and impairment (34985  (4574826)  (49,635) (867) (3860) (15203  (4879,3%)

Net carrying amount EAFE 188,245 2,564,096 16,397 349 4 750,164 3,519,292
At 1 January 2024, net of RZF-ME-F-A,

accumulated depreciation and MEZHERAE

impairment 188,245 2,564,096 16,397 349 4 750,164 3,519,292
Additions RE = = = - - 2,977,512 2,977,512
Transfers B 458,007 1,362,517 8,712 165 - (1,829,401) -
Offset by govemment grant HHRREH - (28,386) - - - - (28,386)
Disposal RE - (67) (148) - - - (215)
Depreciation provided during FNEHRE

the year (2715)  (5159%8)  (4779) (130) (16) - (533569)
Exchange realignment A% (7,200) (45,553) (276) (5) - (22,484) (75,518)
At 31 December 2024 net of RZBZRE

accumulated depreciation and T-A=1-R,

mpairment MRZTRERAE 626,337 3,336,679 19,906 379 % 1875791 5859117
At 31 December 2024; RZBZREFZA=1-R.

Cost A 870,445 8,352,634 70,042 1,381 3,844 1,890,771 11,189,117

Accumulated depreciation ZETERAE

and impaiment Q44108 (5015955  (501%) (1,002 (3819)  (14980)  (5330000)

Net carrying amount BE e 626,337 3,336,679 19,906 379 25 1875791 5859117
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, no items of the
Group’s machinery and office equipment (31 December 2023:
US$2,476,000) were obsolete with a minimal recoverable
amount determined based on their fair value less costs of
disposal and were therefore fully impaired.

As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment with a net carrying value of US$2,064,974,000
(31 December 2023: US$1,487,211,000) were pledged to
banks to secure the Group’s banking facilities (note 26).

As management concluded there are impairment indicators for
long-term assets of Hua Hong Wuxi as at 31 December 2024.
Therefore, an impairment assessment was performed for the
year ended 31 December 2024. The impairment test is based
on the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the long-term
assets is allocated. The key assumptions that management
used in the valuation are as follows:

Carrying Recoverable  Impairment
amount amount amount
FEE RO RESHE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TE1 TEx TET
Hua Hong Wuxi EIRY 2,463,824 2,602,158 -

HE-_Z-_WNF+_-_A=+—HLHF
B, AEEWEKSE MR AKERE( =
T-_=F+-_A=+—H. 2,476,0003
T B, MAREREEAFERL SRR
HEANRUE S 5EE)N, FAmEaRE,

RZZE-N&E+=—A=+—H8, ~X&H
BREF(E A2,064,974,000%7T( — T =
=#+-A=+—H. 1,487,211,0003%
TLRETYHE. BERRBEDEA TR
TTABS AR EBARITRVE ( BI7E26 ),

BUNEEERAE, RZE-WF+=A
=+—H, FUEHRPEEFTERE
mx, Ak, =T -_NWF+=-A
=t+—HIEFEET T RET G, BE
AR EEREENR CEEEMN
kBl EAEEM, BEBNTEFE
AMEZ/HREWT.

Years of the
forecast period
BAIEED

5 years based on
the forecast and
2.5 years based on
stable growth rates
RERGROER
REEE R
Bo5E

Key assumptions for the
forecast period
BASNEZ R

Discount rate: 14.0%;
revenue

growth rate: 3.7%-17.1%;
gross profit margin:

(8.7) %-54.6%;

net profit margin:

(14.5) %-45.1%
BRE. 14.0%, WAL
RE. 37%217.1%; £
FI& . (3.7)%Z254.6%;
FHE. (145)%2451%
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Carrying amount at 1 January

Net gain from a fair value adjustment
Exchange realignment M 5 SR B
Carrying amount at 31 December

The Group’s investment property is situated in Shanghai,
the PRC. The directors have determined that the investment
property is an industrial property based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of the property.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on 31
December 2024 based on valuation performed by Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, on an open market
value basis. The valuation is based on capitalisation of income
derived from the existing tenancy with allowance for the
reversionary income potential of the property.

Every year, the Group’s property manager and the chief
financial officer decide to appoint which external valuer to
be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s property manager and the
chief financial officer have discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results annually when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment property is leased to a related party under an
operating lease (note 33 and note 35(b)).

R—A—HAMNKEE
DB Y F

R+ A=+—H8KHEE
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2023
—E-=F
US$’000
FET

169,363

1083
(2,823)

166,643

AEBNREYMELRTELE, EF
EERMENEE . BHRRRETEER
BMERIEYE,

R-Z-_WNE+—-/F=+—H, K"&HE
WIEEMEERE—REFEEEERNE
MAERMPERTEETHEREAER
RNRIRAFRATEET T EH, ZEEE
RIRBROBRANERL, TEETH
¥mBEAERRKA,

BF, AEENYELE MM BEER
EZRESNEBHEMAEAEEYENIN
mibE, REFERIBHTISEN TR,
BE BUMMESTABRREKE, K
SENMELERMBRESFRFR
MR ELETHER, SEMEERMLG
BRZERGEERETH M.

EYERE ST TR A (F
FE33 AT FE35(b) o
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Fair value hierarchy

The recurring fair value measurement for the Group’s
investment property, which is an industrial property, was
made using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at
31 December 2024 and 2023. During the year, there were
no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2023: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of the investment property:

Industrial property Valuation techniques
IEME fhE R
As at 31 December 2024 Term and reversion method

R-ZE_MOF+-_HA=t+—H FHINEREA

As at 31 December 2023 Term and reversion method

R-B_=F+-_H=+—H FHRERE

ATEER

REBIREYE( ATEDE W _Z=
NWERZZEZ=F+=-A=+—HKEA
AT EFTETFEAERTITERE A
HIE( FE3 EL ., RFAN, F1RHESE
AW EATEFEER, BEIRL
EEANET( T =F. &),

TXREEDEAEMAGERMNRE

ERABEME .
Significant unobservable Weighted
inputs average
EANAIE R AR Ik

Estimated rental value
(per sg.m. per month)

EtHEEE( BT AEAR)

Term yield
FHAm R K
Reversionary yield
EERE R
Long term vacancy rate
REIZEE X
Estimated rental value US$13.1
(per sg.m. per month) (equivalent to
RMB92.00)
HEHEEE(8FHAER) 13137
(HBER
AR¥92.007T )
Term yield 6.75%
FHIE =
Reversionary yield 7.25%
B8O X
Long term vacancy rate 10.00%

REOZEEX
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Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Under the term and reversion method, fair value is measured
by taking into account the rental income derived from the
existing lease with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the lease, which is then capitalised into the value
at appropriate rates.

The term value was estimated based on the existing rent, the
tenancy period as stated in the lease agreement and the yield
during the term period (tenancy period). The reversionary
value was estimated based on the market rents, the market
yield and the reversionary periods.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of
the investment property. A significant increase/(decrease) in
the long-term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation
would result in a significant decrease/(increase) in the
fair value of the investment property. Generally, a change
in the assumption made for the estimated rental value is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the rent
growth per annum and the discount rate and an opposite
change in the long-term vacancy rate.
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DFEER(E)

REBFHRERE, RFEDEARR
BFRAOELENESWA, WEEHAM
MHEBEERERKRA, RRIZEZER
X FELHEEMER,

EHEEDREAEGHMFTANERA
He., BRERFHA(ES ) EHREEG
ito EREENREMERS. mEE
HERLERHMHE

R HEEEATSHESFEREER
Rig L7 TR ) S EBEREMEN D
FEXEEM OB ). RBMEEXRK
BRIRREBEBAME L7 T ) EHIR
EMENLTFERERD (EMN), —
RiME, At HEEEELNRERE
BRE, HeFERERMBAXHAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥ R B

31 December 2024

—FCNFETA=

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15. FHEEE

2024 —E-E
Land use
rights  Buildings Total
T HhfE FARE BF Fob
US$’ 000 US$’ 000 US$’ 000
=TT EpH ET
At 1 January 2024, net of RZEZWMFE—H—H,
accumulated depreciation B EFHTE 59,591 18,954 78,545
Additions NE 936 5,745 6,681
Depreciation provided during FAFHRITE
the year (1,722) (4,581) (6,303)
Exchange realignment M 34 8 B (866) (296) (1,162)
At 31 December 2024 R-E-_MFE+-_A=+—H 57,939 19,822 77,761
2023 —E-=F
Land use
rights Buildings Total
b R g¥ HET
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2023, net of R-_EBE-_=F—HF—H,
accumulated depreciation MR RFHTE 62,262 16,163 78,425
Additions R - 7,862 7,862
Depreciation provided during FRERTE
the year (1,641) (4,786) (6,427)
Exchange realignment D& 5 FE R (1,030) (285) (1,315)
At 31 December 2023 RZZE_=F+_A=+—H 59,591 18,954 78,545

As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s land use

rights with a carrying value of US$47,069,000 as at 31
December 2024 (31 December 2023: US$44,319,000) were
pledged to banks to secure the Group’s banking facilities (note

26).

RZZE-_WN&E+-_A=+—8, ~x5E

A—E_NFE+-—A=+—HEHEEA
47,069,000F7m( —TE-=F+-fA=
+—H. 44,319,000 7T )& T i
FAED IR FRITURESAEER R

1TRE ( FI7E26 )o
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2024
—E-WE+=A=+—H

16. BV EE

B 5 ¥R R B

Process
technology
licence Software Total
T &R Lgus et
US$’ 000 US$’ 000 US$’ 000
F=x FE7 FEx

31 December 2024 —E-NME+=A=+—H
At 1 January 2024: R-ZE-_MF—H—AQ.

Cost B#N 283,354 157,237 440,591

Accumulated amortisation R RRE

and impairment (259,547) (131,217) (390,764)

Net carrying amount AR FAE 23,807 26,020 49,827
At 1 January 2024, net of R-ZE-_mF—H—AH,

accumulated amortisation ks 2T SE MORE

and impairment 23,807 26,020 49,827
Additions NE - 4,972 4,972
Offset by government grants BT #6 B 8 (6,844) = (6,844)
Amortisation provided during F AL

the year (7,215) (8,746) (15,961)
Exchange realignment b X (193) (345) (538)
At 31 December 2024, net of RZZE-—mME+=-A=+—H,

accumulated amortisation Bk RETEE S KR E

and impairment 9,555 21,901 31,456
At 31 December 2024: RZZEZWMFE+=—A=+—H.

Cost (D% 272,416 159,844 432,260

Accumulated amortisation R RORE

and impairment (262,861) (137,943) (400,804)
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 9,555 21,901 31,456
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31 December 2023 —B-=%+=H=+—H
At 1 January 2023: RZE_=F—H—H.
Cost R AR
Accumulated amortisation 2t ERRE
and impairment
Net carrying amount REHE
At 1 January 2023, net of RZEZ=F—H—H,
accumulated amortisation Bk RETEESE SR E
and impairment
Additions NG
Offset by government grants A% BT 478 B 3K 8
Amortisation provided during FAVEL
the year
Exchange realignment b 5 R B
At 31 December 2023, net of RZZBZ=F+=A=+—8,
accumulated amortisation Bk RETEESE RORE
and impairment
At 31 December 2023: R-ZB_=F+"_HA=+—H.
Cost AR
Accumulated amortisation REEESE ORE

and impairment
Net carrying amount BREVHE

As management concluded there are impairment indicators for
long-term assets of Hua Hong Wuxi as at 31 December 2024.
Therefore, an impairment assessment was performed for the
year ended 31 December 2024. The impairment test is based
on the recoverable amounts of the CGU to which the long-term
assets is allocated. The key assumptions that management
used in the valuation can be found in note 13.

Process

technology
licence Software Total
TEFAMETA] E/hs #Et

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TET TET T=ET

270,734 147,145 417,879

(259,246) (125,647) (384,893)

11,488 21,498 32,986
11,488 21,498 32,986
17,112 12,641 29,753
- (35) (35)
(4,646) (7,702) (12,348)
(147) (382) (529)
23,807 26,020 49,827

283,354 157,237 440,591

(259,547)  (131,217)  (390,764)
23,807 26,020 49,827

HMERERR, R-T_MFE+_H
=t—H, EUEFNRBEEFLR
BFR, Ait, $BE_T_MFE+—
A=+—RALFEET TREN G, M
BEARAANTERPEENREELEN
M REeEAER, BEERFGET
ERANEERRZHMEI,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mionr o RS ERAR MY EE

17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. REFE R RNRE
2024 2023
—E-NE —E=F
US$’000 US$'000
EYe FETT
Carrying amount BREE 139,799 139,099
Particulars of the material associate are as follows: TEBENTIEHBOT.
Percentage Percentage
of equity of voting
Place of Paid-in interest power
registration and capital attributable held by
Name of company business EHRA to the Group the Group  Principal activities
RMB'000 REE N AEETEs
NGRS BrRkEEmE ARETT kEE L KRERASL FTEEK
Shanghai Huahong Technology PRC/Mainland 548,000 50% 40% Technology
Development Co., Ltd. China development and
(“Huahong Technology HE FEA investment
Development”) R RIEE
PEEIRRERARRE
(IR |)
Shanghai Huahong Investment PRC/Mainland 480,000 20% 20% Investment
Development Co., Ltd China ®E
(“Huahong Investment R A

Development”)
PREIREERER A

([EFEMIREER )
The Group’s voting power held and profit sharing arrangement REBABEIRERFANIRER
in relation to Huahong Technology Development are 40% and KomF D IR L 7 Bl /40% £ 50%

50%, respectively.

The Group'’s shareholdings in the associates are held through REBFEBRRFNEETRARFAEZ
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. g N Rl AR A
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17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17. REFE R RINIRE( & )
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TREME B E RERE R
information of Huahong Technology Development and RIBI S E R

Huahong Investment Development:

Huahong Technology Huahong Investment
Development Development
AT RHRER EMMREER
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F —E-ME —E-=F
+=A=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H +=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
EP FET EY FET
Current assets MENEE 15,495 24,581 8,847 8,917
Non-current assets ~ FERENEE 313,339 295,158 89,635 115,646
Current liabilities mENEE (62,126) (63,265) (348) (169)
Non-current liabilittes ZERENE & (23,714) (22,763) (6,625) (13,177)
Net assets FEE 242,994 233,711 91,509 111,217
Reconciliation to the NS BB A A
Group’s interest Rt IR .
in the associate:
Proportion of the PINCSET) N /NG|
Group’s interest B FEz= b 171
in the associate 50% 50% 20% 20%
Carrying amount of & &REE
the investment 121,497 116,856 18,302 22,243
Huahong Technology Huahong Investment
Development Development
AT RHRER EMMREER
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F —E-ME ZT=F
+=A=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H +=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
EP FET EY F=ET
Revenue WA 26,610 51,500 804 811
Profit/(loss) for the FRmF( B8 )~
year 12,848 13,341 (14,825) 12,797
Other comprehensive HM2ME( &8 )/
(loss)/income Wz - = (3,315) 6,760
Total comprehensive FRZEKE
income/(loss) (518 4R

for the year 12,848 13,341 (18,140) 19,657
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Equity investments designated at fair value & &Z A FETA
through other comprehensive income:

Listed equity investments EHRARE
Unlisted equity investments FEMRAIEE
Total #Et

Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, primarily including an unlisted equity
investment in Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Huali”) with a carrying amount of US$269,139,000,
were irrevocably designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income as the Group considers the investment
to be strategic in nature.

R—A—HA&KEE

Carrying amount at 1 January N
Additions NE
As at 31 December A—A=+—8

The Group’s properties under development are recognised in
leasehold land situated in Mainland China.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’'s properties under
development with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately US$90,275,000 (31 December 2023:
US$86,565,000) were pledged to secure bank and other
borrowings granted to the Group (note 26).
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2023
—E-=F
US$’000

TR

Hip 2 ERamIBRARE

2,429
268,077

270,506

EEARAFEA A LM SRS
A& £ ZRIERMEA269,139,0003%

M=

S

it ==

T EEENMETERAR £
A NEZEEMRARE, MAKER
ZERE T A HEMIETE RIE N FER
AEMEERE, DTHRZEREABR
B,

2023
—E-=F
US$'000
FE

134,723
44,105

178,828

AEEBRTFOENFTEANMEE L
AR

R-ZZE_WME+-_A=+—H, K&
B 2R R Y R E (5 490,275,000
86,565,0003 7T ) E IR UIREUR F 4~
S BIRIT R EABEFR( KIEE26 )

— T —
=
—_—= —
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20.

31 December 2024

—EToNFE+ZRA=

INVENTORIES 20. ZE
2024 2023
—E_E —E-=F
US$’ 000 US$'000
=TT FET
Raw materials =M 256,417 261,359
Work in progress pest-dh 214,623 149,321
Finished goods IR Gh 70,696 111,912
541,736 522,592
Provision for inventories FERHE (74,676) (72,843)
Total HRET 467,060 449,749

21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 21. EGERFIEREREE

2024 2023
—E_UE —E-=F
US$’ 000 US$'000
EH FET
Trade receivables B S5 EWGRIE 225,682 214,414
Notes receivables eSS 47,535 66,951
273,217 281,365
Impairment of trade receivables 5 REWEIRRE (2,756) (2,696)
Net carry amount BREFE 270,461 278,669

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit and the credit period is generally 30 to 150 days.
There is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are

non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables, based
on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

AEERERFNESEHUEES
x, EEH—MRAEI0E150Kk, NEE
WESEAEFEERRKR, NEBWE
HE S RKFIBESHEREEAERDK
EREMEERAEE. B RWIE

REBo

E%TEHEI‘{IU SRR R EWE
BB EEEE MERRSITIT.

2024 2023

—E-ME —ZT-=F

US$’ 000 US$’000

EpH FET

Within 3 months 31E A AR 229,151 232,485
3 to 6 months 3Z6f@H 33,918 43,762
Over 6 months but within one year BEANEAER—FA 7,392 2,422
Total HET 270,461 278,669
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The movements in loss allowance for impairment of trade and
bills receivables are as follows:

At 1 January R—H—H
Impairment losses, net (note 6) BIEEEFEE( MI5E6 )
Exchange realignment M 5 SR B

As at 31 December R+=-—A=+—8

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss for all trade and notes receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade and notes receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The expected credit losses have also
incorporated forward-looking information. The expected credit
loss rates for trade and notes receivables that were not yet
past due or aged within 3 months are minimal.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geographical region, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written
off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:
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B 5 [ W BB N U E R (B S 1R
RIEBINT .

2023
—E-=F
US$'000
FET

1,591

1,120
(15)

2,696

AEEFEBEBM B RELENFEIRET
R ERREEERZBTE, &%
AISeFFELAT A B 5 IR IR R B R &
REEEAFEDNENER, RHER
HEEEBR, B5REFAREREE
ERERFE SRR R AR BT
T, FHMEEBRITESRELESR
o MABHMRE R3MEAARNES
ERFIR R BN ENEMERRAX
R1K,

NEHmE B RRABBEEEEETRED
W, UstBRBEEEE, BEXDE
REBBEUEREANZEEF 2 #A
A BNz, EmEi. BPEL NG
. AREREXEAMEARERRR
ARBES D JHAPRBET, %8
REBRMELER. EEHERNES
RSN ERMBESEA. AR
REREBEGFRTERNEERASEER,
—RMmE, WEZEEFEAMELS—
FRBAZRNAHIATES, BTHR
HEHo

TXESIAKE B ERETEE
S YIRS AR O R B
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21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 2. ESRNREREWREE(E )
(continued)
The credit quality of the trade and bills receivables is as BHRWFIBEREKREENEEEEN
follows: T
As at 31 December 2024 R=ZB-ME+=-A=+—H
Past due
HIHA
Less than 3to6 Over 6
Current 3 months months months Total
BNE  ADRA3@EA 3Z6fR G6fEAMNL et
Expected credit BEEEEEE
loss rate 0.06% 1.52% 27.80% 100.00% 1.01%
Gross carrying IREARE( T3X7T)
amount (US$'000) 248,688 19,874 3,273 1,382 273,217
Expected credit TBHEEEE
losses (US$'000) (F%71) 161 303 910 1,382 2,756
As at 31 December 2023 N-—B-_=%+=-A=+—H
Past due
180 HA
Less than 3to6 Over 6
Current 3 months months months Total
BNy DR3EA 3Z6MEA 6EAMNLE A&t
Expected credit TEREEmEEX
loss rate 0.06% 1.45% 28.57% 100.00% 0.96%
Gross carrying BREAME(TET)
amount (US$'000) 273,399 5,505 14 2,447 281,365
Expected credit TERREEEE
losses (US$'000) (F%=5T) 165 80 4 2,447 2,696
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Other receivables HAbEYRIE
Prepayments and other assets TERTRIE R B A & =
Value-added input tax EET TN EE
Impairment of other receivables HAb ERIERE
Total st

Other receivables are repayable on demand.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

At 1 January n—H—H
Exchange realignment b 5 SR B
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—~1

The Group applies a general approach in calculating ECLs for
other receivables. Other receivables related to debtors that
are in default are classified as Stage 3 and the lifetime ECL
rate was estimated to be 100% based on historical credit loss
experience, resulting in an impairment balance of US$879,000
(2023: US$888,000). The remaining other receivables are
classified as Stage 1 without any significant increase in credit
risk tracked since initial recognition. Their recoverability was
assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors,
and the expected credit losses as at 31 December 2024 and
2023 were considered to be insignificant.
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2023
—E=F
US$’000
FET
12,520
11,393
10,796
34,709
(888)

33,821

H At EYSIRAIR BRIEE,
B

{8 MR 3K IR AL 18 9 1
T

18 0 & B 40

2023
—E=F
US$'000
TE

899
(11
888

REBRA—MFATEEMEWRIE

MIBEEEEIE, BELNBEEAMRBD
Hib e BREAE =B, RIEE
S EEBELRETEHEREEER
EE5100%, EREL#AF879,000%
TT( T =%, 888,000%E7T ), H&
Hib e AR EASE B, BWS
WEREBBHNEERR I ST E AL
moﬁTW@&%%1ﬁAME%ﬁ%
FE, MA-E-_NER T -=F+
A=t BANEHEEERERAT
N8
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Cash and bank balances He MIRTTHES

Time deposits TE BRfE 5K
Subtotal /NEt
Less: W
Pledged deposits [T
Others HAtb
Cash and cash equivalents Re RAEEEY

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to US$3,786,750,000 (2023:
US$4,849,390,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between seven days and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

2023
—E-=F
US$’000
TFET

4,638,292
978,977

5,617,269

(32,061)
(27)

5,685,181

RBRERR, ~EEMRS RIBITES
AR EBHFERTIAARE (] AR |)
=HE, /53,786,750,000%7T( —E ==
. 4,849,390,0003% 7T ), ARMEART
BRERAHEMEE, A, RIEHE
WA INEBIRIRMI ) R (4R, BE
RAEEERBE ), NEBEBESBER
ERRINEXBHRITHEARBLRA
Hipb &,

RITREDHREEF ARITERN XIZF
AR B, MMNERERIDETA
SENNKBREHBTLRPLRE=EA
T, RERHE HEREO M R EREA
Bo BITAEBRNITFRNEERIFBIH
I #8528 D RCERRIRTT o
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24. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Group as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

31 December 2024
—A= |

T A

B 5 ¥R R B

24. B G ENRIA

RBEYRZEZ A, ~KEES
e RIBEVEREE DATIAT .

2024 2023
—E-mEF —ET=F

US$’000 US$'000

Ep FET

Within 1 month 1{E A AR 151,190 149,116
1 to 3 months 1 31E A 70,474 42579
3 to 6 months 326{EA 16,758 16,166
6 to 12 months 6= 121 A 22,776 11,158
Over 12 months 12{E A A E 37,174 16,391
Total 5T 298,372 235,410

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days.

EHRMNFRBREER. Tt R—K
MRI0ORZEB0KRHRALES

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. HihENREREHEH
2024 2023
—ZET-ME TR =F
US$’000 US$'000
ES FET
Other payables and accruals E AR SRIARE B A 690,101 251,248
Contract liabilities EHaE 107,631 86,545
Payroll and bonus payables JER S & RAEAL 82,682 92,658
Others Hh 33 27
Total #Et 880,447 430,478

Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
repayable on demand.

As at 1 January 2023, the carrying amount of contract liability
was US$192,588,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, contract liabilities
of US$86,545,000 (2023: US$192,588,000) at the beginning of
the year were recognised as revenue. The increase in contract
liabilities in 2024 was mainly due to the increase in short-term
advances received from customers in relation to the sale of
semiconductor products.

Hip B RIRERR,. RERARER

RHER

R-E-_=F—HF—H, A4YEEBENE
M1 A192,588,0003% 7T,

BHE T -_WF+_-_A=+—HIF
E, 186,545,000k L( —E=-=
£, 192,588,000 7T ) M4 4 B (EHHE
REWA, RZE_NFHAELNBEIE
MEERAREHEEFEREREHEN
FEREHREAFIE N,
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31 December 2024

—E-F+=—A=+—H

26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

26. Tt EERITIER

2024
—ENF
Effective
interest rate
(%) Maturity US$’000
BRERIZE(%) 23 Ev
Current TE
Current portion of long-term K EFSRITE KA BN ER 1.20 — 6.40 2025 280,704
bank loans — secured 2r — HEHF 1.20%6.40 —E-RF
Total — current @et — RE 280,704
Non-current FERED
Secured bank loans BHEMIBITEN 1.20 - 6.40 2026-2033 1,696,011
1202640 —T-RF-_-F==
Unsecured bank loans B IRIRITE K 2.00 - 2.51 2026-2033 221,224
2.00£251 —TE-ARE-—-B==
Total — non-current et - IEmE 1,917,235
Total BET 2,197,939
2023
—E-=F
Effective
interest rate
(%) Maturity US$'000
BEBRFIE (%) ZI|HR FET
Current i
Current portion of long-term  KEIRITEZAIRNER 1.20 - 5.50 2024 193,035
bank loans — secured 2Br — HEHF 1.20&5.50 —EpULE
Total — current HET - mED 193,035
Non-current FERED
Secured bank loans BEMIETER 1.20 - 5.50 2025-2033 1,786,526
1208550 —ZE-_FF - —_T==F
Unsecured bank loans HEIIRIRTTER 2.00 2025-2033 120,000
200 —E-RHF-_—T==%F
Total — non-current et - 3EmE 1,906,526
Total BET 2,099,561
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31 December 2024

B 5 ¥R R B

—ZE U ‘ 7/17 T f
26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 26. st EBITER( & )
(continued)
2024 2023
—ET-MF —E=F
US$’ 000 US$'000
Er FET
Analysed into: baR) =T
Bank loans repayable: JEEEIRITE R
Within one year —FR 280,704 193,035
In the second year F_F 420,860 266,809
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZEFRF
(BREERME) 1,041,487 989,585
After five years AF% 454,888 650,132
Total 4t 2,197,939 2,099,561
Except for bank loans of US$697,271,000 (2023: $2697,271,000( T( —Z T ==
US$446,551,000) which are denominated in RMB, all 446,551,0003 7T )R TEZRIAARE
borrowings are dominated in United States dollars. FHESD, Fﬁﬁ1ﬁ§ﬁ\ﬂb{%7_ﬁﬁ@o
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, certain of the Group's RZEZWFER_F=_=F+=-A=+
bank loans were secured by pledges of the Group’s assets —H, AEEMNE TRITERHERAR
with carrying values as follows: SENEEEER, EENKREEN
T
2024 2023
—E_EF —E-=F
Notes US$’000 US$'000
Hfat ETT F=T
Property, plant and equipment M. BEKREE 13 2,064,974 1,487,211
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 47,069 44,319
Properties under development BERPYIFE 19 90,275 86,565
Total #EEt 2,202,318 1,618,095
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HEAE
2024 2023
—ET-MF —E=F
US$’ 000 US$'000
Ep FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BRERAE 22,205 19,348
Additions NE 5,745 7,862
Accretion of interest B 0 1,061 1,068
Payments (BN (5,694) (5,674)
Exchange realignment M 5 SR B (337) (399)
Carrying amount at 31 December RtTtZA=+—HB®HEREE 22,980 22,205

The maturity profile of lease liabilities as at 31 December 2024

HERER _FT_WNF+-_A=1+—H

is as follows: REERIE RN T .

2024 2023

—S-NE —EC=F

US$’ 000 US$’000

ES FE

Within one year —FR 5,828 3,981
In the second year FF 3,465 2,554
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-ZFhE(BDEEEMTF) 7,550 7,663
After five years A& 10,066 12,771
Total undiscounted lease liabilities AR E B EMRE 26,909 26,969
Discount amount ALIREE (3,929) (4,764)
Total present value of lease liabilities HEaBENRRE 22,980 22,205
Current portion BNERER 5> 4,912 3,076
Non-current portion JERNHAER 18,068 19,129
2024 2023

—E-mE T =F

US$’ 000 US$’000

EPw FET

Analysed into: XV =%

Within one year —FR 4,912 3,076
In the second year FE-F 2,737 1,742
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZEERT(BEEREMTE) 5,948 5,755
After five years hFiE 9,383 11,632
Total present value of lease liabilities HEBBENRIRE 22,980 22,205




28. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:
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Dccombu 2024
W/ \

8. IEAEBL TR

BrEE R R MY EE

FRAREHARBREENEFHNT.

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEBE
Difference of
fixed
Fair value Fair value gain assets between
gains on onan accounting Right-
financial investment  Withholding and tax of use
investments property tax basis assets Total
SRREN  REWEN ETEER  (XRE
NHERE  ATEKE L gE2 BE st
US$'000 US$000 US§000 US§000  US$000  US§000
TET TET TET TEr  FEr TEn
At 1 January 2023 RZZ_=f-A-AR - 590 41,268 3,621 2424 47903
Deferred tax charged/(credited) o~ ERHE /(3 A JERH
profit or loss during the year EIERA( F3E10)
(note 10) - 16 (11,676) (565) 461 (11764)
Deferred tax charged to other ERMBEMZEYEN
comprehensive income during EIEHE
the year 0,749 - - - - 10,749
Exchange realignment R (335) (10) = (65) (42) (452)
Gross deferred tax liabilties RZZZ=F+ZA=1-H
as at 31 December 2023 BREHER RS 10,414 596 29,592 2,991 2843 46436
At 1 January 2024 A\=Z-mF—-F—H 10,414 596 29,592 2,991 2,843 46,436
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to  FR( A )/ MEEEHN
profit or loss during the year ERERIA( M310)
(note 10) - 6)  (19,443) (685) 175 (19,959)
Deferred tax charged to other FRINALMZ AR
comprehensive income during BIEHE
the year 1,199 - - - - 1,199
Exchange realignment E)ﬂ’f%% (257) ) - (37) (45) (348)
Gross deferred tax liabiliies “ZNETZA=T-A
as at 31 December 2024 Luﬂlﬁ’é Ee@ 11,356 581 10,149 2,069 2973 27,38
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The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Deferred tax is not recognised in respect of the Group's
investments in associates where the Group is able to control
the timing of remittance or other realisation and where
remittance or realisation is not probable in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate temporary differences relating to
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities arising on investments in
associates is US$88,327,000 (2023: US$86,825,000).

REBERNPEAMKIHNZEFA
AR N\F-HA-—HEELENEN
Py I BB BN TR T o el R B P 3
HINEIR B PTB R AR R A
%E, AIEEEREBENEMHE,

R ) i) L B BRI A+ e B 3 48 B s A 1]
PSR,

EASBE AT AR E AR IRER
R AEM S R ERAERE, URR
A RARRERKEROEE TR, K&
B TentERERRELETE, B
BN E NI EEAERNRERIELER
HEEzERER4% 588,327,003 T
(ZE=—=%. 86,825,000 T ),
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31 December 2024

—ECHET=H=1—|
28. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 28. IEIEFIIE( /B
Deferred tax assets BIETIBE B
Write-down of Fair value
inventories and loss on
impairment of Lease financial ~ Government
receivables Accruals liabilities investments grants Total
FEHRR SRRER
EYFERE  ERER  HEEE AHEERE  BER b
US$1000 US$000 US$000 US$1000 US$1000 US$000
TE TEL TEL TE TEL TEL
At 1 January 2023 R-Z-=F
—R—H 2,864 6,465 2,815 3,879 4677 20,700
Deferred tax credited/(charged) o~ FR:FA /(318 B

profit or loss during the year FEIERIE( HEE10)

(note 10) 571 (1,715) 488 - (250) (906)
Deferred tax charged to other FERMALMEEYE

comprehensive income during MIEIERIR

the year - - - (3,879) . (3879)
Exchange realignment R (45) (139) (49) - (80) (313)
Gross deferred tax assets R-B-=%

as at 31 December 2023 TZA=T—AEL

REAERR 3,390 4,611 3,254 - 4,347 15,602
At 1 January 2024 RZE_MF

—R—H 3,390 4611 3,254 - 4,347 15,602
Deferred tax credited/(charged) o~ EMEtA /(3178 )18

profit or loss during the year MERERE( HEE10)

(note 10) 399 442 202 - (12) 1,031
Exchange realignment AR (50) (88) (52) = (63) (253)
Gross deferred tax assets R-F_MF

as at 31 December 2024 +ZA=+—REL

HEAERS 3739 4,965 3,404 - 4,272 16,380
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For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement
of financial position

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
US$26,819,000 that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising
in Mainland China of US$1,503,187,000 that will expire in
one to ten years for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Relevant deferred tax assets have not been recognised due to
improbable future taxable profits.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
US$31,628,000 (2023: US$24,916,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which the losses arose. The Group also
has tax losses arising in Mainland China of US$12,935,000
(2023: US$11,622,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can been recognised.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
the temporary differences as it is not considered probable that
the above items can been recognised.

KA RN KRR
EEFBREFE

HR2JER, ETEEHREENA
BEEAEMBIRARFEE, AT AR
BiE B EARBEREHRAGRET
BT -

2023
—E-=F
US$'000
FET

30,834

AREBRESEEANREERA
26,819,000 7T, A #EPR AR A 1EIK 8
ELEBEBNARMNRRERTEMN, &
EENMARTEAMELSNTHEEIR
1,503,187,000% 7T, R —E2+FKW/E
W, AREREARRERERF, AR
KA RE IR AR PR FE R BOE ), HO 4
ERABECHRBEE,

REBEESEEANRBEERA
31,628,000k L( Z T = =%
24,916,000 7T ), AIERHAIKEELR
BRHARRRERT AT AEEN
FA R B ) 4 2E AR A TR B 18 12,935,000 3
T ZFEZ=%F. 11,622,000F7T ), &
P — 2 T AF A B B DA 85 oK 2R B RR B0
Flo

HRNEERIEEEREEEBEZ R
FmE, BAKAEEH R A A A
R THERMHIEEER, MU EL
ZEERERREHAEEE,

HRR A LR IE R TR REFRIRER,
B B E R ZREARE R IBEE,
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31 December 2024

“EOET A=A

29. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

f

29. BURF B

B 5 ¥R R B

2024 2023

—E-NE —E=F

US$’ 000 US$'000

FEx FET

At 1 January Wn—A—H 35,017 37,714

Additions NE 69,319 18,976
Released to offsetting research and DA S5 25 R AR

development costs (5,773) (6,408)

Released to offset finance costs A AR SH B 75 B R (5,459) (3,015)

Offset with long term assets EIHREEE (35,230) (11,632)

Exchange realignment b 5, B (311) (618)

As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 57,563 35,017

The Group received government funding for several

AEENZERNEE AR SR SERF

government-sponsored projects focusing on the research and BNESEDR, ZFHEZEIRMEE
development of advanced technologies. HERT,
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. [ A<
2024 2023
—ECNE —EC=F
US$’ 000 US$'000
2o F=1
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE .
1,718,468,815 (2023: 1,716,588,694) 1,718,468,815%( — = — =14 .
ordinary shares 1,716,588,694 /% )& @ A% 4,938,457 4,933,559
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A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as
follows:

At 1 January 2023 RZTE_=F—H—
Share options exercised (note (a))
Shares issued (note (b))

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 R-ZF =

Share options exercised (note (a))
At 31 December 2024 R-ZTB_MFE+ZH=+—H

Notes:

(a)

The subscription rights attaching to 1,880,000 (2023: 2,002,000)
share options under the 2018 Options were exercised at the
subscription prices of HK$15.056 and HK$17.952 per share
(2023: HK$15.056 and HK$17.952 per share), resulting in the
issue of 1,880,000 (2023: 2,002,000) shares for a total cash
consideration of US$3,683,000 (2023: US$3,878,000). An amount
of US$1,215,000 (2023: US$1,248,000) was transferred from the
share option reserve to share capital upon exercise of the share
options.

On 7 August 2023, the Company was listed on the SSE STAR
Market. By way of the share issuance, 407,750,000 ordinary
shares of the Company were subscribed with gross proceeds
of RMB21,203 million (equivalent to US$2,974 million). After
deducting issuance costs, including underwriting fees and
other issuance costs, the net proceeds were RMB20,921 million
(equivalent to US$ 2,934 million), which resulted in an increase of
RMB20,921 million (equivalent to US$2,934 million) in the share
capital of ordinary shares.

1715 B AR A Bﬁﬁf(a)
BT ( FizE(b) )

\A] o 2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#E

ARBBARESBERIT -

F+-—A=+—HEFK
—E-OF—H—H
ITE BRI ( fiRE(a) )

Kt

(@)

1,306,837 1,994,462

2,002 5,126

407,750 2,933,971

1,716,589 4,933,559

1,880 4,898

1,718,469 4,938,457
RIE=ZF— \FHERK#E, 1,880,0001D
(T - =4. 2,002,0001) )BEM
A2 REBECIERBESR15.056

BTk BR17.952FB T T ==
F. F15.0568 T R FX17.9527%
JC )171E, 3% 3171,880,000/%( =
T =4, 2,002,0000% )i&1n, #&IR
£ HREA3,683,000kL( T =
. 3,878,000% 7T ), BREEITEE
1%, 1,215,000%m T =F,
1,248,000 7T )FUAELD RIEBIREREE
BERA,

%fyf—ij\ﬂta ARARRER
FrftaItR i, BBBITRMA A,
ANAF 407,750,000 f% L 3@A% 2 R
8, FTSBEREAARE2120368
TC( HER2974AEETT ), KK
TR BIEESHER R EMBEITER )
{é TS g A AR 20, 9215%%
(HHER2,934EEFET), FiLEEE
f& 718 hn A R # 20,921 Eﬁﬁ,ﬁ( HER
2,934 HEZETT )o
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The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. The Scheme includes two batches, each of which
was effective on 4 September 2015 (the “2015 Options”) and
on 24 December 2018 (the “2018 Options”), respectively.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company's
directors, including a non-executive director, an executive
director and other employees of the Group. The share options,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 7 years from the respective effective dates.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
Independent Non-Executive Directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences after a vesting
period of two to five years and ends on a date which is not
later than the expiry date of the Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer of the share options; and (i) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

BRAE HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 383

NABIHRE —EBRETE ([ &%
gl ]), BEEAEASEIENZEREME
Bz A BB HEERNE X EE,
ZErgEln AWML, 82K —H
FNAMB( ZE—hFERE | K=
T-N\F+_AZF+WA([ ZF—N\F
FEARKE | ) EW, ZtElz e AR H
ERRARAES(BRE—RIENTE
. —EBRTES I KAKEEMES,
BRIESHWEUEHISE], ZEBRER A
BN A BRRET 7 FAE K,

RS AT AR IR FZ AT B 2 RAT{E R AR A
HETHBBBZEERETEREARAR
EAIRE BT 2 10%, FEA
—EAHME, ZTESFEARKRES
RIZIER R ER T2 RO E NGB
BARNTHEMBRD ZBTIRD 2 1%, #
— R FRBORE  BRERZERE
FERERARE B,

AARBEE, RSITHRAEBRTIER
RERF 2 EMBEA LR THIREER
ERMGELIFNTESE, UL,
fie & PMER+ — (@ A8, HTFARF
FTERRIBIIFATESTARESE
ZIEMBBALTZBEREBLARFIE
R RE TR 2 0.1% K ABE( RIE
B EEARRBRMDERFTE BasH
BB, MIAEAERRAS LREK
Rt

ERLBREZTENBESRE, I
K2R FREHRFGA R Zat 8
[z BRTA 1L,

BREZITEERBESERE, TR
PRUATMEZ&ESE: ()\ARRED
R TREBER ARz BmHE;
R (i AR RN R EEF A B HIA R E
R 5 BEBR AT FEHRTHIE,



384  HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED ZFE4TH-EEEFR AT o 2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE e

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBmRMEE T

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31.

There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group
does not have a past practice of cash settlement for these
share options. The Group accounts for the Scheme as an
equity-settled plan.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

2018 Options
The following 2018 Options were outstanding during the year:

BRERTEI(E)

FAEBEURGHEE, AEBEBRELE
DR HEEZEBRE, ~EESZt
S ERRaREEEIARK,

BRAEY SEM S Al S B AEBREH
REERAZ RN,

“E-N\FRRE
FA, ATBEERARE-Z—/\F
BRI TIE -

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=4F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price Number price Number
HKS$ per of options HK$ per  of options
share 000 share ‘000
hn¥EF1g IS
TEE BREHE IfE  MEAREHE
BRAET T BRBTT Tt
At 1 January n—H—H 15.329 21,422 15.318 23,438
Exercised during the year FRTTE 15.272 (1,880) 15.184 (2,002)
Forfeited during the year F 2 UL 16.709 (205) 16.382 (14)

At 31 December Rt+—-—A=+—8” 15.320

19,337 15.329 21,422
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

2018 Options (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the 2018 Options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as

31 December 2024
TEMEFZA= \

B 5 ¥R R B

31. BT &I 4 )

—B— EHRE )
R IR = T — )\ EBREE Tk
(HERB RO T (B RATEE T

follows:
2024 2023
—EF —E-=F
Number of Number of Exercise
options options price* Exercise period
EREHE HBAR S B THEE> 1THEH
’000 '000  HKS per share
T4 F1n BRET
24 December 2020 to 23 December 2025
5,273 5,883 15.056 —E_TF+_A-+WHBE-_T_RAF+-_A=-+=H
24 December 2021 to 23 December 2025
3,263 3,872 15.056 —E=—F+-_A=-+MWBEE=-FE-_AF+=-A=+=H
24 December 2022 to 23 December 2025
8,179 8,788 15.056 - —F+-_A=-+MNMBEE=FE-_AF+=-A=+=H
24 December 2023 to 23 December 2025
925 925 15.056 —E-=F+-_A=-+WNMBEE=-FE-_AF+=-A=+=H
29 March 2021 to 28 March 2026
63 63 18.400 —F=ZA-t+hBE-_ZE-_F=A=-+N\H
29 March 2022 to 28 March 2026
125 125 18.400 TR CF-AZt+hREZZE-AF=A=+NHRH
29 March 2023 to 28 March 2026
125 125 18.400 —E=F=ZA-t+NABE_ZE-_AF=A-F+NH
29 March 2024 to 28 March 2026
125 125 18.400 —ECNF=A -+ NABE_Z - AF=A-F+NH
23 December 2021 to 22 December 2026
125 211 17952 — - —F+-_A-+=AE T ~H+-_A—-+—-H
23 December 2022 to 22 December 2026
508 594 17952 — - —F+-_A-+=HE-_ZT - "Ft+-A=-+—H
23 December 2023 to 22 December 2026
551 636 17.952 — B - =F+-A-+=RE-F-_~F+=-A=+=H
23 December 2024 to 22 December 2026
75 75 17.952 —E-NF+_A=+=HE=F-_"F+=-A=+=H
19,337 21,422

the Company’s share capital.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in

Y WEETEREAIRET, HAREZ
BREFRMBIELNE), ABREZTTE
18 A 75
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2018 Options (continued)
The Group recognised a share option expense of the 2018
Options of US$18,000 (2023: US$853,000) during the year.

The 1,880,000 (2023: 2,002,000) share options exercised
under the 2018 Options during the year, resulted in the
issue of 1,880,000 (2023: 2,002,000) ordinary shares of the
Company for a total cash consideration of US$3,683,000
(2023: US$3,878,000). An amount of US$1,215,000 (2023:
US$1,248,000) was transferred from the share option reserve
to share capital upon the exercise of the share options, as
further detailed in note 30 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
19,337,000 2018 Options outstanding. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 19,337,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of US$50,432,000 (including US$12,268,000
transferred from the share option reserve to share capital).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 12,382,480 2018 Options outstanding, which
represented approximately 0.72% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

—E-N\EEREE)
AEEBRFRAREBE-_ZT—\FHERE
MR AERI ST 18,000k T( — T - =
. 853,000%7T )

FR, ZT—/\FEREIET 1,880,000
BB -=4. 2,002,000 )R HE
HEITE, BB REETT1,880,000/%
(ZZT-=%. 2,002,000 )E@EM,
IR &K E 43,683,000 L( —F =
=4 . 3,878,000%E 7T ), 205K M
IS0 — S, BREETFER,
1,215,000 0( —E —=%. 1,248,000
ET)NRBECHEREREEREER
ZKO

RIEEAR, AQAHEA 19,337,000
MHERTEN S NFERE, B
BANGIRNNEAZLE, BEITEN
RITEMBRE TG BEEINETT
19,337,000 A% A5 B] 3 38 A% K2 32 ANk 7R
50,432,000 70 ( BIEHRERERFEE
B =R AR 12,268,0005 7T )

RIEZ ST HHRETBE, A a#E
12,382,480 MR/ TEM =T — \FiE
BEHE, 1G3% BEIR R BB EBITRD L
0.72%,
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The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 306 to
307 of the financial statements.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, which are applicable to
the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, profits of the PRC
subsidiaries, as determined in accordance with the applicable
accounting rules and regulations in the PRC, are available
for distribution in the form of cash dividends to the Company
after the PRC subsidiaries have (1) satisfied all tax liabilities;
(2) provided for losses in previous years; and (3) made
appropriations to the statutory reserve funds. The Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to appropriate not less
than 10% of their profit after taxation to the statutory reserve
funds until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their registered
capital.

2HMR A7 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED
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REBRAEE LB FERNHERIE
R E) S RN 53R 306 =307 B4R
AREZEFHERAZI,

RETEBRBIABEECENERIZE
BROBRARARRNFETFATF ), BER
EMEH BRI RRGIEE A E
FREREN, AIRFEFAB)EN
FRERBAE, QMEEFERBREL
B, ROBEAERBEIELBRERA
BEeREHEARARTHEL DK, AD
AP BEFRABAS BN RERBR
BAE10REREERHEES, BEERE
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As lessor

The Group leases its investment property (note 14) to Shanghai
Huali, under an operating lease arrangement, with a lease
term of 20 years. The terms of the lease generally also require
the tenant to provide for periodic rent adjustments according
to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was US$14,210,000
(31 December 2023: US$14,259,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2024 and 2023, undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods under
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenant are as follows:

Within one year —FR

After one year but within two years —FRERMEA
After two years but within three years MFERER=ZFNA
After three years but within four years —FREREOENR
After four years but within five years MEEEREFER
More than five years tBB A F

Total #Et

As lessee

The Group has various lease contracts for land use rights,
offices and dormitory properties used in its operation. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land
from the owners with lease periods of 42 to 50 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of offices and dormitory properties generally
have lease terms between 2 and 20 years. Generally, the
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets outside the Group.

EREHEA
AEBRE-HEEHEREE, BHE
B4 )BHE T EEEN, B
HB20F . Z ARG — MR I AR E &
BARKEER TR EHHESARIED
BiE, AEERFRERNEERAR
14,210,000%L( ZE=Z=F+=HA=
+—H. 14,259,000% 7T ), EFBEHR
B SRR 55,

RZE_NER T -_=F+_A=+
— B, AREERBETAIBEEERLIR
R EWRER AR AE MK
R,

2023
—E-=F
US$'000
FET

13,884
13,884
13,884
13,884
13,884
17,097

86,517

ERABEA
AEEHERREEREENTHFER
E.MRERBEMENETHES
4, BIRRAELR XA FRIAMZEE IR
BAEE T, BN T42E50F, miR
BRETHEENIER, BTSEES
NEMFKE, HAERBEEWENTEH
BENTF2E206, —HMs, ~&5EH
TR AAEBUIIATERZR SRS
BE,
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33. LEASES (continued)

As lessee (continued)
(a) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Detailed information regarding right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities is set out in notes 15 and 27, respectively,
to the financial statements.

31 December 2024

B 5 ¥R R B

T mNFE+=—A= |
33.FHE(4E)
EBEBEA(E)

(a) EREEENREERE

HERAEEENHERBEAHNE
FHEH1E 0 BIBR B IR R I RE 15 I
27,

(b) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (b) REZFRERNEELEFAEN
leases are as follows: T

2024 2023

—EoNF —F-=F

US$’000 US$'000

=T FET

Interest on lease liabilities HERENR 1,061 1,068

Depreciation charge of

right-of-use assets FREEETERY 6,303 6,427

Expense relating to short-term leases EREEHATHE GRIMFS 2,693 2,383
Total amount recognised in

profit or loss RIEERERNB ST 10,057 9,878

Total cash outflows for leases and non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are disclosed in
note 39 to the financial statements.

(c)

34. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following contractual commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

(c) MERSRLBHENRERAEEE
MEEREMNIFRSRERNT R
RATFEIINBER

34. &I
REERRE PRGN TALEE.

2024 2023
—ET-oME TR =F
US$’ 000 US$'000
Ep F=
Contracted, but not provided for: EETA, ([BREME.
Property, plant and equipment M. WENKEE 1,187,570 1,258,232
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(a) Name and relationship (a) BHEREARE

— Hua Hong International Inc. (“Huahong International”)  20.23% shareholder of the Company

- EBRABR AR TR |) F5A%20.23% < AR EIIRER
— Shanghai Huahong Zealcore Electronics Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of Huahong Group
("Huahong Zealcore”)
- DEEMBERFEARAE([ IR |) EI £ EF QA
— Zealcore Electronics Shanghai Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of Huahong Group
(“Zealcore Shanghai”)
- DEEMBEEFREBERAR( BELLE ) EI £ EF QA
— Shanghai Hongri International Electronics Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of Huahong Group
(“Hongri”)
- P BEREFARAG(IH |) EI £ EF QA
— Shanghai Hua Hong Jitong Smart System Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of Huahong Group
(“Jitong”)
- DEEAGBRERSROBRAR( 5@ ) ZHEEF R A
— Shanghai Huali Subsidiary of Huahong Group
- bgES U EEF R A
— Shanghai Alliance Investment Ltd. (“SAIL”") Holding company of Sino-Alliance International Ltd.
- BB ERRAE ([ LG |) Sino-Alliance International Ltd. #J4Z2A% A &)
- Sino-Alliance International Ltd. (“SAIL International”) 11.00% shareholder of the Company

— Sino-Alliance International Ltd.([ SAIL International |)  #58%11.00% 2 A<~ FIIR R

Associate of the Group

REERE N A
— Shanghai Huahong Real Estate Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of Huahong Technology Development
(“"Huahong Real Estate”)
- DBEAEEBRAR([ELEX ) FEHREERT AR
— Shanghai Huajin Property Management Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of Huahong Technology Development
(“Huajin”)

- EBERMETEARAG([EEH ) EOMRERT AR
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(b) Related party transactions (b) BEAEER §5 o
The Group had the following material transactions with jg%ﬁéimagﬁi%%ﬁﬁﬁ PATH
related parties during the year: BARS:

2023
—E-=F
US$'000
FET
Sales of goods to related parties mEE T N EEm( HEEG) )
(note (i)
Huahong Zealcore? T ZA R 18,495
Hongri* e 2,083
Purchases of goods from related B R 7 B E B o ( FORE() )
parties (note (ii))
Hongri# ra* 18,433
Huahong Zealcore* HE T R 801
Zealcore Shanghai® 2 g -
Jitong st 32
Purchases of intangible assets from B 5B E B E E( ki) )
a related party (note (iii))
Shanghai Huali LN 17,112
Rental income from a related R B B 5 H A S WA B EE(iv) )
party (note (iv))
Shanghai Huali* EER 13,985
Service fees charged by A 5 WA AR TS B ( B RE(v) )
related parties (note (v))
Huajin* =Rt 567
Interest expense charged by a A 7 SR RO F B S ( B EE(vi) )
related party (note (vi))
Huahong Real Estate’ Bl 709
Expense paid on behalf of a RN T AR S ( B RE(vii) )
related party (note (vii))
Shanghai Huali* g 29,026
# The related party transactions also constitute continuing # B HE T 35 2 Jh i a8 Al & -
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the VIAZE T R E BB ETERS B

Listing Rules.
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(b) Related party transactions (continued)

Note (i)

Note (ii)

Note (iii)

Note (iv)

Note (v)

Note (vi)

The sales of goods to related parties were made
according to the prices and terms agreed between the
related parties.

The purchases of goods and intangible assets from
related parties were made according to the prices and
terms offered by the related parties.

The purchases of intangible assets from a related party
were made according to the prices and terms offered
by the related party.

The rental income received from a related party was
based on the prices and terms agreed between the
related parties.

The service fees and interest expense charged by
related parties were based on the prices and terms
agreed between the related parties.

The Group entered into leases in respect of certain
dormitory properties from Huahong Real Estate. The
amount of rent payable by the Group under the leases
is US$2,544,000 per year. At 31 December 2024,
the balances of those right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities were US$16,035,000 (31 December 2023:
US$18,083,000) and US$18,848,000 (31 December
2023: US$20,790,000), respectively.

Note (vii) The expense paid on behalf of the related party is

interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b) BEBESR5(4E)

H1EE()

Kiaz i)

oga(ll)

Wizt (iv)

Kzt (v)

Ktz (vi)

IR ] B B9 & i T3 1R 5 £
BB 175 E B (B 15 R AR F
Mo

B B 78 B 6 B in RAFIZ &
ETIRIR R 7 HE ey (BIE R
1AM o

E B 7 B AT B E IR
BEBE 7 18 (R 1Y (B 15 R AR 1E
fi/()

K E BB A2 WA TR
LG 17 AIIETE R ARSI
B,

AR B R F8 B T3 B 77
WRIZEL G T 1 A9 B TR R M
S,

REEF 5t B EL & #HE H
EFBEEYET LA K
EFRHERETEMNHE
BRFED2 544,000F T, K=
E-_pmE+—_F=+—4,
ZERFHEEERHERE
#4847 Bl 516,035,000
T —FE-—=F+-/H=+
—H . 18,083,000 )
18,848,000%( ZFE==%F
+=A=+—H: 20,790,000
T )

Hiat(vi) FCREEE D X (T a9 BT X% 23 T &1

B, RERESIER,
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e BRI ERR M EE

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 35. Bt I R 2 RRASER( 78 )
BALANCES (continued)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) EEBAEES 2B R BT
2024 2023
—EomE —T=F
US$’ 000 US$'000
== FET
Amounts due from related parties & RS T3 FOR
Shanghai Huali EEET 10,074 6,933
Huahong Zealcore FEQT B 8,250 4,286
Total #Et 18,324 11,219
Amounts due to related parties FE{-I A ESE 5 5RIE
Hongri 4T H 6,455 2,126
Shanghai Huali EBER 2,445 11,304
Huahong Zealcore T 196 190
Jitong STl 18 35
Huajin B 11 221
Total #mEt 9,125 13,876
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the d) *EEXEEBEAENHS
Group
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E=F
US$’ 000 US$'000
Er FE
Short term employee benefits ySEEL =R 6,070 5,744
Pension scheme contributions BRIREFHEIHR 183 183
Equity-settled share option expense  LAREZRAEE M B MAER X 18 113
Total compensation paid to key
management personnel TRNTEZEEAENWE LT 6,271 6,040
Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in EEHME— P H BN B ®R

note 8 to the financial statements. FHIFES,
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31 December 2024
—EZME+ A=A
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

Financial assets — at amortised cost

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED ZEM[+ZEEHRAR] » 2024 ANNUAL REPORT FEHE

36. ZERIE TNEMTR

SRS T AR RS 1K 0 R E B
T

EREE - REBHIA

2024 2023

—ET-MF —E=F

US$’ 000 US$'000

ES F=T

Trade and notes receivables =) e NS et 270,461 278,669
Financial assets included in prepayments, st AJERIZIE. Hibpedkzos

other receivables and other assets MEMEENSREE

(note 22) (B¥zE22) 32,946 11,632

Due from related parties e BB 5 SRR 18,324 11,219

Pledged deposits [REE e 31,624 32,088

Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 4,459,132 5,585,181

Total = 4,812,487 5,918,789

Financial assets — at fair value through other comprehensive

income without recycling to profit or loss

EHMEE - B FEGAEMZ B K
( TRE#G ARz )

2024 2023
—E_EF —E-=F
US$’000 US$’000
ED FE

Equity investments designated at fair value 18E AR AFEAE M2 E RS
through other comprehensive income RIRRFEIR & 289,311 270,506

Financial liabilities — at amortised cost THEE - TEEA
2024 2023
—E_NEF —E-=F
US$’ 000 US$’000
ED FET
Trade payables B SN RIA 298,372 235,410
Financial liabilities included in other FFAHMENRIBEREHERN

payables and accruals (note 25) SREBE( 25 ) 690,134 251,275
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEERTTER 2,197,939 2,099,561
Due to related parties JFE 1<t BB 5 508 9,125 13,876
Total A&t 3,195,570 2,600,122
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The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group'’s financial AEESRTA(TREREELEATE
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that ABEENESRT A )NEEERATE
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: AT
2023 2023
T4 —E-=F
US$'000 US$'000
FErT FET

Equity investments B ABEATE

designated at fair FTAEAMZEME

value through other W R AR IR &

comprehensive income 270,506 270,506
Interest-bearing bank FHERITER

borrowings 1,906,526 1,911,206
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash EREDLTGHRERRSEEY. B
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and notes PEH. BSRBGIEREREE. &
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other ATBRRIERN SR EE . HAi B
receivables, trade payables, financial liabilities included in B, BSREMNFIA. stARMERNRIE
other payables and accruals, amounts due from/to related rEHERNSRAE. B ENE
parties, the current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings BRI NG ERITERREERED
and lease liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts MEHMBOATFELEERRERSE, =
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. ERHNZELAEGNE AR,
The Group’s finance department headed by the finance REBE TN BEESENMEHE
manager is responsible for determining the policies and EETemIAATEFENECRRE
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial FFo MG EERAMBEERS, NE
instruments. The finance department reports directly to the wEBH, BB MEeMIANE
chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the finance BEEYUEEHETEANFEZRAH
department analyses the movements in the values of financial B, MELRMBEESZRIUE, A
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the BERERBHEEETFARMA, U
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the ETHH R F SRR,

chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the board of directors twice a year for interim
and annual financial reporting.
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The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s
own non-performance risk for the non-current portion of
interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31 December 2024
were assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income have been
estimated using the market approach. If there is a recent
deal regarding the unlisted investments, the fair values are
estimated based on the dealing price. If there is no such deal
to be referenced, the directors will determine comparable
public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage
and strategy, and calculate an appropriate price multiple, such
as price to book value (“P/B”) multiple, for each comparable
company identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the
enterprise value of the comparable company by net assets.
The trading multiple is then discounted for considerations
such as illiquidity based on company-specific facts and
circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to the
corresponding net assets of the unlisted equity investments to
measure the fair value. The directors believe that the estimated
fair values resulting from the valuation technique, which are
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position,
and the related changes in fair values, which are recorded in
other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they
were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting
period.

CREENRABENAFERKENER
BH X5 MIFEASRREE hAR
BMABTANSREIIK, Bt FETS
EA AT EI AR R -

STRBRITERAEREB B HEH A FETD
FREAEEHEUFH. EERRRF
ERE 'JHﬁHﬁﬁﬁﬁ'JIﬂﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁf‘J?Hﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂ
ARBEREMTHE. AEBFTHER
=R ¢777m$+ A=+—HREH
B S W ERITERNIEREF D T E
AREMERN A FEZBLTEX,

BEAREZATETAEMEE W EHIIE
ERAEE 2 AFERAMSEM
H, WMEAKRZSBEARLTIRE,
RFEDERRGEME, M HEZ
ERGHAHEL2E, i%ﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁ% %ﬁ
B, PENERBEEULRETA
(A7), EREBENSATELRD

T EE ”‘E"]{EWF%( Zn T AR 2 ( Frh
BRE |)EE, E%*%Uﬂ;z—fé{tt?
RIZ X BERNVFEEMS. X5E
HEERIBER jlf—irﬁ?_%/ﬂ&ﬁﬁ/ﬂ?jig'fum
FHERZT UMK, MRESEAR
FLEMBRAKRENHBEFEENGTER
TE, EFRE, T AREGYBMRAE
B ity (B £ T BT EE AR B0 (i 5T A B DA K5t
AHMEEHKENATEEEERSES
B, MRREHRNEERARE,
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=

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Financial assets measured at fair value
31 December 2024

“metonsr o TSR MIEE

37. SR T AMAFERAFERE

;(E)

AFEER
TRETARESRIANATENE
T

BAFEH S0 MEE
—g-mE+=A=+-A

Fair value measurement using

AFEGERAUTERE

Quoted Quoted Quoted
prices prices prices
in active in active in active
markets markets markets
RERME  AERWE  RNEERmE
WHZHE WmEHRE HNHERE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE1H E28 B3R st
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FEx FTEx FTE7x FEx
Equity investments 8T AR A TERT A
designated at E 2 AR
fair value through other R E
comprehensive income - 17,390 271,921 289,311
31 December 2023 —E-=F+=ZA=t+—H
Fair value measurement using
N HEABERAATELE
Quoted Quoted Quoted
prices prices prices
in active in active in active
markets markets markets
WERTS NERmS NERMS
WHSHmE &mE®RE HmSWE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERF EPF E3k #ast
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
F=E=T F=T F=T FET
Equity investments 8T B A TERT A
designated at fair E At 2RI
value through other ERE
comprehensive income 2,429 265,128 2,949 270,506
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Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Financial assets measured at fair value (continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 (2023: Nil).

During the year 2024, there was a transfer from Level 2 to
Level 3 for an equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income with a carrying amount
of US$265,128,000 because there was no recent dealing price
to be referenced and the significant inputs used in the fair
value measurements were no longer observable.

During the year 2023, there was a transfer from Level 3 to
Level 2 for an equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income with a carrying amount
of US$174,170,000 because there was a recent dealing price
to be referenced and the significant inputs used in the fair
value measurements were observable.

DFEER(E)

B FlEGTEN 2 HEEE)
RIBEMR, AEENBRREARF
BEHRzENER,

RER, FIREF2RATEAEZH
WEER( T -_=F. 8)

RZEZOFA, BRMEER265,128,000
ELKETEAEATFEF AL MEEI
mERIEREBF2RBAEIL, AR
WA ZENHSE, B ATER
SMAERE ASIEATH R HER,

RZZTZ=FWRN, KAEEAE174,170,000
ETNEEABEAFEF AL MEERR
FHERAER A B EIRBAE 2R, AA
B SENHLE, BATYEME
FrREXR#E ASEAAIEE,
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

1 Dec

= flﬁ\f =

37.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The recurring fair value measurement for the Group's financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss was performed using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31 December
2024 and 20283. Below is a summary of the valuation technique

used and the key inputs to the valuation:

ember 2024 Zl.ﬁ&$ﬁ% M_J.*I
SMTANAFERATFEE

R(E)

DFEER(E)
ZK%@&’AWE#)\TE@M@E&%EE’U
BHAFEAEDEA T _MFER—
T =Ft-_A=+t—BHNEXTASH
R ABIE( B3R )EL,. TXRMAEE
PR A {E B N = 2 ABURBEE .

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair

technique unobservable input Range value to the input

EXFABE AHEHEAYE

fEE R BAHE EE ZHRE

Equity investments designated #EE AIZATEET A Valuation multiples  Average P/B 2024: 0.7x-3.0x 5%
at fair value through other 2 AR multiple of peers increase/decrease
comprehensive income RABRE would result in

Valuation multiples

RAxFImEE

Average P/S

multiple of peers

BE IR0 RS

Discount for illiquidity

R RBLNTEE

increase/decrease in
fair value by 5%

“TZME. 0.7%-3.0x 5%
wEm,/ wd

BEHATEEN/

w5%

2024: 3.9x-7.4x 5% (2023: 5%)

2023; 4.5%-11.9x increase/decrease

would resultin
increase/decrease in
fair value by 5%
(2023: 5%)

“EE, 39x-74x 5% ZE-ZF. 5%)
“TC=E 45x11.9x Eﬁiﬂgﬂu/ WO BEH
/A?fﬁiﬁﬂu /H5%

T 5%)
2024: 20%-30% 5% (2023: 5%)
2023: 20%-30% increase/decrease

would result in
decreasefincrease in
fair value by 5%
(2023 5%)

5% ZZEZ=%F. 5%)
i'a‘nu/ ROBER

A ﬁﬁm /E105%
(ZTZ=%. 5%)

—T-WE. 20%30%
“E=F. 20%-30%

=




400

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED FE4T-FE#HR AR o 2024 ANNUAL REPORT FEHE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR ERRMIEE o

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 7. EMT AN AFEERAFERE

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
The movements in financial assets categorised into Level 3 FRANERFILNCREESHNT .
during the year are as follows:

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) m(E)

DPEBR(E)

Equity investments
designated at fair
value through other
comprehensive

income
EERBRAFETA
Hih 2 EREH
AR E
US$’ 000
F=x
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=F—HF—H 176,190
Transfer to level 2 i AFE2M (174,170)
Total gains recognised in other REM PSRRI =858
comprehensive income 968
Exchange realignment ME 5, B (39)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 RZEZ=F+-_A=+—HEK
—E-UF—HF—H 2,949
Transfer from level 2 B2 A 265,128
Total gains recognised in other REME2ERESERN KB
comprehensive income 7,991
Exchange realignment b 3 (4,147)

As at 31 December 2024

RZEBE-_WMF+—-_A=+—H 271,921
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The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
loans, cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities, such as trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
recognised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a floating interest rate. The Group’s policy is to
manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate
debts.

As at 31 December 2024, if the interest rates had been 100
basis points higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
profit before tax for the year would have been US$20,053,000
lower/higher (31 December 2023: US$17,524,000), mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate bank
borrowings.
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REBNTELH I ABRTRITER.
RENREHEHR, ZFeRTANTE
REDAAEENEESELEED, &A%
BExREFEEEEEENEMSRE
BEREE, WESHREAEUKGIA
MBS REA RN FTIE,

$E@i@1ﬂ%3$m1y@ﬁﬁﬂ
Rk, SRR, EERRMREE

iﬂMo %2%J&%EE@XW?
FEBREIER, B RBERBERN T X,

R =E b
AEEEBED SN XESNER, T2
SR B B KRG BRITIE KB R,
AEBNBRASEREE MM ERE
BHEAEEN B,

RZZEZWFE+ZA=+—H, WH=x
ISR A 100EE, MATBEEMES
HIRETE, S RB AT S AR A g N
20,053,000%n( —ZE==F+=-A=
+—H. 17,524,000%7T ), JHEEZEHRR
g@ﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁ*MHgﬁiﬁm&ﬁ

Lo
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Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by its significant
subsidiary operating in Mainland China in US$ other than the
subsidiary’s functional currency, which is RMB. During the
year, approximately 18% (2023: 22%) of the Group’s sales
were denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the subsidiary making the sale, whilst 61% (2023:
53%) of costs of sales were denominated in the subsidiary’s
functional currency.

In addition, the Group has currency exposures from
interest-bearing bank borrowings, held by its subsidiary
operating in Mainland China. As at 31 December 2024,
interest-bearing bank borrowings with a carrying amount of
US$1,502,330,000 (31 December 2023: US$1,653,010,000)
are dominated in United States dollars, other than the
subsidiary’s functional currency, which is RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax (arising from USD and RMB
denominated financial instruments):

Year ended 31 December 2024

If US$ weakens against RMB WX T HARKEE
If US$ strengthens against RMB fWET K AREFHE

Year ended 31 December 2023 H=E

If US$ weakens against RMB WL HAREEE
If US$ strengthens against RMB T AREHE

NS I

AEEEBR ZINERK, ZERKE
EHEERBRAMEEHNEE AR
ELETNEE, MITIENEINGEER
AREET, RFR, AEENIHERE
F4918%( ZZ == . 22% )JHLA#ETT
HENTRRIMINEEE AN B ST
B, HEEREE, HEKREF61%( ==
=4, 53% )JIAFRRIMNINAEE T
(8

o, AEBEERK B S RITERT
%MHM, Z A8 R B AR B A AT

ENTARREE, RZE-mFE+=
H£+ H, BRE{EA1,502,330,000
En(—T-_=F+=-A=+—8.
1,653,010,0002 7T ) BI5T BRI TIEFK A
EILEHE, MIEUZ TR RIMINEEE
AREEHE,

TRETEMBERMEERISTENE
AT, RREHRAEEBATGN( HBE
TRARBTHENERTARAEL JHAR
BEXNESIEA SRS HBRE .

HE_Z-_NF+_A=+—HIFE

—EC=F A=t HLEFE

5% 99,620
(5%) (99,620)
5% 47,599
(5%) (47,599)
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty cannot meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties and related parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and
notes receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, amounts due from related
parties and pledged deposits included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The
Group has no other financial assets which carry significant
exposure to credit risk.

Further qualitative and quantitative information regarding
trade receivables, for which the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs under HKFRS 9, is disclosed in
note 21 to the financial statements.

Apart from trade and notes receivables, all the carrying
amounts of financial assets at amortised cost, applying the
general approach under HKFRS 9, are classified as Stage 1 in
terms of ECLs as at 31 December 2024 in addition to the fully
impaired other receivables classified as Stage 3, as stated in
note 22 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.
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31 December 2024
—ECME+ A=A

H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. MKRAMREEEERBEE)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) ﬁﬁﬁ%@@( =) .
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at %ﬁ%%j’ Z'K%?@ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁé\%
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual AR PERAT
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
31 December 2024 =F-mF+=A=+—H
On Less than 3to 1to Over
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
REXR PR=ER =E2+=f@F -Z2EF HFUL st
US$’000  US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000  USS$’000
S TR Y TEr TEr T%r
Interest-bearing bank FERITER
borrowings 2,552 4,925 388,251 1,692,471 495,886 2,584,085
Lease liabilities HEBE 282 3,131 2,415 11,015 10,066 26,909
Trade payables EC NG 76,708 221,664 - - - 298,372
Financial liabilities included T AR bRER B
in other payables RE-ERAMN
and accruals *RAE 483,094 207,040 - - - 690,134
Amounts due to related FES BERE 5 3OR
parties 9,125 - - - - 9,125
Total fet 571,761 436,760 390,666 1,703,486 505,952 3,608,625
31 December 2023 B+ -A=+—H
On  Lessthan 3to 110 Over
demand 3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years Total
ZEXk PR=EAR ==+=@R —Z=RF "EUL @5t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FET FTET TET TET TET FET
Interest-bearing bank FTRRITER
borrowings - 1,676 283,006 1,578,487 703,782 2,566,951
Lease liabilities HEAE - 3,468 513 10,217 12,771 26,969
Trade payables B S ENFIR 43715 191,695 = = - 235410
Financial liabilities included 5 A b & ZB
in other payables RE-ERD
and accruals *RAE 175,893 75,382 = = - 251275
Amounts due to related JEE < B 5 3R
parties 13,876 - - - - 13,876
Total FeE 233,484 272,221 283,519 1,588,704 716,553 3,094,481
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Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios to support its

business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing

capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total equity plus net debt. The Group includes,
within net debt, trade payables, other payables and accruals,
interest-bearing bank borrowings, lease liabilities and amounts
due to related parties, less cash and cash equivalents. The
gearing ratios as at the end of each of the reporting periods

were as follows:

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals, excluding
contract liabilities (note 24)

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

Amounts due to related parties

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt
Total equity

Total equity and net debt

Gearing ratio

B SN IR

BErEE
AEBEAEENEERRR, #ER
SENFBREERI MERRIFNER
e, AXRHEEXBELERBREER
Kito

AEBERBEEIRA S EE R FHE
HEARE, RERIGIREARE,
AEBHSRERMN FEROBRE . A
BREREBERNKBEITHR, AKET
REMMIMBEIMNEARERBR, RF
A, AEEEEEARNBER. BoRIE
B e &8,

AEBENEERBLRERER, BE
BELXRFRERAEREEINT R
Bt E, AEEREZENFA. Hit
BNREREGHER. SHRRITERK.
HER BN KEMNBEB T RENRRES
RASEEBMFANFAE, REREH
RWEERBLRWT:

31 December
2023
—E=F
t-A=+—~
US$'000

FET

235,410

HiENRAREHER( A4

BERIN I KE24)
FHRRTTIER
HERR
J& 1~ BE RS T3 BIR
. R MIREEEY
FRE
TS

RmRBENFRE
BERELE

343,933
2,099,561
22,205
13,876

(5,585,181)

(2,870,196)
8,014,544

5,144,348
(55.79)%
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(a)

1 December 2024
—EZME+ A=A

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED ZEM[+ZEEHRAR] » 2024 ANNUAL REPORT FEHE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 39. REBREREBRME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transactions (a) FBHFBREXRH
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to RERA, $$§ﬁ§;§%%ﬁ%§;§t
right-of-use assets or lease liabilities of US$5,745,000 Eﬁﬂﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁﬁé;‘%jfﬂﬁaﬁ{,ﬂj#
(2023: US$7,862,000) in respect of lease arrangements REANER5,745000%L( —F =
for buildings. =% 7,862,000%7T )
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities are (b) BMEEBFFELNREZESWT.
as follows:
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
STEBITER HEEE
US$’000 US$’ 000
EpH =TT
As at 1 January 2023 R-Z—_=F—H—H 1,908,336 19,348
Changes from financing cash flows RERSRSE 85,657 (5,674)
Interest expense FEFZ 102,444 1,068
New leases EALIEN=Y = 7,862
Foreign exchange movements ANGEE 3,124 (399)
As at 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=F+=H=+—H
1 January 2024 =T -mE&E—HA—H 2,099,561 22,205
Changes from financing cash flows HERCRELD 1,086 (5,694)
Interest expense MEFX 101,511 1,061
New leases g = 5,745
Foreign exchange movements ENESTED) (4,219) (337)
As at 31 December 2024 RZEZNF+=A=+—H 2,197,939 22,980
Total cash outflow for leases (c) MER&RHEEE

(c)

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement

of cash flows is as follows:

AR RERNAERSRHEA
g

2024 2023

—EMF —E=F

US$’ 000 US$’000

EP FE=T

Within operating activities KRN 2,693 2,383
Within financing activities EEHA 5,694 5,674
Total st 8,387 8,057
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40. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 40. EEXRFERERZFEET
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS NG
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material REBEBEAFERER 2 FRAIZ
non-controlling interests are set out below: BT
2024 2023
—ECNE —T=%F
Percentage of interest held by IR A SR .
non-controlling interests:
Hua Hong Manufacturing Bl 49% 49%
Hua Hong Wuxi T M) 49% 49%
The board of directors is the supreme governing body for Hua ExgRENEHNSRSEEME, &
Hong Wuxi, in which non-controlling shareholders hold three +THREFEK, EF=BEFRIFER
seats out of seven. Therefore, the proportion of voting rights is RN, BEit, RERLOITRN e
different from that of the ownership interest above. BRERESLLA,
2024 2023
—E-mEF —T=%F
US$’000 US$'000
SEEDv FET
Loss for the year allocated to DEEEIEER R 2 FAEE.
non-controlling interests:
Hua Hong Wuxi ] M) (174,455) (150,000)
Hua Hong Manufacturing FEELE (24,038) (3,609)
(198,493) (153,609)

Accumulated balances of non-controlling ¥R B BIIEIEAGHERS Rt 456%
interests at the reporting date:

Hua Hong Wuxi IR 750,194 936,596
Hua Hong Manufacturing QTR 1,909,399 776,953

2,659,593 1,713,549
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31 December 2024
—EZME+=ZA=+—H

40. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed
are before any inter-company eliminations:

DE(4E)

40. REAFERBRZHFEET

TREE B F AR EER, K
Bz eBRAEAARREHET 2 25

Hua Hong Wuxi

T 45
2024 2023
—ET-MF —EC=F
US$’ 000 US$'000
FEx FET

Revenue SHE WA 1,006,948 995,981
Other income E bl A 17,878 61,382
Total expenses Fiz 4858 (1,380,856) (1,357,791)
Loss and total comprehensive loss FABEREARERE

for the year (356,030) (300,428)
Current assets MENEE 1,351,216 1,248,003
Non-current assets FEMENEE 2,516,963 2,846,165
Current liabilities mERE 653,614 475,938
Non-current liabilities JERBBE 1,678,009 1,701,179
Net cash flows generated from operating &&/EBFTSREREFHE

activities 272,611 219,745
Net cash flows used in investing activites & & /EBFTAE S REF5E (200,949) (533,561)
Net cash flows used in financing activites Et&EBFIRIREHEF4E (40,283) (50,119)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes,  JMNEMERZ B2, H58

net (8,967) (13,819)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash R& MIREEEYE M~

equivalents (R )FEE 22,412 (377,754)
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31 December 2024

—E-mF+=A=+

40. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed
are before any inter-company eliminations:

g )

- PIRERARMEE

40. REAFERBRZHFEET

TREE B F AR EER, K
Bz eBRAEAARREHET 2 25

Hua Hong Manufacturing

EHITRE
2024 2023
—EomE —EC=F
US$’ 000 US$'000
F3575 FET

Revenue SHEUA 485 -
Other income H A 34,905 9,002
Total expenses Fiz 4858 (84,572) (16,450)
Loss and total comprehensive loss FAEEREAEERE

for the year (49,182) (7,448)
Current assets BB E 1,778,408 1,444,804
Non-current assets FEMBEE 2,896,429 357,112
Current liabilities mEEE 606,185 103,430
Non-current liabilities FERBAE 172,126 112,951
Net cash flows used in operating activities &4 EBFIMIREHEFE (84,512) (8,487)
Net cash flows used in investing activites & & /EBFTAE S REF5 (2,359,696) (260,150)
Net cash flows generated from financing @& /EBAMTFHESREFHE

activities 2,472,698 1,772,576
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes,  JNEMERZB)F/L, H58

- (27,379) (18,123)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 8% N3R& BV HNF 58 1,111 1,435,816

41. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 4. mEHEREIE

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the
Group after 31 December 2024.

R-_TE-_NME+-_A=+—HB#%, K&
B EEITERBESE,
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31 December 2024
—TomE+=A=+—H

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

42. XX BB AR R

BRXRARBERAROPBERAKRE
FEZT .

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2024 2023
—EMF —E-=F
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
US$’ 000 US$'000
FEx TET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RERF A 4,795,657 4,267,223
Total non-current assets BB EEARRE 4,795,657 4,267,223
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade and notes receivables B SR ERIA & BN =R 2,481 2,680
Prepayments, other receivables and other FEfZIE. HibmEUERIE K
assets Hih&EE 307 360
Due from a subsidiary U F R EIFRIE 1,001 1,001
Restricted and time deposits BB & N BRI K 33 27
Cash and cash equivalents Be MREEEY 457,551 1,021,676
Total current assets BN EELTE 461,373 1,025,744
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Other payables and accruals HiEARIEREHER 712 801
Due to subsidiaries BT RRIFHIE 96,467 98,701
Total current liabilities mB) B EERE 97,179 99,502
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 364,194 926,242
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABRABERE
LIABILITIES 5,159,851 5,193,465
Net assets BEE 5,159,851 5,193,465
EQUITY =
Share capital (note 30) B&A( BfTEES0 ) 4,938,457 4,933,559
Reserves (note) M EE) 221,394 259,906
Total equity R 5,159,851 5,193,465
Junjun Tang Jun Ye
BEYE =g
Director Director

EF EF
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 42. KA TR RET(E )
THE COMPANY (continued)
Note: MTJE\:\E
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARRIMFEEBLT
Other Share option Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
HithfE e IBRERE B 1z Al st
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’ 000
FTEx TEx TERT ETT
As at 1 January 2023 R-E-_=F—H—H (68,260) 14,434 180,048 126,222
Profit for the year FREF - = 134,079 134,079
Equity-settled share option DA E MR EL
arrangements - 853 - 853
Issue of shares BITRRD = (1,248) = (1,248)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 RZT==F+=-A=+—H
January 2024 ;=T -pFE—A—H (68,260) 14,039 314,127 259,906
Profit for the year F R A - - (1,082) (1,082)
Equity-settled share option LAz G E BB IR bt
arrangements - 18 - 18
Dividends s - - (36,233) (36,233)
Issue of shares BT D = (1,215) = (1,215)
As at 31 December 2024 R=E-mWF+=-A=+—H (68,260) 12,842 276,812 221,394
43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 43. MR AALE
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for Eﬁ%iﬁi% E\E\é:?;?ﬁ@iﬂ =t£H
issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2025. BESEE LRI,
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set
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TXEINAEEREO DA R EFENES
UREE. BRERFERESHHME, B
BRI E TR EERYBTRE,

out below.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-HLEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
ZECNE —E-=fF —T_— =Eo= —E-TF
US$’ 000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000  US$000
E TEr TET T TET
RESULTS £
REVENUE HEWA 2,003,993 2286113 2475488 1,630,754 961,279
Cost of sales HERA (1,798,865) (1,799,017) (1,631,832)) (1,179,156)  (726,486)
Gross profit 7 205,128 487,096 843,656 451,598 234,793
Other income and gains HABA Rz 149,072 144,370 70,986 60,758 57,313
Fair value gain on an investment property & &N AT E R (39) 103 78 183 198
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (9,628) (10,189) (12,464) (10,673) (8,169)
Administrative expenses EEER (351,276)  (322,868)  (266,666)  (198,920)  (261,139)
Other expenses Hi &M (33,395) (33,666)  (111,360) (165) (10)
Finance costs BB (97,113)  (100,497) (40,331) (13,226) (2,968)
Share of profits of associates AEHE R TR 3,459 9,230 12,171 6,765 26,059
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BeADRA] (133,792) 173,579 496,070 296,320 46,077
Income tax expense FEHAX (6,593) (47,154) (89,499) (65,349) (12,762)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FR( BB ) EF (140,385) 126,425 406,571 230,971 33,315
Attributable to: PR IRRE.
Owners of the parent SARERA 58,108 280,034 449,912 261,476 99,443
Non-controlling interests IR (198,493) (153,609 (43,341) (30,505) (66,128)
(140,385) 126,425 406,571 230,971 33,315
As at 31 December
Rt=A=t+—H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
ZECNE = —T_— =Ho= —E-TF
US$’ 000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000  US$000
EY TEr TET T TEL
Total assets BERE 12,415,108 10943420 7055376 6,202,099 4,568,586
Total liabilities Elet (3,508,489) (2,928,876) (2,919,908) (2,517,552) (1,214,465)
Non-controlling interests MRS (2,659,593)  (1,713,549) (1,104,998)  (814,188)  (825,679)
6,247,026 6,300,995 3030470 2,870,359 2,528,442
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